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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 27 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morning  Mr  Myburgh,  good morning 

everybody.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Good morning Chai rperson.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.   Good morning Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Morn ing Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are on our  last  mi le  of  th is  journey so 

i t  has been a long journey.   How many t imes have you 

appeared here now Mr S ingh – have you been keeping a  10 

count?  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight  p lease admin iste r  the oath 

or  a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MR SINGH:   Anoj  S ingh.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  

prescr ibed oath? 

MR SINGH:   No I  do not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  20 

conscience? 

MR SINGH:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing but  

the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so help 



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 4 of 313 
 

me God.  

MR SINGH:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Thank you Chai rperson.   Good morning  

Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Morn ing S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Could I  ask you p lease to  turn to  

Bundle 5(c)  and to  page 2011 – 5(c)  ja .   I t  must  be there.    

MR SINGH:   Sorry S i r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So i t  is  towards the end page 2011.    10 

MR SINGH:   2011.   I  am there S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   So th is  is  an aff idavi t  o f  

Cra ig S inton and perhaps I  could  – do you know that  he  

worked at  –  together  wi th  Mr Bester.   Let  me take you to  

page 2012 fo l low ing the last  proceedings we obta ined th is  

aff idavi t .   A t  paragraph 6 he says:  

“ I  watched the ev idence of  Mr S ingh and in  

par t icu lar  h is  ev idence on Fr iday 23 Apr i l  

2021 I  heard Mr  S ingh deny Mr  Bester ’s  

vers ion that  he  at tended a meet ing at  20 

Mel rose Arch where Mr Essa was present .   

Mr S ingh a lso stated that  there was no 

conf i rmatory aff idavi t s  f rom me and Cra ig  

S immer regard ing  th is  mat te r. ”  

He goes on to  say at  paragraph 7.  
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“ I  conf i rm Mr Bester ’s  vers ion that  a  meet ing  

occur red at  Mel rose Arch in  2014 at tended 

by Mr S ingh and Mr Essa.   I  was present  at  

th is  meet ing. ”  

Paragraph 8.  

“As I  recal l  th is  meet ing came about  for  two 

reasons.   F i rs t  to  d iscuss the reasons fo r  

de layed payment  of  Hatch’s invoices and the  

new mul t i  p ipe l ine pro ject  MMPP and 

secondly to  have a d iscussion about  10 

00:04:20 approach to supply development  on 

Transnet  pro jec ts where Hatch was 

involved. ”  

At  paragraph 9.  

“As I  understood i t  a t  the t ime the supply  

development  was a re la t i ve ly  new concept  

and everyone was learn ing in  that  process.   

Hatch was of  the  v iew that  he had done a  

re la t ive ly  good job insofar  as suppl ie r  

development  was concerned but  i f  Transnet  20 

and in  par t icu la r  Mr S ingh had any issues 

we were more  than wi l l i ng to  have a  

d iscussion because Mr Bester  had 

suspected that  Mr S ingh’s issues would –  

wi th  Hatch regard ing supply development  
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was one of  the reasons causing the delay in  

the payment  of  Hatch’s MEP invoices. ”  

 And then perhaps I  can get  to  the nub of  i t .   He says 

that  as far  as he was concerned at  paragraph 3 he  

addresses the in tent ion of  the meet ing.    

 In  paragraph 11 he deals wi th  your  ev idence that  you 

fe l t  i t  s t range that  Mr Bester  was involved in  the meet ing.  

 A t  paragraph 12 he deals wi th  the  fact  that  on the  

morning  of  the meet ing he was requested by  Mr  Bester  to  

at tend i t .  10 

 And then i f  I  can get  to  the hear t  o f  i t  a t  paragraph 

13 he says:  

“When I  a rr i ved at  the restaurant  Mr Bester  

was a l ready there and I  got  in t roduced to a  

gent leman by the name of  Sal im.   To the 

best  o f  my recol lect ion the restaurant  where  

we met  was the Meat  Company and Mr  

S immer a lso  at tended the meet ing.   We 

engaged in  some smal l  ta lk  and basica l l y  

just  wai ted fo r  Mr S ingh to jo in  us.   I  was 20 

not  b r ie fed about  who Sal im was and I  d id  

not  ask.   Later  a f ter  the Gupta Leaks 

became publ ic  I  came to know that  Sal im 

was in  fact  Mr  Sal im Essa.   Mr Essa sa id 

that  he would ca l l  Mr S ingh.   I  cannot  say  
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whether  he in  fact  ca l led Mr S ingh because I  

d id  not  hear  the te lephone conversat ions.   I  

remember Mr Essa making about  three or  

four  ca l l s  but  I  cannot  conf i rm that  these 

were a l l  to  Mr S ingh.   What  I  recal l  is  that  

shor t ly  a f ter  Mr Essa made these ca l l s  Mr  

S ingh ar r i ved.   I  heard Mr Bester ’s  ev idence 

that  Mr S ingh ar r ived qui te  l i te ra l ly  a  few 

seconds la te r  but  my recol lect ion is  that  Mr 

S ingh arr i ved a few minutes af ter  the ca l l .   10 

In  h is  s tatement  Mr Bester  does state that  

Mr S ingh arr i ved a few minutes af ter  the ca l l  

which is  the  same as my recol lec t ion.   I f  I  

were to  guess I  would say i t  was 

approximate ly  f ive minutes f rom the t ime Mr  

Essa made the  ca l ls  to  when Mr S ingh 

ar r ived. ”  

Paragraph 14.  

“Dur ing the meet ing I  sat  next  to  Mr S ingh 

qui te  apar t  f rom the fact  that  I  d id  not  20 

understand the presence of  Mr Essa at  the  

meet ing.   Mr S ingh’s behaviour  was a lso  

ext remely odd.   My understanding  was that  

Mr S ingh would be in  charge of  th is  meet ing 

s ince he was the  CFO of  Transnet  and the  
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meet ing re la ted to  Transnet  business but  in  

fact  Mr Essa dominated the meet ing . ”  

Paragraph 15.  

“As I  have sa id Mr Essa was running the  

meet ing and whi le  I  thought  we were there  

to  d iscuss non-payment  of  invo ices and 

issues wi th  supply development  on the  

exis t ing programs Mr Essa wanted to  

d iscuss the next  phase of  the MEP.   He 

d iscussed the need to br ing in  speci f ic  10 

supply development  par tners in  the next  

phase but  he was very vague and d id not  

ment ion any names as they wanted us to  

read between the l ines. ”  

Paragraph 16.  

“S ince Hatch had pr io r  exper ience wi th  

receiv ing pressure on which  supply  

development  par tners – which  supply  

development  par tners to  appoint  on pro jects  

I  was very wary o f  where the d iscussion was 20 

going. ”  

In  paragraph 17.  

“When I  came – sor ry  – when i t  came to the 

d iscussion about  our  outstanding  invoices 

not  on ly was i t  a  very short  d iscussion but  
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Mr S ingh was ext remely non-commit ta l  on  

when our  invoices would be paid.   I  d id  not  

push the d iscussion about  the payments  

because qui te  f rankly the ent i re  meet ing was 

st range and i t  was c lear  that  a t  least  to  me 

Mr S ingh d id not  come armed wi th  deta i l  to  

be in  a posi t ion to  answer  speci f ic  

quest ions. ”  

 You want  to  comment  on that  before I  get  to  the las t  

two paragraphs? 10 

MR SINGH:   Maybe you can conclude the two paragraphs 

and then ( inaudib le) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Paragraph 18.  

“Mr S ingh le f t  the meet ing before  a l l  o f  us.   

When the rest  o f  us le f t  the meet ing I  heard  

Mr Essa say that  Mr Molefe who was then 

the Chief  Execut ive Off i cer  o f  Transnet  

would become the next  Chief  Execut ive  

Off icer  of  Eskom.  I  f ind i t  b izar re that  he 

would make such a statement  but  I  thought  20 

that  perhaps Mr  Essa had rece ived th is  

ins ide in format ion f rom Mr S ingh g iven that  

they seem to know each other  qu i te  wel l  or  

f rom other  some other  source who would be  

pr ivy to  such in fo rmat ion. ”  
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And then the last  paragraph 19.  

“ I  am aware that  in  h is  ev idence before the 

commission and in  h is  s tatement  Mr Bester  

test i f ied that  Mr  Essa to ld  h im about  Mr  

Molefe being appointed as the Chief  

Execut ive Off i cer  o f  Eskom at  a  subsequent  

meet ing.   However I  remember d is t inct l y  that  

Essa ment ioned th is  in  my presence af ter  Mr  

S ingh le f t . ”  

P lease go ahead.  10 

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Myburgh.   Chai r  I  th ink  f rom my 

perspect ive I  deny the meet ing once again.   As  you wi l l  

recal l  Mr Chai r  th is  meet ing was 00:09:52 at  a  p lace at  

Mel rose Arch wi th  Mr Bester  and I  d id  on a previous 

occasion provide my v iews on th is  meet ing and at  that  s tage 

I  a lso denied the  meet ing having taken p lace.   Mr  Chai r  I  

s tand by that  denia l  in  terms of  the meet ing tak ing p lace 

wi th  mysel f .  

 I  am not  too sure  i f  there is  anyth ing e lse to  say in  

th is  regard Mr Chai r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Sure.   Could  I  then take you to  page 

2017.   This is  an aff idavi t  f rom Ms Takane your  ex-

secretary,  is  that  correct?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  And she dea ls wi th  two th ings in  th is  
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a ff idavi t .   The meet ing that  Mr Gama spoke about  in  your  

off ice in  Ju ly /August  2015 and then an ear l ie r  meet ing.   I f  I  

could just  paraphrase for  the in terests of  t ime what  she 

says about  the meet ing that  Mr Gama a l leged.    

 She says that  she – she deals wi th  the conf igurat ion 

of  the off ices.   She makes the point  that  she would not  

a l low somebody to go in to your  off ice unannounced and at  

paragraph 9 she speaks about  her  core work ing hours are  

f rom – or  7 :30 to  16H00 however there were occasions 

where should wou ld leave the off i ce  around 17H00.     10 

 She says at  paragraph 11  

“ I  cannot  recal l  a  meet ing between Mr S ingh 

and Mr Essa tak ing p lace dur ing  Ju ly and 

August  2015 in  the board room s i tuated in  

the GECFO’s o ff ice.   Fur ther  and fo r  

reasons expla ined hereunder in  respect  o f  

the inc ident  a l luded to in  paragraph 4.2 

above I  do not  recal l  seeing a gent leman 

resembl ing Essa exi t ing f rom the board room 

af ter  having a  meet ing wi th  Mr S ingh.   In  20 

addi t ion to  the v is i t  a l luded to in  paragraph 

4.2 above Mr Essa was at  that  t ime in  2015 

ment ioned f requent ly  in  newspapers so I  

would have been able to  not ice h im.”  

Then she says at  paragraph 12.  
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“Mr S ingh le f t  Transnet  for  Eskom SOC 

Limi ted in  August  2015.”  

Paragraph 13.  

“ I  wish to  st ress to  the commission that  my 

evidence only per ta ins to  the per iods wi th in  

which I  would have been at  my desk dur ing  

my core work ing hours June,  Ju ly  and 

August  2015.   I  cannot  provide any ins ight  

as to  what  occur red outs ide of  my core  

work ing hours. ”  10 

 You wish to  comment  on anyth ing there.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  o ther  than the fact  that  th is  

conf i rmat ion of  my test imony that  I  have g iven at  my 

previous session regard ing the v is i t  o f  Mr Essa to  my off ice  

as a l leged by Mr Gama.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Unless the meet ing happened outs ide 

of  her  core work ing hours.  

MR SINGH:   Accord ing to  her  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  R ight .   Then she deals wi th  an  ear l ie r  

in teract ion.   There is  a  heading Mr  Essa’s v is i t  to  Transnet  20 

off ices in  Car l ton Cent re.    

Paragraph 14.  

“Mr Essa v is i ted  Transnet  Head Off ices in  

Car l ton Cent re in  la te 2012 whi ls t  Mr S ingh 

was st i l l  the act ing Group Chief  Financia l  
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Off icer.   Dur ing th is  meet ing h is  o ff ice was 

s i tuated on the 44 t h  f loor  as the  49 t h  f loor  

which was reserved fo r  execut ives  could not  

be occupied as  i t  was st i l l  undergoing  

renovat ions. ”  

Next  paragraph.  

“Whi ls t  I  am unab le to  recal l  the exact  date of  Mr 

Essa’s v is i t  I  am able to  recal l  the  events of  the 

day which inc luded the v is i t  as fo l lows:  

1.  In  the morning in  quest ion at  around 09H50 10 

Mr S ingh came out  o f  h is  off i ce and gave 

me a document  fac ing down.   He asked me 

to get  an envelope and put  the document  in  

i t .   He fur ther  ins t ructed me to address the 

envelope to Mr Sal im Essa.    

2 .  I  took the document  and kept  i t  in  the way 

that  he gave i t  to  me and typed “Mr Sal im 

Essa”  for  purposes of  p r in t ing i t  onto a 

st icker  label  to  pu t  on the envelope.  

3.  As I  was put t ing the document  in to the  20 

envelope wi thout  in tending to  do so my 

eyes p icked up some in format ion.   I  recal l  

seeing  that  i t  was a  memorandum 

addressed to the board acquis i t ion and 

d isposal  counci l  o f  Transnet .   Fur ther  I  
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recal l  seeing the words “Hedge Goba”  I  d id  

not  read the document  beyond not ic ing what  

I  have stated.  

4 .  At  approximate ly  10H15 Mr S ingh came out  

o f  h is  off ice and to ld  me that  he was going 

to  the bank.  

5 .  Between  10H30 and 10H45 Mr Essa came 

to co l lect  the envelope f rom me.   When he 

ar r ived at  my desk he asked for  an 

envelope addressed to Mr Sal im Essa.   I  10 

handed over  the envelope to h im.   Whi ls t  I  

d id  not  ver i f y  wi th  th is  gent leman i f  indeed 

he was Mr Essa I  be l ieve that  i t  was h im fo r  

the fo l lowing reasons.  

1 .  The gent leman d id not  seek to  conf i rm i f  

I  was Mr S ingh’s personal  ass is tant  or  

whether  he was a t  Mr S ingh’s off i ce.   He 

was aware of  where he had to  co l lect  the 

envelope f rom and to whom the envelope 

would be addressed to.  20 

2.  In  2015 when I  saw Mr Essa in  the  

newspapers I  could not  he lp but  rea l ise  

that  he had somewhat  aged f rom th is  

encounter  in  2012.   I  have no doubt  that  

th is  was the same gent leman who had 
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co l lected the envelope f rom me in  2012.  

6.  Mr Essa took the  envelope and le f t  he d id  

not  s i t  down or  wai t  ne i ther  d id  he  enqui re  

about  Mr S ingh.   On the day in  quest ion I  

recal l  that  he was wear ing a  wh i te  t -sh i r t  

wi th  a car toon character  on the f ront .    

7 .  When Mr S ingh came back f rom the bank he 

d id not  enqui re as to  the whereabouts of  

the envelope.   He never  spoke about  i t  

again. ”  10 

Paragraph 16.  

“The reason why Hedge Goba perhaps 

caught  my eye was because previously  

Transnet  had had deal ings wi th  them.  As far  

as  I  know Hedge Goba was main ly  used by  

Transnet  Capi ta l  Pro jects for  the var ious 

pro jects that  Transnet  undertook.   In  the 

course of  compi l ing meet ing packs for  Mr  

S ingh I  would see documents re ferr ing to  

Hedge Goba. ”  20 

 Now before I  ask  you to  comment  there i s  just  two 

th ings.   F i rs t ly  I  just  want  to  point  out  th is  aff idavi t  was 

obta ined f rom Mr Carney af ter  the issu ing of  a  Regulat ion 6  

– 10.6 Not ice  by the Chai rperson and secondly that  Mr  

Carney is  represented by Bowman Gi l f i l lan At torneys and 
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we are advised that  a  supplementary or  correct ing aff idavi t  

has been produced where the term Hedge Goba is  corrected 

to  ref lect  Hatch –  Hatch Goba.   That  aff idavi t  is  apparent ly  

on i ts  way and we wi l l  prov ide i t  to  you Mr S ingh as soon as  

we get  i t .  

 Do you want  to  comment  then on th is?  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Cha i r.   Mr Chai r  f i rs t ly  the  

a l legat ion  re la t ing to  Mr Essa co l lect ing  a document  at  my 

instance is  denied.   Mr Chai r  the reason fo r  me denying th is  

is  the fo l lowing issues.  10 

 Mr Chai r  i f  you have a reference to the name which  

is  now cor rected thankfu l l y  to  Hatch Goba e lse I  was going  

to  say Hedge Goba d id not  ex is t  or  does not  ex is t  but  we 

now know i t  is  Hatch Goba.    

 Mr Chai r  the f i rs t  po int  to  ra ise is  that  Hatch and 

Goba were actual ly  ind iv idual  companies and became Hatch 

Goba subsequent  to  a merger.   That  merger  Mr Chai r  

actual ly  on ly occur red in  Apr i l  o r  May of  2013 f rom media  

ar t i c les that  we have been able to  research.  

 So fo r  Mr Carney to  have reference to a document  20 

that  ex is ted in  2012 that  re ferences Hatch Goba is  a  b i t  o f  a  

mystery because Hatch Goba d id not  ex is t  in  2012.  

 Mr Chai r  secondly l i ke wi th  wi tness 3 i t  is  

improbable that  Ms Takane would  meet  Mr Essa once not  

having ident i f ied h imsel f  as Mr Essa and then three years  
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la ter  actual l y  ident i fy  or  recal l  the person that  she saw once 

in  2015 as Mr Essa.  

 Equal ly  so Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  her  aff idavi t  she 

does not  recal l  the t iming other  than to  say somet ime in  la te 

2015 – I  mean sor ry 2012 when th is  inc ident  occurred .  

 Mr Chai r  however  she is  very exact  about  the t imes 

at  which th is  a l leged col lect ion occurred referencing 

paragraph 15.4 and 15.5 which re fers to  10:15,  10 :30 and 

10:45.  

 Mr Chai r  a lso in  terms of  Mr Carney’s vers ion of  10 

events the  44 t h  Floor  of  the Car l ton Cent re equa l ly  had 

access cont ro l  l i ke the 49 t h  Floor  which she descr ibes.   

Maybe not  as le t  us say – as sophist icated as the 49 t h  Floor  

but  i t  cer ta in ly  had access cont ro l .   So you would not  have 

been able to  get  access to  the f loor  had you not  ident i f ied  

yoursel f  or  actual ly  had a Transnet  access card.   And i f  you 

were v is i t ing the – or  le t  us say my off ice at  the t ime when I  

was – and actual l y  Mr Chai r  in  la te  2012 I  was actual ly  not  

act ing CFO I  was actual l y  CFO at  the t ime.   I  had been 

appointed in  June or  Ju ly  sorry.    20 

 So Mr Chai r  i t  is  –  i t  is  h igh ly improbable that  Mr  

Carney’s recol lect ion of  events i s  p robable correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  So Mr S ingh just  to  ask you th is .   I  

mean you – you were – you sa id in  your  ear ly  – ear l ier  

test imony that  the commission  should approach your  
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secretary to  see whether  or  not  she could conf i rm the 

meet ing Mr Gama spoke about ,  cor rect?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  take i t  she was your  t rusted 

secretary someone who you had t rust  and fa i th  in?  

MR SINGH:   I  do so.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  So a meet ing was had wi th  her.   She 

was asked about  the Gama meet ing.  She then vo lunteered 

th is  other  knowledge of  th is  other  meet ing.   I s  th is  a case 

where you say that  she got  some of  the deta i l  wrong or  i s  i t  10 

a case where you say wel l  I  never  asked her  to  put  a  

document  and address i t  to  Mr Essa and he would never  

have come to fe tch such a document .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  in  response I  th ink the la t ter  

supposi t ion f rom Mr Myburgh is  probably my response is  

that  th is  sequence of  events never  happened.   I  never  

requested Ms [?]  to  on a 00:22:56 document  f rom me.   I  had 

no in teract ion wi th  Mr Essa.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And when you compare her  to  Wi tness 

3 who put  her  name to a face years la te r  I  want  to  suggest  20 

to  you that  a  fa i r  reading of  her  aff idavi t  is  she a lways 

assumed that  the  person that  co l lected the aff idavi t  was Mr 

Essa.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry I  do not  understand S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Wel l  i t  is  not  a  mat te r  o f  her  put t ing a 
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name to a face la ter  as Wi tness 3 d id as you say.   Ms 

Takane assumed that  the person who col lected the envelope 

was Mr Essa and la ter  on she says wel l  she could not  but  

not ice that  he had aged.    

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r  but  tha t  is  three years la te r  Mr  

Chai r  and having  seen a person once I  would  st i l l  hazard to  

say that  i t  is  h igh ly  improbable that  you wi l l  remember a 

person three years in .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Wel l  le t  me take you to  paragraph 

15.5.   Between 10:30 and 10:45 Mr Essa came to co l lect  the 10 

envelope f rom me.   When he ar r i ved at  my desk he asked 

for  an envelope addressed to Mr Essa.   I  handed over  the 

envelope to h im.   Whi ls t  I  d id  not  ver i fy  that  th is  gent leman 

– sorry whi ls t  I  d id  not  ver i f y  wi th  the gent leman i f  indeed 

he was Mr Essa I  be l ieved that  i t  was h im fo r  the fo l lowing 

reasons.  

1 .  The gent leman d id not  seek to  conf i rm i f  I  was Mr  

S ingh’s personal  ass is tant  o r  whether  he was at  Mr 

S ingh’s off ice.   He was aware o f  where he had to 

co l lect  the envelope f rom and to whom the envelope 20 

would be addressed to.  

MR SINGH:   As I  sa id Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  the 00:24:40 

there is  no way you can access the 49 t h  Floor  i f  you are not  

a l lowed access.   So there was no way that  Mr Essa would  

have gained access to  the 49 t h  Floor  to  be able to  walk to  
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my off ice,  engage wi th  Ms Takane and basica l l y  p ick  up any 

document  that  purpor tedly was le f t  there to  be co l lected.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  But  we are not  ta lk ing about  the 49 t h  

Floor.  

MR SINGH:   I  mean sorry the 44 t h  Floor.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  So could he have gained access to  the  

44 t h  Floor?  

MR SINGH:   No,  no my point  is  that  the 44th Floor  had 

access cont ro l  as wel l .   There was no way that  he would  

have had f ree access in to the 49 t h  Floor  to  access Ms 10 

Takane’s off i ce as  she a l leges.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson I  seem to lose some 

of  the ev idence of  my c l ient .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:  He must  p lease t ry  and speak up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Because we cannot  hear  h im very 

wel l  th is  s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  –  that  i s  t rue .   You know you seem to  

swal low some of  the words or  you drop your  vo ice so t ry  20 

and speak up.  

MR SINGH:   Let  me make some cosmet ic  ad justments to  the 

seat ing arrangements here Mr Cha i r.   I  th ink th is  should be  

bet te r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  A l l  r ight  do you have any other  
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comments on th is  aff idavi t?  

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r  o ther  than to  just  say tha t  I  would  

never  – I  mean – paragraph 17 and 18 re lates  to  her  

personal  safety and concerns Mr Chai r  I  just  want  to  say 

that  I  would never  in  any way Chai r  00:26:21 ever  threaten 

or  have any safety issues re la t ing to  Ms Takane.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Of  course  there is  a  connect ion 

between th is  and the evidence of  Mr Bester  and Mr  S inton 

because the meet ing that  they say they at tended where you 

were present  was a meet ing at tended by Mr Essa and 10 

re lated to  Hatch.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  i f  I  can respond.   Clear ly  the 

a l leged document  that  Ms Takane was refer r ing to  was a 

Hatch Goba document  which we now know Hatch Goba d id 

not  ex is t  in  2012.   The meet ing  that  Mr Bester  and Mr 

S inton refers to  was a meet ing that  happened in  2014.   In  

between a l l  o f  th is  Mr Chai r  in  2013 you wi l l  recal l  that  

there was a NEP phase 1 that  was happening wi th  Hatch 

Goba and the meet ing in  2014 re lated to  I  would  assume 

accord ing to  – i f  you want  to  take Mr Bester ’s  vers ion of  20 

events  i t  was only to  d iscuss outs tanding invoices whereas 

i f  you take Mr S inton’s vers ion of  events i t  was to  d iscuss 

outstanding invoices as wel l  as supply development  on NEP 

phase 2.   So Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  the events – i f  you look 

at  Ms Takane’s s tandalone there was noth ing happening in  
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2012 wi th  Hatch Goba.   I f  you look at  Mr Bester  and Mr  

S inton i f  they were actual ly  t ry ing to  c la r i fy  issues they 

have actual l y  c reated more of  an issue because Mr  S inton 

d i rect ly  cont radicts  Mr Bester ’s  vers ion of  events d i rect l y  on 

numerous accounts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  your  vers ion that  they are making a l l  

th is  up.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  would f ind i t  very hard any other  

reason as to  why th is  has happened.   Mr Chai r  f rom Ms 

Takane’s perspect ive she may have known about  Hatch  10 

Goba through as she says the fact  that  she was exposed to  

documents that  would have f lowed th rough my off ice in  

terms of  compi la t ion of  facts but  that  would have only  

happened post  the merger  which would have been Apr i l /May 

2013 when NEP 1 was actual l y  happening i f  indeed 

documents d id go.   And being 00:29:24 would have been 

engaged in  NEP 1 I  would  assume somet ime in  

June/July/August  2013 there or  thereabouts.   So th is  

sequence of  events about  a year  la te r  o r  a  year  ear l ier  on  

Ms Takane’s vers ion of  events.   In terms of  Mr Bester  and 20 

Mr S inton Mr Cha i r  we had occasion to  go and t ry  and ver i fy  

whether  these invoices that  they say were outstanding were  

actual ly  sent  to  – we are not  ab le to  – the emai ls  tha t  they  

a l leged to  have sent  to  me.   So my emai ls  do  no t  re f lec t  

any emai l s  tha t  wou ld  query  these outs tand ing  invo ices.   
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The cur ios i t y  o f  why Mr  S in ton  wou ld  now f ind  condensed 

two meet ings tha t  Mr  Bester  a l leges happened. . .   I  am not  

too  sure  because  as  you wou ld  know,  Mr  Cha i r.   I f  you  look 

a t  the  sequence o f  events  in  te rms o f  the  t im ing ,  you wou ld  

reca l l  tha t  Remi (?)  P1,  wh ich  happened in  a round 2013,  

was sub jec t  to  an  issue re la t ing  to  SD and the  issue  

re la t ing  to  . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Re la t ing  to?  

MR SINGH :    SD,  Mr  Cha i r.   Supp ly  Deve lopment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR SINGH :    And  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the  issue was whethe r  

30% SD was more  appropr ia te  versus 50% SD.   And you 

w i l l  reca l l  aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  Hatch  ac tua l l y  accepted 

Transnet ’s  p ropos i t ion  in  tha t  regard  fo r  50% SD.   So on 

Mr  S in ton ’s  vers ion  as  to  the  second ob jec t i ve  o f  tha t  

meet ing  be ing  SD issues tha t  needed to  be  reso lved w i th  

Transnet  and in  par t i cu la r  w i th  myse l f .    

 Mr  Cha i r,  th is  does not  –  there  was noth ing  to  

reso lve  because  Hatch  had more  than exceeded the i r  

expecta t ion  in  meet ing  the  50% requ i rement  tha t  Transnet  20 

had a l ready issued an NEP Phase  1 .   So the  second issue  

in  te rms o f  Mr  S in ton ’s  ob jec t i ve  fo r  the  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Essa or  a l leged meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa,  in  my v iew,  does  

not  ho ld  any credence,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  regard  to  your  –  w i th  regard  to  
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Mr  Carney(?) .   Do you th ink  she i s  jus t  m is taken about  th i s  

o ther  in fo rmat ion  she has vo lun teered or  you th ink  tha t  she  

too  is  mak ing  th is  up?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  she is  –  she 

wou ld  be  mak ing  th is  up .   For  whatever  ob jec t i ve  and  

whatever  mot ive ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  be  –  I  wou ld  no t  

know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you accept  tha t  you do not  know o f  

any reason why  she wou ld  want  to  make th is  up  to  

p re jud ice  you?  10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  o ther  than the  –  fo l low ing the  

prev ious l ine  o f  reason ing  a round the  fac t  tha t  –  Mr  Cha i r,  

i t  i s  very  co inc identa l  tha t  you have an issue w i th  Hatch  

G loba l ,  w i th  Mr  Beste r  and Mr  S in ton  and Mr  Carney then  

a lso  has an  issue w i th  Hatch  Goba d id  no t  ex i s t  a t  the  

t ime.   So the  quest ion  about  as  t o  where  d id  Ms Thakan i  

ge ts  th is  Hatch  Goba in  2012 f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  no t ,  Mr  S ingh,  tha t  

i f  she  rea l l y  wanted to  make up someth ing ,  she wou ld  have  

conf i rmed –  she wou ld  no t  have conf i rmed your  ve rs ion  in  20 

regard  to  the  o ther  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Gama jus t  spoke about .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  t rue ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So why is  i t  tha t  when she conf i rms 

your  vers ion  in  regard  to  tha t  meet ing ,  do  you –  you have 

no p rob lem but  when she happens to  then say someth ing  
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tha t  does not  go  w i th  your  vers ion  in  regard  to  the  o the r  

meet ing ,  then sudden ly  she is  mak ing  th is  up?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  one ins tance i t  i s  the  

boot (?) ,  in  the  o ther  ins tance i t  i s  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you are  no t  even say ing :   No,  no .   

She must  be  m is taken.   She wou ld  no t  make th is  up .   She 

is  no t  tha t  t ype o f  person.   You are  no t  even say ing  tha t .   

You are  say ing  she is  mak ing  i t  up .    

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  f rom what  I  know o f  her,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  

very  un l i ke  her  to  have done someth ing  l i ke  th i s .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  why do you  –  what  i s  the  bas i s  fo r  

say ing  tha t  she is  no t  even mis taken,  she is  fabr ica t ing  

th is?  

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  maybe she is  m is taken in  – 

bu t  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  know how she wou ld  have  

mis taken Mr  Essa because she  is  d i rec t l y  mak ing  an 

a l legat ion  tha t  I  ins t ruc ted  her  to  ge t  the  document  f rom Mr  

Essa.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  in  tha t  case,  I  do  no t  know how she is  

m is taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  why . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  seems d i f f i cu l t  to  th ink  tha t  she 

wou ld  be  mis taken about  the  name o f  the  person tha t  she 

says you sa id  must  –  she had to  pu t  on  the  enve lope.   And  

o f  course ,  on  her  vers ion ,  a  cer ta in  person came and ask  

fo r  th is  enve lope  and took i t  and  she assumed i t  was Mr  

Essa.   When you  came back,  you  d id  no t  ask  whe ther  Mr  

Essa came and took the  enve lope.    

 I t  appears  tha t  you wou ld  have unders tood tha t  i f  

Mr  Essa had come and taken the  enve lope or  he  wou ld  

have known tha t  i f  i t  was not  h im,  he  wou ld  have send  10 

somebody because o the rwise  he  wou ld  ask  and say:   Has 

he ar r i ved?  Or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  Mr  Cha i r,  we  are  back in  the  same 

s i tua t ion  as  we were  w i th  Mr  Gama in  tha t ,  i f  th is  i s  a  

comple te  fabr i ca t ion  o f  fac t ,  then none o f  th is  wou ld  have  

happened,  wh ich  is  the  case.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am not  sure  I  unders tand what  you are  

say ing ,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  was say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Obv ious ly,  a  fabr i ca t ion  i s  someth ing  20 

tha t  never  happened.    

MR SINGH :    But  tha t  i s  my –  th is  i s  what  I  am say ing ,  

Mr  Cha i r.   Th i s  cou ld  no t  never  have happened because as  

I  sa id  to  you,  Ha tch  Goba d id  no t  ex is t  in  2013.   I  mean 

2012.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  make  any –  we l l ,  we are  to ld  

tha t  there  is  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  bu t  wou ld  i t  make  

any d i f fe rence whether  th is  happened in  2012 o r  2013? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  because as  I  sa id  Hatch  Goba 

d id  no t  ex is t  in  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . .no  t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  2013?  

MR SINGH :    There  were  no  t ransact ions tha t  I  reca l l  tha t  

wou ld  requ i re  –  needed to  have gone to  the  BADC in  2012  10 

re la t ing  to  Hatch .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Perhaps,  I  jus t  want  to  

pu t  one th ing  to  you.   Mr  Carney d id  no t  want  to  g ive  th is  

a f f idav i t .   We had to  i ssue a  summons to  ge t  i t  f rom h im.   

Would  you l i ke  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I  want  to  go  back to  the  

locomot ives  and to  p ick  up  f rom where  we le f t  o f f  on  tha t  

top ic  be fore .   You might  remember  tha t  essent ia l l y  the  on ly  20 

th ing  tha t  we have dea l t  w i th  in  any de ta i l  was the  ro le  tha t  

you p layed spec i f i ca l l y  in  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 

locomot ives .   We went  th rough the  var ious ro les  tha t  you  

p layed.   Do you reca l l  tha t  ev idence? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  seem to  reca l l  i t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  wan t  to  p ick  up  on the  one  

p iece o f  ev idence tha t  you gave and I  jus t  want  to  c la r i f y  

someth ing .   I f  I  can?  You reca l led  say ing  tha t  you were  

no t  invo l ved in  the  tender  eva lua t ion  process par t  o f  the  

acqu is i t ion .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    I  am so so r ry.   There  must  be  

an  issue w i th  the  sound because I  cannot  hear  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  hear?  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    . . .Mr  Myburgh a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  so?   Maybe t ry  aga in ,  Mr  

Myburgh.   Le t  us  see.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Mr  S ingh,  can I  ask  you 

p lease to  take  ou t  Exh ib i t  BB4( f ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    How was tha t  –  can you hear?   Cou ld  

you hear  tha t?  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    [Microphone not  sw i tched on]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Sor ry.   Maybe the  sound can 

jus t  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i f  the  techn ic ians cou ld  a t tend  to  that  

so  tha t  the  sound  is  c leare r.   Okay  a l r igh t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  Mr  Laher ’s  exh ib i t .   And you  

shou ld  f ind  under  the  d iv ide r.   In  fac t ,  the  f i rs t  s ta tement .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  you go to  page 87,  p lease?  I  

jus t  want  you to  ass i s t  me wi th  two  documents .    

MR SINGH :    Page 87?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    87 ,  ja .   Y IL-87.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  Mr  Laher ’s  th ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Y IL-87.  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So tha t  i s  in  the  f i rs t  

s ta tement .   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  there  you have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second.   How is  i t  go ing?  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    [Microphone not  sw i tched on]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then you have a  memorandum to  the  

Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors  da ted  the  17 t h  o f  January.   Do  

you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  sub jec t  i s :    

“Request  fo r  approva l  to  negot ia te  an  award  o f  

bus iness to  shor t l i s ted  tenderers  fo r  the  

supp ly  o f  599  Coco new dua l  vo l tage  
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locomot ives  fo r  the  genera l  f re igh t  bus iness. ”    

 You w i l l  see  tha t  you s igned th is  memorandum.   

That  i s  a t  page 95.   You s igned i t  on  the  21s t  o f  January  

2014.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  jus t  want  to  take  you  th rough 

th is .   I f  you  look a t  the  purpose  o f  the  memorandum at  

page 87.    

“ -  Th is  i s  to  p rov ide  an  update  to  the  Transnet  

Board  o f  D i rec tors .    10 

-  The process on  the  tender  eva lua t ion  

process.    

-  Note  and approve the  tender  eva lua t ion  

process f rom s tep  1  up  to  s tep  6  to  the  

Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors .    

-  Approva l  and  recommendat ion  o f  the  

shor t l i s ted  tenderers  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  tender  

and eva lua t ion  p rocess fo r  the  negot ia t ion  and 

award  o f  bus iness.    

-  De legate  a l l  powers  to  the  Group Ch ie f  20 

Execut ive  to  s ign ,  approve and conc lude a l l  

necessary  documents  to  g ive  e f fec t  to  the 

above reso lu t ions and noted tha t  the  above 

reso lu t ions are  sub jec t  to  the  recommendat ion  

o f  the  Board  D isposa l  And  Acqu is i t ions  
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Commi t tee  to  be  he ld  on  24 January  2014. . . ”  

 And then you w i l l  see ,  i f  you  go th rough the  

memorandum and  background,  go  to  page 88.   I t  exp la ins  

the  eva lua t ion  methodo logy th rough s ix  d i f fe ren t  s teps.   

And i f  you go,  fo r  example ,  to  page 92.   There  you w i l l  see  

the  sco r ing  and what  was be ing  measured.   And u l t imate ly,  

a t  page 95 what  was recommend to  the  Transnet  Board  o f  

D i rec tors  was to  no te  the  updates  on  the  p rogress o f  the  

tender  va lua t ion  process.    

“Note  and approve the  tender  eva lua t ion  10 

process f rom s tep  1  up  to  the  s tep  6  to  the 

Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors  and  approve the  

recommendat ion  o f  the  shor t l i s t  o f  tenderers  

as  a  resu l t  o f  the  tender  and eva lua t ion  

process fo r  the  negot ia t ion  and award  o f  

bus iness as  conta ined in  parag raphs 49 and  

50. . . ”  

 So I  take  i t  you  accept  tha t  you were  appr ised o f  

those va r ious th ings and tha t  you suppor ted  tha t  

recommendat ion .  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i t  was not  tha t  you were  –  and I  

am not  c r i t i ca l  o f  you r  ev idence,  I  was jus t  t ry ing  to  ge t  a  

sense –  as  I  unders tand then,  you yourse l f  were  no t  

phys i ca l l y  i nvo lved in  the  eva lua t ion  p rocess bu t  you were  
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obv ious ly  adv ised o f  i t .   You ana lysed what  the  s i tua t ion  

was and you were  in  a  pos i t ion  then to  suppor t  th is  

recommendat ion .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  fa i r  summary o f  the  – 

o f  my invo lvement .   I  th ink ,  i f  I  jus t  need to  e labora te .   

Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  eva lua t ion  process – ja ,  in  te rms 

o f  –  up  to  th is  po in t  in  t ime in  te rms o f  the  p repara t ion  o f  

th is  memo,  the  tender  rece ived the  tender  open ing  the  

tender  eva lua t ion  and a l l  those type o f  ad jud i ca t ion  wou ld  

have been under  the  d i rec torsh ip  o f  Mr  J i yane and Mr  10 

Gama together  w i th  the  cross- funct iona l  eva lua t ion  team.   

And we wou ld  have re l ied  on  the  repor t s  o f  the  cross-

funct ion  eva lua t i on  team as we l l  as  the  in te rna l  aud i t  

eva lua t ion  o f  those processes to  make the  recommendat ion  

to  the  board .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then –  so  th i s  re la tes  to  the  

e lec t r i c  locomot ives .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  memorandum re la ted  to  the  

e lec t r i c  locomot ives?  20 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  g ive  me one second.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The 599.  

MR SINGH :    You  see,  Mr  Cha i r  –  no . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  ta lks  about  due vo l tage and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR SINGH :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR SINGH :    Ja ,  dua l  vo l tage.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    . . .599. . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So I  then jus t  want  to  take  you 

to  the  cor respond ing  memorandum in  re la t ion  to  the  d iese l  10 

locomot ives .   Cou ld  you go to  page 100? 

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  you w i l l  see  –  obv ious ly,  the  

content  i s  d i f fe ren t  bu t  the  fo rmat  i s  the  same.   A s im i la r  

memo re la t ing  to  the  new d iese l  locomot ives .   You w i l l  see  

tha t  you s igned tha t  memorandum a lso  on  the  

14 t h  o f  January.   OH,  sor ry,  on  the  21s t  o f  January  2014.   

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  recommendat ion  read w i th  20 

the  necessary  changes brought  about  by  change in  contex t  

i s  essent ia l l y  the  same.   Cou ld  you  conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  i s  –  th is  i s  rea l l y  then a f te r  

bo th  dec is ions were  taken tha t  you became invo lved in  the  
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negot ia t ion  process.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  yes .   Th is  then led  to  the  

shor t l i s ted  b idders  be ing  the  two e lec t r i cs  and the  two  

d iese ls  and then cu lm inated in  the  -  what  we ca l led  i t  the  

post - tender  negot ia t ion  process.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  bu t  jus t  so  

tha t  we can go backwards,  one s tep  in  re la t ion  to  th is  

i ssue o f  Hatch  Goba.   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  up  Transnet  

Bund le  4(a)?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  4 (a) .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    4 (a) .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  –  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  to  the  Laher  

bund le .   My co l league w i l l  ass is t  you.    

MR SINGH :    We got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You have i t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Can we go to  –  you shou ld  

have d i f fe ren t  tabs there .   Go to  tab  BB-20.   Exh ib i t  BB-20.  

MR SINGH :    Ms S t rydom? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   You know Ms S t rydom,  do  you?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you  got  the  page  number,  

Mr  Myburgh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  s ta r ts  a t  131,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ms S t rydom’s  a f f idav i t  i t se l f  i s  a t  

133.   You know Ms S t rydom,  do  you?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And what  do  you know her  

to  have done?  What  was her  job?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  she was  invo lved in  the  cap i ta l  

p ro jec t  space and I  th ink  she was,  f rom the  t ime  tha t  I  

reca l l ,  she  was a  Programme Manager,  P rog ramme Di rec tor  

respons ib le  fo r  the  MEP o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The MEP,  yes.  10 

MR SINGH :    . . the  Manganese Expans ion  Pro jec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So tha t  i s  what  she  worked 

on,  the  MEP? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you are  r igh t  because a t  page  

135 she says the re  she is  the  Programme Di rec to r.   Do you  

see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now can I  take  you,  p lease,  to  

parag raph 32?  20 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  above tha t  –  above 31,  she 

dea ls  w i th  phase 1  o f  the  MEP.   Do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Have you –  yes,  pa ragraph 31.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  paragraph 32,  she says:  
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“Dur ing  2011,  Hatch  Goba (Hatch)  was  

appo in ted  by  the  TCP on beha l f  o f  the  OD’s  v ia  

task  o rder  under  the  Hatch  Mod McDona ld  

Goba Cont rac t  to  conc lude the  FEL 2  and 3  

Ra i l  Impor t  S tud ies  suppor t ing  the  MEP. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wou ld  you l i ke  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  no te  in  tha t  pa ragraph,  Mr  S ingh,  10 

tha t  Ms S t rydom in  the  contex t  o f  2011 a l so  re fers  to  Hatch  

Goba.    

MR SINGH :    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is ,  I  wou ld  th ink ,  i s  a  –  the 

two compan ies  were  probab ly  in to  some sor t  o f  jo in t  

venture .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    And then submi t ted  a  house order  o r  a  work  

order  to  work  as  a  consor t ium.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  o f  course ,  i f  she  cou ld  re fer  to  

i t  as  Hatch  Goba in  the  contex t  o f  2011,  you o r  your  20 

secre tary  cou ld  a lso  re fe r  to  i t  in  2011 as  Hatch  Goba.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  p robab ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  tha t  contex t .  

MR SINGH :    P robab ly  in  tha t  contex t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   So go ing  back  to  the 

locomot ives .   We have dea l t  w i th  your  ro le .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  po in t  –  I  am so r ry,  

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    I f  you  look –  i f  you  wou ld  jus t  have re ference 

to  parag raph 32 on page 144,  you  wou ld  see tha t  th is  was 

appo in ted  by  TCP,  wh ich  means i t  was appo in ted  by  

Transnet  Cap i ta l  P ro jec t .   So th is  wou ld  have had no  

impact  coming to  g roup or  coming v ia  th is  o f f i ce  o f  the  10 

CFO in  any way,  shape or  fo rm because th is  dec i s ion  was 

taken by  Transne t  Cap i ta l  P ro jec t s  a t  the i r  leve l .   As  you  

can see,  i t  says  on  beha l f  o f  the  OD.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  impor tance o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we are  t ry ing  to  make a  

connect ion  be tween,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  Hatch  Goba,  and Mr  

Carney ’s  engagements  in  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  wh ich  is  wha t  I  was put t ing  to  you.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR SINGH :    I  am say ing  tha t  th is  appo in tment  tha t  we 

re fer red  to ,  tha t  re fe rs  to  Hatch  Goba,  occur red  by  or  was 

need by  Transne t  Cap i ta l  P ro jec ts  wh ich  i s  a  d iv i s ion  o f  

Transnet .   And they wou ld  have done tha t  independent ly  o f  

us .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    When I  say  us ,  mean ing  the  peop le  tha t  i s  in  

tha t  g roup.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    So  we wou ld  no t  have had access  to  th is  

in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    There  wou ld  have been no need fo r  us  to  

have access to  th is  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   But  why does tha t  mat te r  in  t e rms o f  10 

what  I  was put t ing  to  you?  Wha t  I  was put t ing  to  you is   

Ms Thakan i ,  you r  p rev ious secre ta ry,  when she –  when in  

her  a f f idav i t  she  ment ioned Hatch  Goba in  the  contex t  o f  

2011,  you r  react ion  was there  was  no Hatch  Goba in  2012.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  was on ly  Hatch  Goba in  2013.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  I  was put t ing  to  you i s .   Here  i s  

somebody e lse  re fer r ing  to  Hatch  Goba in  2011 when,  on  

your  vers ion ,  there  wou ld  no t  have been a  Hatch  Goba.  20 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  found i t  in te res t ing  tha t  somebody 

e lse  does tha t .   Refe rs  to  –  use o f  the  same name.   And o f  

course ,  you sa id  they may have been made jo in t  venture .   

But  I  th ink  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s .   Somebody e l se  used 
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the  same name,  even a  year  ear l ie r  than Ms Thakan i .  

MR SINGH :    Okay,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Go ing  back  to  the 

locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  you  have no ass is tance o f  a  

jun io r  today?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have no ass i s tance o f  a  jun io r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  do  no t .   There  i s  no  one h id ing  10 

beh ind  my boxes,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am so r ry.   I  am sor ry  i f  i t  i s  

d is rup t ive .   I  w i l l  j us t  pu t  the  f i les  down.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  w i l l  sor t  i t  ou t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  go ing  back to  –  I  jus t  want  to  

ask  you persona l ly  i f  you  in tend to  take  a  shor t  b reak fo r  

tea  or  you want  to  ca r ry  on?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  i t  ha l f -past .   So. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Go ing  back  to  the  locomot ives .   We 

had d i scussed i t .   I  th ink  I  have comple ted  my lead ing  o f  
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you  in  re la t ion  to  your  ro le ,  seen what  you d id .   I  jus t  want  

to  a lso  then sketch  fo r  you the  Gupta  l inked cor rup t ion  tha t  

appears  to  have been a t  p lay  in  re la t ion  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sha l l  I  pu t  away th is  f i l e?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  you can,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And wh ich  one do I  take?  Her  one,  

must  a l so  go?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The BB-4 ( f )  tha t  we used.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bo th  o f  those can be put  away,  10 

DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bo th  o f  her  and S t rydom’s  f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   You may cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  then sketch  fo r  you the  

Gupta  l inked cor rup t ion  tha t  appears  to  have been  tak ing  

p lace.   F i rs t l y,  in  re la t ion  to  a l l  con t rac ts  where  McK insey 

worked a longs ide  Reg iments ,  inc lud ing  the  1061 

t ransact ion  adv isor  cont rac t  tha t  you were  invo l ved  in .   Mr  

Essa,  in  the  fo rm o f  h is  she l l  compan ies ,  was pa id  50% of  20 

Reg iments ’ fees  o f  launder ing  payments  then hav ing  been  

made to  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .    

 As  you know,  McK insey had accepted tha t  these 

cont rac ts  a re  ta in ted  and I  th ink  i t  was a  day or  two ago 

tha t  i t  was announced tha t  they had ups the i r  o f fe r,  I  th ink  
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i t  was,  fo r  650 mi l l ion ,  wh ich  wou ld  have inc luded SAA to  

850 mi l l ion ,  payback in  re la t ion  to  Transnet  a lone.   So you  

accept  tha t  you  were  ins t rumenta l  in  po in t ing  these 

t ransact ion  adv i sors?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i r. . .   Wel l ,  I  guess we wou ld  

need to  de f ine  i ns t rumenta l  bu t  yes  I  d id  p lay  a  ro le  in  

appo in t ing  McK insey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you wou ld  accept ,  even i f  you might  

no t  be  sure  abou t  ins t rumenta l ,  you wou ld  accept  tha t  you  

p layed a  s ign i f i can t  ro le?  10 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  was a  bus iness need  

tha t  was requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And the  need requ i red  fo r  us  to  appo in ted  

adv isors  to  be  ab le  to  sa t is fy  tha t  need and the  adv i sors  

happened to  be  McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  no t  to  be  qu ibb le  about  

language,  bu t  we cou ld  go  to  one o f  your  a f f idav i t s .   I  

mean,  you made the  po in t  tha t  you  dec ided tha t  these were  20 

your  adv isors .   You needed them.   I t  was your  ca l l .   You 

agree w i th  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  i ssue o f  a  bus iness need  

came in to  p lay  and a lso  an  e lement  o f  unders tand ing  who  

wou ld  be  best  p lace  to  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  execute  the  
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bus iness need in  the  t ime in  wh ich  i t  needed  to  be  

executed.   And in  our  v iew a t  the  t ime,  McK insey was 

probab ly  best  p laced because o f  the  s ign i f i can t  h is to ry  o f  

Transnet  as  we l l  as  the i r  in te rna t iona l  exper t i se  to  be  ab le  

to  execute  the  pro jec t s  in  the  t ime tha t  was requ i red .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  one mus t  accept  on  tha t  ev idence  

tha t  every  t ime tha t  you met  w i th  McK insey and Reg iments  

were  p resent .   Do you unders tand tha t  what  i t  means is  

tha t  50  cents  in  every  rand tha t  Reg iments  was b i l l ing  was 

go ing  to  Mr  Essa.    10 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  was not  aware  o f  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Must  have come as a  shock.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then second ly,  what  the  

ev idence re f lec t s  and le t  me make  myse l f  very  c lea r.   I  do 

no t  make any dec is ions in  th is  mat te r.   The DCJ does.   So I  

am put t ing  to  you  the  ev idence tha t  has been presented in  

the  Money-F low S t ream,  whether  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be 

accepted or  no t ,  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  the  DCJ wi l l  dec ide  on  

in  t ime.    20 

 But  what  the  ev idence o f  Money-F low’s  second ly  

re f lec t s  i s  tha t  Mr  Essa conc luded so-ca l led  bus iness 

deve lopments  serv i ces  agreements .   These are ,  

essent ia l l y,  k ickback agreements  w i th  CSR in  respect  o f  

359 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  tha t  had a  cont rac t  va lue  o f  
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R  18  b i l l i on  where  he  was to  secure  commiss ion  o f  21%.    

 He then conc luded a  s im i la r  k ickback agreement  

w i th  CNR in  re la t ion  to  232 d iese l  locomot ives .   I t  had a  

cont rac t  va lue  o f  R 9 .9  b i l l i on .   So,  Mr  Essa had more  than  

ha l f  o f  the  1064  locomot ives  covered and he had  a  21% 

in teres t  in  the  acqu is i t ion .   Do you want  to  comment  on  

tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  o the r  than to  say I  have no 

knowledge o f  any o f  these cont rac ts  o r  any o f  Mr  Essa ’s  

dea l ings.    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  when,  fo r  example ,  we come to  

d iscuss the  in te res t  in  the  ETC.   He had a  21% in teres t  to  

tha t .   

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in .   When we d iscussed the  

increase in  the  ETC,  you w i l l  see  i t  was a  comple te l y  

jus t i f iab le  increase in  the  ETC,  Mr  Cha i r.   Who got  21% 

thereof ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  was under  the  impress ion  tha t  we w i l l  

be  pay ing  the  jus t i f ied  increase to  the . . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  Mr  Essa a lso  had was a  BDSA,  

Bus iness Deve lopment  Serv ices  Agreement ,  in  respect  o f  20 

the  locomot ive  main tenance cont rac t  as  we l l .    Do you want  

to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  was not  aware  o f  tha t ,  I  have no 

knowledge the reo f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And Mr  Essa conc luded  s im i la r  
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con t rac ts  w i th  CS I  in  respect  o f  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  bo th  the  

95  and 100 locomot ives .  

MR SINGH:    S im i la r ly,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  have no knowledge o f  

Mr  Essa ’s  dea l ings w i th  CSR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then th i rd l y,  you were  invo l ved as  

we l l  in  the  re loca t ion  o f  CNR South  A f r i ca  f rom Pre tor ia  to  

Durban,  do  you remember  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Here  a  BDSA was conc luded  

between CNR South  A f r i ca  and a  company ca l led  BEX,  10 

s im i la r  k i ck-back  agreement ,  BEX rece ived and pocketed  

67 mi l l ion  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  cont rac t .   BEX is  a lso  a  

Gupta- l inked company and monies  –  those monies  were  

laundered to  the  Gupta  en terpr i se .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  I  have no knowledge o f  th is  

agreement  o r  the  launder ing  o f  the  mon ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  Essa f rom the  1064 adv isory  

cont rac t  th rough a l l  o f  the  locomot ives  inc lud ing  

main tenance ag reements  and even inc lud ing  re loca t ion ,  

each one o f  those th ings you were  invo lved in .  20 

MR SINGH:    To  a  greater  o r  lesse r  ex ten t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And then four th l y  perhaps  

someth ing  tha t  I  must  b r ing  to  your  a t ten t ion  is  Mr  Sharma,  

the  Cha i rperson o f  the  BADC,  the  ev idence is  and  fu r ther  

ev idence w i l l  be  led  had a  mat r ix  o f  bus iness re la t ionsh ips  
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w i th  Mr  Essa.    

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  I  was not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You conf i rm though tha t  Mr  Sharma 

was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  BADC cer ta in ly  a t  a l l  mater ia l  

t imes in  re la t ion  to  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 locomot i ves?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then le t  us  ge t  to  the  fund ing  o f  

these locomot ives .   In  re la t ion  to  the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank loan where  Reg iments  were  success fee  o f  198  

mi l l ion ,  147 mi l l ion  o f  tha t  was pa id  to  A lba t ime w i th  the  10 

122 mi l l ion  o f  i t  hav ing  been laundered to  Sahara  

Computers .   Know tha t?  

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were  invo l ved in  tha t  

t ransact ion .  

MR SINGH:    As  a  CFO I  wou ld  have been,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then s i x th ly ,  a lso  as  pa r t  o f  the 

fund ing  o f  the  locomot ives  there  was the  ZAR c lub  loan,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    I  have heard  o f  tha t  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  I  was 20 

there  when tha t  was executed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :     So  th is  I  th ink  was a t  the  t ime when 

you had le f t  o r  were  jus t  about  to  leave.   What  happened 

there  is  tha t  T r i l l i an  was pa id  93  mi l l ion  fo r  a r rang ing  the  

ZAR c lub  loan  w i th  Mr  Essa  hav ing  been a  60% 
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shareho lder  i n  Tr i l l i an  and four  days la te r  74  m i l l ion  o f  tha t  

was pa id  to  A lba t ime Gupta- l inked money launder ing  

company.  

MR SINGH:    I  am not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  what  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  

to  you is  th is .   I  mean,  on  tha t  ev idence,  assuming  i t  was 

to  be  accepted,  the  Guptas  rea l l y  pu l led  o f f  someth ing  o f  a  

he is t ,  d id  they no t ,  in  re la t ion  to  these locomot ives  f rom 

the  beg inn ing  r igh t  to  the  end.  

MR SINGH:    I f  the  a l legat ions are  t rue ,  Mr  Cha i r .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And,  in  fac t ,  jus t  when I  had got  my  

head around the  3 .5  b i l l i on  you wou ld  have read  in  the 

press  tha t  Mr  Ho lden gave ev idence tha t  I  th ink  i t  was –  

and the  Cha i rpe rson w i l l  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong ,  i t  was 

R50 or  R60 b i l l i on  was laundered th rough the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  and 85% of  tha t  ac tua l l y  der ived f rom funds f rom 

Transnet .   So we  are  dea l ing  w i th  jus t  3 .5  b i l l i on  o f  what  

was 45 or  50  b i l l i on .   I  hope I  have  the  sums r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The to ta l  was 49 b i l l i on .   49  b i l l i on  was 

the  to ta l  and I  cannot  remember  the  percentage but  20 

Transnet  i s  where  they go t  the  bu lk  o f  tha t  money.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i r ,  what  i s  your  –  I  rea l l y  need to  

unders tand what  you say about  th is .   I  mean,  wh i ls t  th is  

was go ing  on you were  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer ,  you  

were ,  we know,  s ign ing  and author ing  very  impor tan t  
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documents ,  we w i l l  come to  them in  a  moment  and you 

were  invo lved in  a l l  o f  these th ings o ther  than the  c lub  

loan.   We have heard  ev idence f rom peop le  l i ke  Mr  Mole fe  

and Mr  Gama,  have sa id  these a re  compl ica ted  f inanc ia l  

documents  wh ich  they knew you  were  d ra f t ing  and they 

re l ied  on  you.   I s  i t  your  case tha t  you knew noth ing  about  

th is?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  i t  your  case then tha t  you were  

rea l l y  scammed by Mr  Essa and  the  Guptas ,  they pu l led  10 

one over  you?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  f rom my perspect ive ,  

Cha i r ,  we fo l lowed a l l  the  requ i red  po l i c i es ,  p rocedures  

and in te rna l  p rocesses o f  Transne t  wh ich ,  as  you w i l l  see  

when we go th rough the  t ransact ions,  resu l ted  in  jus t i f iab le  

expend i tu re .   There  was va lue  added,  there  was work  

per fo rmed and payments  were  made.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh,  you might  be  ab le  to  ass is t  me 

to  th ink  o f  anothe r  scenar io  bu t  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  th ink  o f  any 

scenar io  o ther  than tha t  i f  th is  i s  what  they ach ieved to  do ,  20 

the  Guptas  a t  Transnet  wh i le  you  were  CFO and you were  

invo l ved in  these t ransact ions,  e i ther  you were  par t y  to  

the i r  agenda o r  you were  so  incompetent  tha t  you cou ld  

no t ,  you know,  see a l l  o f  th is .   Now i t  may be tha t  there  is  

another  scenar io  o ther  than those two but  those are  the 



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 48 of 313 
 

on ly  two I  can th ink  o f .   So Mr  Myburgh ’s  quest ion  is  rea l l y  

to  say to  you wh ich  one is  i t?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  e i ther  o f  

those.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  wh ich  o ther  scenar io  cou ld  i t  be?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  I  cer ta in l y  do  no t  advocate  tha t  I  

was pa r ty  to  any  o f  the  agendas or  ass is ted  in  any o ther  

the i r  agendas in  any way,  shape  or  fo rm.   Second ly ,  Mr  

Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :     Wel l ,  then how does one exp la in  th is  10 

mass ive  loo t ing?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  c i rcumstances where  there  is  a  CFO 

who got  invo lved  in  approv ing  o r  recommending a  lo t  o f  

these t ransact ions and i t  i s  a  lo t  o f  f inanc ia l  mat te rs  

invo l ved.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  we are  a l lowed to  engage 

w i th  the  t ransact ions and unders tand and see jus t i f i ca t ions  

o f  the  t ransact ions and va lue  tha t  was der ived and the  

conc lus ions tha t  were  ar r i ved a t  maybe then we can  20 

engage on th is .   I f  we engaged w i th  i t  on  th is  bas is  where  

you are  coming  to  a  conc lus ion  be fore  we engage on 

whethe r  the  a l legat ions a re  –  have  mer i t  o r  no t ,  you  know,  

i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  engage on tha t  bas i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  we are  enqu i r ing ,  okay?   There  
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i s  ev idence o f  what  has happened.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The ev idence  –  the  Commiss ion  has  

been co l lec t ing  ev idence fo r  th ree  years ,  so  there  is  

ev idence o f  wha t  has happened.   You are  ge t t ing  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  say do  not  accept  tha t  ev idence,  i t  i s  no t  

t rue ,  do  no t  accept  tha t  ev idence,  i t  i s  no t  t rue ,   You a re  

ge t t ing  tha t  oppor tun i ty .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now the  quest ion  is ,  one o f  the  th ings  10 

we have got  to  ask  is  how d id  th is  happen? 

MR SINGH:    Now,  Mr  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o rder  to  be  ab le  to  make  

recommendat ions  as  to  what  measures shou ld  be  put  in  

p lace  in  the  fu tu re  to  avo id  a  repeat  o f  th is .   So tha t  i s  

where  the  ques t ion  comes up,  whethe r  peop le  who  

occup ied  cer ta in  pos i t ions  were  par t y  to  th is  and knew 

what  was happen ing  or  whethe r  they jus t  were  incompetent  

and d id  no t  do  the i r  job  proper ly .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  sa id  there  cou ld  be  another  

scenar io  and I  inv i te  you to  te l l  me i t  cou ld  be  tha t  i t  i s  no t  

a  quest ion  o f  them or  you,  in  your  case,  be ing  par t y  to  

these peop le ’ s  scheme.   Two,  i t  cou ld  be  tha t  i t  is  no t  a  

quest ion  o f  incompetency,  there  i s  anothe r  scenar io  and 
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th is  i s  the  scenar io .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  tha t  is  what  I  was get t ing  to . ’  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  aga in ,  i f  i t  comes  to  my 

competence or  o therw ise  I  wou ld  suggest  to  say tha t  i t  i s  

no t  incompetence on my pa r t .   I f  i t  was incompetence on  

my par t  I  wou ld  assume tha t  Mr  Mole fe  wou ld  have sa id  

tha t  when he came and gave ev idence and I  do  no t  th ink  

he  ac tua l l y  ind ica ted  in  any way,  shape or  fo rm tha t  tha t  

was the  case.  10 

 Second ly ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  in  te rms o f  i t  be ing  my  

incompetence,  a t  the  end o f  the  day these t ransact ions 

were  no t  approved by  me a t  a l l .   I  d id  no t  o r ig ina te  these  

t ransact ions a lone,  ne i ther  d id  I  conc lude these  

t ransact ions a lone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  see there  i s  ev idence wh ich  

suggests  tha t  you may have been  invo lved w i th  the  Guptas  

more  than you wou ld  l i ke  me to  be l ieve  you were ,  okay?  I  

am not  say ing  tha t  I  have accepted tha t  tha t  i s  the  case 

but  I  am say ing  there  cer ta in l y  i s  ev idence wh ich ,  i f  t rue ,  20 

w i l l  suggest  tha t ,  okay?  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  has h imse l f  

admi t ted  in  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  he  had a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

the  Guptas .   I  cannot  remember  whether  he  pu t  i t  a t  a  

f r iendsh ip  l eve l  bu t  he  sa id  he  had  been to  the i r  res idence 

severa l  t imes and I  th ink  some o f  them had been  to  h is  
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house o f  d inner  once or  tw ice  and he sa id  h is  in te rac t ion  

w i th  them had s t re tched over  a  cer ta in  per iod  o f  t ime.   

There  has been ev idence tha t  h i s  appo in tment  as  Group 

CEO of  Transnet  seems to  have been known to  the  Guptas  

be fore  he  even app l ied  fo r  the  j ob ,  tha t  i s  why the  New Age  

pub l i shed an ar t i c le  in  December  2010 where  i t  was  

suggested tha t  he  was  go ing  to  be  the  next  Group  CEO of  

Transnet  and indeed he became Group CEO of  Transnet  

and I  am aware  on  the  bas is  o f  in fo rmat ion  be fore  the  

Commiss ion ,  I  am aware  tha t  the  board  o f  Transnet  gave 10 

Min is te r  G igaba I  th ink  th ree  names o f  fo r  the  pos i t ion  of  

Group CEO of  Transnet  and tha t  in  te rms o f  the  po in ts  tha t  

he  had been a l loca ted  in  the  in te rv iews to  th ree  

cand ida tes ,  Mr  Mole fe  was not  number  one,  i t  was another  

cand ida te ,  he  was number  two.   Never the less ,  Mr  G igaba,  

you know,  went  w i th  h is  name and o f  course  there  is  the 

ev idence o f  the  dr ivers  who have g iven ev idence about  

yourse l f ,  about  Mr  Gama,  about  –  who was the  o ther  one?  

I  cannot  remember  whether  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  was invo lved.   

And,  o f  course ,  there  is  some ev idence f rom Trave l  20 

Exce l lence about  Mr  Sa l im Essa.   Now I  d id  say tha t  the  

ev idence o f  the  two w i tnesses  f rom Trave l  Exce l lence 

co inc ides w i th  your  ev idence to  a  very  la rge  ex ten t  bu t  

there  is  ev idence  wh ich  suggests  tha t  a t  leas t  in  regard  to  

one t ransact ion ,  maybe two,  I  am not  sure ,  Mr  Sa l im Essa 
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may have pa id  fo r  your  t r ips .   So th is  Commiss ion ,  i f  i t  i s  

to  do  i t s  job  proper l y  i t  has  to  ask  the  quest ion ,  i f  a l l  o f  

these th ings are  t rue ,  i f  these th ings,  th is  loo t ing  

happened,  how d id  i t  happen,  you know,  were  peop le  

s leep ing  on the  job?  Were  peop le  who were  in  the  SOEs,  

were  they work ing  the  peop le  whose agenda was  to  loo t  

the  SOEs?  So i t  has  go t  to  ask  those quest ions and 

obv ious ly  somebody l i ke  you,  aga ins t  whom there  are  a l l  

k inds o f  a l legat ions,  must  ge t  an  oppor tun i ty  to  say th is  i s  

what  happened,  th is  i s  what  I  th ink  happened,  th i s  how I  10 

th ink  i t  happened ,  tha t  i s  why one  puts  these propos i t ions  

to  you.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  cer ta in l y  do  no t  

be l ieve  tha t  the  propos i t ions  are  un fa i r  hence  I  was  

respond ing  to  the  propos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    In  –  and I  was get t ing  to  a  po in t  where  I  was  

say ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  the  –  as  I  was a l lud ing  to  the  fac t  

tha t  the  t ransact ions d id  no t  happen by  myse l f  in  iso la t ion ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  there  were  c i r cumstances as  to  why there  was a  20 

bus iness requ i rement  fo r  these serv i ces  or  assets  to  have 

been acqu i red  in  the  manner  tha t  i t  was acqu i red .   

Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  was in teg ra l l y  invo l ved in  most  i f  

no t  a l l  o f  the  t ransact ions tha t  Mr  Myburgh has a l l uded to .   

I  th ink  we have ac tua l l y  in  one o f  the  annexures tha t  we 
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have jus t  seen,  there  was in te rna l  repor t  tha t  was a t tached  

to  i t  wh ich  was a  h igh  va lue  tender  p rocess,  so  those we 

took s ign i f i can t  assurance f rom those processes tha t  

occu r red .   Mr  Cha i r ,  in  te rms o f  the  board  acqu is i t ion  and  

d isposa l  commi t tee ,  they rev iewed documents ,  they have  

rev iewed,  they i n te r rogated submiss ions.   To  the  ex ten t  

tha t  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Gama approved documents ,  they 

in te r rogated documents ,  they rev iewed the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

was presented before  i t .   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  they  d id  no t  

be l ieve  tha t  i t  was jus t i f ied ,  the  pre rogat ive  was  the i rs  as  10 

to  whether  they approve or  no t .   The board ,  fo r  example ,  

Mr  Cha i r ,   on  the  locomot ive  t ransact ion ,  I  th ink  the re  were  

14  to  16  non-execut ive  board  members  tha t  were  s i t t ing  on  

the  award  o f  these –  as  Mr  Myburgh read out .   The 

submiss ions went  to  the  BADC,  i t  then went  to  the  board .   

I f  I  was a t  any po in t  incompeten t  in  dea l ing  w i th  these 

mat te rs  to  the  board ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  board  had the  

pre rogat ive  to  say Mr  S ingh,  you are  ta lk ing  nonsense,  

p lease leave.   And,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  jus t i f i ca t ion  o f  how 

actua l l y  i s  in  the  de ta i l  o f  the  t ransact ions and I  am hop ing  20 

tha t  Mr  Myburgh dur ing  the  course  o f  the  day w i l l  take  us 

th rough the  de ta i l  o f  the  t ransact ions tha t  I  may be  ab le  to  

then demonst ra te  to  you tha t  f rom perspect ive  I  d id  what  

was requ i red  o f  me to  be  done and each  o f  the 

t ransact ions can  be exp la ined in  the  c i r cumstances tha t  
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tha t  occur red  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  do  no t  know i f  you s t i l l  want  to  take  

tea  or  can we push on th rough to  luncht ime? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  we must  take  a t  leas t  ten  m inutes  

ad journment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  take  a  ten  m inutes  

ad journment .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.    Mr  S ingh jus t  to  round  

o f f  on  my l ine  o f  quest ion ing  be fore  tea ,  i f  one accepts  the  

money f low ev idence then i t  seems tha t  the re  are  th ree  

poss ib i l i t i es ,  f i rs t l y  i t  i s  tha t  you were  pa r ty  to  these 

nefar ious dea l ings;  second ly  tha t  you were  incompetent  o r  

th i rd ly  tha t  you were  dece ived/scammed.   As I  unders tand  

–  or  le t  me ask you,  you have den ied  be ing  par ty,  you say  

you were  no t  incompetent ,  so  i t  seems tha t  you must  have 

been dece ived or  scammed,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  seem so s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  re la t ion  to  t ransact ions tha t  you  

were  invo lved in ,  and in  some ins tances in t imate ly,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r  your  quest ion?  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 55 of 313 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  re la t ion  to  t ransact ions tha t  you 

were  invo lved in  and in  some ins tances in t imate ly.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can you accept  what  I  have 

sketched to  you is  a  p rogram o f  loo t ing ,  in  re la t ion  to  a l l  o f  

the  e lements  o f  the  164 t ransact ions f rom the  consu l tancy 

in  the  room adv is ing  on  bus iness  cases,  r igh t  th rough to  

the  fund ing  program o f  loo t ing .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  ca tegor ise  i t  as  a  

program,  I  wou ld  –  we l l  i t  i s  a  log ica l  sequence  o f  the 10 

evo lu t ion  o f  the  t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  i s  the  log i ca l  conc lus ion  o f  

what?  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r  I  sa id  i t  cou ld  -  Mr  Myburgh put  

a  p ropos i t ion  to  say tha t ,  i t  was a  so r ry  you sa id ,  aga in  i t  

was a?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A program o f  loo t ing .  

MR SINGH:    A program o f  loo t ings .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And he used the  example  o f  the  bus iness 20 

case th rough to  the  fund ing  o f  the  t ransact ion ,  and my  

v iew,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  i t  was not  -  i t  i s  no t  au tomat ic  tha t  

you get  to  a  po in t  o f  say ing  i t  was  a  program o f  loo t ing ,  i t  

was jus t  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  t ransact ions invo l ved you 

get  f rom a  bus iness case to  cont rac t ing  f rom cont rac t ing  
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fund ing ,  you cannot  do  fund ing  before  you do a  bus iness  

case,  fo r  example .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you say tha t  i t  was not  a  p rog ram,  

even though you say your  v iew is  tha t  you were  scammed? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  contex t  o f  the  example  tha t  

was used.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  S ingh,  perhaps then I  can ask 

you,  because I  mean,  i t  i s  an  impor tan t  p iece  o f  ev idence 

tha t  you g i ve ,  now you were  the  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  on  the  money f lows ev idence under  your  wa tch ,  you  10 

were  scammed.   Now,  what  do  you th ink  you cou ld  have  

done d i f fe ren t ly,  I  mean,  p resumably,  you have agon ised  

over  th is .   What  i s  i t  tha t  you th ink  you cou ld  have done  

d i f fe ren t ly  o r  be t te r,  perhaps,  so  tha t  th is  might  have been 

avo ided?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  you  -  in  my v iew,  Mr  Cha i r,  

I  am aga in ,  th ink ing  o f  the  fac t  tha t  these issues are  best  

dea l t  w i th  i f  we dea l  w i th  the  t ransact ion  de ta i l .   I f  you  look  

a t  the  t ransact ion  de ta i l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you wou ld  then  be in  a  

pos i t ion  to  unders tand what  cou ld  have been done  bet te r.  20 

 But  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  ask  me to  answer  the  quest ion  

a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  on  the  locomot ive  

t ransact ions,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  

ach ievement  fo r  Transnet  to  acqu i re  1064 loca ls  in  the  t ime 

tha t  i t  d id ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  one o f  the  t ransact ions tha t  
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wou ld  probab ly  be  qu i te  s ign i f i can t  in  South  A f r i ca 's  h is to ry  

i f  no t  in  g loba l l y.   I  mean,  you do not  have a  company tha t  

o rders  1100 locomot ives  a t  any g i ven po in t  in  t ime.   

I f  you  look a t  the  t ransact ions in  the…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you th ink  peop le  w i l l  remember  tha t  

more  than the  cor rup t ion  connected to  i t?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  cor rup t ion 

wou ld  as  you sa id ,  i t  i s  an  a l legat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  f i r s t  th ing  tha t  comes to  

peop le 's  m inds when you ta lk  about  those t ransact ions,  i s  10 

the  co r rup t ion .  

MR SINGH:    That  i s  t rue  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  aga in ,  th is  i s  

w i thout  hav ing  a f fo rded me the  oppor tun i ty  to  p rov ide  the  

jus t i f i ca t ion  re la t ing  to  the  t ransact ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  Mr  S ingh,  you see what  -  we a re  

go ing  to  ge t  to  the  t ransact ions,  I  am qu i te  sure  you are  

ab le  to  jus t i f y  them in  your  own mind and there  is  many  

ways these th ings can be a rgued  but  desp i te  tha t  there  

was s t i l l  th is  loo t ing .   So I  mean,  you may come and te l l  

us ,  we l l ,  I  can  jus t i f y  the  increase in  the  ETC and so  we go 20 

on,  bu t  desp i te  tha t  on  the  money f low ev idence.   There  

was the  loo t ing ,  there  was the  he is t ,  there  was the  21% 

k ickback.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Cha i r,  le t  me answer  the  or ig ina l  

quest ion .   In  te rms o f  say ing ,  what  was my v iew in  te rms o f  
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the  t ransact ions? I  th ink  i f  you  look a t  the  adv isory  

t ransact ions,  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  the  adv isory  t ransact ions,  i f  

any th ing  needed to  improve,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  case o f  the  – 

ge t t ing  by  the  main  cont rac tors  in  te rms o f  the  

subcont rac to rs  tha t  they are  requ i red  to  use.    

And I  th ink  to  tha t  ex ten t ,  McK insey has a l ready in  

some way,  acknowledged the  fac t  tha t  the ve t t ing  

processes on Reg iments  and Tr i l l i an  maybe were  no t  

comple te l y  up  to  scra tch  and tha t  may have been the  

reason why they have dec ided to  pay back the  money.   Mr 10 

Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  -  we l l ,  those are  the  two  broad 

ca tegor ies  o f  t ransact ions.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ah ,  you make a  ve ry  impor tan t  po in t ,  

because the  Commiss ion  a l so  w i l l  have to  re f lec t  on  what  -  

how to  prevent  someth ing  l i ke  th is  f rom happen ing ,  and  

someth ing  tha t  de f in i te ly  has come to  l igh t  i s  the  r igor  w i th  

wh ich  the  appo in tment  o f  supp l ie r  deve lopment  pa r tners ,  

consu l tan ts ,  i s  ana lysed.   

But  jus t  on  tha t ,  be fore  we get  to  -  we w i l l  ge t  to  the  

t ransact ions bu t  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  tha t  I  unders tand  20 

tha t  when you a re  in  the  room and you are  nego t ia t ing .   

You were  ass is ted  by  McK insey and Reg iments .   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  wh ich  room and t ransact ions?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Dur ing  the  negot ia t ions ,  du r ing  the  

acqu is i t ion  phase ,  they were  ass i s t ing  you,  they were  your  
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t ransact ion  adv i sors .  

MR SINGH:    Not  McK insey,  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yeah,  we l l  Reg iments  was.  

MR SINGH:    Reg iments  were ,  yes  t ransact ions.   So jus t  so  

tha t  the  pub l i c  unders tands th is ,  you were  re l y ing  on  the  

adv ice  o f  an  organ isa t ion  tha t  was pay ing  50  cents  in  the  

rand to  Mr  Essa.  I  mean,  do  you  unders tand how rad ica l  

tha t  i s?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  Mr  Cha i r  and tha t  i s  the  reason  why we 

are  here  t ry ing  to  exp la in  ou r  ro le  in  th is  p rocess.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  when you say,  we l l ,  you  can  

eas i l y  jus t i f y  these t ransact ions,  those were  your  adv isors .   

The t ransact ions in  the  cont rac ts  a re  ta in ted .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  they  may  be  ta in ted  bu t  a t  the  

end o f  the  day,  the  t ransact ions and the  t ransact ion  adv i ce  

tha t  was g iven to  us  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r  was 

ev ident  and re l ied  on  market  ind ica tors  tha t  ex i s ted  a t  the  

t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Oh,  we l l ,  le t  us  go  then…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And they were  appo in ted  w i thout  any 20 

competency met ,  o r  p rocesses.   

MR SINGH:    The t ransact ion  adv i sor  p rocess,  Mr  Cha i r  

was a  l im i ted  conf inement ,  I  th ink  there  were  f i ve 

compan ies  tha t  were  inv i ted ,  i f  memory  se rves.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  we a re  go ing  to  come to  tha t  
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now,  le t  us  s ta r t  o f f  by  look ing  a t  these the  procu rement  o f  

consu l t ing  and adv i sory  serv ices  and s tar t  w i th  the  1064  

t ransact ion  adv isors .   So I  th ink  you may have touched on  

th is  be fore ,  bu t  I  suppose i t  i s  impor tan t  jus t  to  re f lec t  on  

why i t  i s  tha t  Transnet  needed adv isors ,  t ransact ion  

adv isors .  

And perhaps i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  comment  on  

th is ,  i t  seems to  accord  w i th  documents  and the  ev idence  

g iven the  magn i tude o f  the  1064  locomot ive  o f  Transnet .   

Transnet  p rocured t ransact ion  adv isors  to  p rov ide  adv i sory  10 

serv i ces  in  respect  one,  the  va l ida t ion  o f  the  bus iness  

case.  Two,  techn ica l  eva lua t ion  and opt im isa t ion  o f  b ids .   

Three,  dea l  s t ruc tur ing  and f inance and,  four,  p rocurement  

adv ice  and lega l  serv i ce ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So those va r ious e lements  are  

impor tan t .   So you appo in t  these 1064 t ransact ion  adv i sors  

to  adv i se  on  the  va l ida t ion  o f  the  bus iness case.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    On techn ica l  eva lua t i on  and 20 

opt im isa t ion  o f  b ids .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  the  par t  o f  the  process tha t  

you were  no t  persona l ly  invo l ved in .  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   So tha t  techn ica l  op t im isa t ion  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 61 of 313 
 

o f  the  b ids  par t  wou ld  have ac tua l l y  happened or  shou ld  

have happened…intervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  ra ise  -  speak up Mr  S ingh,  your  

vo i ce  is  very  so f t .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r.  That  aspect  re la t ing  to  b id  

op t im isa t ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  wou ld  have happened pr io r  to  the 

b ids  ac tua l l y  been –  or  p r io r  to  t he  RFP’s  be ing  i ssued,  

there  wou ld  no t  be  an  oppor tun i ty  to  op t im ise  the  b ids ,  tha t  

i s  one s ided.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then dea l  s t ruc tur ing  and  10 

f inance?  

MR SINGH:    Dea l  s t ruc tu r ing  and f inance wou ld  be  the  

fund ing  and the…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  comes  a f te rwards.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And p rocurement  adv ice?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  wou ld  a l so  have  been pr io r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  jus t  to  p ick  up  on the  

Cha i rpersons quest ions,  and I  wan t  to  ge t  to  the  key issue  20 

tha t  I  want  to  d iscuss w i th  you now.   What  the  chrono logy  

shows is  tha t  on  the  30 t h  o f  May 2012,  Transnet  i ssued an  

RFP to  n ine  consor t iums on a  con f inement  bas is ,  and you 

made tha t  po in t .  

Then on the  26 t h  o f  Ju ly  2012,  the  cont rac t  was  
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awarded to  the  McK insey Consor t ium and i t  was  led  by  

McK insey as  the  main  b idder  together  w i th  amongst  o thers ,  

Le tsema as a  co -b idder,  McK insey 's  supp l ie r  deve lopment  

par tne r,  wou ld  you conf i rm tha t?   

MR SINGH:    S i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then  I  want  to  ge t  to  what  

happened on the  22n d  o f  August  2012,  cou ld  I  ask  you  

p lease,  to  tu rn  to  page 882 o f  Transnet  Bund le  5B.    

MR SINGH:    I  am a t  5B.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you there?  Bund le  5B,  page  10 

882.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  you  w i l l  see a t  882,  t h is  i s  a  

memorandum to  Mr  Mole fe  f rom yourse l f ,  sub jec t  be ing  

appo in tment  fo r  t ransact ion  adv i sors  on  the  1064  

locomot ives  tender,  and i f  you  go to  page 885,  you w i l l  see  

tha t  you recommended i t  on  -  i s  tha t  the  20 t h  o f  August  

2012? MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  appear  so ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  i f  you  go back to  page 882,  

a t  paragraph 1 .1 ,  under  the  head ing  purpose i t  says :  20 

“For  the  group  ch ie f  execut ive  to  no te  tha t  

McK insey wou ld  be  adv i sed to  pa r tner  w i th  anothe r  

f i rm wi th  equa l  o r  be t te r  c redent ia ls  than Letsema 

wi th  the  procu rement  e lements  due to  a  po tent ia l  

conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  w i th  Bar lowor ld  and Letsema. ”  
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Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  paragraph 14 i t  says  

there  tha t :  

“The tender  eva lua t ion  process  was conc luded  

whereby the  McKinsey Consor t ium cons is t ing  o f  

McK insey,  Le tsema e tce tera  were  eva lua ted as  the  

pre fe r red  b idder. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  15 :  

“The Transnet  Acqu is i t ion  Counc i l  awarded the  

McKinsey Consor t ium,  the  comple te  adv i so ry  

serv i ces  and sp l i t  the  award  regard ing  lega l  

adv isory  to  Webber  Wentze l . ”  

Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  paragraph 17:  

“The es t imated  va lue  fo r  locomot ive  adv i sory  

serv i ces  requ i red  is  50  m i l l ion ,  a  percentage sp l i t  o f  20 

work  i s  an t ic ipa ted  to  be  as  fo l lows,  McK insey 35% 

and the  procurement  par tner  20%.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:     That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “And then U tho and Nedbank 10%,   
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Webber  Wentze l  20  and Advanced  Ra i l  Techno logy 

15 . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then the  recommendat ion  was 

as  per  the  purpose:  

“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  group ch ie f  execut ive  

no te  tha t  McK insey w i l l  be  adv ised to  par tner  w i th  

another  f i rm wi th  equa l  o r  be t te r  c redent ia ls ,  than  

Letsema over  p rocu rement  e lements  due to  10 

po tent ia l  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t . ”  

So what  we know is  the  cont rac t  i s  awarded on the  26 t h  o f  

Ju l y  and then a  month  la te r,  less  than a  month  la te r,  we 

have th is  recommendat ion ,  cor rec t?   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  you p lease jus t  exp la in  what  

po ten t ia l  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  o r  po ten t ia l  conf l i c t ,  I  see  i t  i s  

re fe r red  to  –  arose as  be tween Letsema and Bar lowor ld?   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am not  comple te l y  reca l l  bu t  I  

wou ld  assume -  I  th ink  tha t  Bar lowor ld  was a  po tent ia l  20 

par tner  w i th  one  o f  the  OEM’s  and hence there  was a  

conf l i c t  there ,  and I  th ink  there  was a  –  Le tsema was in  

some way,  shape or  fo rm invo lved w i th  Bar lowor ld .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry  what  d id  you say?  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id ,  Bar lowor ld  had a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  one 
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o f  the  po tent ia l  supp l ie rs  fo r  the  locomot ives  and Letsema 

had some re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Bar lowor ld .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  wha t  you can remember?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  why is  t ha t  conf l i c t  no t  se t  ou t  in  

th is  memo,  I  mean,  i t  i s  jus t  assumed the re  is  a  conf l i c t .   

Why is  i t  no t  exp la ined and dea l t  w i th?   

MR SINGH:    I  am not  too  su re ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  ra i sed tha t  w i th  you because I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  ge t  your  comment .   When I  asked Mr  Mole fe  10 

about  th is ,  he  rea l l y  had very  l i t t le  idea i f  any  ac tua l l y  as  

to  what  the  conf l i c t  was,  i f…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  cannot  be  tha t  the  CEO and the  Group  

CEO and the  Group CFO do not  know.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  these as  you wou ld  have seen,  

i f  we look a t  page 886 Mr  Cha i r,  these mat te rs  a re  ac tua l l y  

dea l t  w i th  by  the  procu rement  team,  and i t  ac tua l l y  ge ts  to  

the  Transnet  Acqu is i t ion  Counc i l ,  and these mat te rs  o f  

conf l i c t ,  then,  look ing  a t  po ten t ia l  conf l i c ts  a re  dea l t  w i th  

by  the  p rocu rement  team.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Dea l t  w i th  by  who?  

MR SINGH:    By  the  procurement  team.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  bu t  you wou ld  ask  the  

quest ions,  you wou ld  ask the  type o f  quest ion  tha t  Mr  

Myburgh is  ask ing  to  say what  i s  the  conf l i c t?   
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MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  hence,  Mr  Cha i r…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because you do not  want  to  exc lude 

somebody who shou ld  be  inc luded,  you do not  want  to  

inc lude somebody who shou ld  be  exc luded.  

MR SINGH:    We l l  hence,  Mr  Cha i r,  my response in  te rms  

o f  what  I  unders tood the  conf l i c t  to  be  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you a re  no t  conf ident  tha t  tha t  was 

the  -  as  I  unders tand your  ev idence,  i t  i s  more  specu la t i ve .  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  is  no  o ther  reason  tha t  i s  

in  my mind,  so  tha t  i s  the  reason f rom my perspect ive .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  po in t  ou t  to  you tha t  

886 was ac tua l l y  the  or ig ina l  dec i s ion  o f  the  Transnet  

Acqu is i t ion  Counc i l  to  appo in t  the  McKinsey Consor t ium 

tha t  wou ld  have  inc luded Letsema,  you see,  tha t  i s  a  

dec is ion  taken on  the  27 t h  o f  Ju ly.  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The meet ing  was he ld  on  the  26 t h .  

MR SINGH:    I  agree w i th  you;  s i r  I  am jus t  us ing  i t  as  an  

example  to  say tha t  these issues a re…[ in te rvene]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  because what  i s…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  lower  your  vo i ce  Mr S ingh ,  do  no t  

lower  your  vo ice .  

MR SINGH:    Ah,  sor ry  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So why i t  is  impor tan t  i s ,  we w i l l  go  
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in to  the  chrono logy bu t  one does  not  see anyth ing  where  

the  Acqu is i t ion  Counc i l  i s  approached to  approve what  was 

a  fundamenta l  change in  the  compos i t ion  o f  the  McK insey 

Consor t ium?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You do not  see tha t  do  you?  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  we wou ld  

need to  unders tand whether  there  was a  requ i rement  fo r  

tha t  to  happen and in  my v iew,  i f  there  was a  requ i rement  

fo r  tha t  to  happen,  Mr  Cha i r,  Mr  Peter  wou ld  have been in  10 

a  pos i t ion  to  adv ise  us  i f  tha t  was requ i red .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  do  I  no t  unders tand you to  have  

accepted a  l i t t le  b i t  ear l ie r  tha t  you ag reed th is  i s  one o f  

the  po tent ia l  a reas o f  weakness,  no t  so?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  wh ich  areas?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you not  accept  tha t  th is  -  the  

appo in tment  u l t imate ly  o f  Reg iments  wh ich  we a re  go ing  to  

come to  i s  a  po ten t ia l  a rea  o f  weakness i t  cou ld  have been  

done bet te r.  

MR SINGH:    In  h inds igh t ,  yes .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then we know tha t  on  the  6 t h  

December  Transnet  and McKinsey conc lude a  le t te r  o f  

in ten t  wh ich  re f lec ted  tha t  Reg imens had  rep laced  

Letsema.   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  anothe r  bund le  tha t  i s  

Exh ib i t  BB3B,  Mr  Mahomedy ’s  annexures.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  bund le  ca l led?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Exh ib i t  BB3B,  i t  i s  one o f  the  very  

ear l y  f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  you  p lease go to  page MSN 

354,  there  is  two  se ts  o f  numbers  bu t  cou ld  you take  the  

one a t  the  top  r igh t  hand MSM 354 .  Are  you there?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You w i l l  see  th is  i s  a  document  a t  

MSN 354 dated the  30 t h  o f  November  2012.  I t  i s  addressed  10 

to  McK insey and i t  i s  a  le t te r  o f  in ten t  and tha t  i s  what  you 

see in  the  second  paragraph:  

“The par t ies  to  th is  agreement  a re  Transnet  SOC 

and McKinsey Incorpo ra ted  and o ther  members  o f  

the  consor t ium namely  Reg iments  Cap i ta l ,  

Advanced Ra i l  Techno log ies ,  Nedbank Cap i ta l  and  

Utho Cap i ta l . ”  

Do you see tha t?   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  i s  a  le t te r  o f  in ten t  tha t  you 20 

s ign  as  I  can see on the  4 t h  o f  December  2012,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?   And then i t  i s  s igned by  McK insey on the  6 t h  o f  

December.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Be tween the  -  we l l  were  you  
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invo l ved a t  a l l  in  the  rep lacement  o f  Le tsema by  

Reg iments ,  were  you invo lved a t  a l l  in  tha t  o r  was tha t  le f t  

en t i re l y  to  McK insey?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  be ing  invo l ved in  the 

rep lacement .   I  may have -  we l l ,  le t  me s tar t  here  Mr  Cha i r,  

I  th ink  the  cho ice  o f  subcont rac to r  i s  a lways the  cho ice  o f  

the  main  cont rac tor.   We do not  d i c ta te  or  the  pr inc ip le  i s  

tha t  we do not  d ic ta te ,  in  th is  case I  d id  no t  in  any way  

shape or  fo rm d i c ta te  to  McK insey tha t  Reg iments  wou ld  

need to  be  subcont rac ted  to  McK insey fo r  the  t ransact ion  10 

adv isory  se rv i ces .   

There  may have been occas ion  fo r  me to  meet  w i th  

the  Reg iments  once i t  was p roposed,  o r  once McKinsey 

had p roposed  tha t  Reg iments  wou ld  be  there  

subcont rac to r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  may be ask ing  you someth ing  tha t  does  

not  be long to  what  we are  dea l ing  w i th  bow but  le t  me put  

th is  ve rs ion .   Do you know why  in  re la t ion  to  supp l ie r  

deve lopment  par tner  seems both  a t  Eskom and Transnet  

and you were  a t  bo th ,  you d id  no t  do  and tha t  i s  now 20 

Transnet  and Eskom th ings were  no t  done in  such a  way 

tha t  i f  you  tender  o r  pu t  in  a  b id  fo r  a  job  you br ing  your  

SD par tner  the re ,  there  and then when you put  in  your  b id  

i t  i s  known who your  SD par tner  i s  go ing  to  be  i f  you  get  

th is  job ,  so  tha t  tha t  par tner  ge ts  scru t in i sed i t se l f  as  we l l .   
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Rather  than have a  s i tua t ion  where  you have a  

par t i cu la r  en t i t y  b idd ing ,  ge t t ing  the  job ,  and then i t  i s  to ld  

to  go  and get  a  par tne r,  I  can get  whatever  pa r tne r,  i t  

wants .   That  pa r tner  who has not  been sub jec t  to  the 

sc ru t iny  to  wh ich  i t  wou ld  have been sub jec ted ,  i f  there  

had been a  d isc losure  a t  the  t ime o f  b idd ing  fo r  the  job ,  

tha t  i f  we get  g iven th is  job ,  th is  i s  our  par tne r,  you can 

sc ru t in ise  them as we l l .   Do you why th ings were  done l i ke  

tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  do  no t  –  we l l  I  cou ld  on ly  speak 10 

f rom a  f inance pe rspect ive .   I  am not  a  p rocurement  exper t ;  

I  am not  too  sure  what  the  procu rement  ru les  are  re la t ing  

to  tha t .  But  one o f  the  th ings tha t  one wou ld  cons ider  i s  as  

I  exp la ined to  you before ,  Mr  Cha i r  f rom a  -  le t  us  ca l l  i t  

f rom an Eskom or  a  Transnet  pe rspect ive ,  we wou ld  no t  

want  to  assume any subcont rac tor  r i sk .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you might  no t  bu t  i f  your  in te res t  i s  

tha t  there  shou ld  be  t ransformat ion  in  the  re levant  sec tor,  

yes  you are  in  and you want  b ig  compan ies  tha t  have been  

around fo r  some t ime,  you do not  want  them to  have to  20 

cont inue to  en joy  a  monopo ly  and so  on ,  you want  to  

deve lop  o ther  peop le  as  we l l  and o ther  en t i t ies .   You say,  

by  the  t ime you put  in  your  b id ,  you must  have spoken to  

the  en t i t y  tha t  you want  to  pa r tne r  w i th ,  pu t  tha t  in  the  b id ,  

le t  us  scru t in ise  them a l l  o f  you before  we dec ide  whether  
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to  g ive  you the  tender,  ra the r  than we say,  you can come 

on now on your  own,  pu t  in  a  b id  and we w i l l  g ran t  you the  

job .  

I f  we grant  you the  job  or  g ive  you the  tender,  bu t  i t  

w i l l  be  on  cond i t ion  tha t  you can  go and look fo r  an  SD 

par tner  and as  long as you have got  a  SD par tne r,  tha t  i s  

f ine .  

MR SINGH:     Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink ,  aga in ,  I  am speak ing  f rom 

memory  and I  s tand to  be  cor rec ted  but  i t  i s  my 

unders tand ing  tha t  tha t  i s  a  requ i rement  tha t  once you  10 

submi t  your  par tne r,  your  b id  fo r  example ,  you have to  

d isc lose who your  SD par tner  i s .  

Le t  us  say fo r  example ,  the  locomot ives  fo r  example  

each o f  the  OEM’s  had to  submi t  who the i r  BEE par tners  

were  and tha t  as  you qu i te  cor rec t l y  s ta ted ,  ge ts  eva lua ted 

in  some way shape or  fo rm.   I f  you  have regard  fo r  the  

memorandum tha t  Mr  Myburgh  re fer red  to  p rev ious ly,  

where  the  22n d  o f  August  memorandum,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  

see  the  words tha t  we care fu l l y  pu t  there ,  we sa id  we w i l l  

rep lace Letsema wi th  an  a l te rna t ive  supp l ie r  w i th  the  same 20 

leve l  o r  be t te r  c redent ia ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  want ,  I  want  the 

ident i t y.  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  agree Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR SINGH:    So  what  I  am say ing  is  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  genera l  

requ i rement  the  ident i t y  o f  the  supp ly  deve lopment  

depar tment ,  i t  i s  par t  o f  the  tender  and i t  ge ts  eva lua ted.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  regard  to  some o f  these 

t ransact ions my impress ion  is  tha t  they were  a l lowed to  ge t  

an  SD par tner  bo th  a t  Eskom and Transnet ,  I  th ink  a lmost  

cer ta in ly  i t  was  both .   I t  i s  l i ke  i t  i s  you r  bus iness to  ge t  an  

SD par tner  as  long as we a re  g iv ing  the  job  to  you,  

whereas the  consent  shou ld  be  –  the  in te res t  shou ld  be  

g iv ing  the  job  to  th is  en t i t y  and we know who they are  10 

go ing  to  work  w i th ,  we have sc ru t in ised them,  they are  

f ine .  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  f rom what  I  can reca l l ,  I  

th ink  the  Transne t  case is  p robab ly  the  fo rmer  and  maybe  

the  Eskom case  is  a  b i t  d i f fe ren t ,  I  th ink  I  s tand under  

cor rec t ion  bu t  based on what  you have seen thus fa r  I  th ink 

you probab ly  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m Mr  Myburgh  I  am sor ry…[ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  moved o f f  to  someth ing e lse ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Mr S ingh I  –  I  just  want  to  go  back to  

what  in te ract ion  i f  any you had wi th  Regiments  and or  

McKinsey dur ing the per iod 22 August  2012 when Mr  Molefe 

approved your  memo and the  t ime that  th is  LOI  was 

concluded on the 6 t h  o f  December 2012.    
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 In  shor t  d id  you have any in teract ions wi th  McKinsey 

over  the replacement  of  Letsema by Regiments dur ing th is  

per iod in  t ime.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  i f  you – i f  we look at  the way i t  

would have probably unfo lded and I  do not  have a complete 

recol lect ion of  –  of  the events I  would assume that  th is  

conf l i c t  would have been p icked up post  the award  of  the 

tender by the Transnet  Acquis i t ion Counci l  in  Ju ly.   I t  would  

have been p icked up between Ju ly and le t  us say August  

when the memo was sent  to  Mr Molefe.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Hence i t  decla red i t  in  the memo and then 

between le t  us say August  and December McKinsey would  

have been in  the  process fo r  ident i fy ing  an a l terna t ive to  

Letsema.    

 Whether  they engaged wi th  me or  not  Mr Chai r  I  am 

– I  am at  a  loss to  remember that  but  I  would have assumed 

they would have to ld  me or  they would have to ld  

procurement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  You would have assumed they would 20 

have ta lked to  you.  

MR SINGH:   No I  do  not  recal l  complete ly  but  I  would have 

thought  they would have had to at  least  declare that  to  the 

procurement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   When you deal t  wi th  
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McKinsey as you say you d id at  th is  t ime af ter  they were 

awarded the cont ract  d id  you deal  wi th  Mr Sagar?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Now just  go ing back to  th is  LOI  i t  is  

unfor tunate ly  not  a  very good copy and there is  a  bet ter  

copy somewhere e lse which I  wi l l  f ind in  a moment  but  can I  

just  ask you to  go to  MSM355 i t  is  the second page.   You 

wi l l  see at  the top  that  i t  says some words that  are not  c lear  

that  i t  goes on to  say:  

“Wi l l  remain in  e ffect  unt i l  the agreement  you s igned by 10 

both par t ies or  90 days have e lapsed f rom the date of  the  

issue of  th is  LOI  whichever  event  should occur  f i rs t . ”  

 Do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go to  paragraph 3.1 at  

page MSM 356 you wi l l  see here that  the fees were  capped 

at  35 mi l l ion.   Is  that  correct  exc lud ing d isbursements.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As I  unders tand i t  you must  correct  

me i f  I  am wrong.   What  had happened is  in i t ia l ly  the  budget  20 

was 50 mi l l ion bu t  the legal  serv ices were spun out  o f  th is  

and that  is  how one gets to  35.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now before we go on in  th is  

chronology perhaps I  could just  deal  wi th  the fact  there was 
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then another  rep lacement  on account  of  the conf l ic t  o f  

in terest  a  year  la te r.   You wi l l  remember that  Regiments 

Capi ta l  rep laced Nedbank.   You recal l  that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Let  me take you to  that  document  – 

could ask you to  go to  your  exhib i t  –  Transnet  Bund le 5(b)  

and that  document  you wi l l  f ind at  page 881.    

MR SINGH:   B lack or  red numbers S i r  –  b lack.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  B lack number.  

MR SINGH:   B lack.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   881.    

MR SINGH:   I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So a year  af ter  Regiments Capi ta l  

rep laced Letsema what  then happened is  Regiments  Capi ta l  

a lso replaced Nedbank.   Now th is  le t ter  you wi l l  see at  881 

is  dated the 19 t h  o f  November and i t  is  headed – i t  is  

addressed to Mr  Clost  f rom McKinsey le t te r  conf i rming a 

conf l i c t  o f  in te rest  Nedbank Capi ta l  and the recommended 

a l ternat ive Regiments Capi ta l  in  regard to  advisory 

serv ices.   I t  says  at  1  that  McKinsey and other  members of  20 

the consor t ium were awarded the business to  provide  

advisory serv ices  to  McKinsey was awarded the business 

and Nedbank Capi ta l  was i ts  par tner  to  provide f inancing 

funding etcetera – we have seen that .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:  Then you say at  3 .  

“ In  May 2013 a potent ia l  conf l ic t  o f  in terest  

was ra ised wi th  McKinsey concern ing  

Nedbank to  which  a response f rom McKinsey 

conf i rmed the conf l i c t  and an a l ternat ive 

so lut ion to  p rovide the serv ices to  Transnet  

was proposed in  terms of  Regiments Capi ta l  

to  provide the serv ices. ”  

And then you say at  4 .  

“The 1064 – sor ry the 1064 locomot ive  10 

tender i s  enter ing phase 2 which  wi l l  now 

inc lude the  funding and deal  s t ructur ing 

work envisaged by Transnet  for  the 

acquis i t ion of  the 1064 locomot ives. ”  

 So now one was moving in to the fund ra is ing par t  o f  

i t ,  cor rect .  

MR SINGH:   Not  complete ly  but  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  –  wel l  that  i s  –  i t  is  phase 2.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   The funding and deal  20 

st ructur ing.   That  is  when Nedbank was going to  p lay i t s  

ro le  presumably.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And at  that  po int  in  t ime i t  is  rep laced 

by Regiments Capi ta l .  
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“ I t  is  thus in  the  best  in terest  o f  Transnet  

and McKinsey to  conf i rm the proposed 

a l ternat ive of  Reg iments Capi ta l .   Th is  le t te r  

serves to  conf i rm Regiments – oh sor ry –  

conf i rm Transnet ’s  agreement  to  McKinsey’s 

request  for  Regiments Capi ta l  to  p rovide the  

requi red serv ices. ”  

 So you say th is  was a request  by McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And d id you again l ia ise wi th  Mr Sagar 10 

in  th is  regard? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  do not  have a complete recol lect ion 

but  I  would assume that  he was the – the lead par tner  at  

Transnet  at  the t ime so I  would have yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So d i f feren t  to  the f i rs t  conf l ic t  o f  

in terest  and change of  Letsema to  Regiments Capi ta l  here  

you d id not  seek the approval  o f  Mr Molefe or  anyone for  

th is  change.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  I  th ink i f  you look at  the  or ig ina l  

memo that  we saw I  th ink Mr Molefe had delegated to  me 20 

the award  of  th is  cont ract .   So th is  was done in  terms of  

that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you had the delegated author i ty.  

MR SINGH:   I  would assume so yes.   That  is  my 

recol lect ion.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.   When you ta lk  about  the  

or ig ina l  document  are you ta lk ing about  the one you f ind at  

the next  page 882? 

MR SINGH:   Ah yes I  th ink th is  i s  the one that  we have seen 

yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .    

MR SINGH:   Th is is  the one yes.   But  there was another  one 

that  actual l y  de legated me author i t y  to  conclude these 

t ransact ions which I  do not  see here but  I  am sure we can 

f ind.    Okay i t  is  the one at  888.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  what  page? 

MR SINGH:   888 same bundle Mr Chai r.   And so i f  you say –  

to  answer your  quest ion Mr Myburgh at  1 .3 there is  a  

request  to  rat i fy  the amendment  in  the makeup of  the 

t ransact ion rev ised at  consor t ium f rom Nedbank Capi ta l  to  

Regiments Capi ta l .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes to  rat i fy.    

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then you say we are going to  

come to th is  document  because i t  is  forward in  t ime.  20 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So th is  happened in  Apr i l  o f  2-014.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Perhaps can you just  te l l  me where  

you are – what  paragraph you refer r ing to  and I  w i l l  come 
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back to  i t .  

MR SINGH:   I t  is  document  888.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  am there.  

MR SINGH:   And then paragraph 1.3.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  1 .  

MR SINGH:   3 .   I t  is  on the f i rs t  page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   To rat i fy  the amendment  and makeup.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And then of  course 1.5 ta lks about  the 10 

delegat ion of  author i ty.   Is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:   Yes that  i s  –  but  that  is  over looking  as Mr  

Myburgh has poin ted out .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So we wi l l  come to that .   So going 

back to  th is  page 881.   So just  so that  I  understand th is .   

We in i t ia l ly  -  you have got  McKinsey,  you have got  Letsema 

and you have got  Nedbank.   What  happens is  Regiment  

Capi ta l  rep lace Letsema as th is  – as the  supply  

development  par tner,  i s  that  r ight .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a year  la te r  Regiments 

Capi ta l  now replace Nedbank.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  happened to Utho? 

MR SINGH:   I  have no idea Mr Chai r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So in  terms of  the in i t ia l  s t ruc ture th is  

supply development  par tner  would get  20% and the banks 

would get  10%.  

MR SINGH:   I f  I  recal l  you are cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R ight .   So now Regiments went  f rom 

noth ing to  a 30% stake in  the 1064 advisory cont ract .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  i f  we looked at  that  –  where was the LOI  

again Mr Chai r  –  I  mean sorry Mr Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  was in  Mr Mohamedy’s bundle.   I  

can take you back there but  o therwise… 10 

MR SINGH:   I  mean i t  i s  a  fact .   I  mean i f  you look at  1 .5 –  

paragraph 1.5 o f  that  LOI  McKinsey actual ly  nominates  

Regiments as the i r  procurement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  no,  no I  accept  that .  

MR SINGH:   Serv ice provider  as wel l  as the i r  suppl ie r  

development  par tner.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  

MR SINGH:   In  that  LOI .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  but  I  just  wanted to  then ask 

you someth ing e lse because i t  is  –  i t  is  obviously important  20 

for  our  work to  understand th is .   So the same organisat ion 

was act ing as a suppl ie r  development  par tner  i s  render ing  

genera l  consul t ing serv ices or  perhaps you can exp la in how 

– d id they have two hats or  what  is  happening?  So you 

know that  is  what  I  am st ruggl ing wi th .  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 81 of 313 
 

MR SINGH:   In  te rms of  Regiments?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   In  te rms of  Regiments  i tse l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes so what  happens is  Regiments 

replaced Letsema.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Perhaps you can address what  i t  is  

that  they d id – Regiments and then a t ime la te r  Regiments  

a lso sta r ted to  do the work of  the  bankers.   That  i s  rea l ly  

what  I  want  to  d iscuss wi th  you and perhaps you can just  10 

expla in to  us how that  worked.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   So Mr Chai r  I  th ink as one would  

appreciate the issue of  suppl ie r  development  there would be 

areas where a suppl ie r  would need to develop and that  i s  

the reason behind  suppl ie r  development .  

 So Regiments Capi ta l  I  th ink at  the t ime was made 

up of  a  number of  businesses.   They had proper ty,  they had 

I  th ink an advisory business,  they had funding and net  

capi ta l  markets business and l i ke so the net  capi ta l  markets  

business was obviously the issue where they replaced 20 

Nedbank and the advisory business I  would th ink i s  the area 

where they agreed to take over  f rom Letsema and bui ld  that  

business as par t  o f  the suppl ie r  development  p rocess wi th  

McKinsey.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay but  just  – just  that  I  understand 
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i t  what  I  mean what  work d id Regiments  do before – before  

th is?  I  mean dur ing the course of  that  year  as the suppl ie r  

development  par tner  what  physica l l y  – what  d id  they do? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink they par tnered wi th  McKinsey across 

most  of  the work st reams that  was – that  was undertak ing at  

the t ime the business case development ,  the procurement 

s t rategy,  the … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:  So they worked hand in  hand 

a longside McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:   For  most  of  the  par t  that  I  in teracted 10 

( inaudib le ) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  And then a year  la te r  they a lso  

stepped in to the shoes of  Nedbank.  

MR SINGH:   yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And now they were going to  advise 

you as wel l  on  – is  i t  put  here – funding and deal  

s t ructur ing.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now – so th is  is  in  November of  2013 

we had been ta lk ing about  what  happened between your  20 

memo to Mr Molefe advis ing of  the conf l ic t  in  re la t ion to  

Letsema and the 10 t h  o f  December  that  three month  per iod  

when the LOI  was concluded.   I  jus t  want  to  put  to  you what  

some of  the ev idence ind icates what  happened dur ing that  

three month per iod.    
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 Accord ing to  what  was repor ted to  a Mr Ian S inton of  

Standard Bank th is  i s  how Regiments came to be  appointed.   

In  October  of  2012 Mr Kuben Moodley arranged a  meet ing  

between Regiments and McKinsey in  the fo rm of  Mr  Sagar 

and Mr Essa.   And at  th is  meet ing Regiments were in fo rmed 

that  Transnet  requi red McKinsey to  appoint  a  b lack  owned 

suppl ie r  development  par tner  wi th  30% of  the fees earned.   

McKinsey offe red to  appoint  Regiments as i ts  suppl ie r  

development  par tner  p rovided Regiments agreed to pay 30% 

of  a l l  i ts  income f rom Transnet  to  Essa and 5% to Moodley.   10 

And money f lows has determined that  that  30% then 

increased to 50%.  You want  to  comment  on that?  So that  

is  what  was going on in  th is  three  month per iod behind the  

scenes so to  speak.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  I  was not  aware of  any of  these 

happenings.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   Did you know or  have you 

ever  met  Mr Kuben Moodley? 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink you – h is  name has ar isen 20 

once before in  our  – in  our  ev idence.   You wi l l  remember  

you might  not  have ar isen d i rect l y  but  you remember when 

you thought  that  Wi tness 3 may have got  wind of  your  o r  

been to ld  of  your  safety deposi t  boxes at  Knox Vaul t  

because i t  was in  the media that  the commission had seized 
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some boxes.   Do you recal l  that?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  the person that  was involved – 

the boxes that  were se ized actual l y  i t  be longed to Mr  Kuban 

Moodley.   You not  come across h is  name in  the context  o f  

your  reading the press in  that  regard.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  You d id.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  But  you had not  met  h im before.  10 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.   Cer ta in ly  not  a t  th is  t ime or  ever.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon.  

MR SINGH:   Cer ta in ly  not  a t  th is  t ime or  ever  for  that  

mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja wel l  you have never  met  h im.  

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then af ter  that  perhaps I  could  

just  put  to  you the rest  o f  course is  h is to ry.   We know that  

Regiments appoints – are appoin ted as McKinsey’s sk i l l s  

development  par tner  and on other  cont racts and u l t imate ly  20 

accord ing  to  money f lows in  excess of  R200 mi l l ion was 

t ransfer red f rom Regiments to  the  Gupta Enterpr ise.   You 

want  to  comment  on that .  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink Mr Chai r  I  cannot  comment  on the – on  

the – wel l  I  know that  we d id award other  cont racts to  
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McKinsey where Regiments was the sub-cont ractor  so that  –  

yes I  can conf i rm.   The exact  amount  of  those cont racts Mr  

Chai r  I  cannot  conf i rm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We are ac tual l y  go ing to  come to  

those cont racts where you are r ight  you were involved in  

award ing other  consul t ing cont racts to  McKinsey and 

Regiments.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And in  fact  in  some of  those cont racts 

as  we wi l l  come to la ter  Regiments appointed Homix and 10 

A lber t ine as the i r  suppl ier  development  par tners.   Do you 

know that?  

MR SINGH:   I  know Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You d id?  

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  we wi l l  come to the documents.   

And Homix  and A lber t ine are  two of  the  Gupta money 

launder ing companies.    

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   So I  was going to  end th is  20 

off  by put t ing to  you what  I  th ink the – or  asking what  I  th ink  

the DCJ has a l ready asked you and that  i s  –  and I  th ink you 

have accepted that  th is  a potent ia l  area of  weakness but  

what  potent ia l l y  is  a  chal lenge here Mr S ingh is  how – how 

does Regiments  come in  to  be  appointed and replace 
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Letsema wi thout  any on the face of  i t  form of  – of  vet t ing,  

any form of  re-evaluat ion of  –  of  the b id.   And i t  i s  on ly a 

month af te r  the cont ract  was in i t ia l ly  awarded where the 

problem arose.   How does that  happen? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  in  th is  regard I  th ink we – I  

would refer  the commission  to  Mr Mieszala ’s  ev idence that  

was presented before the commission I  th ink on day 322 

and I  th ink the t ranscr ip t  page reference is  page 185 where  

Advocate Chaskalson basica l ly  put  to  Mr Mieszala that  the – 

that  Regiments was basica l ly  b rought  to  Transnet  by  10 

McKinsey and in  more par t i cu lar  Mr Sagar.   And that  is  how 

I  th ink Regiments  ended up at  Transnet .  I  cer ta in ly  d id  not  

have – I  actual l y  d id  not  know Regiments before th is  

cont ract .    

I  had no in terac t ions wi th  Regiments before th is  

cont ract  and secondly Mr Chai r  i f  we have regard  to  the 

money f low work st ream evidence as wel l  you wi l l  note that  

Mr Sagar was in  receipt  o f  a  business prof i le  of  Regiments 

somet ime in  Ju ly  of  2012 I  th ink i f  memory serves.   So f rom 

that  perspect ive Mr Chai r  i t  would  seem that  Mr Sagar was 20 

the person that  actual l y  in t roduced Regiments to  Transnet  

and I  th ink McKinsey has accepted that  based on the money 

f low work st ream evidence that  has been presented to  them.   

Mr Chai r  in  te rms of  the Transnet  s ide I  would – I  can only  

assume that  a t  some point  between August  and December  
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Regiments would  have been proposed by McKinsey as a 

a l ternat ive to  Letsema and some sor t  o f  rev iew of  

McKinsey ’s  c redent ia ls  – sorry not  McKinsey –  Reg iments ’ 

credent ia ls  would  have been done by the procurement  team 

because the memo of  20 – of  22 August  basica l l y  says that  

we wi l l  rep lace Letsema wi th  a a l ternat ive that  has the 

equal  or  bet ter  c redent ia ls  than Letsema.   So I  can only  

assume that  that  work had been done between August  and 

December.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  we can f ind no record of  that  Mr  10 

S ingh.   I  mean you do not  know whether  that  happened.   

Does not  the very  sentence that  you refer r ing to  you now in  

the memo ind icate that  McKinsey was s imply g iven car te 

b lanche to do what  i t  wanted to .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  would no t  say so I  th ink the LOI  

document  is  prepared by procurement  i t se l f  so I  would  

assume that  they would have done what  they needed to do 

to  enable us to  i ssue the LOI  and I  th ink one of  the reasons 

for  the delay be tween August  and December which is  a  

per iod of  four  months i t  is  normal ly  not  that  a  long a per iod 20 

that  you have an award and a LOI  that  is  then issued four  

months la te r.   I t  is  ind icat ive of  someth ing that  actual ly  was 

happening dur ing that  per iod of  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr S ingh there was – there was a  

scam going on behind the scenes.  
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MR SINGH:   We were not  par ty  to  that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And we have no idea of  that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   And what  I  a lso want  to  put  to  

you I  asked the  same quest ions of  Mr Molefe and my 

recol lect ion he – he accepted that  th is  was a weakness that  

there was – he was not  aware of  any re-evaluat ion.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  he would – he would probably not  

have been aware  of  any re-evalua t ion.   Being the GCE in  

h is  posi t ion he would re ly  on the – the documents  that  – 10 

that  is  submi t ted to  h im.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He would re ly  on you.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can I  take  you p lease to  Transnet  

Bundle 6.   Can you turn p lease to  page 380 – 380.  

MR SINGH:   Which number S i r?  There are th ree references 

here.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja b lack numbers le f t  hand s ide.    

MR SINGH:   380.   I  am there Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  wanted to  take you to  the – a 20 

few paragraphs.   A t  page 380 f rom paragraph 2.4.6 i t  says:  

“The appearance of  Regiments  name as a 

member of  the  McKinsey consor t ium and 

accord ingly a serv ice provider  to  Transnet  at  th is  

s tage of  the procurement  process was i r regular  
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for  the fo l lowing reasons.  

1 .  Regiments was not  a  member of  the  

McKinsey consor t ium when i t  submi t ted i ts  

proposal  fo r  the 1064 t ransact ion  advisory 

tender.   

2 .  The 1064 t ransact ion advisory tender was 

awarded by the  TAC to the McKinsey 

consor t ium based on i ts  s tated composi t ion 

at  the t ime of  submission of  i ts  proposal .   

The capabi l i t ies o f  the McKinsey consor t ium 10 

members to  per fo rm the var ious aspects of  

the 1064 t ransact ion advisory tender and 

accord ingly the  McKinsey consor t ium’s  

e l ig ib i l i ty  for  the award was assessed based 

on the ver i f i cat ion and evaluat ion of  the 

c la ims made by i ts  const i tuent  members of  

which Regiments was not  one.  

3 .  Transnet  has a statutory duty to  ensure that  

when i ts  cont racts fo r  goods and serv ices – 

when i t  cont racts  for  goods and serv ices i t  20 

does so in  accordance wi th  the system that  

is  fa i r,  equi tab le ,  t ransparent ,  compet i t ive 

and cost  e ffect i ve . ”  

And then at  2 .4.7.  

“ I t  is  apparent  that  the inc lus ion of  
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Regiments as a  member of  the  McKinsey 

consor t ium in  LOI  that  a f ter  the adjudicat ion 

and award of  the tender by Transnet  the  

McKinsey consor t ium was permi t ted to  

change i t s  composi t ion  and to in t roduce a 

new member v iz  Regiments.   As  such the 

capabi l i t ies and other  c redent ia ls  of  

Regiments were not  subject  to  the r igour  of  

the ver i f icat ion,  evaluat ion and adjudicat ion  

process inherent  in  the tender p rocess. ”  10 

You want  to  comment  on that .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  these aspects  re la te to  aspects that  

would have been looked at  by the  procurement  department  

and would have been vet ted by the  procurement  department  

pr ior  to  us  being g iven or  me being  g iven the LOI  to  be  able  

to  s ign on behal f  o f  Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  as I  understand i t  Mr S ingh you do 

not  know that  as a mat ter  o f  fact .  

MR SINGH:   No I  know as a mat te r  o f  fact  that  the LOI  was 

prepared by the procurement  depar tment .    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   And in  the LOI  Regiments was ment ioned.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   As a replacement  to… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because McKinsey had said  wel l  that  
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is  our  rep lacement .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  And you can see that  in  the course 

of  the preparat ion of  th is  repor t  by MNS they obviously d id  

not  come across those documents by  procurement  and nor  

have we been able to .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  in  th is  regard I  do not  th ink MNS 

has actual ly  a fforded the procurement  department  an  

opportuni ty  to  comment  and I  am not  sure but  in  terms of  

the commission we have requested aff idavi ts  of  Mr  Edward 10 

Thomas,  Mr Gary  Peter  and in  th is  regard we have been 

in formed that  the  commission has not  obta ined aff idavi t s  in  

these regards f rom Mr Peter  o r  Mr Thomas or  for  tha t  mat te r  

any other  people that  were involved in  these – in  the  

procurement  of  Regiments and or  McKinsey on the 

t ransact ion advisor  cont ract .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Chai rperson I  see that  i t  is  on the 

st roke of  one o ’c lock i f  th is  would be a convenient  t ime to 

adjourn.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  is .   Let  us take the lunch 20 

adjournment  and we wi l l  resume at  two.    

We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  S ingh,  

be fore  lunch we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  rep lacement  o f  the 

sa le  by  Reg imen ts  and the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LOI  on  the  

6 t h  o f  December  2012.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  go  fo rward  w i th  

the  chrono logy,  i f  I  may?  Cou ld  you tu rn  to  Transnet  

Bund le  6 ,  page 382?  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  what  you w i l l  see  is  tha t  MNS a t  

parag raph 2 .4 .10  on page 381 tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  LOI   We 

know tha t  i s  6  December  2012.   Then a t  page 382,  the  f i rs t  10 

addendum to  the  LOI  was on 4  March 2013.   And they say  

in  the  th i rd  l ine  a t  parag raph 2 .4 .11 :  

“As a t  4  March,  the  MSA was s t i l l  no t  f ina l i sed 

and there fo re  the  LOI  exp i red  on  6  March.  

To  avo id  the  exp i ry  o f  the  LOI ,  Transnet  and 

McKinsey conc luded the  f i rs t  addendum to  the  

LOI  wh ich  ex tended the  va l id i t y  o f  the  LOI  

f rom 6  March 2013 to  15  October  2013. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see  tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then came the  second  

addendum on the  14 t h  o f  October.   They say:  

“The day before  the  exp i ry  o f  the  LOI  on  

14  October,  Transnet  and McKinsey conc luded 

the  second addendum to  the  LOI  wh ich  
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ex tended i t s  va l id i t y  per iod  f rom 

15 October  2013 to  30  November  2013 to  a l low 

the  par t ies  to  conc lude the  MSA. . . ”  

 They go on to  say:  

“As a t  30  November  2013,  Transnet  and 

McKinsey had ne i ther  conc luded the  MSA nor  

an  addendum to  ex tend the  va l id i t y  per iod  o f  

the  LOI .  

As a  resu l t ,  the  LOI  lapsed due to  the  e f f lux ion  

o f  t ime. . . ”  10 

 And then in  the  next  subparagraph  they say:  

“There  was no va l id  agreement  govern ing  the  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Transnet  and McKinsey 

as  a t  1  December  2013. . . ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  mat te rs  o f  the  LOI  and  the  

addendums there to ,  Mr  Cha i r,  wou ld  have been taken ca re  

o f  by  the  procurement  depar tment .   As  you wou ld  see,  

Mr  Cha i r,  the  f i rs t  addendum was conc luded,  I  th ink ,  a  day 

or  two befo re  the  LOI  exp i red .   The second addendum as 20 

we l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  was conc luded a  day or  two before  the  f i rs t  

addendum exp i red  and I  wou ld  assume,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  the  

fu r ther  addendum to  the  LOI  wou ld  have fo l lowed a  s im i la r  

p rocess.   So,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  procu rement  depar tmen t  w i th in  

Transnet  Corpora te  Cent re  wou ld  have been taken care  o f  
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these deta i l s  re la t ing  to  the  LOI ’s .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  i f  they  d id ,  they d id  no t  do  a  

very  good job .  

MR SINGH :    On fac t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you not  s ign  these addendums? 

MR SINGH :    I  d id ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  I  am go ing  to  

come back to  the  th i rd  addendum which  you w i l l  see  was  

s igned on the  4 t h  o f  February  bu t  be fore  tha t ,  I  want  to  –  

and you can leave th is  open –  I  want  to  take  you to  10 

someth ing  tha t  happened in  be tween the  second and th i rd  

addendums and tha t  i s  a  document  tha t  you w i l l  f ind  at  

Exh ib i t  BB-3(a) .   I t  i s  Mr  Mohamedy ’s  bund le ,  BB-3(a) .  

MR SINGH :    B (a)  o r  i s  i t  23(b)?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Exh ib i t  BB-3(a) .   And i f  you cou ld  

p lease go to  page MSN-177.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  a  le t te r  da ted  the  

20 t h  o f  January  2014.   And pe rhaps I  cou ld  jus t  take  you to  

the  end o f  the  document  a t  MSM-180.   You w i l l  see  –  and 20 

we w i l l  come to  the  handwr i t ten  annota t ions in  a  moment ,  

bu t  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  was s igned  on the  

20 t h  o f  January  2014 by  Mr  P i l lay  on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  

and i t  was s igned by  you,  i t  seems,  on  the  23 r d  o f  January  

2014.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR SINGH :    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now le t  us  dea l  w i th  th is  document .   

I f  you  go back to  177,  you w i l l  see  a t  the  end o f  the  f i rs t  

parag raph,  there  is  a  l ine ,  th i rd  las t  l ine ,  reads:  

“There  was a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  a r is ing  f rom 

engag ing  Nedbank Cap i ta l  who has made the  

rea l loca t ion  o f  the  tasks  tha t  were  or ig ina l l y  

thought  to  be  hand led  by  Nedbank to  o ther  

members  o f  the  consor t ium.  

Th is  document  i s ,  there fo re ,  in tended to  c la r i f y  10 

the  updated scope o f  t ransact ions adv iso ry  

work  tha t  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  w i l l  per fo rm in  

re la t ion  to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064  

locomot ives . . . ”  

 So tha t  i s  upon the  rep lacement  o f  Nedbank by  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  go to  parag raph 2 .   I t  dea ls  

w i th  2 .1 .   I t  reads :  

“De l ive rab les  except  fo r  ac tua l  fundra is ing  20 

must  be  executed  fo r  a  fee  o f  R 15  mi l l ion  ove r  

a  per iod  o f  12 -months. . . ”  

 And then sub-2 :  

“A pe r fo rmance  fee  equa l  to  20% of  the  

ach ieved aga ins t  the  benchmark  in te res t  
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ra te . . . ”  

 You see tha t ,  the  per fo rmance fee?  

MR SINGH :    I s  tha t  co r rec t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  we get  to  the  end o f  the  

document  a t  MSM-180,  you conf i rm tha t  you s igned th is  

document  a f te r,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  Mr  P i l lay?  

MR SINGH :    H ’m.   I  wou ld  –  yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  was then . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR SINGH :    Based on events .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you s igned i t .   You w i l l  see  10 

where  i t  i s  des ignated Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  and 

then you have go  the  da te .   To  the  r igh t  o f  tha t  you w i l l  see  

the  words sub jec t  to  i tems l i s ted  be low.   I s  tha t  your  

handwr i t ing?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Whose is  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l  o f f  hand.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH :    I t  seems l i ke  i t  i s  the  w i tness.   I  do  no t  reca l l  

o f f  hand,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  these are  presumable  your  

cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld  no t  make sense fo r  the  w i tness  

to  make tha t  k ind  o f  no te ,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld  no t  make sense fo r  a  w i tness to  

make tha t  k ind  o f  no te .  

MR SINGH :    I  am not  sure  who the  w i tness is ,  Mr  Cha i r,  

bu t  i f  I  reca l l ,  these notes  wou ld  p robab ly  have been made 

by  Ms Thomas f rom Ms Dawood Thomas f rom p rocurement  

a t  the  t ime who was dea l ing  w i th  th is  mat te r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  see,  a  w i tness is  on ly  s ign ing  to  say 

they saw you s ign .   They are  no t  s ign ing  to  say they agree 

w i th  the  contents  o f  the  document .   

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Whereas,  somebody in  your  pos i t ion  

wou ld  be  s ign ing  to  ind ica te  agreement  w i th  the  con tents .  

MR SINGH :    Agreed,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Hence I  say,  i t  i s  –  I  do  no t  recogn ise  the  

s ignature  o f  the  w i tness.   I t  may o r  may not  be  Ms Thomas.   

I  am not  too  sure  bu t  i f  I  reca l l ,  th is  aspect  o f  th is  

t ransact ion  was be ing  hand led  by  Ms Thomas a t  the  t ime.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So whose cond i t ions  are  

these or  i tems?  Because they are  very  impor tan t .  20 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  assume i t  i s  

Transnet ’s  cond i t ions  wh ich  were  agreed to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  you  agreed w i th  them.  
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MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And whoever  wro te  th is ,  you agreed 

to  these cond i t ions  o r  these i tems.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So the  f i rs t  po in t  a t  the  foo t  

o f  the  page:  

“The cont rac t  fo r  the  Supp ly  B  Serv ices  is  w i th  

McK insey and Reg iments  Cap i ta l  i s  cont rac ted  

to  them. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   In  te rms o f  Sect ion  2 :  

“There  w i l l  no t  be  a  pe r fo rmance fee  fo r  

fundra is ing .   Thus,  2 .1 .2 . . .  [wh ich  we have  

read]  . . .w i l l  be  removed as  we l l . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  wou ld  –  i t  i s  cor rec t  in  te rms  o f  what  

was s ta ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  there  wou ld  be  no per fo rmance  

fee  equa l  to  20% of  sav ings?  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  le t  us  jus t  go  th rough what  was 

exc luded,  i f  you  do not  m ind?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2 .1 :  
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“Fees on re la ted  costs  a re  quoted in  South  

A f r i can cur rency and are  exc lus ive  o f  VAT.  

Expenses w i l l  be  capped to  10% of  the  va lue  

o f  the  to ta l  re ta iner. . . ”  

 Sub-sub-2 :  

“A pe r fo rmance  fee  equa l  to  20% of  the  

sav ings ach ieved  aga ins t  benchmark  in te res t  

ra tes . . . ”  

 So there  was go ing  to  be  a  per fo rmance fee  bu t  

one o f  the  cond i t ions  or  i tems tha t  were  inser ted  a t  the 10 

foo t  o f  page MSM-180 is  tha t  tha t  –  e f fec t i ve ly,  tha t  c lause  

was to  be  removed.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you go to  the  foo t  o f  180:  

“Expenses w i l l  be  capped a t . . . ”  

 I  do  no t  know what  tha t  i s .  

“ . . .a t  ten(?) . . . ”  

 You are  ab le  to  dec ipher  tha t?    

“ . . .and pa id  on  the  proofed ac tua l  cos ts  in  

te rms o f  Transnet ’s  po l i c i es  and p rocedures. . . ”  20 

 Do you know wha t  tha t  f igure  i s?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  assume 10%.   I t  seems l i ke  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  10%. . .  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  s t roke is  m iss ing  be tween the  two dots .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

“Payment  w i l l  be  made to  McK insey and costs  

and payments  aga ins t  the  scope  and not  be  

made above n ine  m i l l ion  w i thout  spec i f i c  

approva l  by  Transnet . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  Mr  S ingh,  I  mean on the  face  o f  

i t ,  th is  i s  a  countero f fe r,  rea l l y,  tha t  you a re  mak ing .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  r igh t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  d id  Reg iments  eve r  agree to  

th is?  

MR SINGH :    I  am not  too  su re ,  s i r.   I  wou ld  assume so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  –  so ,  in  o ther  words,  when you 

got  th is  document  tha t  have a l ready been s igned by  

Mr  P i l lay,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  you  then –  you d id  no t  agree  

w i th  your  own document .   And th is  i s  a  Transnet  genera ted  

document .   I t  i s  no t  a  –  th is  d id  no t  come f rom Reg iments .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  you  w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  

Reg iments  and a  Transnet  document .    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    So  I  wou ld  assume tha t  there  wou ld  – i t  has  a  

Transnet  re fe rence number  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon.   Yes.   A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    So  I  wou ld  assume th is  i s  a  jo in t  document  
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be tween –  o r  was p repared between Transnet  and  

Reg iments  and  I  wou ld  assume the  peop le  –  the  

procu rement  depar tment  wou ld  have been engag ing  w i th  

Reg iments  to  be  ab le  to  p repare  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you cannot  te l l  us  whether  th i s  

was taken back to  Reg iments  and whethe r  they agreed? 

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  to  p rov ide  contex t  in  te rms o f  the  Sect ion  

2  or  i tem.   In  te rms o f  Sect ion  2  there  w i l l  be  –  there  w i l l  10 

no t  be  a  pe r fo rmance fee  fo r  fundra is ing .   Th i s  i tems was  

exc luded f rom the  scope o f  th is  ass ignment  a t  th is  s tage  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .due to  the  fac t  tha t ,  a t  th is  s tage,  you  

wou ld  unders tand  tha t  we had not  awarded  the  cont rac t  fo r  

the  locomot ives  a t  th is  s tage.   So there  wou ld  no t  have  

been a  need fo r  us  to  engage in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh,  t ry  to  speak up.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  sor ry,  s i r.   There  wou ld  be  no need fo r  us  20 

to  engage in  fundra is ing  jus t  ye t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    So  i t  wou ld  fo rm a  separa te  mandate  tha t  we  

wou ld  have engaged w i th  la te r  on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   A l r igh t .   Le t  us  go  back then 
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to  the  MNS repor t  a t  page 382,  Bund le  6 .   And tha t  b r ings 

us  to  the  th i rd  addendum.   So th is  was. . .  [Speaker  moves  

away f rom microphone]  . . .20  January.   The th i rd  addendum 

is  the  4 t h  o f  February.   And we w i l l  come to  the  document  

now,  bu t  i t  says  tha t :  

“ In  May 2013,  Transnet  ra ised a  conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  invo l v ing  Nedbank Cap i ta l . . . ”  

 We have gone th rough th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 382.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So a t  382,  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  

th i rd  addendum and parag raph 2 .4 .16  jus t  g ives  you the  

contex t  about  Reg iments  hav ing  rep laced Nedbank  Cap i ta l .   

And then a t  2 .4 .17 ,  i t  says :  

“Desp i te  the  LOI  hav ing  lapsed. . . ”  

 We know tha t  i t  lapsed on the  1s t  o f  December.  

“ . . .Transnet  and Reg iments  conc luded the  th i rd  

addendum to  the  LOI  on  4  February  2014. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now tha t  document ,  the  th i rd  

addendum,  you w i l l  f ind  a t  Transne t  Bund le  5 ,  your  exh ib i t ,  

5B ,  page 906.   You w i l l  see  tha t  i s  s igned a t  n ine  o  e igh t  

on  the  4 t h  o f  February  2014 and  i t  appears  to  have been 
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s igned by  Er ic  Wood on beha l f  o f  Reg iments .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.   Sor ry.   That  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  the  document  i t se l f  says  i t  i s  a  

th i rd  addendum between McKinsey  and Transnet .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And a t  paragraph 3 .1 ,  i t  ta lks  about  

the  de l i verab les .   I t  says  in  the  th i rd  l ine :  

“The ob jec t  o f  th is  work  spec i f i c  p ro jec t  i s  to  

conduct  a l l  the  necessary  s tud ies  and 

prepara tory  work . . . ”  10 

 And i t  se ts  i t  ou t ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then there  is  a  who le  lo t  o f  o ther  

de l i verab les  i f  you  go over  the  page.   Perhaps I  can take  

you to  7 :  

“Eva lua t ing  a l l  po ten t ia l  fund ing  sources and  

mechan isms to  se lec t  the  most  appropr ia te  

avenues. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then the  va r ia t ion  o f  the  

cont rac t  p r iced a t  4 .1 .    

“As  a  resu l t  o f  the  add i t iona l  scope o f  work  

requ i red  on  the  f inanc ia l  phase o f  th is  

cont rac t ,  the  in i t ia l  p r i ce  o f  R 35 mi l l ion . . . ”  
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 We know where  tha t  comes f rom.  

“ . . .w i l l  there fore  increase by  R 6  m i l l ion .  

Th is  increase w i l l  b r ing  the  to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  

to  the  f i xed  amount  o f  R 41 200 000,00. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now why d id  you not  conc lude –  I  

mean,  the  in ten t ion  c lear ly  had  been to  conc lude th is  

addendum to  –  or  the  in ten t ion  had been to  conc lude th is  

addendum wi th  McK insey.   Cor rec t?  10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime there  

was an in ten t ion  fo r  McK insey to  a l l  o f  the  ob l iga t ions  

under  the  t ransact ion  adv i so ry  serv ices  cont rac t  to  

Reg iments  and I  th ink  th is  was the  mechan ism wi th  wh ich  

tha t  was ach ieved . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  came la te r,  Mr  S ingh.   You 

adv ised a l ready in  Apr i l .   We are  go ing  to  come to the 

chrono logy.    

MR SINGH :    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  tha t  I  th ink  was backdated 

in  some . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  the  in ten t ion  –  the  cess ion  

had been a f fec ted  as  o f  th is  da te ,  had i t?   As o f  the  

4 t h  o f  February,  o r  do  I  have i t  w rong?   You have not  been  

adv ised o f  th is  cess ion .    

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  I  cou ld  no t  hear  you,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    You had not  been adv ised o f  the 

cess ion  f rom McKinsey to  Reg iments  as  a t  the 

4 t h  o f  February.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  unders tand.   There  were  issues  

tha t  McK insey were  dea l ing  w i th  dur ing  tha t  pe r iod  o f  t ime 

between February  and Apr i l  when the  ac tua l  cess ion  

ac tua l l y  occu r red  and the  in ten t ion  was a lways tha t  f rom 

the  –  f rom a  per iod  w i th in  -  f rom a  w i th in  February,  

McK insey wou ld  cede the  ac tua l  cont rac t  on  a  t ransact ion  

adv isory  se rv i ces  to  McK insey.   That  was la te r  conf i rmed in  10 

a  cess ion  agreement  tha t  was  then s igned and then  

backdate  to  somet ime in  February.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  my quest ion  is  s imp le .   As 

o f  the  4 t h  o f  February  2014,  had you been adv ised  o f  the  

cess ion  f rom McK insey to  Reg imen ts?  

MR SINGH :    We were  aware  o f  the  cess ion ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  had the  cess ion  taken p lace?  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  the  d iscuss ions be tween Mr  Wood  

and Mr  Sagar,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  what  about  the  d iscuss ions 20 

w i th  you?  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  yes ,  yes .   I  was aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  why you conc luded th i s  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 106 of 313 
 

because i t  shou ld  have been conc luded,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  

w i th  McK insey.   I f  you  look where  Mr  Wood s igned,  he  

sc ra tches out  McK insey and he wr i tes  Reg iments .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were  comfo r tab le  w i th  tha t  

because you had been to ld  tha t  the re  was a  cess ion .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  was –  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  the  p ipe l i ne?  

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  they  sa id  tha t  they –  they had  agreed  

tha t  they wou ld  cede the  word  as  o f  a  da te  in  February  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  know what  tha t  da te  was but  tha t  was 

then la te r  conf i rmed in  th is  ac tua l  cess ion  agreement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you have been to ld  tha t .   You 

have not  been adv ised o f  tha t  fo rmal ly.  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  a  fo rmal  agreement  tha t  came in  

Apr i l . . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you  had jus t  been to ld  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . tha t  i t  might  –  tha t  i t  was in  the  

p ipe l ine .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  ac tua l l y,  phys ica l l y  on  the  ground,  

McK insey had demobi l i sed  the i r  team.   So they were  no t  –  
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because dur ing  th is  pe r iod  o f  t ime,  the  cont rac ts  fo r  the 

locomot ive  –  the  post -negot ia t ion  o f  the  locomot ives  was 

occur r ing  and McKinsey d id  no t  p lay  any par t  in  i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you d id  no t  

sa t is fy  yourse l f ,  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  tha t  there  was a  

cess ion  and i t  had been comple ted ,  i t  had been done? 

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  a  fo rmal  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    P rocedura l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . . .no ,  tha t . . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  tha t  shou ld  no t  be  l i ke  tha t ,  i s  

i t  no t?   You shou ld  see the  cess ion  i t se l f  to  be  sure ,  i s  i t  

no t?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  were  t ransfe r r ing  –  you may be  

conc lud ing  an  ag reement  w i th  somebody who –  w i th  whom 

you shou ld  no t  have been conc lud ing  an  addendum.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  there  was –  and we wou ld  

have to  go  and research  th is ,  bu t  there  were  emai l s  to  tha t  

e f fec t  tha t  the  cess ion  had been a f fec ted  as  o f  the  da te  in  20 

February.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  i s  a  very  s t range way o f  do ing  

th ings,  Mr  S ingh .   I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  somebody in  your  

pos i t ion  wou ld  want  to  be  g iven a l l  the  re levant  documents  

inc lud ing  the  cess ion  be fore  s ign ing  an  addendum such as  
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th is  w i th  Reg iments  when i t  had been in tended to  be  w i th  

McK insey.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  have a  Reg iments  

o f f i c ia l  and you have a  McK insey o f f i c ia l  a t  sen io r  leve l s  o f  

the  organ isa t ion  tha t  were  opera t ing  w i th  Mr  Sagar  and  

Mr  Wood and they agree,  I  wou ld  assume tha t  i s  an  

in ten t ion  tha t  the  par t ies  a re  w i l l i ng  to  cede and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  no t  a  ques t ion  o f  w i l l i ngness.   You 

know,  you are  invo lved in  a  very  b ig  o rgan isa t ion ,  10 

Transnet .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We are  ta lk ing  about  b ig  amounts  tha t  

a re  invo l ved.   So the  proper  th ing  is  tha t  i f  r igh ts  were  he ld  

w i th  a  par t i cu la r  en t i t y  o r  a  cont rac t  was had w i th  a  

par t i cu la r  en t i t y,  be fore  somebody in  your  pos i t ion  can s ign  

someth ing  l i ke  th is ,  somebody shou ld  p lace before  you a l l  

re levant  documents  and say:    

 Now you can s ign  th is  document ,  th is  addendum 

because the  fo l low ing requ i rements  wh ich  needed to  be  20 

sa t is f ied  had been sa t is f ied .   Here  is  the  cess ion .   Here  is  

th is .   Here  is  tha t .   Not  on  the  bas is  o f  word  o f  mouth  when 

you get  invo l ved w i th  such b ig  amounts  and such b ig  

t ransact ions.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was word  
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by  mouth .   I  th ink  the re  was wr i t ten  communica t ion  in  th is  

regard .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you d id  no t  see a  cess ion .   That  i s  

what  you have to ld  me,  I  thought .  

MR SINGH :    A cess ion  agreement?   I  agree,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    I t  was s igned in  Apr i l  bu t  I  am sure  there  was 

emai l  communica t ion  in  th is  regard  be tween . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  i f  i t  was not  s igned?   

Someth ing  happened and i t  d id  no t  ge t  s igned,  wha t  wou ld  10 

happen?  You have a l ready s igned the  addendum.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  re l y  on  the  emai l  

communica t ions. . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And why was th is  addendum s igned by  

you and Mr  Er ic  Wood wi thout  any  w i tnesses s ign ing?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  were  you when you s igned th i s  

w i th  Mr  Wood?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  reca l l ,  I  th ink  I  was a t  my o f f i ce ,  

no t . . .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  you  were  a t  you r  o f f i ce ,  you cou ld  

have eas i l y  go t  your  secre tary  o r  some o ther  person to  jus t  

come and w i tness the  s ign ing  o f  th is  agreement  o f  th is  

addendum.   So where  were  you when you s igned i t?   

Where  were  the  two o f  you?  
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MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  bu t  I  cer ta in l y  

wou ld  have th ink  tha t  i t  was in  the  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   Why do you not  re fe r  

then to  the  cess ion  in  the  p reamble  and in t roduct ion  to  the  

agreement?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Because the  preamble  and the  

in t roduct ion  re fers  to  McK insey.    

MR SINGH :    I  know tha t ,  s i r.   [Speaker  unc lear ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Now wi th  regard  to  th is  addendum.   Who 

prepared i t?   Do you know?   

MR SINGH :    I t  wou ld  have  been the  procurement  

depar tment ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  tha t  mean tha t  i t  d id  go  th rough 

lawyers?   Do you  know? 

MR SINGH :    These are  no rmal ly  done th rough the  20 

procurement  depar tment .   There  is  lega l  exper t i se  w i th in  

the  lega l  depar tment  bu t  no t  Transnet  lega l  per  se .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  o f  course ,  i f  you  have a  spec ia l  

lega l  depar tment ,  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  even i f  some o the r  

depar tment  has go t  some lawyers  invo lved,  you wou ld  need 
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to  invo l ve  tha t  lega l  depar tment  because tha t  i s  why they 

are  the re .   They are  the re  to  a f fec t  cer ta in  th ings.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .   Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   You see,  we were  look ing  ear l ie r  

on  now –  I  canno t  remember  –  Mr  Myburgh,  i t  m igh t  be  one  

o f  the  o ther  bund les  tha t  –  o r  was  i t  an  addendum?  That  

agreement  tha t  you s igned tha t  had got  –  the  annota t ion  a t  

the  bo t tom,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now,  someth ing  i s  s t range  –  looks  10 

s t range to  me wi th  regard  to  tha t  because when you  look a t  

the  f i rs t  pages,  i t  i s  l i ke  a  le t te r  to  you.   You remember?  

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  le t te r  addressed to  you.   Do you 

remember  where  i t  i s ,  Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  tha t  i s  in  Mohamedy ’s  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 177.   DCJ,  Exh ib i t  BB-3(a ) .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page MSM.   You w i l l  f ind  the  20 

annota t ions a t  page 180.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.   Thank you.   Yes,  you  see a t  

page 177,  i t  i s  – i t  looks  l i ke  i t  is  on  the  le t te rheads o f  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and Transnet .   I t  i s  addressed to  

Transnet  and says:   “Dear,  Ano j  S ingh. . . ”   So you th ink  i t  is  
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a  le t te r  and you th ink  you a re  go ing  to  come to  the  end and  

f ind  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  le t te r  bu t  i t  says :    “Thus du ly  

s igned a t . . . ”  and then i t  i s  b lank.   Transnet  S tock  L im i ted .   

Name,  Ano j  S ingh .    

 So you say:   What  i s  th is?   Th is  i s  a  le t te r  to  

Ano j  S ingh and he is  wr i t ing  to  h imse l f  o r  what  i s  go ing  on  

here?  And then you say:   Oh,  i t  is  an  agreement .   But  why  

is  i t  no t  in  the  fo rm in  wh ich  an  agreement  no rma l ly  –  i s  

normal ly  fo rmula ted?  Who prepared th is  document?   Do  

you know? 10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id  o r ig ina l l y.   I  do  no t  reca l l  

who prepared i t  bu t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  wou ld  seem,  i f  i t  i s  

addressed to  me,  i t  wou ld  have been coming f rom 

Reg iments  to  me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  as  you can see,  you a re  the  f i rs t  

s ignature  there .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . tha t  i s  the  end .   On the  las t  page.  

MR SINGH :    No ,  no  –  ja ,  we have f i rs t  s ignatory  bu t  the  

da te  o f  the  s ignature ,  we have s igned second(?) .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  in  te rms  o f  –  i f  any  [cough ing ] . . .   

Excuse me.   You are  the  f i rs t  immedia te l y  a f te r  the  content  

o f  th is  document ,  you a re  the  f i rs t  one there .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then there  is  P i l lay  tha t . . .   So  I  do  no t  
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know.   I t  jus t  looks ve ry  s t range to  me.   D id  th is  go  th rough 

lawyers?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id .   Th is  wou ld  have went  

th rough procurement  and procu rement  wou ld  have maybe 

the  annota t ions re la t ing  to  the  handwr i t ten  no tes  a t  the  

bo t tom.   I  w i l l  assume tha t  they wou ld  have probab ly  go t  

input  f rom lega l  bu t  I  cannot  conf i rm tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  wou ld  you not  have sought  to  

make sure  tha t  be fore  you s igned,  i t  had –  you knew tha t  i t  

had gone th rough the  lega l  depar tment  and they sa id  i t  i s  10 

f ine?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  these type o f  cases,  one wou ld  

no t  spec i f i ca l l y,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  the  procurement  

depar tment  has lega l  exper t i se  w i th in  i t .   You wou ld  no t  

spec i f i ca l l y  request  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  why then have the  lega l  depar tment?   

Because o the rwise  i f  every th ing  tha t  i s  lega l  goes to  the  

lega l  depar tment  then i f  any th ing  goes wrong you know 

who to  ho ld  respons ib le  and they  are  pa id  to  do  exact ly  

tha t ,  ve t t ing  cont rac ts  and not  p rocurement .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  in  th is  case g i ven the  fac t  

tha t  i t  was a  procurement - re la ted  le t  us  say document ,  i t  

wou ld  normal ly  go  in to  procurement ,  p rocurement  wou ld  do  

the  necessary  requ i rements .   I f  they  deemed i t  necessary  

fo r  i t  to  go  to  corpo ra te  lega l  they wou ld  then engage 
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corpo ra te  lega l  on  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And go ing  back  to  the  th i rd  addendum,  

why wou ld  you not  have made sure  tha t  there  was a  

w i tness who w i tnesses the  s ign ing  o f  th is  addendum 

between you and Mr  Er ic  Wood? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  I  th ink  f rom my s ide  i t  

was jus t  an  overs igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   May I  then – tha t  

was on the  4  February  2014.   On the  21 February  2014 10 

Transnet  and McKinsey then ente r  in to  a  Maste r  Serv i ce  

Agreement ,  do  you reca l l  tha t?   And tha t  ag reement  you  

f ind  –  I  w i l l  take  you there ,  bund le  5C page 2167.    

MR SINGH:    2167?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1267.    

MR SINGH:    B lack  number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  a lways .    

MR SINGH:    5C?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon,  2167.  

MR SINGH:    Okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  is  a  who le  lo t  o f  numbers  on  

th is  document  so  Transnet  05-2167 .   A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So th is  i s  an  agreement  be tween 

Transnet  and McKinsey Incorpora ted  fo r  the  prov i s ion  o f  
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serv i ces  re la t ing  to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064  

locomot ives .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  I  cou ld  take  you p lease to  –  sor ry ,  

i f  I  cou ld  jus t  have a  second?  I f  I  take  you to  the  end o f  

th is  document  –  un for tunate l y ,  Cha i rperson,  th i s  i s  a  very  

poor  qua l i t y  reproduct ion  wh ich  is  caus ing  me to  t ry  and  

get  ins t ruc t ions f rom the  invest iga tors .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  i f  I  cou ld  take  you p lease to  10 

page 2195 and we w i l l  p roduce a  more  leg ib le  copy.   As  I  

have i t  and I  am now re l y ing  on  my notes ,  you s igned th is  

on  the  11  August  –  I  have i t  as  i t  hav ing  been s igned,  the  

las t  s ignatory  be ing  the  21  February  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  my 2195 does not  have a  s ignature  

page,  shou ld  i t  be  a  s ignature  page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry ,  i t  must  be  2194,  DCJ,  I  do  

beg your  pa rdon,  I  have got  m ine in  landscape.  

MR SINGH:    2194?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    219… 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have i t  be ing  s igned,  the  f ina l  

s ignature  be ing  the  21  February  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On my page 2194 Mr  S ingh s igned on 11  

August  2014.   I  cannot  see anothe r  s ignature .  
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ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    There  is  a lso  s ignatures  on  

page 2190 i t  looks .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  I  th ink  –  I  am indebted  to  my 

learned f r iend,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease do not  fo rge t  what  you have in  

m ind,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure ,  thank  you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh?  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am tak ing  you out  o f  what  we are  10 

look ing  a t  now jus t  fo r  one second .   You see a t  page 2202 

o f  the  same bund le .  

MR SINGH:    2202?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  addendum to  

MSA.   You s igned there  and one o f  the  w i tnesses who has 

w i tnessed is  Noma [ ind is t inc t ]  who I  th ink  was your  PA.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  must  have been probab ly  in  the  20 

o f f i ce .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   I  am indebted to  my 

learned f r iend.   In  fac t  the  s ignatu res  and the  da tes  appear  

more  c lear ly  a t  page 2190.   A re  you there ,  Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    2190,  I  am,  S i r .   I  am,  S i r .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So you w i l l  see  –  and perhaps you  

can he lp  us ,  we can see on the  le f t  hand s ide  i t  i s  no t  very  

c lea r  bu t  you s igned on the  le f t  hand s ide ,  Mr  F ine  s igns 

on  the  r i gh t .   The date  under  h is  s ignature  appears  to  be  

21  February  2014.   The date  under  your  s ignature  i s  tha t  

11  August  2014?  

MR SINGH:    Seems l i ke  i t ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  10 

MR SINGH:    I t  does seem l i ke  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  go to  page 2166 you  w i l l  see  

tha t  the  commencement  da te  i s  15  January  and the  exp i ry  

da te  was 31 March 2014.   Do you see tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  a t  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  page 2167,  DCJ.  

MR SINGH:    2167,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2167.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you see  the  commencement  da te  20 

15 January  2013 and the  exp i ry  da te  31  March 2014 .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  F ine  s igned th is  cont rac t  

shor t l y  be fore  the  ass ignment  was go ing  to  exp i re  and you  

s igned i t  a f te r  tha t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r ,  bu t  there  is  a  memo in  be tween th is  

I  th ink  tha t  e f fec t i ve l y  ex tends the  de l i very  da te  or  the  

cont rac t  da te  o f  th is  ag reement  tha t  was approved by  Mr  

Mole fe ,  I  th ink .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  so  we see here  F ine  on  21 

February  2014.   Now I  want  to  take  you to  the  cess ion  

le t te r  tha t  you spoke about  ear l ie r  in  your  ev idence .   That  

you f ine  –  aga in  we a re  in  the  Mahomedy bund le ,  EXHIBIT  

BB3(a ) .   Page 175.   Can you got  to  page 175 p lease? 

MR SINGH:    On EXHIBIT BB3(a)?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB3(a) .   Now th is  document ,  

MSM175,  th is  i s  da ted  the  16  Apr i l  2014.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  says  pursuant  –  and th is  i s  a  

le t te r  addressed to  you by  Mr  Sagar ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So i t  says :  

“Pursuant  to  ou r  d iscuss ions and  agreement  on  5  

February  2014 we he reby conf i rm  tha t  the  mandate  

awarded to  McK insey Incorpo ra ted  and a l l  r igh t s  20 

and ob l iga t ions c rea ted thereby was on 5  February  

2014 ceded and/or  de legated to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

in  accordance w i th  such d i scuss ion  and agreement . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :     

“On account  o f  and pursuant  to  the  a forement ioned  

cess ion  and de legat ion ,  a l l  work  re la ted  to  and in  

respect  o f  the  mandate  was  conducted by  

Reg iments  and not  by  McK insey Incorpo ra ted . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  does tha t  mean?  

“On account  o f  and pursuant  to  the  a forement ioned  

cess ion  and de legat ion ,  a l l  work  re la ted  to  and in  10 

respect  o f  the  mandate  was  conducted by  

Reg iments  and not  by  McK insey. ”  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  I  can  on ly  unders tand tha t  to  be  

tha t  once the  cess ion  had been agreed to  be tween  Eskom 

– Transnet ,  McK insey and Reg iments ,  the  in te rven ing  

per iod ,  whatever  work  had been done,  was bas ica l l y  done  

on beha l f  o f  –  was done by  Reg iments  and not  McK insey.   

As  I  sa id  to  you,  there  was a  per iod  o f  t ime once the  

cess ion  had been  agreed to  in  p r inc ip le  tha t  work  had s t i l l  

need to  be  one on the  –  le t  us  say post  the  negot ia t ion  fo r  20 

the  locomot ives  and tha t  work  was then done by  Reg iments  

ins tead o f  McK insey.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So can I  then take  you back to  the  

MNS repor t?   So a t  paragraph 2 .4 .20  a t  page 383,  the  MNS 

repor t  reads w i th  re ference to  the  cess ion  tha t :  
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“Th is  cess ion  was inva l id  on  the  bas is  tha t  a t  the  

t ime when McKinsey pu rpor ted  to  cede the  cont rac t ,  

McK insey ’s  r igh ts  in  respect  o f  the  t ransact ion  

adv isory  se rv i ces  had lapsed. ”    

We have gone th rough the  fac t  tha t  they lapsed on the  1  

December  2013.   Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   A l r igh t .   And then another  th ing  tha t  

they p i ck  up  is  a t  paragraph 2 .5  a t  page 384 dea l ing  w i th  

the  Master  Serv ice  Agreement .  10 

“Subsequent  to  the  purpo r ted  cess ion  on  21  

February  Transnet  and McKinsey conc luded an  

MSA. ”  

Now tha t  may no t  be  cor rec t  because i t  appears  tha t  you 

and Mr  F ine  s igned on d i f fe ren t  da tes .    

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  what  they do  go on to  say a t  

252:  

“ I f  the  purpor ted  cess ion  be tween McKinsey and 

Reg iments  was va l id ,  then McKinsey d id  no t  have  20 

lega l  au tho r i t y  to  conc lude the  MSA as i t  had ceded  

i t s  r igh ts  and ob l iga t ions in  te rms  o f  the  cess ion  to  

Reg iments . ”  

MR SINGH:    As  you wou ld  have seen,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  MSA 

was ac tua l l y  s igned by  Mr  F ine  and as  I  had d i scussed 



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 121 of 313 
 

p rev ious l y ,  the  d i scuss ions around  the  MSA or  the  cess ion  

re la t ing  to  the  –  the  cess ion  be tween Reg iments  and 

McKinsey was be ing  d iscussed by  Mr  Sagar .   But  hav ing 

sa id  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  Mr  Sagar  wou ld  have 

been communica t ing  w i th  McK insey in  tha t  regard .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you s igned the  MSA la te r  in  the 

year ,  a f te r  hav ing  learn t  o f  the  cess ion .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you s igned i t  we have seen in  

August ,  you came to  learn  –  or  le t  me say fo rmal l y  on  the  10 

16 Apr i l  o f  the  cess ion .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .   Mr  Cha i r ,  th is  wou ld  have been a  

document  tha t  –  the  MSA,  fo r  example ,  th is  wou ld  have 

been a  document  tha t  wou ld  have  been brought  to  me by  

procu rement  and  they wou ld  have then sa id  l i s ten ,  th is  

document  needs to  be  s igned and hav ing  regard  to  the  fac t  

tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry ,  th is  document  i s?  

MR SINGH:    Th is  document  wou ld  need to  be  s igned 

because i t  was uns igned a t  tha t  t ime and I  wou ld  have then  20 

s igned i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see,  Mr  S ingh –  I  mean,  so  you  

were  aware  tha t  there  was not (? )  a  cess ion  w i th  e f fec t  f rom 

the  5  February .   You have to ld  us  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   The McKinsey MSA was  

s igned by  Mr  F ine  a f te r  tha t  on  the  21  February .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   And you s igned i t  in  August .   

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And a l l  a long you knew tha t  there  

was a  cess ion  w i th  e f fec t  f rom the  5  February .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   So what  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you 

one th ing  aga in  because i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  us  to  t ry  and 10 

get  a  sense o f  th i s .   I f  you  go to  MSM175,  what  i s  i t  say ing 

here ,  th is  cess ion  le t te r  where  i t  ta lks  about  a l l  work  was  

conducted by  Reg iments  and no t  by  McK insey.   Dur ing  

what  per iod?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  th is  re la tes  to  the  issue o f  the  

na ture  o f  the  reason why McKinsey dec ided to ,  how can I  

say ,  abandon the  pro jec t ,  i f  I  want  to  ca l l  i t  because th is  i s  

bas ica l l y  what  i t  means,  i s  tha t  McK insey came to  a  

dec is ion  tha t  they d id  no t  want  to  be  –  or  they d id  no t  want  

to  be  par t  o f  the  pro jec t  anymore .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why was tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  comp le te ly  o f fhand but  I  th ink  

there  was some issues re la t ing  to  a  d isag reement  be tween  

Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l  and one o f  the  McK insey –  I  th ink  i t  

was Mr  F ine ,  tha t  there  was some an imos i ty  be tween –  or  
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there  was some d isagreement  a round numbers  or  

someth ing  on  the  o ther  hand,  tha t  i s  what  led  to  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  to  loca te  the  Cha i rperson,  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  th is  i s  a t  the  t ime fo l low ing the  

conc lus ion  o f  the  LSAs,  Locomot ive  Supp ly  Agreements .  

MR SINGH:    No,  th is  was f i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  When were  those agreements  

conc luded?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  was I  th ink  March 2014.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes bu t  I  mean th is  le t te r  i s  da ted  10 

the  16  Apr i l .  

MR SINGH:    No ,  hence I  am say ing  the  d iscuss ions and 

the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  I  wan t  to  ge t  a t  i s  tha t  you got  

th is  le t te r  in  be tween the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LSAs and  

approach ing  the  board  to  inc rease  the  ETC.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Cor rec t?   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   And now you are  to ld  tha t  a l l  20 

the  work  tha t  has  been has been done by  Reg imen ts ,  tha t  

re la tes  a lso  to  the  bus iness case and the  ass i s tance tha t  

they wou ld  be  g i v ing  you in  re la t ion  to  the  increase in  the  

ETC,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  th is  

i s  a  –  in  a  way o f  speak ing ,  McK insey wanted to  d is tance 

themse lves f rom hav ing  had input  in to  the  bus iness case  

but  I  th ink  a t  the  end o f  the  day  the  bus iness case was  

deve loped jo in t l y  be tween Reg iments  and McKinsey e l se  

we wou ld  have pa id  McK insey fo r  no  work .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  jus t  –  you know –  I  know I  have 

kept  c lose  tabs on  the  ev idence g i ven by  McK insey,  we can  

f ind  the  t ranscr ip t  i f  my memory  is  inco r rec t  and does not  10 

accord  w i th  yours ,  bu t  d id  Dr  F ine  no t  tes t i f y  tha t  

McK insey,  they fe l l  ou t ,  they  ceded and i t  was in  tha t  shor t  

po in t  o f  t ime tha t  there  was th i s  huge inc rease in to  the  

ETC tha t  Reg iments  was a t  the  he lm and he cons ide red 

tha t  comple ted  un jus t i f iab le .   Do you remember  h im g iv ing  

tha t  ev idence?  

MR SINGH:    Ja ,  we l l  tha t  may be  h is  v iew,  S i r ,  and I  am 

aga in  say ing  hopefu l l y  when we get  to  the  t ransact ions we 

w i l l  be  ab le  to  unders tand the  rea l  reasons as  to  why the  

increases occur red .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   But ,  Mr  S ingh,  we a re  dea l ing  

w i th  the  t ransact ions here .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  I  am say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  one  o f  the  –  these are  your  

adv isers  who a re  ta in ted ,  who are  ass i s t ing  you w i th  the  
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t ransact ions bu t  th is  i s  a  t ransact ion  tha t  we are  

sc ru t in is ing ,  th is  one here .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  unders tand,  bu t  you a re  lead ing  

ev idence re la t ing  to  the  increase in  ETC which  is  a 

separa te  t ransact ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   What  I  am t ry ing  to  ge t  a t ,  

though,  i s  –  I  s imp ly  pu t  –  I  want  to  t rack  the  t ime l i ne  and I  

th ink  tha t  we have ag reed tha t  there  was a  conc lus ion  o f  

the  LSAs in  March,  there  was an approach to  the  board  to  

increase the  ETC,  th is  le t te r  comes in  be tween and  I  have  10 

paraphrased fo r  you the  ev idence o f  Dr  F ine .  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  so  i f  we are  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  then le t  us  

dea l  w i th  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    Then I  say  tha t  the  increase was comple te l y  

jus t i f ied  and i f  you want  to  know the  reasons,  le t  us  dea l  

w i th  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  I  am s t rugg l ing  w i th ,  i s  to  work  

ou t  what  work  are  we ta lk ing  about  because i f  McK insey  

are  say ing  a l l  the  work  tha t  has been done on th is  20 

cont rac t ,  okay,  i s  Reg iments ’  work ,  then why on ear th  do  

you go and conc lude a  cont rac t  w i th  McK insey?  McK insey 

are  say ing ,  on  the  face  o f  th is  l e t te r ,  tha t  we have not  done  

any work ,  Reg iments  have done a l l  the  work .  

MR SINGH:    As  I  sa id  to  you,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i t  was an a t tempt  
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f rom McKinsey to  d is tance themse lves f rom the  bus iness  

case fo r  whatever  reason tha t  they thought  they needed to  

do  i t  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  jus t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    I  am say ing ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  th is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The quest ion  is ,  why conc lude an 

agreement  w i th  McK insey when McKinsey says fo r  such 

and such a  pe r iod  i t  i s  Reg iments  who d id  the  work?   That  

i s  the  quest ion ,  so  what  i s  your  answer  to  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  agreement  needed to  be  10 

s igned,  regard less ,  because there  was go ing  to  be  ced ing  

o f  the  work  tha t  they had been awarded,  so  the  award  o f  

the  tender  needed a  cont rac t  wh ich  then subsequent ly  

wou ld  be  ceded.   You cannot  cede  a  non-ex is ten t  cont rac t .   

You had to  inher i t  the  r igh ts  to  tha t  and then cede.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  po in t  made by  

MNS,  th is  was not  a  va l id  cess ion  because the  was not  a  

cont rac t  and the  addendum had lapsed.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  as  I  sa id ,  in  te rms o f  the  20 

le t te r  you w i l l  see  tha t  pursuant  to  our  d iscuss ions and  

agreement  on  5  February ,  so  there  was an agreement  tha t  

had been reached on 5  February  and tha t  i s  per  the  

cess ion  le t te r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now th is  cess ion  l e t te r ,  as  
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you  ca l l  i t ,  i s  da ted  the  16  Apr i l ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You rece ived i t  on  tha t  day.  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l ,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Now tha t  b r ings us  to  what  I  

rea l l y  want  to  ge t  to  and tha t  i s  someth ing  e l se  tha t  

happened on the  16  Apr i l .   Can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  

page 888 o f  bund le  5B,  your  exh ib i t .  

MR SINGH:    5B? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 5B?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  5B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And by  tha t  I  mean Transnet  bund le  

5B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  and what  i s  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The page number  i s  888.   So,  Mr  

S ingh,  i f  you  go to  page 896,  wou ld  you conf i rm tha t  you 

s igned th is  on  the  same date  as  the  cess ion  le t te r ,  the  16  

Apr i l  2014?  20 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  one second?  That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease go  back to  the  beg inn ing  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  you re fer red  h im to  what  

page,  Mr  Myburgh?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    888,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    888.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  you re fer red  to  a  page w i th  h is  

s ignature  as  we l l ,  i s  tha t  a t  896?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  beg your  pardon ,  so  the  

document  s ta r ts  a t  888 and then,  you are  abso lu te l y  

cor rec t ,  a t  896 i s  the  s ignatu re  and there  you w i l l  see  tha t  

Mr  S ingh s igned i t  on  the  16  Apr i l  2014,  the  same date  as  

the  cess ion  le t te r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  we then go back to  the  

beg inn ing  o f  the  document ,  Mr  S ingh,  and in  fac t  you have  

re fer red  to  th is  b r ie f l y  a l ready.  

“The pu rpose o f  the  submiss ion .   Note ,  the  

de l i verab les  executed by  the  t ransact ion  adv iser  on  

the  locomot ive  t ransact ion  compared to  the  or ig ina l  

scope per  le t te r  o f  in ten t  ra t i f y  the  amendment  to  

the  a l legat ion  o f  scope o f  work  f rom McKinsey to  

Reg iments ,  ra t i f y  the  amendment  in  makeup in  the  20 

t ransact ion  adv i ser  consor t ium f rom Nedbank to  

Reg iments ,  approve a  change in  the  remunera t ion  

mode l  o f  the  t ransact ion  adv iser  compared to  the  

or ig ina l  remunera t ion  mode l  and de legate  power  to  

the  GCFO to  g ive  e f fec t  to  the  above p roposa l . ”  
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I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you say or  what  i s  sa id  at  

parag raph 2 ,  i s :  

“The GCE approved the  appo in tment  w i th  McK insey 

led  consor t ium to prov ide  comple te  adv i so ry  

serv i ces  on  the  1064 locomot ive  tender .   A  le t te r  o f  

in ten t  was s igned  by  the  Group CFO on 4  December  

fo r  35 .2  m i l l i on  exc lud ing  VAT and  d isbu rsements . ”  

Agree w i th  tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :     And then what  i t  ta lks  about  a t  page  

894:  

“Change in  remunera t ion  mode l ”  

A t  the  foo t  o f  the  page.  

“Reg iments  imp lemented ex tens ive  in te l lec tua l  

p roper ty  and  complex  techn iques and 

methodo log ies  to  ach ieve the  above benef i t s  to  

Transnet  the reby mi t iga t ing  the  r i sks  ident i f ied  

above. ”  20 

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  where  are  you ,  S i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  are  you read ing?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  what  page are  on ,  S i r?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am read ing  a t  paragraph 20 .  

MR SINGH:    Page 894?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    894.   And  the  work  tha t  i s  be ing  

spoken o f  i s  pa raphrased in  paragraph 16:  

“As a  resu l t  o f  the  work  done by  Reg iments  the  

de l i very  schedu le  was acce lera ted  thereby ensur ing  

tha t  the  locomot i ves  ar r i ved ear l i e r  and the re  was 

consequent  sav ing . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Par t  o f  i t ,  yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So when we go ove r  the  page 

a t  895:  

“The Reg iments ’  opera t ing  mode l  fo r  such  

engagements  i s  usua l l y  based on a  r i sk-shar ing  

mode l ,  25% of  va lue  c rea ted.   In  th is  case 

Reg iments  was  t ransfer red  a  mandate  and  

remunera t ion  mode l  a l ready accep ted by  McK insey. ”  

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the  cess ion ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  so  tha t  i t  i s  in  te rms o f  the  

cess ion  le t te r  o f  the  16  Apr i l ,  the  same day tha t  you  s igned  

th is ,  cor rec t?   So:  

“Reg iments  was  t ransfe r red  a  mandate  and  
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remunera t ion  mode l  accepted by  McK insey. ”  

That  remunera t ion  mode l  was a  f i xed  cost  mode l ,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes and in  te rms o f  the  LOI .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  we l l  i t  was 35 mi l l ion .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  is  no t  jus t  35  m i l l ion  to  

McK insey or  to  Reg iments ,  to  the  who le  consor t ium.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   So paragraph 23:  

“Reg iments ’  in i t ia l  ind ica t ion  were  tha t  they wou ld  10 

have pre fer red  to  be  engagement  on  a  mode l  

cons i s ten t  w i th  paragraph 21 above. ”  

That  i s  a  success  fee ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :     

“The in i t ia l  request  was re jec ted .   However ,  based  

on the  s ign i f i can t  va lue  crea ted/saved as  we l l  as  

r i sks  m i t iga ted  as  no ted above,  the  request  to  

amend the  remunera t ion  mode l  was submi t ted . ”  

A  request  by  whom? 20 

MR SINGH:  Regiments .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    By  Reg imen ts ,  by  Mr  Wood?  

MR SINGH:    Yes s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he submi t ted  i t  to  you?   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  and then you say:  

“Consequent ly  an  add i t iona l  fee  o f  78 .4mi l l ion  

exc lud ing  VAT is  recommended  to  Reg iments ,  

rep resent ing  a  0 .04% of  the  to ta l  sav ings. ”  

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  then i f  we go to  page 896:  

“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  

no te  the  de l i ve rab les  executed by  the   Transact ion  

Adv isor  on  the  locomot ive  t ransac t ion  compared to  10 

the  or ig ina l  scope o f  the  LOI ,  ra t i f y  the  amendment  

in  the  a l loca t ion  o f  the  scope o f  work  f rom 

McKinsey to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l ,  ra t i f y  the  

amendment  in  the  make-up o f  the  t ransact ion  

adv isor  consor t ium f rom Nedbank Cap i ta l  w i th  –  

ra t i f y  the  amendment  in  the  make-up in  the  

t ransact ion  adv isor  consor t ium f rom Nedbank 

Cap i ta l  w i th  Reg iments  Cap i ta l ;  approve a  change  

in  the  remunera t ion  mode l  o f  the  t ransact ion  

adv isor  compared to  the  or ig ina l  remunera t ion  20 

mode l  and de legate  to  the  GCFO to  g ive  e f fec t  to  

the  above proposa l . ”  

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And u l t imate ly  we know tha t  
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Reg iments  were  pa id  the  success  fee  o f  78  odd mi l l ion ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  I  pu t  th is  to  Mr  Mole fe  o f  

course ,  you d id  no t  have to  pay th is  money.   I  mean,  they  

came cap in  hand  to  you.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  r igh t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because what  happened here  is  the  

-  as  you have sa id ,  the  en t i re  1064 t ransact ion  adv isor  

cont rac t ,  the  va lue  was 35mi l l ion ,  you acknowledged tha t ,  10 

tha t  they were  t ransfer red  a  mandate  and remunera t ion  

mode l  a l ready accepted by  McK insey and he re  on  the  same 

day,  as  you rece ive  the  cess ion  le t te r  you e f fec t i ve ly  

au thor ise  payment  o f  tw ice  the  va lue  o f  the  1064  

t ransact ion  adv isor  cont rac t ,  wh ich  i s  go ing  to  be  sp l i t  

a long amongst  a  who le  lo t  o f  par tne rs  to  Reg iments ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r  however,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i s  

-  has to  be  seen in  the  contex t  o f  the  va lue  tha t  was 

der i ved th rough th is  p rocess.   Mr  Cha i r,  had we not  had 20 

the  t ransact ion  adv i sors  on  board ,  you wou ld  have seen 

tha t  the  locomot ive  cont rac ts  wou ld  have ba l looned to  a  

number  in  excess o f  16b i l l i on  and tha t  number  was 

untenab le ,  Mr  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  de l i ver  on  the  

market  demand s t ra tegy and tha t  i s  the  reason why we -  
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we l l ,  I  thought  i t  wou ld  be…intervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  d id  no t  ba l loon.  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  d id  no t  ba l loon.   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  I  cou ld  no t  hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  d id  no t  ba l loon in to  tha t  amount ,  i s  i t  

no t?   That  d id  no t  happen,  i t  d id  no t  go  up  to  tha t  amount .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman,  had we cont inued on the  

bas is  tha t  we were  go ing  the  55  wou ld  have been  68,  tha t  

i s  the  po in t ,  s i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And th is  68 ,  Mr  Cha i r  was not  known to  

anybody.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was not?  

MR SINGH:    Was not  ca lcu la ted  or  env i saged by  anybody.  

So the  r i sk  tha t  was ident i f ied  was another  R20b i l l i on  

wor th  o f  r i sk  tha t  was mi t iga ted  th rough th is  p rocess and  

tha t  was the  reason why they had come and mot i va ted  to  

say they had added s ign i f i can t  va lue  in  th is  p rocess .   

Our  o r ig ina l  mandates  wou ld  have requ i red  us  to  20 

en ter  in to  a  r i sk  shar ing  bas i s  and Mr  Cha i r  to  be  honest ,  i f  

you  remember,  we d id  reca l l ,  where  we had the  handwr i t ten  

no tes  tha t  sa id  tha t  the  remunera t ion  mode l  was go ing  to  

be  r i sk  based bu t  we re jec ted  tha t  and we make  note  o f  

tha t  tha t  we sa id  the  or ig ina l  in ten t ion  re la t ing  to  tha t  was 
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re jec ted .    

Our  base f rom the  pe r fo rmance in  te rms o f  be ing  

ab le  to  demonst ra te  the  R20b i l l i on  m i t iga t ion  o f  r isk  i t  i s  

deemed prudent  tha t  we cons ider  th is  and aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  

I  th ink  i f  i t  were  to  be  -  i t  was a t  Mr  Mole fe ’s  d iscre t ion  to  

say no and based on the  va lue  tha t  was crea ted,  he  

thought  i t  was reasonab le  fo r  them to  be  remunera ted  on  

th is  bas is .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you were  recommending  th is  to  

Mr  Mole fe .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  d id .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh so  the  day tha t  McK insey  

adv ised you tha t  they wa lk ing  away f rom the  cont rac t  the  

same day you recommend tha t  Reg iments ,  the  mandates  

and the  mode l  must  be  changed and they shou ld  be  pa id  to  

success o f  78mi l l ion .  

MR SINGH:    No ,  no  I  sa id  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  I  sa id  the  

day on  wh ich  McK insey ac tua l l y  adv i sed us  tha t  they were  

wa lk ing  away f rom the  cont rac t  was in  and around 

February,  i f  no t  be fore  tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  j us t  a  co inc idence .   Wel l ,  

o f  course ,  you cou ld  no t  recommend th is  un t i l  you  adv ised  

o f  the  cess ion ,  fo rmer ly.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  so  d id  you have th is  on  the  
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back burner  o r  what  was happen ing?  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Or  d id  you  a lso  then d id  you dra f t  

th is  on  the  16 t h  o f  Apr i l?   

MR SINGH:    Which  one?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  document .  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  when i t  was dra f ted  and I  

wou ld  be  guess ing  i f  I  had to  say so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     

CHAIRPERSON:     10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  th is  no t  the  case s imp ly  o f  

Reg iments  hav ing  done the i r  job?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  i t  no t  a  case o f  them s imply  

hav ing  done the i r  job?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  i s  one ve rs ion  cou ld  

be  tha t  they cer ta in ly  d id  the i r  job  bu t  f rom my pe rspect ive ,  

Mr  Cha i r  i t  was a  case o f  unders tand ing .   You wou ld  need  

to  unders tand the  h is to ry  tha t  we  have a l ready a l l uded to  20 

in  te rms o f  the  r i sks  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  market  demands 

s t ra tegy,  and w i th  a  R300b i l l i on  cap i ta l  p rogram Mr  Cha i r,  

the  las t  th ing  you wanted to  happen is  tha t  you ac tua l l y  

have cap i ta l  over  and aga in ,  when  we come in to  the  38  to  

55 ,  you w i l l  see  why th is  aga in  p lays  ou t .   Had we not  done 
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th is ,  the  55  wou ld  have been 68 w i thout  anyone knowing 

and tha t  i s  the  backdrop w i th in  wh ich  I  saw va lue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see ,  le t  us  go  to  the  MNS Repor t .  

Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  and th is  i s  in  Transnet  Bund le  6 ,  

cou ld  you go to  page 386.  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  s i r,  two?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    386 o f  Bund le  6 .   So i f  you  go 

towards the  foo t  o f  the  page,  paragraph 2 .5 .13 :  

“On 17 Apr i l  2014,  Mr  B  Mole fe  approved the  

request  to  pay Reg iments  on  a  r i sk  shar ing  bas i s .   10 

On 23 Apr i l  2014 ,  Mr  Edward  Thomas,  person tha t  

you have re fer red  to  dur ing  your  tes t imony,  d ra f ted  

a  memorandum fur ther  oppos ing  the  proposa l  to  

amend Reg iments  pay s t ruc ture .   The memorandum 

reasons as  fo l lows.   The benef i t s  tha t  Transnet  

ob ta ined f rom the  t ransact ion  adv isor  cont rac t  was  

as  a  resu l t  o f  the  cont rac t  fo r  de l i verab les  be ing  

prov ided in  te rms  o f  the  cur ren t  f i xed  fee  agreement  

Transnet  has w i th  the  serv ice  prov ide r. ”  

Next  parag raph:  20 

“The  fac t  tha t  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  opera t ing  mode l  i s  

based on r i sk  shar ing  mode l  o r  success fee  is  

i r re levant .  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  w i l l i ng ly  accepted the  

r igh ts  and ob l iga t ions o f  an  ex is t ing  cont rac t ,  whose  

fees is  f i xed  fee  fo r  the  de l i very  o f  the  de l i verab les .  
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Reg iments  a l so  agreed to  an  increased f i xed  fee  fo r  

the  de ta i led  de l i verab les  tha t  they de l i vered on. ”  

Next  parag raph:  

“Based on the  above notw i ths tand ing  the  GCE’s  

approva l ,  we do not  agree to  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  

the  change in  remunera t ion  mode l ,  as  the  serv ice  

prov ider  has been su f f i c ien t ly  remunera ted  fo r  the  

serv i ces  prov ided  as  pe r  the  ag reement . ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  l ine  w i th  the  10 

d iscuss ion  w i th  the  quest ion  tha t  Mr  Myburgh  asked  

prev ious to  th is  ind ica t ion .   I  th ink  Mr  Thomas has the  r igh t  

to  h is  v iews in  te rms o f  h im say ing ,  bas i ca l l y,  he  is  say ing ,  

l i s ten ,  there  was  a  f i xed  pay cont rac t ,  and these serv i ces  

fe l l  w i th in  tha t .   Mr  Cha i r,  in  my v iew,  as  I  sa id ,  the  issue 

was,  what  d id  they b r ing  to  the  par ty  tha t  ac tua l l y  no  one 

e lse  was see ing? And tha t  was…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was say ing ,  a l though we are  no t  

ob l iged to  g ive  them more  money,  le t  us  g i ve  them more  

money.  20 

MR SINGH:    Not  on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  was jus t  fo r  f ree ,  Mr  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    There  was -  in  my v iew,  there  was a  fu l l  

jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  the  fac t  tha t  there  was an a l te rna t ive  
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remunera t ion  mode l  tha t  was requ i red  and Mr  Cha i r  in  the  

memo to  Mr  Mole fe ,  I  made i t  very  c lear  tha t  there  was th is  

f i xed  fees and because o f  th is  va lue  tha t  was added I  am 

now -  we are  now request ing  tha t  we tha t  we -  how can I  

say  i t ,  rev iew the  remunera t ion  mode l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  as  I  was say ing  the  d i f fe rence 

between you and  Mr  Thomas i s  tha t  the  one says,  and tha t  

i s  Mr  Thomas as  I  unders tand wha t  h is  say ing  there  –  he re  

is ,  there  is  an  agreement ,  we have got  we have got ,  we 

have no ob l iga t ion  to  pay more .   You are  say ing ,  as  I  10 

unders tand i t ,  I  accept  tha t  we do not  have an ob l i ga t ion  to  

pay them more  but  le t  us  pay them more  because o f  A ,  B,  

C,  D.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  I  d id  no te  i s  i f  you  go to  

your  page 896  o f  Exh ib i t  5B ,  the  memorandum.  You 

recommended i t  to  Mr  Mole fe  and  he approved,  there  are  

no  o ther  s ignato r ies  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  895 o f?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    896.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    O f?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O f  Bund le  5B,  do  you see tha t?   

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d id  no t  canvas the  v iew o f  you r  

p rocu rement  peop le .   
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MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d id  no t  canvas the  v iew o f  you r  

p rocu rement  peop le  who wr i te  to  Mr  Mole fe  and he  

approves i t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  in  th is  in  th is  ins tance,  I  th ink  the  

issue re la t ing  to  Mr  Thomas 's  reserva t ions I  d id  no t  see  

the  memo Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  Mr  Thomas or  parag raph 2 .5 .1 .4  

re fers  to ,  I  th ink  Mr  Peter  d id  have a  d iscuss ion  w i th  me a t  

the  t ime adv i s ing  tha t ,  you know,  maybe we do these type  

o f  serv ices  a re  p roper ly  inc luded in  the  or ig ina l  scope.   10 

And I  then had the  same,  very  same d iscuss ion  w i th  

h im in  te rms o f  say ing ,  l i s ten ,  I  unders tand tha t  i t  i s  there  

bu t  in  te rms o f  the  work  and the  de l i verab les  tha t  I  have 

seen,  I  be l ieve  th is  i s  someth ing  we shou ld  cons ide r.   And 

hence the  -  le t  us  ca l l  i t  omiss ion  o f  the  s ignatures  o f  Mr  

Thomas and Mr  Peter  in  th is  regard ,  bu t  we do cover  the  

genera l  p r inc ip les  o f  the  procurement  p rocedure  manua l  

tha t  enab les  th is  t ype o f  payment  to  be  made.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  who?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You sa id  you had a  d i scuss ion  w i th  

who?  

MR SINGH:    Wi th  Mr  Pete r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wi th  Mr  Peter,  bu t  he  is  a l so  no t  a  

s ignatory.   
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  what  I  am s t rugg l ing  w i th ,  have 

a  look a t  page 885.  

MR SINGH:    885? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  the  memorandum where  

Reg iments  rep laced Letsema.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He s igns tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why does  he  not  –  why is  he  no t  10 

par t y  to  896?  

MR SINGH:     Because as  I  have jus t  exp la ined,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  Mr  S ingh,  as  I  unders tand  

you rea l i se  th is  i s  a  p rocurement  i ssue.   

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now you have a  d iscuss ion  w i th  h im  

but  he  is  no t  par t y  to  the  memorandum.  

MR SINGH:    Because he d id  no t  agree w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

we needed to  be  remunera ted  d i f fe ren t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon.   20 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id ,  because he d id  no t  agree tha t  he  was 

o f  the  same v iew tha t  Mr  Thomas was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Oh so  he  d id  no t  want  to  s ign  the 

memorandum.   

MR SINGH:   Wel l ,  i f  he  d id  no t  ag ree w i th  the  
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recommendat ions ,  why wou ld  he  s ign .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you te l l  h im Mr  Mole fe  -  because 

th is  i s  rea l l y  ve ry  impor tan t  ev idence.   D id  you te l l  Mr  

Mole fe  tha t  Mr  Pe ter  was opposed to  th is?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  as  I  say…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry  d id  you te l l  h im?  

MR SINGH:    No,  because…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why not?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why not?  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  these th ings happened by  

v i r tue  o f  the  fac t  tha t  you prepare  a  memo and i t  goes  

th rough to  the  rec ip ien t  fo r  them to  be  s igned.   So I  do  no t  

take  th is  and go and s i t  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  and say,  l i s ten ,  can 

we p lease s ign  th is .  

Th is  happens on the  bas is  o f  you prepare  the  

document ,  you submi t ted  i t  to  wherever  you need to  submi t  

i t  to  and based  on what  you read and what  you a re  

conf ron ted w i th ,  you then s ign  or  do  no t  s ign  or  you 

approve o r  do  no t  approve.   20 

By v i r tue  o f  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Peters  s ignature  was  

not  here ,  I  cannot  see how Mr  Mole fe  wou ld  have been 

ab le  to  say okay,  Mr  Peter  was aware  o f  th is  o r  was happy 

w i th  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  was not  impor tan t  tha t  i f  somebody 
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i s  occupy ing  as  a  h igh  pos i t ion  as  Mr  Peter  d id  a t  the  t ime 

in  regard  to  a  procurement  mat te r,  tha t  i f  he  d id  no t  agree  

w i th  your  v iew,  tha t  the  Group CEO shou ld  be  a le r ted  tha t  

th is  i s  no t  jus t  one v iew there  are  d i f fe ren t  v iews,  so  tha t  

he  cou ld  make –  take  a  dec i s ion  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  

d i f fe ren t  v iews.   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  we have -  in  p repar ing  the  

memo,  i t  makes i t  very  -  we have d isc losed the  fac t  tha t  we  

are  chang ing  the  remunera t ion  mode l ,  we are  mak ing  i t  

qu i te  c lea r  tha t  there  was an or ig ina l  cont rac t  in  p lace  tha t  10 

was on a  d i f fe ren t  opera t ing  mode l  and I  thought  tha t  was  

adequate  d isc losure  to  be  made a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How is  tha t  adequate ,  when i t  does not  –  

how is  tha t  adequate  to  te l l  h im tha t  there  are  d i f fe ren t  

v iews because i t  does not  te l l  h im -   what  you have read i t  

does not  te l l  h im tha t  there  are  d i f fe ren t  v iews a t  sen ior  

leve l .   

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  the re  was not  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew 

-  there  was not  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew in  te rms o f  p rocu rement .   

There  was a  d i f fe ren t  v iew in  te rms o f  whether  the  serv i ces  20 

were  va lue  add ing  or  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  as  I  unders tand you,  you sa id  Mr 

Peter  d isag reed w i th  you fo r  pay ing  more ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  as  Mr  Edwards is  say ing  he re  tha t  the 

cont rac t  inc ludes  -  the  cont rac t  bas i ca l l y  was fo r  a  f i xed  
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fee  and in  the i r  v iew these serv ices  were  inc luded in  the  

f i xed  fee  cont rac t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.  So  i f  you 

go…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    So  are  we jus t  d ismiss ing  th is  exp lanat ion  or,  

so  I  am t ry ing  to  exp la in  th is  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  you were  done,  were  you not  

done,  were  you not  f in ish  g iv ing  the  exp lanat ion?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  am sor ry  then cont inue,  I  know -  I  

thought  you were  done.   

MR SINGH:    No,  no  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    You have requested  and I  need to  exp la in  i f  

th is  was impor tan t  o r  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  thought  you were  done so  

I  wanted Mr  Myburgh to  cont inue.   I f  you were  no t  done,  

f in ish  your  exp lanat ion .  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  thought  you  were  d i smiss ing  me,  Mr  20 

Cha i r.  

MR SINGH:    No,  no  I  am l i s ten ing  to  i t .   

MR SINGH:    Okay,  no  Mr  Cha i r  I  was t ry ing  to  exp la in  tha t  

the  issue o f  d i f fe rence comes about  in  te rms  o f  the 

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  the  cont rac t ,  we d id  no t  d isagree w i th  
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tha t .  Where ,  I  saw va lue ,  I  sa id  l i s ten  le t  me approach Mr  

Mole fe  to  unders tand whethe r  he  agrees i f  there  was va lue  

or  no t  and i f  a  new remunera t ion  mode l  cou ld  be  accepted.   

The procurement  p rocedure  manua l  ac tua l l y  a l lows fo r  i t ,  

wh ich  is  quoted in  paragraph 27 o f  the  document .   So i t  

was not  a  p rocurement  i ssue.   I t  was an issue o f  whethe r  

va lue  was der i ved and what  was the  appropr ia te  

remunera t ion  tha t  needed to  be  made,  i f  recogn i t ion  

needed to  be  had ,  fo r  the  va lue ,  tha t  was rece ived.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  I  suppose what  the  d i f fe rence o f  

op in ion  bo i led  down to  i s  Mr  Pete r  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  you  

shou ld  d isbu rse  78mi l l ion  o f  Eskom’s  funds -  o f  Transnet ’s  

funds in  favour  o f  Reg iments ,  tha t  is  what  i t  bo i l s  down to .  

MR SINGH:    And  i f  Mr  Peter  was the  dec i s ion  maker,  then  

yes,  he  wou ld  have not  s igned.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you had a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  bu t  I  

jus t  want  to  conf i rm you d id  no t  te l l  Mr  Mole fe  o f  Mr  Peters  

v iew?  

MR SINGH:    No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why not?  

MR SINGH:    Because as  I  sa id  these memos,  I  was not  

s i t t ing  in  f ron t  o f  Mr  Mole fe  and say ing ,  p lease s ign  th is  

memo for  me,  s i r.   These memos happen -  as  you can  

see…[ in tervene]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  Mr  S ingh,  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  

unders tand and I  do  no t  want  to  quar re l  w i th  you.   I  jus t  

need to  unders tand the  fac ts ,  so  i s  i t  be fore  you sent  the  

memorandum to  Mr  Mole fe  d id  you know o f  Mr  Peters  

concerns?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  based on the  da te  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l ,  Mr  

Thomas prepares the  memorandum,  wh ich  is  a  d ra f t  

memorandum g iven the  fac t  tha t  he  has no t  s igned on the 

16 t h  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  have though t  tha t  I  d id  know,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d id  know? 10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  then I  am not  sure  tha t  I  

unders tand when  you say you were  no t  in  f ron t  o f  Mr  

Mole fe ,  you knew o f  h is  concerns,  you never the less  

prepared the  memo and you sent  i t  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you d id  no t  th ink  i t  was  

necessary  to  a le r t  Mr  Mole fe  to  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Pe ter  had  

a  d i f fe ren t  v iew.  

MR SINGH:    A t  the  t ime,  no .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  i f  we car ry  on  w i th  MNS 

a t  387 what  we know is  i f  you go to  parag raph 2 .5 .16  jus t  

cont inue w i th  the  chrono logy on  the  24 t h  o f…[ in te rvene]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  s i r,  what  parag raph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2 .5 .16 ,  so  pre t ty  much in  the  m idd le  
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o f  the  page.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “On 24 Apr i l  2014,  Transnet  and  

Reg iments  conc lude the  f i rs t  addendum to  the  MSA,  

wh ich  p rov ided fo r  a  f i xed  fee  o f  78 ,400,000. ”  

I s  tha t  –  I  p resume tha t  shou ld  be  a  success fee?  

MR SINGH:     Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  you  conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  says ;  10 

“On the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  Mr  D Smi th  sent  an  emai l  to  

you,  E  Wood,  s ta t ing  tha t . ”  

Do you know,  Mr  D.  Smi th?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  what  i s  h is  pos i t ion?  

MR SINGH:    He was a  Deputy  Treasure r  back o f f i ce .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And,  I  am not  go ing  to  read the  

who le  o f  th i s  ema i l ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  the  th i rd  las t  

parag raph on page 387:  

“On the  cost  cos t ing  and hedg ing  I  fu l l y  agree tha t  20 

d i f fe ren t  a l te ra t ions have been done by  you guys to  

ca l cu la te  the  poss ib le  cost  o f  hedg ing  shou ld  we 

cons ider  the  var ious op t ion  s t ruc tures  a t  d i f fe ren t  

par t i c i pa t ion  leve ls ,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  a  dec is ion  

was made not  to  pursue th is  rou te  and to  ra ther  go  
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the  FEC s t ruc ture  as  op t ions remain  expens ive  and  

does crea te  some r isk  fo r  supp l i e rs .   The idea o f  

t ransfer r ing  the  FS r isk  to  the  ba lance sheet  o f  the  

supp l ie rs  was a  Transnet  idea and was inc luded in  

the  cond i t ions  o f  the  RFP and as  we have done  

many o f  these in  the  past . ”  

Then over  the  page:  

“The cost  o f  ca lcu la t ing  fo rwards on  i f  he  sees is  a  

s imp le  techn ique  [can get  d i rec t l y  f rom B loomberg  

or  Reuters ] ,  and  s im i la r  in fo rmat ion  was obta ined 10 

f rom our  dea lers  as  we l l . ”  

And then he goes  on to  say:  

“ I  am not  a  100% sure  why you guys are  say ing  the  

FX i t  resu l ted  in  s ign i f i can t  sav ings to  Transnet  bu t  

p lease he lp  me i f  I  am wrong on  th is  one.  On the  

per fo rmance guarantees we d id  no t  ach ieve any  

sav ings as  on ly  one smal l  amoun t  was invo lved.  I  

fu l l y  ag ree tha t  you guys d id  do  your  benchmark ing  

exerc ise ,  and the  major i t y  o f  the  bond cost  to  

market  re la ted .   The main  reason  fo r  me,  t ry ing  to  20 

summar ise  my observa t ions is  to  t ry  and ensure  

tha t  u l t imate ly  a l l  cos t s  can be  aud i ted  by  our  

aud i to rs  once payments  have been made and we 

get  cha l lenged. ”  

Do you see tha t?   
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You have any comments  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r  I  d id  no t  see th is  emai l  

because I  do  no t  th ink  I  was cop ied  on th is  emai l  f rom Mr  

Smi th  bu t  what  i s  s ign i f i can t  here  Mr  Cha i r  i s  tha t  you w i l l  

see  tha t  Mr  Smi th ,  a t  paragraph 2 .5 .17  says:  

“E r ic ,  i t  i s  ex t remely  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  us  to  cons ide r  

s ign ing  o f f  on ,  as  we have not  seen the  engagement  

le t te r  and I  am not  sure  i f  Ano j  has requested th is ,  

and i f  yes ,  p lease le t  me know so  tha t  I  can have a  10 

deta i led  d iscuss ion  w i th  h im. ”  

So I  am not  -  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  de ta i led  d iscuss ion  tha t  

happened,  Mr  Cha i r.   What  i s  o f  in te res t  i s  tha t  Mr  Cha i r,  

he  does acknowledge tha t  there  were  s ign i f i can t  work  done  

in  deve lop ing  the  cost  esca la t ion  mode ls  and ass i s t ing  in  

p r inc ip les  w i th  the  supp l ie rs  and  unders tand ing  the  cost  

curves in  d i f fe ren t  markets .   

I t  a lso  ass is t s  the  team in  mak ing  a  dec is ion  to  

des ign  on  the  economica l  amounts  o f  loca ls  tha t  needs to  

be  assembled by  TE and the  cost  o f  the  perspect ive .   20 

N iven a lso  came fo rward  w i th  ve ry  prac t ica l  approach to  

de termine the  ind ica t ive  cost  o f  f i x ing  esca la t ions.   

Now,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  tha t  20b i l l i on  tha t  we  

spoke about  in  the  memo,  tha t  20b i l l i on  emanated f rom a l l  

o f  these th ings.   So the  va lue  tha t  was der i ved was 
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quant i f ied  by  the  20b i l l i on ,  no tw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  

Danny Smi th  does,  and is  cor rec t  in  say ing  tha t  the  issue  

o f  t ransfer r i ng  r i sk  f rom a  ba lance  sheet  we d id  be fore ,  so  

we d id  no t  de r ive  much va lue  f rom i t ,  ye t  they d id  p ropose 

i t .  So in  the  mot iva t ion  tha t  they had sent  to  Transnet  to  

say,  p lease ag ree w i th  our  mot iva t ion .   Mr  Smi th  sa id  bu t  I  

cannot  agree w i th  th is  because  we d id  i t  on  our  own  

before .  S im i la r ly,  in  te rms o f  look ing  a t  the  FX ra tes ,  fo r  

example ,  on  page 388,  FX ra tes ,  B loomberg ,  you  look a t  

the  screen,  you  get  the  ra tes .   So i t  i s  no t  s ign i f i can t  10 

amount  o f  va lue  tha t  they added in .  

So they d id  no t  ge t  the  memo so the  bu lk  o f  the  

remunera t ion  re la ted  to  the  20b i l l i on  r i sk  tha t  was  

ident i f ied  by  them look ing  th rough the  esca la t ions  and the  

fo rward  look ing ,  so  tha t  i s  what  they were  remunera ted  fo r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  then tu rn  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  t ransact ion  and tha t  re la tes  to  the  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan.   I t  i s  a lso  dea l t  w i th in  the  MNS 

Repor t ;  we w i l l  come to  tha t .    

I  jus t  asked you to  conf i rm tha t  a f te r  the  1064 20 

locomot ives  cont rac t  was awarded to  the  four  OEM’s ,  

Transnet  o f  cou rse  needed to  secure  fund ing  fo r  the  

R50b i l l i on  expend i tu re ,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The Ch inese b idders  as  I  unders tand 
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CSR and CNR tha t  inc luded le t te rs  o f  fund ing  suppor t  f rom 

the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank,  wh ich  then br ings us  to  the  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan.   What  we know is  tha t  

Reg iments  was then pa id  another  success fee ,  th is  t ime o f  

166mi l l ion  fo r  i t s  ro le  in  secur ing  the  fund ing  fac i l i t y  and 

the  adv ice  in  sp l i t t ing  the  cap i ta l  ra is ing  be tween Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan and the  ZAR cub loan,  wou ld  you 

conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now th is  i s  dea l t  w i th  by  MNS,  and i f  10 

I  cou ld  ask you p lease to  go  to  page 389,  paragraph 2 .6 .1 :  

“On 28 Apr i l  2015,  Transnet  Group Treasure r,  Mr  

Ramosebud i  compi led  a  memorandum which  was  

recommended by  Mr  S ingh as  we l l  as  Mr  Gama and  

submi t ted  to  the  BADC. ”  

You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “The memorandum p rov ides the   

fo l low ing,  a  request  fo r  the  BADC to  approve the  

cont rac t  ex tens ion  f rom 99.5mi l l ion  to  265.5  m i l l ion  20 

fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  

t ransact ion  adv i sory  serv ices  and suppor t  to  

Transnet  on  the  1064 locomot ive  t ransact ion . ”  

You see tha t?   

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  d i f fe rence between those  

two f igures  I  th ink  i s  the  166mi l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Summary o f  the  serv ices  p rov ided 

by   

Reg iments  in  re la t ion  to  secur ing  the  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan in  the  amount  o f  US do l la rs  

1 .5b i l l i on  and the  mot iva t ion  fo r  the  r i sk  shar ing  

bas is  payment  o f  166 mi l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT to  

Reg iments  on  the  bas i s  tha t  the  serv i ces  prov ided 10 

by  Reg iments  fo r  a  per iod  o f  more  than 12 months  

were  a t  r i sk . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  paragraph 2 .6 .3 :  

“On 29 Apr i l  2015,  the  BADC approved the  

recommendat ion  by  Mr  Gama and  on 11 June 2015 

Transnet  pa id  Reg iments  189mi l l ion  tha t  i s  

inc lud ing  VAT. ”  

Conf i rm tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then they go  on to  say in  2 .4 .6 :  

“Pursuant  to  the  approva l  o f  the  memorandum by 

the  BADC Transnet  and Reg iments  conc luded the  

second addendum to  the  MSA. ”  
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You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  w i l l  take  i t ;  I  do  no t  reca l l  bu t  I  w i l l  take  i t  

as  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says  on  14 October  20  but  i t  

actual ly  was on the 16 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015 I  can take you to  that .   

Can I  ask you p lease to  go to  Exhib i t  BB28.    

MR SINGH:    I  have got  i t  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And could you p lease turn to  page 

250.306.  

MR SINGH:   250.306.   I  am there S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  i s  the second addendum which  

you see was actual ly  s igned on the 16 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015 by Mr  

Wood fo r  Regiments and Mr Gama for  Transnet .   You see 

that .  

MR SINGH:   I  see that  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now the po int  that  is  made by MNS 

and I  just  want  to  get  your  comment  i s  that  there was no 

legal  cause – th is  is  a t  paragraph 2 .6.6 – there was no legal  

cause for  th is  payment .   This i s  the 166 success fee fo r  

ar ranging or  fac i l i ta t ing the  China Development  Bank loan.   20 

Due to the fact  that  on 4 February 2014 Transnet  and 

Regiments concluded the th i rd  addendum to the LOI  which  

we saw ear l ier  wh ich a l located a f i xed fee of  R50 mi l l ion fo r  

a l l  the funding and f inancing serv ices.    

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  th is  is  one of  those issues that  again  
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i f  you have go back to  that  4 t h  o f  February LOI  I  th ink we 

de-scoped th rough those handwr i t ten notes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry I  d id  not  hear  you.  

MR SINGH:   I  sa id through the LO – that  4 t h  o f  February 

2014 LOI  is  the one where you had the handwr i t ten 

annotat ions.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Where you had? 

MR SINGH:   The handwr i t ten annotat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  no th is… 

MR SINGH:   And we de-scoped the funding and the r i sk  10 

por t ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  I  beg your  pardon.  

MR SINGH:   You recal l  the February 2014 LOI .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Was where you had the handwr i t ten notes and 

you de – we – tha t  handwr i t ten notes de-scoped the funding  

and the r i sk share or  the r isk  basis for  the funding 

act iv i t ies.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And a l lowed for  th is .  

MR SINGH:   Sorry.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a l lowed for  th is .  

MR SINGH:   I  am not  –  I  am just  responding to  th is  – th is  

por t ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   Sor ry  I  in terrupted you so the  

handwr i t ten notes  re-scoped.  
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MR SINGH:   No de-scoped.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  De-scoped.  

MR SINGH:   No de-scoped.   Basica l l y  remember there was 

an e lement  where  the – the document  refer red to  funding.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   And a consequent  20 basis points remunerat ion  

on success.   That  handwr i t ten note removed that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Yes I  remember that  now.  

MR SINGH:   And remember I  then sa id i t  was not  the 

appropr ia te t ime for  that  to  have ac tual l y  happened wi th  the 10 

t ime therefore i t  was de-scoped.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So the 15 mi l l ion fee re la ted to  the other  

act i v i t ies that  that  memo – that  document  re la ted to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R ight .  

MR SINGH:   Or  the res idual  act i v i t ies that  i t  re la ted to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So in  other  words th is  act iv i t y  o f  –  I  

mean and perhaps you can help us wi th  the language – I  

mean here they were actual l y  execut ing a t ransact ion.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Whereas i f  I  understand you correct l y  

that  is  addendum re lated to  s imple advisory serv ices.  

MR SINGH:   Yes in  terms of  p lanning and ident i fy ing 

sources and so on.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Is  that  what  you say.  
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MR SINGH:   Yes.   This was actual  fund ra is ing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes so th is  i s  fund ra is ing.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So perhaps I  could just  whi ls t  we are  

in  Mr Gama’s documents  and we ta lk ing about  the th i rd  

addendum just  have a look at  page 250.380.   This  was 

s igned on 4 February the th i rd  addendum.   

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you saying i t  was on that  

document  and I  wi l l  take you to  your  handwr i t ten notes,  is  10 

that  r ight .  

MR SINGH:   Ja I  am looking fo r  the  handwr i t ten notes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay just  g ive me a second.   Those 

handwr i t ten notes we f ind at  MSM 177.   Mr Mohamedy’s  

documents.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   BB3(a)   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  number i s  that  S i r  177? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   MSM 177.   And the actual  annotat ions 

Mr S ingh you f ind  at  page MSM 180.    20 

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.   So i f  you look at  MSM 178 you wi l l  

see that  2 .1 i t  says:  

“Del iverables except  the actual  fund 

ra is ing. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  
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MR SINGH:    

“Would be executed for  a  fee of  15mi l l ion  

over  a per iod of  twelve months. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry you are reading f rom 2.1  

MR SINGH:   Sorry Mr Chai r.   On… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  ra ise your  vo ice.  

MR SINGH:   On page MSM 178 2.  –  paragraph 2.1.1  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:    

“Del i verables (except )  the actual  fund 10 

ra is ing must  be executed at  a  f i xed  fee of  15  

mi l l ion.   A per fo rmance fee equal  to  20% of  

savings achieved against  the benchmark  

00:07:58 basica l l y  th is  is  now for  actual  fund 

ra is ing. ”  

 So what  the handwr i t ten notes on page 180 d id was 

i t  took out  2 .1.1 and consequent ly  2.1.2 which only  le f t  the  

15 mi l l ion.   But  i t  s t i l l  –  we st i l l  needed to do the  actual  

fund ra is ing which is  what  the memorandum to the  BADC 

was about .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   So i f  I  understand what  you 

saying and of  course MNS have a  d i f ferent  v iew to  you but  

i f  I  understand what  you saying is  th is  was a new – a new –  

there was not  a  cont ract  that  regulated th is .   Th is  was a  

new deal  and i t  requi red a new cont ract .   Is  that  r ight .  
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MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  the act iv i ty   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Requ i red a new –  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A new? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Requi red a new? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  the act iv i ty  was obviously de-scoped 

f rom here so when the act iv i ty  happened i t  needed a new 

home.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   So the home that  then was – i t  was p laced in  i t  

was p laced in  the  ex is t ing cont ract  that  ex is ted at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Therefore we requested a cont ract  ex tension  

for  the act iv i t ies that  then happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So le t  us go  then to  the memorandum 

that  is  deal t  wi th  th is .   I  have a l ready refer red you to  28 

Apr i l  memo to BADAC.  That  you f ind in  Bundle 5(b) .  

MR SINGH:   5 (b) .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And could I  ask you turn up page 

1039.  

MR SINGH:   Just  one second.   5(b)  page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1039.  

MR SINGH:   1039.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You just  have to  repeat  that  Mr Myburgh –  

the page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Page 1039 Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Let  me just  take you to  the s ignature  

page quick ly  Mr S ingh 1047.   You see that  s ign i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry somewhere Bundle 5(b)  my one 

is  just  … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Transnet  Bundle 5(b)  yes page 1039.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1039.    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Mr S ingh you wi l l  see there –  there is  

the subject  Request  to  appoint  JP Morgan and Regiments  

Capi ta l  to  conclude on the China Development  Bank loan.   

Do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then I  had taken you to  the  

s ignature page that  i s  a t  page 1047 and i t  seems that  

everybody s igned on the 28 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015 you agree wi th  20 

that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you have a look at  page 1043 at  

paragraph 67 i t  reads:  

“Regiments have been work ing together  wi th  
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the r i sk management /middle off ice of  

Transnet  Treasury fo r  over  the last  twelve  

months to  achieve the outcome below.”  

 You see that .  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  paragraph 73 at  1044.  

“The f inancia l  advice and negot ia t ions  

support  that  Regiments provided through 

th is  ent i re  p rocess which took in  excess of  

twelve months was done at  r isk  wi th  the  10 

expectat ion of  compensat ion  only on  

successfu l  complet ion. ”  

 You see that .  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i t  sets out  the fees and the 

proposal  is  166 mi l l ion fee – success fee.   Is  that  correct .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  we go to  the end of  the 

document  1047 the recommendat ion is   

“Approved the conf ined appointment  of  JP 20 

Morgan to hedge the f inancia l  r i sk. ”  

 That  we do not  have to  deal  wi th  now.    

“Approve the conf ined appointment  of  JP 

Morgan. ”  

 And then the important  one.  
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“Approve the cont ract  extension f rom 99.5  

mi l l ion  to  265.5 mi l l ion  for  the appointment  

of  Regiments  Capi ta l  for  t ransact ion  

advisory serv ices  and support  to  Transnet  

on the 1064 locomot ive t ransact ion. ”  

 Is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  the points  that  I  have put  to  –  

to  Mr Gama le t  me put  them to you as wel l  and that  i s  i f  th is  

was someth ing d i f ferent  to  that  covered by the addendum – 10 

i t  is  not  advice i t  is  actual ly  execut ion then sure ly  i t  would 

have been i r regular  to  a l low Regiments to  have worked as i t  

appears on the face of  th is  document  for  twelve months 

wi thout  there being any cont ractual  prov is ion at  a l l .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as I  sa id the – the cont ract  requi red  

or  the serv ices requi red a home and the home that  we then 

– that  was then found was the exis t ing cont ract  and 

therefore the exis t ing cont ract  was extended and … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  i t  was done af ter  the event  Mr  

S ingh.   20 

MR SINGH:   Sorry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  I  mean they worked on th is  fo r  twelve  

months on the execut ion par t  o f  i t .   Not  advisory because 

you saying th is  i s  d i f ferent  to  advisory.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   My concern  is  and I  just  want  your  

comment  on i t  that  here you have Regiments now 

per fo rming a d i f ferent  ro le  not  advisory but  they execut ing.   

They work ing on th is  for  twelve months but  there  is  no 

cont ract  a t  the beginning of  that  task regulat ing th is  very 

s izable p iece of  work on the face of  th is  memo.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r  and I  th ink i t  –  i t  comes back to  

that  exclus ion that  we had d iscussed the handwr i t ten 

annotat ions.   I t  was a lways envisaged that  they were going 

to  be doing th is  work and they were going to  be do ing i t  a t  10 

r isk and as we – as I  sa id once i t  came to the point  o f  

where we executed the con – the act iv i t ies of  the work 

needed a home and the  home that  was then found was th is  

cont ract  and the cont ract  extension that  was then rev iewed 

and mot ivated by procurement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  you accept  that  was done ex post  

facto.  

MR SINGH:   Because the work had been cont inu ing fo r  

twelve months.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   The other  th ing of  course i f  that  20 

you again had no obl igat ion to  pay Regiments th is  money.  

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r  we had – wel l  in  my v iew we had 

an obl igat ion to  pay the money because there was an 

understanding that  th is  work was actual ly  be ing undertaken 

at  r isk.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   When you say an understand ing was 

there any cont rac tual  ob l igat ion? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink one of  the addendums d id a l lude to  the  

fact  that  we needed to … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And when you ta lk  about  an  

understanding and understanding between who and who? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  i f  you g ive me a … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  us star t  wi th  the conf i rmat ion of  

what  I  thought  Mr  Myburgh wanted to  conf i rm wi th  you.   Do 

you agree that  there was no cont ract  for  a  number of  10 

months wi th  – when the work was being done? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  –  I  have not  read th is  document  I  

th ink i t  is  ( inaudib le) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Come c loser  to  the mic.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry I  sa id Mr Chai r  I  have not  read the  

memorandum. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   That  supports  th is  so maybe i t  would be  

worthwhi le  i f  we could just  come back to  th is  af ter  the break 

so that  I  can have a – an opportuni ty  to  peruse th is  20 

memorandum. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  as – as th ings stand your  

recol lect ion is  that  there was or  there was not  subject  to  

checking? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  th ink i t  would be bet te r  served i f  I  
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read th is  and then g ive you a proper  answer otherwise I  wi l l  

have to  change i t  again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Fa i r  enough.   But  okay so we want  to  –  

we can come back to  the quest ion  of  whether  there  was a  

cont ract  –  I  suppose that  would then answer the quest ion of  

whether  they worked at  r isk and what  the understanding  

was and whether  that  had been provided fo r.   But  le t  me put  

the rest  o f  my proposi t ion.  

 So the f i rs t  one that  I  put  to  Mr Gama is  i t  seems 10 

what  I  suggested is  that  i t  appears i r regular  that  they were 

a l lowed to per form th is  work wi thout  there having  been a  

cont ract  in  p lace.    

 So there they were for  twelve months doing th is  –  

there were no per formance targets.   Sure ly  there  were huge 

issues of  conf ident ia l i ty  and the l ike there is  no cont ract  

f rom what  I  can see.  

 A l l ied to  that  and we can k i l l  two b i rds wi th  one 

stone once you have gone th rough th is  is  that  on the face of  

i t  i t  seems there  was no obl igat ion to  pay Regiments th is  20 

money.   I  mean the fact  that  they – they may have been 

work ing at  r isk does not  mean tha t  they – you were  obl iged 

to  pay them. 

 And then perhaps I  could ask you to  – to  deal  wi th  

th is  i f  you can on the face of  i t  Mr S ingh th is  appears to  be  
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a  d i f fe rent  procurement  event .   I  mean where was there any 

– any procurement  evaluat ion or  analys is  here? 

 So what  you have is  you have Regiments provid ing  

you wi th  advisory  serv ices etcetera but  now you go ing in to 

the Chinese Development  Bank loan – now you go ing in to 

the execut ion of  the deal .   You want  to  comment  on that?  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  i t  is  l inked to  the f i rs t  one in  terms of  

the cont ract  extension.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   The other  th ing  that  I  

explored wi th  Mr Gama and I  want  to  put  i t  to  you as  wel l  is  10 

d id you not  ever  th ink that  there was a conf l i c t  here wi th  

Regiments in  a sense that  they were your  advisors .   They 

were – in  te rms o f  that  addendum i f  you – i f  you read i t  as 

that  just  pure ly  advisory they were advis ing you on deal  

s t ructures,  t ransact ion  st ructures.   On the one hand they 

advis ing you what  you should do and what  you should  

explore and on the other  hand at  the same t ime they 

actual ly  execut ing the t ransact ions.   That  is  a  – on  the face 

of  i t  there is  a  tension is  there not?  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink you – wel l  le t  us put  i t  th is  way.   When –  20 

when we – le t  me see how do you put  i t .   Okay.   The actual  

execut ion of  the deal  okay basica l l y  was wi th  China 

Development  Bank.   Okay so they – we exe – Transnet 

executed a loan funding fac i l i ty  wi th  China Development  

Bank so that  was the one leg of  the t ransact ion.   In  ra is ing 
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that  funding between China Development  Bank and Transnet  

Regiments p layed an advisory ro le  re la t ing to  that  fund 

ra is ing act iv i t y  that  was happening.   And in  that  fund ra is ing 

act iv i t y  that  was happening between the par t ies they had 

g iven advice as to  how the cost  o f  funding for  that  fac i l i ty  

could be reduced.   So that  was one e lement .    

 The next  e lement  Mr Chai r  is  the actual  – how can I  

say – the cross-currency swop that  would needed to have 

been executed to  mi t igate the exchange rate r i sk and 

in terest  r i sk re la t ing to  the China Development  Bank loan 10 

that  was between Transnet  and China Development  Bank.    

 In  execut ing the hedge for  the under ly ing load that  

we had now agreed to enter  in to wi th  China Development  

Bank we then a lso got  advice f rom Regiments in  terms of  

how do we actual ly  opt imise a cost  re la t ing to  the in terests  

00:21:35 and wel l  they have a hedge st ructure re la t ing to  

the hedging of  the r i sk re la t ing  to  in terest  and fore ign 

exchange on the loan.  

 So when you – when you see the e lements of  the 

t ransact ion in  tha t  manner there is  no conf l ic t  because they 20 

d id not  par t ic ipate in  the actual  fund ra is ing nei ther  d id  they 

actual ly  par t ic ipate in  the actual  hedging.  

 So the hedging was actual ly  done by JP Morgan.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because they – what  d id  they do? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  d id  they do? 

MR SINGH:   So that  i s  what  I  am t ry ing to  a l lude.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   I f  you look at  the memo the memo basica l l y  

out l ines exact ly  what  they d id and what  va lue they added in  

terms of  the negot ia t ions between China Development  Bank 

and – on the one hand and JP Morgan on the other  hand.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  sure ly  that  is  just  advisory 

serv ices.   We can go to  that  addendum that  is  what  they 

were supposed to  help you wi th .    10 

MR SINGH:   And that  is  the reason I  guess the cont ract  

extension was a  route that  we actual ly  adopted for  the  

procurement  event .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  but  you go and have a look at  

th is  perhaps overn ight .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we can deal  wi th  i t  when we 

resume.    

MR SINGH:   Sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  –  the other  th ing that  I  put  to  Mr 20 

Gama and you can comment  on th is  is  Dr  B lum test i f ied that  

the fee he considered excessive.   He fe l t  there was a R90 

mi l l ion overpayment .   He sa id tha t  they got  0 .15% on y ie ld  

presumably that  i s  the 15 basis po ints whereas in  h is  v iew 

market  convent ion and Transnet  pract ice or  a  lead 
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ar rangement  fee was 0.06% of  y ie ld .   Are you in  a posi t ion  

to  comment  on that?  

MR SINGH:   No not  a t  th is  s tage.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now you do know that  th is  payment  of  

R189 mi l l ion in  – to  Regiments was par t  o f  the Gupta  money 

launder ing I  have to ld  you that .  

MR SINGH:   Sorry S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is payment  was par t  o f  the Gupta  

money launder ing .  

MR SINGH:   I  was not  aware of  tha t  S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  want  to  then take you to  the  

next  document .   So th is  is  the – the memorandum that  is  

s igned by everyone on the 28 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015.   Then there is  

another  memorandum i f  you have a  look at  page 1048.   Now 

you wi l l  see that  th is  actual l y  deals  wi th  the same – the 

same th ing.   I f  you go to  the recommendat ion at  the end 

1052 you see there that  i t  is  recommended that  the act ing  

Group Chief  Execut ive approves the fo l lowing.  

1 .  The va lue of  the  cont ract  be increased to a capped 

265.5mi l l ion.  20 

So that  g ives you the 166 mi l l ion success fee.  And then the  

a l lowance fo r  the cont ract  per iod to  accommodate the  

successfu l  conc lus ion of  the  funding and hedging 

agreements  wi th  CDB and JP Morgan in  order  to  e ffect  the  

remunerat ion (success or  r i sk base fee)  to  Regiments  
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Capi ta l .   Do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   Yes I  do.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now someth ing that  a rose in  Mr  

Gama’s  ev idence was th is .   You s igned th is  recommendat ion  

on the 19 t h  o f  May 2015,  do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He only s igned i t  on  the 16 t h  o f  Ju ly  

2015.   You see that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And as I  understand i t  you author ised 10 

payment  of  th is  money in  the in te rvening per iod before you 

had actual l y  s igned the memorandum.  

MR SINGH:   When was th is  th ing paid?  I  th ink at  1053 you 

see an invoice which I  in i t ia l led and sa id approved by the 

acquis i t ion  and d isposal  commit tee  but  there is  no date on  

i t .   I  am not  too sure when th is  was actual l y  pa id.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  I f  I  can just  have a  second 

p lease Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Wel l  shal l  we take th is  opportuni ty  

to  take a ten minutes adjournment?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  no I  have found what  I  need i f  I  

could – sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As you would appreciate Mr S ingh 

when you refer  to  the ev idence of  o ther  people of ten those 



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 170 of 313 
 

documents are in  the i r  bundles and when they actual ly  in  

yours  as wel l .   So  I  have – you look ing at  page 1053.   There  

is  the invoice.  

MR SINGH:   Yes 1053.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We cannot  see at  1053 when you 

author ised i t .   But  i f  you go to  1061.  

MR SINGH:   1061.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There is  a  payment  advice dated the 

11 t h  o f  June 2015.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   S igned by you.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see that .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Now that  was before Mr Gama s igned 

the memorandum at  1052.    

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  fact  and Mr Gama could th ink of  no  

reason why you would have author ised th is  payment  before 

he s igned th is  memorandum.  What  was the rush? 20 

MR SINGH:   I  do not  th ink there was a rush Mr Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what  i t  does mean is  that  un less there  

is  some other  wr i t ten document  we are not  aware of  is  that  

you author ised payment  before there was wr i t ten approval  

f rom him of  the memo and one wonders why.  
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MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r  the author is ing author i t y  in  th is  

case was the ADC. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was? 

MR SINGH:   Was the acquis i t ion and d isposal  commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Which is  recorded on page 1047.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   And i f  you look at  the recommendat ions there 

that  gave r i se to  the approval  tha t  occurred on the  11t h  o f  

June.   And as I  approved I  sa id i t  –  as I  –  at tach my in i t ia l  10 

to  the invoice i t  sa id approved by the acquis i t ion and 

d isposal  commit tee.   The document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry where is  that  par t?  

MR SINGH:   I  am sorry S i r.   On 1053.    

CHAIRPERSON :    1053.   I  am look ing  fo r  the  par ty  tha t  -   

where  you say as  you s igned . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    I f  you  look a t  my in i t ia l ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Now I  see i t .  

MR SINGH :    I t  says  approved by  ABC.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH :    So  the  approv ing  au thor i t y,  Mr  Cha i r,  fo r  th is  

t ransact ion  was the  ABC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  wou ld  –  I  mean,  t ha t  i s  A 

Board  Commi t tee ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  wou ld  board  commi t tee  ge t  invo lved 

the  s ign ing  o f  paperwork?  

MR SINGH :    No,  no .   Hence,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  s igned as  the  

CFO,  the  invo i ce .   Approv ing  the  invo i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Not ing  tha t  the  ABC had approved th is  

payment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  Mr  Myburgh ’s  quest ion  wou ld  

s t i l l  a r i se  because obv ious ly,  the  memo contempla ted  tha t  

Mr  Gama must  approve as  we l l .  10 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  the  pu rpose o f  the  memo –  

i f  you  look a t  1048. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . .was to  request  the  ac t ing  DC to  approve  

the  cont rac t  addendum.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So th is  was bas i ca l l y  a  document  tha t  was  

submi t ted  to  Mr  Gama on the  19 t h  o f  May subsequent  to  the 

approva l  o f  ABC to  approve the  cont rac t  amendment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  what  wou ld  happen i f  you d id  20 

no t?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  wou ld  have happened  i f  you  

d idn ’ t  approve i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then you w i l l  have no cont rac t  and 

then i t  wou ld  have been . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No,  bu t  th is  was . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .a  d ispu te  as  to  whethe r  there  

needed to  be  a  payment .  

MR SINGH :    Th is  was consequent  to  the  ABC hav ing  

approved the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  then why was there  a  need fo r  

th is  memorandum to  Mr  Gama.  

MR SINGH :    Because as  Mr  Cha i r  had h igh l igh ted  is  that  10 

the  ABC wou ld  no t  s ign  cont rac ts .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  tha t  i s  p rec ise ly  the  po in t .    

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You needed a  s igned con t rac t  by  

Mr  Gama.   That  was the  lega l  ins t rument .   That  was the  

cont rac t .   I  mean there  was a  cont rac t  dev ia t ion  he re .   

What  wou ld  have happened i f  he  d id  no t  s ign  i t?  

MR SINGH :    I  guess,  Mr  Cha i r,  we wou ld  have gone back 20 

to  the  dec is ion  taken by  the  ABC.   I  am not  too  sure .   I  d id  

no t  rea l l y  th ink  o f  the  cont rac t  amendment  when I  approved 

th is  payment ,  I  assume.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Mr  Cha i rman,  I  do  no t  know 

fo r  how much longer  you wou ld  l i ke  me to  go  on  w i th  
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Mr  S ingh.   I  am to ld  by  –  I  am get t ing  a  no te  by  h is  

a t to rney tha t  he  d id  no t  rea l i se  tha t  he  wou ld  s i t  be fore  

four.   Oh,  so r ry,  beyond fou r.   I  do  no t  know i f  Mr  G igaba is  

here  ye t  bu t  I  am in  your  hands as  to  how much longer  we  

shou ld  cont inue.  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  I  passed the  no te  on .   

We were  no t  in fo rmed tha t  we are  s i t t ing  beyond fou r  

o ’c lock .   I  have got  another  work  commi tment .   So I  –  I  am 

a f ra id  I  have to  leave.    

CHAIRPERSON :    We normal ly  s i t  un t i l  four  o r  un t i l  f i ve ,  10 

depend ing .   In  te rms o f  the  t ime  – in  te rms o f  tomorrow,  

how does i t  look  l i ke  now,  whether  we w i l l  have enough 

t ime or  no t  w i th  Mr  S ingh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  rea l l y  d i f f i cu l t  to  p red ic t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Because,  I  mean,  you see i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Some o f  the  s tu f f  i s  qu i te  dense.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   I  unders tand.   And tomorrow – 

oh ,  tomor row even ing  you are  no t  invo l ved in  the  even ing  

sess ion?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I f  there  i s  any.   There  m ight  no t  be  any.   

So i f  we break now a t  four,  can we accept  tha t  tomorrow i f  

there  i s  no  even ing  sess ion  ar ranged w i th  any o ther  work  

s t ream,  we can go beyond fou r  to  t ry  and f in ish?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  aga in .   We are  no t  

t ry ing  to  f rus t ra te  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Bu t  un for tunate ly,  I  have got  

commi tments  tomorrow even ing  too .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    So  we unders tood f rom the  

ar rangement  tha t  we s i t  f rom ten  to  four  every  day and tha t  

i s  why . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   I  have not  sa id  how much 

in to  the  even ing .   I t  m igh t  be  f i ve .   I t  m igh t  be  s ix .   I t  does 

not  necessar i l y  mean i t  i s  as  la te  as  i t  somet imes is .   So I  

am jus t  check ing  whether  there  i s  a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  we  

cou ld  go  beyond four  o ’c lock .   I  have not  spoken about  how 

much in to . . .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    I  can  in fo rm Cha i rperson tomorrow 20 

morn ing ,  i f  i t  i s  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    I  w i l l  endeavour  to  make 

ar rangements  bu t  I  must  be  up f ron t  and honest  w i th  you.   

My s i tua t ion  is  tha t  I  have made a l te rna t ive  ar rangements ,  
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work  commi tments .   So. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease do the  best  you can fo r  tomorrow 

because I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  f in ish  w i th  Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence  

tomorrow.   Okay.   We wi l l  ad jou rn  now wi th  Mr  S ingh ’s  

ev idence and as  soon as  –  we l l ,  the  even ing  sess ion  

peop le  a re  supposed to  be  he re  a t  four.   And i f  they  need  

to  wa i t ,  they  wa i t  un t i l  f i ve  o ’c lock  wh i le  we f in ish .   So,  

hopefu l l y,  they  a re  here .   But  tomorrow,  le t  us  t ry  and 

f in ish .   Okay a l r igh t .   We wi l l  now ad journ  the  day sess ion .   

We ad journ .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS FOR THE DAY SESSION 

INQUIRY RESUMES FOR THE EVENING SESSION 

CHAIRPERSON :    Good even ing ,  once aga in ,  Mr  Myburgh.   

Good even ing  everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Good even ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  we s ta r t ,  I  jus t  want  to  make an 

announcement  tha t  I  was p lann ing  to  on l y  make tomorrow 

morn ing  bu t  I  unders tand tha t  somebody has pu t  in  the  

med ia  someth ing  tha t  I  was s t i l l  to  announce and I  never  

gave author i t y  tha t  i t  shou ld  be  done.  20 

 The Pres ident  was go ing  to  appear  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  on  Monday and  Tuesday,  tha t  i s  the  

31 s t  o f  May and  the  1 s t  o f  June.   I  have moved. . .  

[Speaker ’s  m icrophone not  work ing ]  . . . la te  in  June  so  tha t  

he  wou ld  come a t  the  end o f  the  ora l  ev idence.    
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 So  another  da te  –  I  w i l l  announce  another  da te  

or  two dates  in  the  course  o f  June.   So he w i l l  no  longer  

appear  be fo re  the  Commiss ion  on  Monday and Tuesday but  

he  w i l l  s t i l l  appear  be fore  the  end o f  June.   Okay  a l r igh t .   

Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i rperson.   I  do  no t  

know i f  i t  i s  necessary  to  admin is te r  the  oa th  aga in  to  

Mr  G igaba?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  do  tha t .   P lease admin is te r  

the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  10 

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    My name is  Knowledge Malus i  Nkanyez i  

G igaba.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 20 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

KNOWLEDGE MALUSI  NKANYEZI  GIGABA :   (d .s .s )  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  Mr  So lomon is  appear ing  v i r tua l l y.   

Mr  So lomon,  a re  you there?  

ADV SOLOMON :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  us  s ta r t  because I  am sure  or  I  

hope he hears  -he  can hear.   Okay  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . le t  us  s ta r t ,  ja .  

EXAMINATION BY ADV MYBURGH SC (CONTINUES) :    

Good a f te rnoon,  Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA :    Good a f te rnoon,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  f in ish  o f f  by  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon,  Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  f in ish  o f f ,  Mr  G igaba.   I  

wou ld  re fer  you to  one document ,  i f  I  may?  Can you go to  

your  Exh ib i t  24?  So th is  i s  Transnet  Bund le  7(a ) ,  

Cha i rperson.   And cou ld  you p lease go to  page 979? 

MR GIGABA :    Page 1979?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rperson,  I  am to ld  there  i s  a  

techn ica l  p rob lem wi th  the  Zoom connect ion .   F ive  m inutes  

is  requ i red  to  sor t  i t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Shu,  we are  los ing  a  lo t  o f  t ime 

today.   Okay we ad jou rn .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS DUE TO A TECHNICAL PROBLEM 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  proceed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  G igaba,  

I  wanted to  take  you to  Transnet  Bund le  7(a) ,  page 979.   

Jus t  one fu r ther  quest ion  in  re la t ion  to  Ms Gigaba.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    979,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  you w i l l  f ind  a t  979 is  a  le t te r  

f rom Themba Langa.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .a t to rneys.   Those we Mr  Gama’s  

a t to rneys.   I  jus t  want  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  to  parag raph  

2  a t  page 979.   I t  says :  

“We conf i rm tha t  when th is  mat te r  was se t t led ,  

i t  was agreed in  wr i t ing  w i th  the  then Min is te r  

o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses  tha t  the  costs  incu r red  by  20 

Mr  Gama,  our  c l ien t ,  wou ld  be  bo rne by  

Transnet . . . ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Thank you very  much,  Cha i rman.   I t  i s  the  

f i rs t  t ime I  see th is  le t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GIGABA :    I t  was not  b rought  to  my a t ten t ion  because 

th is  le t te r  i s  submi t ted  –  i t  i s  da ted  25 June 2014  when I  

was Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs .   The Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  d id  no t  b r ing  i t  to  my a t ten t ion  to  query  

whethe r  there  was or  there  had been such an ag reement  

meet ing  to  Langa A t to rneys.   There  was no such an  

agreement .   I  was not  invo lved in  th is  th ing .    

 There  was no wr i t ten  agreement  and i f  there  

was,  i t  wou ld  have been presented to  me because the  10 

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  wou ld  have quer ied  why  

the  Min i s te r  had  made such a  wr i t ten  ag reement  w i th  

a t to rneys o f  a  c l ien t  tha t  was in  d ispute  w i th  an  SOE.   Now 

the  Min is te r  cou ld  no t  en ter  in to  such an ag reement  in  any  

poss ib le  way.   The . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  Mr  G igaba.   Reg is t ra r.  

REGISTRAR :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you may cont inue.  

MR GIGABA :    Thank you.   Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  

does not  en ter  in to  lega l  cont rac ts  tha t  a re  b ind ing  on  20 

s ta te-owned compan ies .   The Estab l i shment  Act  o f  these  

SOE’s  wou ld  no t  permi t  tha t  as  we l l  as  the  Companies  Act ,  

the  Shareho lde r  Comp Act .   There  is  no  leg i s la t ion  wh ich  

crea tes  such a  precedent .    

 Now any le t te r  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  o f f i c ia l l y  f rom a  
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means tha t  to  an  SOE f i rs t  goes th rough the  var ious 

d iv is ions in  the  depar tment  where  i t  i s  approved  by  the 

re levant  o f f i c ia ls  in  the  depar tment  r igh t  up  to  D i rec tor  

Genera l  be fore  i t  i s  submi t ted  to  the  Min is te r  fo r  s ignature .    

 And the  depar tment  wou ld  cer ta in ly  no t  have 

dra f ted  or  au tho r ised a  dra f t ing  o f  such an ag reement  

because they wou ld  have c lea r ly  sa id  to  me tha t :   Min is te r,  

th is  i s  no t  w i th in  your  powers .    

 And there fore ,  there  was no such adv i ce  

submi t ted  to  me,  e i ther  in  the  fo rm o f  in te rna l  memorandum 10 

by  the  depar tment  o r  in  any o ther  word  tha t  wou ld  

essent ia l l y  mean agree ing  in  wr i t ing  to  such a  mat te r.   Th i s 

mat te r  was an in te rna l  mat te r  w i th in  Transnet .    

 Le t  me a lso  add,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  m in is te rs  a re  

execut ive  au tho r i t ies .   They a re  no t  account ing  o f f i cers .   I  

app roved the  budget  inso far  i t  i s  cons is ten t  w i th  the  po l i cy  

f ramework  wh ich  has been dec ided  a t  tha t  t ime.    

 The Min is te r  does not  en te r  in to  cont rac ts .   Does  

not  commi t  funds fo r  any funct ion  whatsoever  and 

there fo re ,  to  th is  ex ten t ,  the  Min is te r  wou ld  have been 20 

ac t ing  or  wou ld  have ac ted  way beyond the i r  powers  and  

the  D i rec tor  Genera l  wou ld  have sure ly  p ro tes ted  to  say:   

Min is te r,  th is  i s  no t  w i th in  your  powers .   You are  

commi t t ing  funds  wh ich  is  the  funct ion  o f  the  account ing  

o f f i ce r.    
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 And there fore ,  I  d id  no t  wr i te  any  such le t te r  to  

Langa A t to rneys.   I  d id  no t  meet  Langa A t to rneys to  make  

any commi tment  tha t  they were  go ing  to  be  pa id  fo r  

rep resent ing  the i r  c l ien t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So. . .   Mr  G igaba,  I  mean,  I  th ink  we 

are  probab ly  a l l  in  ag reement  tha t  i f  you  have done tha t  i t  

wou ld  i r regu lar.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  what  I  jus t  asked you.   Do 

you know –  do  you have any idea where  Mr  Langa wou ld  10 

have got  th is  f rom? 

MR GIGABA :    I  th ink  he  was jus t  t ry ing  to  d rop my name 

in  o rder  to  so l i c i t  the  payment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  then ask  you 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t  answer.   I  have 

missed i t .  

MR GIGABA :    I  sa id ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  he  was  dropp ing  my  

name in  o rde r  to  so l i c i t  payment .   And i t  i s  ve ry  s t range to  

me tha t  he  wou ld  submi t  th is  le t te r  to  the  depar tment  when 20 

he knew I  had  le f t  the  depar tment  because by  the  

25 t h  o f  June,  i t  had been a  who le  months  s ince  I  had le f t  

the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises ,  i f  there  had been  

any commi tment  by  myse l f  to  th is  e f fec t .   Th is  le t te r  in  a l l  

s incer i t y  wou ld  have been submi t ted  wh i ls t  I  was s t i l l  the  
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Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  he  is  no t  submi t t ing  i t  to  the  

depar tment .   He is  submi t t ing  i t  to  Transnet ’s  a t to rneys.  

MR GIGABA :    Even then,  the  answer  s t i l l  s tands.   The 

le t te r  i s  admi t ted  to  Transnet ’s  a t to rneys when I  was no  

longer  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses  and i t  s t i l l  de f ies  log i c  

why i t  wou ld  have  –  tha t  such wou ld  have been done .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  then want  to  move to  a  

d i f fe ren t  top ic  and th is  dea ls  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fo re  you move to  a  d i f fe ren t  10 

top ic ,  Mr  Myburgh.   I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  ge t  your  v iew,  

Mr  G igaba,  on  the  de fens ib i l i t y,  o r  o therw ise ,  on  the  

se t t lement  agreement  tha t  was reached by  the  Transnet  

Board  w i th  Mr  Gama because tha t  was a  board  tha t  was 

appo in ted ,  a t  leas t  the  major i t y,  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  appo in ted  

dur ing  your  te rm .   Number  two and number  two,  i t  was  

dur ing  your  te rm as Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises .  

 Number  th ree ,  o f  course ,  there  is  the  h is to ry  

re la t ing  to  Mr  Gama tha t  I  h igh l igh ted  to  you as  g iven by  

Ms Barbara  Hogan in  te rms o f  her  vers ion  be ing  tha t  20 

Mr  Zuma was be ing  ins i s ted  tha t  the  pos i t ion  o f  Group CEO 

of  Transnet  wou ld ,  there fore ,  no t  have to  be  fu l f i l led  un t i l  

h is  d isc ip l inary  processes were  comple ted .  

 I  th ink  we –  i t  was ind ica ted  to  you the  las t  t ime 

tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i  who was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  board 
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conceded tha t  the  se t t lement  agreement  tha t  they have 

reached w i th  Mr  Gama was indefens ib le .   Now i t  may we l l  

be  tha t  somebody might  say  i t  i s  de fens ib le .   I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  

fo r  me how anybody can say i t  i s  de fens ib le .    

 Now,  obv ious ly,  be ing  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  a t  the  t ime,  you wou ld  have had an in te res t  in  

boards o f  SOE’s  under  your  ju r i sd ic t ion ,  per fo rm ing the i r  

du t ies  in  a  way tha t  rea l l y  advances the  in te res t  o f  the  

SOE’s .  

 Now,  le t  me ask.   Have you seen tha t  10 

agreement?   Do you –  are  you fami l ia r  w i th  i t s  te rms,  tha t  

se t t lement  agreement?   I  th ink  you wou ld  have.   Now I  

remember.   I t  was sent  to  you,  I  th ink ,  a t  some s tage fo r  

you to  comment .   The se t t lement  agreement  be tween 

Transnet  and Mr  Gama.  

MR GIGABA :    Mr  Cha i rman,  i t  was sent  to  me and  in  my 

v iew,  the  mat te r  i nvo lv ing  th is  se t t lement  agreement  wou ld 

have been d i f f i cu l t  to  me to  comment  on  post  fac to ,  g iven  

the  fac t  tha t  by  the  t ime i t  was brought  to  my a t ten t ion ,  the  

agreement  had been reached,  the  par t ies  had negot ia ted  i t .   20 

So i t  was –  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  a rgue w i th  any 

conv ic t ion  tha t  i t  shou ld  be  –  i t  can  be defended o r  cannot  

be  de fended.  

 I  th ink  the  v iews o f  the  peop le  who were  

invo l ved,  who s tud ied  i t  and those  who pe rhaps – because  
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o f  the  respons ib i l i t i es  wh ich  they  car r ied  a t  the  t ime,  the  

v iews tha t  they wou ld  have expressed on the  mat te r  wou ld  

be  much author i ta t i ve  than mine g iven the  lapse o f  t ime 

and the  fac t  tha t  the  mat te r,  rea l l y,  a t  the  t ime d id  no t  

serve  be fore  me in  any way.  

 And cer ta in ly,  the  cont rac t ,  the  agreement  was  

not  b rought  to  my a t ten t ion  s ince  Mr  Gama was the  

D iv i s iona l  CEO.   I  had le f t  i t  to  the  board  to  dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r  and reso lve  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Wel l ,  you see,  I  mean,  I  th ink  las t  10 

t ime you sa id  –  we took qu i te  some t ime w i th  Mr  Gama or  

w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  on  th is  i ssue and you are  r igh t ,  we took  

qu i te  some t ime,  and cer ta in l y  f rom my s ide  i t  i s  because  

o f  the  unusua l  fea tures  o f  th is  agreement ,  you know.   

Because you have a  s i tua t ion  where ,  you know,  a  very  

sen ior  pos i t ion  tha t  i s  supposed to  be  f i l l ed  a t  Transnet  i s  

no t  f i l l ed  fo r  –  c lose  to  two years .   Ac tua l l y,  i t  was not  

f i l l ed  fo r  two years .    

 And more  than one and a  ha l f  o f  tha t  years  i t  

was not  f i l l ed  because f rom the  vers ion  o f  the  person who 20 

was Min is te r  a t  the  t ime and the  Pres ident  a t  the  t ime sa id :   

I  want  so  and so  and nobody e l se  to  take  th is  pos i t ion .   

And then th is  person was d i smissed a t  the  end  o f  the 

d isc ip l ina ry  process fo r  ex t remely  se r ious ac ts  o f  

m isconduct .  
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 And when the  se t t lement  ag reement  was 

reached,  re ins ta t ing  h im,  he  was  admi t t ing  tha t  he  had  

commi t ted  these s ix  ser ious ac ts  o f  m isconduct .   He was  

no longer  d i sput ing ,  Mr  Gama.   There  is  a  very  

comprehens ive  judgment  tha t  was done by  the  cha i rperson 

o f  the  d i sc ip l i nary  hear ing ,  a  sen ior  counse l  a t  the  Bar  in  

Joburg .    

 So a t  the  t ime he was re ins ta ted ,  he  was not  

d isput ing  tha t  he  was p roper l y  found gu i l t y  o f  those ac t  o f  

m isconduct  anymore  and ye t  here  is  th is  board  wh ich  takes 10 

h im back.   Not  on ly  tha t .   I  mean,  g i ves  h im fu l l  

re ins ta tement ,  fu l l  back pay fo r  the  pe r iod  tha t  he  had  

been d ismissed.   Not  on ly  tha t .   I t  looks  a t  l i t i ga t ion  wh ich  

he  had brought  in  the  h igh  cour t  where  he  was cha l leng ing  

h is  suspens ion  by  Transnet  be fore  he  went  th rough the  

d isc ip l ina ry  p rocess wh ich  he  los t .  

 And the  judge in  the  h igh  cour t  sa id  he  must  pay 

Transnet ’s  cos ts  fo r  tha t  l i t i ga t ion .   Not  on ly  do  they say-  

and they do  not  say :   Okay,  do  no t  pay the  cos ts .   For  

whatever  reason,  maybe.   Do not  pay the  costs .   They say,  20 

ins tead:   We,  Transnet ,  who won the  case aga ins t  you,  we 

are  go ing  to  pay you 75% of  your  costs .  

 And then they say in  regard  to  the  case tha t  was  

pend ing  a t  the  t ime,  wh ich  have got  the  un fa i r  d i smissa l  

case,  wh ich  was  pend ing  in  the  Barga in ing  Counc i l ,  they  
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say :   We wi l l  pay. . .  [ I  th ink ]  . .75% of  your  lega l  cos ts .   And 

tha t  i s  somebody who is  admi t t ing  tha t  he  was proper ly  

found gu i l t y  o f  these ve ry  ser ious ac ts  o f  m isconduct .  

 And apar t  f rom tha t ,  they  say:   Okay,  we w i l l  g ive  

you a  f ina l  warn ing  bu t  th is  f ina l  warn ing  is  no t  go ing  to  be  

opera t iona l  when  you ar r i ve  back.   I t  wou ld  be  deemed to  

have been g i ven  more  than a  year  ago and i t  wou ld  be  

deemed to  have been fo r  s ix  months .   So,  there fore ,  when 

you come in  –  when you come back,  you w i l l  have  a  c lean 

d isc ip l ina ry  s la te .  10 

 I t  i s  jus t  someth ing  unheard  o f .   So,  i f  we had  

spent  t ime t ry ing  to  ask ing  Mr  Mkwanaz i  about  th is  and we  

ask Mr  Gama and -  bu t  no t  as  much as  we  asked 

Mr  Mkwanaz i  because Mr  Gama d id  no t  re ins ta te  h imse l f ,  

you know.   He was w i th in  h is  r igh t  to  ask  fo r  as  much as  he  

may have asked fo r.   The peop le  who had the  respons ib i l i t y  

was the  board .    

 So i f  we spend t ime on th i s ,  i t  i s  because i t  i s  

such an unusua l  s i tua t ion .   I t  ca l l s  fo r  an  exp lanat ion  to  

say:   Why wou ld  a  board  tha t  i s  p roper ly  look ing  a f te r  the  20 

in te res t  o f  an  SOE enter  in to  th i s  k ind  o f  se t t lement?   I t  

makes you wan t  an  exp lanat ion  tha t  there  must  be  

someth ing  e lse .   I t  cannot  be .   Tha t  i s  what  goes on in  your  

m ind because i t  i s  jus t  someth ing  ve ry  d i f f i cu l t  to  

unders tand.  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 188 of 313 
 

 And o f  cou rse ,  Mr  Myburgh d raws to  your  

a t ten t ion  what  Langa A t to rneys wro te ,  ta lk ing  about  the  

Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterpr ises  hav ing  –  or  they hav ing  

reached an ag reement  w i th  the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises .   S imply  because,  even tha t  i s  a  s t range  

fea ture  to  say what  was go ing  on.   So,  bu t  I  thought  I  must  

ra ise  th is  i ssue aga in  because i t  happened a f te r  you were  

brought  in  as  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  En terpr i ses .   

 And the  se t t lement  agreement ,  ce r ta in ly,  seems 

indefens ib le .   You might  w ish  to  say someth ing  bu t  i t  i s  10 

someth ing  tha t  I  thought  you wou ld  be  qu i te  concerned 

about  by  v i r tue  o f  you hav ing  been Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  when  th is  board  en tered in to  i t ,  even i f  i t  was  

not  shown to  you  before  they en te red i n to  and they  s igned  

i t .  

MR GIGABA :    Wel l ,  le t  me s ta te ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  the  

Cha i rman is  an  au thor i t y  on  labour  law.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   

MR GIGABA :    [ laughs]   Of  wh ich  I  am not .   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  20 

MR GIGABA :    I  can  be an author i t y  on  a  few o the r  th ings  

bu t  I  w i l l  no t  contes t  the  Cha i rman ’s  au tho r i t y  on  labour  

law.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    I  am not  p r ivy,  s i r,  to  the  fu l l  con tents  and 
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con tex t  o f  the  board ’s  d iscuss ion  on  th is  i ssue.   Perhaps,  

as  the  Cha i rperson exp la ined i t ,  the  board  cou ld  have 

hand led  i t  d i f fe ren t ly  and leave tha t  to  the  Commiss ion ’s  

d iscre t ion  to  make tha t  de terminat ion ,  whe ther  the  

se t t lement  was defens ib le  o r  no t .    

 I  th ink  you w i l l  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  look  a t  the  

processes o f  the  d i sc ip l inary  process and  the  fu l l  

d iscuss ions o f  the  se t t lement  ag reement  and i t s  content  

and to  dec ide  on  tha t  bas is .   I  th ink  the  Cha i rpe rson  seems 

to  be  a l ready o f  the  v iew on tha t  mat te r.   The le t te r  by  10 

Langa A t to rneys was a  to ta l  fabr ica t ion .   I t  had no bas is .    

 In  fac t ,  as  puzz l i ng  to  the  Cha i rpe rson as  i t  i s ,  i t  

i s  a lso  to  me because I  en tered in to  no  such agreement .   

The depar tment  wou ld  cer ta in l y  have sa id  to  me:   No,  do  

no t  do  th is .   I f  I  had done i t ,  the  depar tment  wou ld  have  

ensured tha t  we wr i te  another  le t te r.   But  i t  shou ld  have 

been imposs ib le  fo r  me to  wr i te  a  le t te r  tha t  has no t  

emanated f rom the  depar tment .   I  wou ld  no t  have done tha t  

myse l f .    

 And so ,  I  leave i t  to  the  Commiss ion  to  make 20 

tha t  de terminat ion  bu t  g iven the  exp lanat ion  tha t  the  

Cha i rperson is  app ly ing  and g iven tha t  the  Cha i rperson,  

p robab ly,  a l ready  has had s igh t  o f  the  fu l l  d iscuss ions o f  

the  board  a t  the  t ime,  I  th ink  tha t  perhaps the  board  cou ld  

have hand led  the  mat te r  d i f fe ren t ly  and ensured tha t  they 
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p ro tec t  the  in te res t  o f  the  company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   Mr  G igaba,  cou ld  

you p lease go to  page –  Transnet  Bund le  7(a) ,  page 996?  

MR GIGABA :    Sor ry,  Transnet  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The same bund le .  

MR GIGABA :    Oh,  page 996?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    996.32.   Towards the  end o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    996.32,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  I  am not  sure  you are .   I f  you  

go to  996 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . there  are  a  who le  lo t  o f  pages 

a f te r  tha t .  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   You  can go –  you can t race  

your  way.   So I  th ink  you had 996.3 .  20 

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You need to  go  a l l  the  way to 

996.32.   Th i r t y - two.  

MR GIGABA :    Oh.   Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  a  t ranscr ip t ,  an  ex t rac t  o f  
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a  t ransc r ip t  o f  the  ev idence o f  Mr  R iaz  Sa loo jee ,  the  then 

CEO of  Dene l .   And what  Mr  Sa loo jee  says –  and I  am 

go ing  to  jus t  take  you to  what  i s  the  co re  par t  o f  th is  and 

ask  you to  comment .   Page 996.32  a t  l ine  40 ,  he  says:  

“And then he p i cked me up. . . ”  

 Now he is  ta lk ing  about  Mr  Essa.   He is  ta lk ing  

about  be ing  p icked up a t  a  co f fee  shop.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .and we drove.   And then he drove me to  the  10 

Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold .  

I  was not  aware  tha t  tha t  was the  res idence a t  

tha t  po in t  in  t ime but  he  in fo rmed me tha t  i t  

was and sa id :   Do not  wor ry.   Aga in  he  sa id :   

Th is  i s  the  suppor t  o f  the  very  top . . . ”  

Counse l  asks:  

“And th is  i s  a f te r  you had got ten  in to  h is  car  

and you were  d r iv ing  towards Saxonwold? ”  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“Yes.   So then we get  to  the  p lace and we go  20 

ins ide  and I  am taken in to  a  room and I  am 

in t roduced to  Tony Gupta .   Tony Ra jesh  

Gupta . ”  

Counse l :  

“Yes?”  
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Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“ I t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  met  Tony Gupta . ”  

Counse l  asks :  

“Had you met  any o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  p r io r  to  

th is  o r  no t? ”  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“Yes. ”  

 And then the  key paragraph tha t  I  want  to  ask  

you to  comment  on .  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  10 

“So we engaged in  p leasant r ies .  And he,  

obv ious ly,  says:   How are  you?  And whatever  

e lse .?  

Counse l :  

“And then shor t l y  a f te r  tha t  he  escor ts?  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“Tony escor ts  me in to  another  room.    

In  tha t  room,  he  in t roduces me to  h is  –  and  

now he says:   Th i s  i s  my b ro ther.    

And he does not  say  who the  b ro ther  i s .    20 

He jus t  says:   Th i s  i s  my b ro ther.    

And the  bro the r  g ree ts  me.    

He says:   He l lo ,  R iaz .   How are  you?   

And I  sa id :   I  am f ine .    

And then he tu rns  around and in  t he  room was 
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a lso  Min is te r  Ma lus i  G igaba.  

And then he says  to  Min is te r  G igaba:   Min is te r  

G igaba,  th is  i s  the  new CEO of  Dene l .   Th is  i s  

the  new guy,  R iaz .    

And a l l  Min i s te r  G igaba says was :   He l lo ,  how 

are  you,  R iaz?  

And tha t  was i t  and there  was  no fu r ther  

exchange.    

And I  mean,  the re  was no d i scuss ion  about  

Dene l  o r  anyth ing  o f  tha t  sor t .    10 

I t  was jus t  an  in t roduct ion .    

And i f  I  reca l l ,  Min is te r  G igaba sa id :   These  

are  my f r iends.   He hopes tha t  a t  some po in t  i f  

there  i s  anyth ing  you can do w i th  them,  i t  

wou ld  be  good.   And tha t  was i t .  

Cha i rperson:  

“P lease jus t  repeat  tha t .   He sa id  what?”  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“He sa id :   I f  a t  some po in t  in  t ime there  is  

anyth ing  tha t  you  can ass i s t  them wi th ,  tha t  i s  20 

f ine .   That  wou ld  be  good. ”  

Cha i rperson:  

“That  i s  the  one tha t  I  am miss ing ,  the  ear l ie r  

one.   D id  he  say these a re  h i s  f r iends  or  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t?”  
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Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“These are  h is  f r iends.   And i f  a t  some po in t  

there  is  someth ing  you can do together  w i th  

them in  Dene l  i t  wou ld  be  good.   Someth ing  to  

tha t  e f fec t . ”  

Cha i rperson:  

“Okay. ”  

Mr  Sa loo jee :  

“The meet ing  was  very  shor t .    

And th is  person  who I  la te r  found out  was 10 

A tho l  was ta lk ing  –  asked me:   How is  Dene l?   

How is  i t  go ing?  And whatever  e lse .    

And I  sa id  i t  i s  f ine .   I  am s tepp ing  in  and 

whatever  e l se  and we shook hands and we le f t  

and Essa took me back in  h is  car  to  the  co f fee  

shop. ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  thank you very  much,  Mr  Cha i rman.   In  

the  f i rs t  ins tance ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  deny emphat ica l l y  tha t  I  

was ever  in  such  a  meet ing .   I t  is  imp laus ib le  to  me tha t  20 

someone who wou ld  agree to  be  p icked up f rom a  co f fee  

shop,  d r iven to  a  dest ina t ion  they  do  not  know about  bu t  

s t i l l  fe l t  comfor tab le  to  come to  tha t  dest ina t ion  and meet  

the  peop le  he  d id  no t  know about .   That  he  can then  say:   I  

d id  no t  have a  pre-ex is t ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  these peop le .   
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I t  i s  imp laus ib le .  

 Second ly,  i t  i s  imp laus ib le  to  imag ine  tha t  the  

person who submi t ted  the  Cab ine t  memorandum for  you r  

appo in tment  who  wou ld  then have  to  be  in t roduced  to  you 

when they wou ld  have cons idered the  Cab ine t  

memorandum because when you submi t  a  Cab ine t  

memorandum you a lso  read the  CV,  because Cab ine t  i s  

qu i te  r igorous in  i t s  scru t iny  o f  the  peop le  who are  be ing  

brought  be fore  i t .  

 O f  course ,  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  when he was appo in ted ,  10 

came wi th  a  h igh  reputa t ion ,  hav ing  been in  the  indust ry  

and in  the  m i l i ta ry  indust ry  and the  m i l i ta ry  i t se l f  pr io r  to  

h is  appo in tment  as  CEO of  Dene l .   I t ,  there fore ,  seems –  

sounds s t range to  me tha t  th is  course  o f  events  wou ld  

happen wh ich  resu l t  in  h im be ing  in t roduced to  me by – or,  

and or,  me be ing  in t roduced to  h im by someone e l se  o ther  

than the  board  o f  Dene l  wh ich  had  the  respons ib i l i t y  to  do  

tha t .  

 Now when you move on w i th  h i s  tes t imony,  he  

then comes to  a  po in t ,  fu r the r,  where  he  says tha t  he  had a  20 

subsequent  meet ing  a t  wh ich  meet ing  I  was not  there .   

There  were  o ther  peop le  who were  there .   They d iscussed  

a  number  o f  th ings.   I t  seems a l so  b izar re  tha t  i f  he  fe l t  

uncomfo r tab le  to  re tu rn ,  to  ta lk  to  the  same peop le  and a t  

th is  meet ing  a t  wh ich  I  was not  p resent ,  they  then 
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d iscussed whatever  e lse  what  was d iscussed.    

 I  th ink  what  i s  impor tan t  to  bear  in  m ind is  tha t  

Mr  Sa loo jee  does  not  say  tha t  there  is  anyth ing  e lse  tha t  I  

ever  sa id  to  h im .   Bes ides the  meet ing ,  tha t  I  re fu te  as  

never  hav ing  taken p lace,  there  is  no th ing  e lse  wh ich  I  

came to  Mr  Sa loo jee  to  say do  th is ,  do  tha t  fo r  the  

fo l low ing peop le .   But  I  th ink ,  as  he  says,  they were  open  

to  meet ing  var ious bus inesspeop le ,  var ious s takeho lders .  

 And a t  one meet ing  w i th  the  cha i rpersons and  

CEO’s  or  CEO o f  SOE’s ,  I  made  i t  very  c lea r  tha t  in  my 10 

v iew,  even to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  myse l f  may say to  you tha t  

so  and so  wou ld  l i ke  to  ta lk  to  you,  i t  i s  never  take  tha t  as  

an  ind i ca t ion  on  my pa r t  because  there  is  a  lo t  o f  such –  

they e i ther  come –  they come to  m in is te rs  and c la im tha t  

the  Pres ident  has  sa id  th is ,  tha t  and the  o the r.   They come 

to  Cha i rs  and CEOs o f  SOEs and c la im tha t  the  m in is te rs  –  

the  m in is te r  has sa id  th i s  tha t  o r  the  o the r  bu t  when tha t  

happens,  p lease  keep i t  in  m ind tha t  you are  under  no  

ob l iga t ion  whatsoever  to  do  anyth ing .   I f  somebody says  

someth ing  to  you  p lease ver i f y  i t  w i th  me f i rs t  so  tha t  I  am 20 

ab le  to  ind i ca te  whether  I  d id  say tha t  th ing .  

 Now namedropp ing ,  inc lud ing  by  the  Gupta  fami ly  o r  

espec ia l l y  by  them was qu i te  p reva len t  a t  the  t ime and I  

th ink  tha t  i s  why,  even on my par t ,  I  subsequent ly  became 

very  uncomfor tab le  espec ia l l y  when I  was now min is te r  o f  
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such impor tan t  assets .   I  became qu i te  unhappy and 

uncomfo r tab le  w i th  my name be ing  dropped a t  var ious 

p laces wh ich  led  to  the  coo l ing  o f  re la t ions  a t  some po in t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  po in t  

ou t  one or  two th ings to  you,  Mr  G igaba,  and get  you r  

comment .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  i s  o ther  ev idence be fore  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  th is  i s  rea l l y  how Mr  Essa opera ted ,  i t  

was h is  modus operand i .   He wou ld  f ind  sen io r  peop le ,  10 

somet imes CEOs o f  b ig  paras ta ta ls  and he wou ld  take  them 

to  meet ings a t  the  Guptas .   I  mean,  I  w i l l  g ive  you an  

example  o f  Mr  Gama.   Mr  Essa ar ranged what  Mr  Gama 

thought  was a  bus iness meet ing  w i th  h im and gave h im the  

address and he drove there  on ly  to  f ind  ou t  tha t  i t  was the  

Gupta  compound  and tha t  the  pu rpose o f  the  in te rac t ion  

was not  to  meet  w i th  Mr  Essa but  was to  meet  w i th  the  

Guptas  no t  to  meet  w i th  Mr  Essa but  was to  meet  w i th  the  

Guptas  bu t  th is  i s  what  Mr  Essa d id  and the  o the r  th ing  I  

want  to  pu t  to  you,  i s  I  do  no t  qu i te  unders tand when you  20 

say there  wou ld  be  no need fo r  you to  meet  and be  

in t roduced to  Mr  Sa loo jee  because  tha t  i s  no t  what  he  says 

happens here .   He says what  happened he re  is  tha t  you 

sa id  tha t  these are  my f r iends and he hopes tha t  a t  some 

po in t  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  you can do w i th  them,  i t  wou ld  be  
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good.   That  was the  purpose o f  the  meet ing ,  so  he  says.  

MR GIGABA:    Oh,  am I  expected to  comment  now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease do.  

MR GIGABA:    Oh,  thank you.   F i r s t l y  w i th  regard  to  the 

modus operand i  o f  Mr  Essa,  I  cannot  speak fo r  h im,  aga in .   

I  do  no t  know whether  he  ac ted  th is  way o r  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  he  a lso  ac ted  the  same way pr io r  to  my 

appo in tment  and whethe r  he  cont inued to  ac t  th is  way a f te r  

I  had le f t  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  and I  

cer ta in ly  do  no t  know i f  he  ac ted  the  same way w i th  10 

regards to  o ther  SOEs or  en t i t ies .   I f  th is  i s  how he used to  

behave,  he  obv ious ly  was abus ing  –  he  was abus ing  h is  

pos i t ion  to  p ro jec t  h imse l f  as  in f luent ia l ,  power fu l ,  

connected in  o rder  to  advance h is  bus iness in te res t  bu t  

tha t  ce r ta in ly  was never  sanct ioned by  me and,  as  I  have 

responded,  in  a  re la ted  pr io r  mat te r  tha t  had the  person 

brought  to  a  meet ing  brought  i t  to  my a t ten t ion ,  I  wou ld  

have sa id  to  them do not  go  bu t  I  th ink  i t  was qu i te  

p reva len t  and i t  p robab ly  s t i l l  i s  tha t  peop le  wou ld  be  

brought  to  mee t ings under  p re tex t  tha t  the  po l i t i ca l  20 

pr inc ipa l  approves o f  such a  meet ing  tak ing  p lace or  such 

issues be ing  d i scussed but  tha t  cer ta in ly  was never  

approved by  me and tha t  i s  why,  as  I  sa id  ea r l ie r ,  in  one o f  

the  meet ings w i th  the  Cha i rs  and  CEOs o f  SOEs under  my 

repor t ing  l ine ,  I  made i t  c lear  to  them tha t  p lease ,  do  no t  
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do  th ings tha t  I  have not  sa id  you must  do .   I f  anybody 

comes to  you  p lease ver i f y  w i th  me because my  

d iscuss ions w i th  you are  conf ined to  po l i cy  i ssues.  

 Second ly ,  w i th  regard  to  what  Mr  Sa loo jee  says,  I  

d ispute  the  meet ing  i t se l f .   So i t  i s  no t  fo r  me to  respond to  

whethe r  I  sa id  these are  my f r iends,  he lp  them in  any way,  

I  am say ing  the  meet ing  d id  no t  take  p lace,  the re fore  I  d id  

no t  say  these are  my f r iends and he lp  them in  any poss ib le  

way.   I t  wou ld  have been b i zar re  o f  me to  say tha t  g iven 

tha t  I  had not  fo rmal ly  –  I  wou ld  no t  have fo rmal ly  met  Mr  10 

Sa loo jee .   He says h imse l f  in  th is  memo tha t  he  had not  

met  me unt i l  then and the re fo re ,  fo r  me to  say pr io r  to  me  

meet ing  h im now,  you cannot  meet  a  s t ranger  tha t  you do 

not  know and jus t  sudden ly  s ta r t  say ing  th ings tha t  they 

may go out  and  ta lk  about  o r  repor t  to  the  po l i ce  or  

e lsewhere .   I  wou ld  have been s tup id  to  do  tha t .   So the 

meet ing  d id  no t  take  p lace.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t  and do you then s t i l l  ma in ta in  

tha t  the  on ly  t ime tha t  you ever  met  Mr  Essa is  when the  

board  o f  B roadband In f raco was in t roduced to  you? 20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  s t i l l  ma in ta in  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And do you s t i l l  ma in ta in  tha t  the  

on ly  t ime tha t  you ever  went  to  the  Guptas  was fo r  soc ia l  

and cu l tu ra l  funct ions?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  are  no t  suggest ing ,  a re  you,  

tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  jus t  fabr i ca ted  th i s  s to ry?   Are  you  say ing  

maybe genu ine ly  m is taken?  Wou ld  he  have  a  reason to  

fabr ica te  i t ,  as  such?  I s  there  no t  a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  you  

might  no t  remember  tha t  you d id  meet  w i th  h im a t  the 

res idence but  maybe h im be ing  a  new CEO of  Dene l ,  wh ich  

wou ld  have fa l len  under  you,  you remember  -  you jus t  

happen not  to  remember?   Because when you look  a t  what  

he  says about  you,  there  is  no t  much o ther  than he says  

you sa id  these are  my f r iends,  he lp  them i f  there  is  a  need 10 

to  he lp  them and  tha t  does not  necessar i l y  you –  even i f  

you sa id  tha t ,  i t  does not  necessar i l y  meant  you meant  he  

shou ld  he lp  them about  i l l ega l  th ings,  you know?  So I  am 

wonder ing  whether  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  you may have met  

w i th  h im under  the  c i rcumstances he ment ions bu t  you  

cannot  remember ,  maybe he has  a  reason to  remember  

because i f  i t  i s  no t  tha t  s i tua t ion ,  i t  seems to  me i t  wou ld  

have to  be  tha t  he  is  fabr i ca t ing  the  who le  s to ry  tha t  he 

met  you a t  the  Gupta  res idence  and i f  one says he  is  

fabr ica t ing  tha t  s to ry  one wou ld  have to  look  fo r  what  20 

reason wou ld  he  be want ing  to  do  tha t  whereas maybe i f  –  

i t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  maybe he has a  be t te r  a  be t te r  memory  

or  maybe he has a  good reason to  remember  and you 

cannot  remember .   Maybe i t  d id  happen,  i t  m igh t  be  –  what  

i s  your  pos i t ion  about  i t?  
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MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  2012  is  a  b i t  o f  a  long per iod  

o f  t ime f rom now and i t  has  happened tha t  some peop le  

have presented vers ions o f  even ts  tha t  were  no t  ac tua l l y  

accu ra te .   For  example ,  a  suggest ion  tha t  I  had a  meet ing  

about  Transnet  on  the  30  October  o r  the  31  Oc tober ,  I  

p resented here  tha t  on  those dates  I  was  not  in  

Johannesburg .   Ac tua l l y ,  when I  came back on  the  31 s t  I  

went  s t ra igh t  to  Pre tor ia  f rom the  a i rpor t  and remained in  

Pre tor ia  un t i l  the  1  November .   So i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  fo r  

one reason or  the  number  –  and I  am qu i te  cogn isant  o f  10 

what  the  Cha i rperson i s  say ing  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  is  no t  

suggest ing  tha t  I  sa id  he  needs  to  do  anyth ing  i l l ega l  

because cer ta in ly  I  never  asked h im to  do  anyth ing  i l l ega l  

subsequent ly  and  I  cont inued to  ho ld  h im in  h igh  es teem 

throughout  my tenure  as  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises 

because I  le f t  be fore  he  d id  bu t  the  meet ing ,  acco rd ing  to  

my vers ion ,  d id  no t  happen because,  as  I  say,  leav ing  ou t  

the  f i rs t  par t  o f  go ing  to  a  meet ing  tha t  he  was no t  aware  

o f  –  there  was no  need fo r  anybody to  say Mr  G igaba,  th is  

i s  the  new CEO o f  Dene l .   I  cer ta in ly  wou ld  have taken the  20 

memorandum to  cab ine t ,  I  wou ld  have looked a t  the  CV and  

seen the  ident i t y  –  the  ident i t y,  the  copy o f  the  ident i t y  

document  o f  the  person whose CV  I  was tak ing  to  cab ine t  

and there fore  nobody wou ld  have  –  I  th ink  i t  shou ld  have 

been qu i te  adven turous fo r  anyone  to  say to  me th i s  i s  the  
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new CE o f  Dene l  and then I  tu rn  around and say,  h i ,  these  

are  my f r iends,  do  someth ing  fo r  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Myburgh ment ioned someth ing  

about  what  appears  to  have been  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  modus  

operand i .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  le t  me say  th is  to  you.   I  have an 

impress ion  based  on ev idence tha t  I  have heard  over  the  

past  two and ha l f  to  th ree  years  here ,  I  have an impress ion  

tha t  cer ta in ly  Mr  Tony Gupta ,  maybe the  o the r  Gupta  10 

bro thers  bu t  a t  leas t  h im because there  has been  a  lo t  o f  

ev idence about  h im,  tha t  h is  modus operand i  m igh t  have 

inc luded br ing ing  Mr  Duduzane Zuma to  a  lo t  o f  meet ings  

where  he  wanted to  ge t  cer ta in  dea ls  f rom government  

o f f i c ia ls  o r  SOE o f f i c ia ls  because the  overwhe lm ing  

ev idence so  fa r  i s  tha t  he  wou ld  have a  meet ing  w i th  

somebody f rom a  government  depar tment  o r  SOE to 

d iscuss whatever  he  wanted to  d iscuss and he wou ld  make  

sure  Duduzane Zuma was there  bu t  a lmost  a l l  the  peop le  

who have tes t i f ied  who have ever  been in  meet ings w i th  20 

Tony Gupta  in  the  presence o f  Duduzane Zuma say  

Duduzane Zuma wou ld  no t  say  anyth ing  rea l l y  o ther  than  

be p leasant r ies ,  g ree t ing  and so  fo r th ,  Tony Gupta  was the  

one ta lk ing  and i t  may we l l  be  tha t  par t  o f  b r ing ing  h im was  

to  send a  subt le  message to  the  peop le  he  was ta lk ing  
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about  tha t  look ,  you see,  th is  i s  the  Pres ident ’s  son .   So,  in  

a  way,  send some -  you know,  in f luence them o r  t ry  to  

in f luence them because one does not  unders tand why  

Duduzane Zuma wou ld  a lways be there  bu t  make no  

cont r ibu t ion  to  the  meet ings.    

Mr  Jonas sa id  the  same th ing ,  h is  ev idence was to  

tha t  e f fec t  in  regard  to  h is  meet ing  a t  the  Gupta  res idence.  

 Mr  Dukwana,  Mxo l is i  Dukwana,  one o f  the  meet ings  

he  tes t i f ied  abou t  where  he  met  w i th  Tony Gupta ,  he  sa id  

Duduzane Zuma was there  bu t  he  hard ly  sa id  anyth ing ,  10 

Tony Gupta  was the  one do ing  the  ta lk ing  a l l  the  t ime.  

Genera l  Booysen  I  th ink  sa id  the  same th ing ,  he  

was taken by  Duduzane Zuma to  a  meet ing  w i th  Tony  

Gupta  bu t  dur ing  the  meet ing  Duduzane was present  bu t  

hard ly  sa id  anyth ing .  

I  th ink  Mr  Kona  –  I  th ink  Mr  Kona,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken,  who used to  be  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA:    SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    SAA,  you know,  a lso  gave ev idence  

a long the  same l ines  in  a  meet ing  re la t ing  to  a  mee t ing  he  20 

had w i th  Mr  Tony  Gupta  w i th  Mr  Duduzane present .   There  

may have been o thers ,  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  a  few.    

 So i t  may we l l  be  tha t  le t  us  say maybe  

w i thout  your  knowledge,  you know,  Mr  Tony Gupta  dec ided 

tha t  the  new CEO of  Dene l  shou ld  know tha t  you go as  fa r  
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as  coming to  the i r  res idence,  you  know,  they a re  c lose  to  

you,  you might  no t  have known,  you might  have come there  

fo r  a  d i f fe ren t  reason and he took  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  send 

a  message to  the  new CEO of  Dene l  tha t  you see the  

Min is te r  comes to  our  res idence,  we are  c lose  to  h im.   I  am 

jus t  ment ion ing  those th ings.   I t  m igh t  no t  mean tha t  you  

were  pa r ty  to  the  scheme but  i t  m igh t  mean,  i f  the  meet ing  

d id  take  p lace,  i f  you  are  m is taken in  te rms o f  your  memory  

and Mr  Sa loo jee  is  m is taken,  i t  m igh t  mean tha t  they took 

advantage o f  you r  p resence.    10 

 So I  ment ion  a l l  o f  these th ings to  go  back to  

the  quest ion  whether  you do not  th ink  you might  be  

m is taken about  the  meet ing  hav ing  been there  because Mr  

Sa loo jee  does no t  say  much about  what  you sa id ,  i t  i s  jus t  

tha t  –  one o r  two l ines .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman,  o r  Cha i rpe rson,  your  

ou t l ine  o f  the  modus operand i  re la ted  inc idents  i s  qu i te  

comprehens ive .   I  want  to  s ta r t  by  say ing  I  had no reason 

fo r  anybody to  in t roduce a  CEO of  my ent i t y  to  me or  me to  

them.   I  was not  par t y  to  a  meet ing  where  such happened 20 

even jus t  inc identa l l y .   I  d id  ment ion  tha t  there  was a  lo t  o f  

namedropp ing  wh ich  tends to  be  p reva len t  in  the  

env i ronment  o f  bus iness and I  th ink  par t  o f  what  the  

Commiss ion  must  –  o r  par t  o f  wha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  

probab ly  address  i t se l f  to  i s  how to  address –  because on 
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the  one hand,  as  a  m in is te r ,  you do not  want  to  be  v iewed  

as  so  inaccess ib le  to  the  bus iness and o ther  soc ia l  

par tners  tha t  you  tu rn  down meet ings w i th  them but ,  on  the  

o ther  hand,  you have the  d i lemma tha t  your  access ib i l i t y  

cou ld  e i ther  be  m isconst rued o r  even abused w i th  o r  

w i thout  your  knowledge,  par t i cu la r ly  w i thou t  your  

knowledge and how do you manage tha t  te r ra in?   I  do  no t  

th ink  tha t  even  the  Commiss ion  has go t  a  foo lp roof  

so lu t ion  w i th  regards to  tha t  because i t  i s  a  fac t  tha t  there  

are  var ious soc ia l  par tners  and f rom t ime to  t ime they want  10 

d i f fe ren t  access to  m in is te rs  e i ther  as  a  co l lec t i ve  or  as  

ind iv idua ls .   But  here  the  issue i s  I  had no reason to  be 

in t roduced to  somebody whom I  had –  whose appo in tment  I  

had taken to  cab ine t  and the  mee t ing ,  in  my op in ion ,  d id  

no t  happen.   I  th ink  Mr  Sa loo jee  was mis taken in  loca t ing  

me a t  the  meet ing .   Perhaps they  d id  say to  h im tha t  we  

are  c lose  to  Mr  G igaba,  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ,  bu t  the  meet ing  

d id  no t  happen and I  d id  no t  say  to  h im tha t  he  needs to  

he lp  them in  any  way because i t  wou ld  have been  b iza r re  

fo r  a  f i rs t  meet ing .   I f  I  was meet ing  h im fo r  the  f i r s t  t ime 20 

or  i f  he  was meet ing  me fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime i t  wou ld  have 

been b i zar re  fo r  me to  saw these are  my f r iends,  he lp  them 

in  any way.   I  th ink  I  wou ld  have ra ther  conf ined myse l f  to  

say ing  h i ,  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  how are  you,  best  o f  luck  w i th  what  

you have to  do .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   Mr  G igaba ,  can I  

jus t  hand up to  you a  page – Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  reca l l  

las t  t ime we put  fo rward  a  bund le  o f  e igh t  a f f idav i t s  tha t  I  

took  Mr  G igaba th rough.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We do not  un for tunate l y  ton igh t  have  

tha t  bund le  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  we have managed to  make a  10 

copy o f  what  was  page 10 o f  tha t  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And th is  is  annexure  SMA1 to  Mr  

Mah langu ’s  a f f idav i t .   Do you have the  bund le?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  looks  l i ke  I  do  have.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   A l r igh t .   We l l  then i f  you  cou ld  go  to  

page 10?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  I  w i l l  l ook  a t  the  page you  are . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Mr  G igaba,  so  you are  

fami l ia r  w i th  th is  emai l ,  SMA1,  i t  was a t tached to  Mr  20 

Mah langu ’s  a f f idav i t .   Remember  he  sent  you two emai ls  

tha t  we went  th rough?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  – I  know the  

Cha i rperson migh t  have asked a  quest ion  in  re la t ion  to  the 
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f i rs t  bu l le t  po in t .   I  jus t  wanted to  p ick  up  on tha t .   Mr  

Mah langu sa id  to  you:  

“ I  have been inv i ted  on  a  t r ip  to  Ind ia  on  24 January  

to  1  February  2010.   A l though th is  i s  a  p r iva te  

excu rs ion  i t  p romises to  be  o f  g rea t  po l i t i ca l  va lue .   

I  there fore  suggest  tha t  we take fu l l  advantage o f  i t .   

I  there fore  request  leave to  under take th is  so journ . ”  

D id  you g i ve  Mr  Mah langu leave to  under take th i s  so journ?  

MR GIGABA:    I  d id  no t  and w i th  h inds igh t ,  I  th ink  I  shou ld  

have been f i rm in  say ing  no .   I  d id  no t  respond to  th is  10 

request ,  Mr  Cha i rpe rson and I  d id  no t  g i ve  h im leave to  

under take the  so journ .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Because pe rhaps you cou ld  conf i rm,  

I  mean,  he  had on ly  been an adv i ser  to  you fo r  a  month  or  

so  be fore  th is .   

MR GIGABA:    You w i l l  remember  tha t  par t  o f  what  I  had – 

he  says,  to  h is  memory ,  I  had ind i ca ted  to  h im i s  tha t  there  

is  a  number  o f  peop le  who seemed to  be  c lose  to  the  ANC,  

he  has managed them for  meet ing  because as  fa r  as  I  am 

concerned,  I  d id  no t  want  to  do  the  management  o f  those 20 

re la t ions ,  I  wanted h im as a  lega l  adv iser  to  manage them 

so tha t  –  espec ia l l y  because o f  h is  unders tand ing  o f  the  

lega l  f ramework  so  tha t  i f  there  any th ings wh ich  are  

compr i s ing  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  tha t .   So i t  wou ld  

seem to  me tha t  th is  was the  contex t  in  wh ich  he  thought  
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tha t  he  needs to  do  th is .   The fami ly  has been repor ted  

some o f  the  p rev ious w i tnesses were  donors  to  the  ANC for  

e lec t ion  campaigns,  conferences and so  on  and there fore  

they were  qu i te  p rominent  w i th in  the  ranks o f  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress and I  th ink  th is  i s  the  contex t  in  wh ich  

he  thought  tha t  par t i c ipa t ing  in  th is  excurs ion  wou ld  be  o f  

g rea t  po l i t i ca l  va lue  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  wou ld  benef i t  the  

A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress.   Wi th  h inds igh t ,  I  shou ld  have  

very  f i rm ly  sa id  to  h im jus t  do  no t  go .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  th ink  the  quest ion  tha t  I  asked 10 

you is  when d id  he  s ta r t  work ing  fo r  you?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    When was tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Oh,  he  s ta r ted  in  –  I  th ink  in  la te  2010.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And d id  you not ice  h i s  absence f rom 

the  24 January  to  the  1  February?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  d id  no t ice  h is  absence and became 

aware  tha t  he  had gone on th is  t r ip .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   So le t  us  tu rn  to  the  t r ip .   

Cou ld  I  ask  you  to  go  to  bund le  7A and tu rn  t o  page 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Myburgh,  be fore  you  

move away f rom th is  page.   There  is  tha t  bu l le t  –  second  
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bu l le t  po in t  in  the  same page o f  h is  emai l .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    E i ther  I  o r  Mr  Myburgh probab ly  may 

have asked you p rev ious ly  about  th is ,  I  am not  sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we d id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says:  

“ I  unders tand tha t  Transnet  may be near ing  a  

se t t lement  w i th  Gama.   I  w i l l  ob ta in  the  de ta i l s  o f  

the  se t t lement  and br ie f  you accord ing l y . ”  

And then he suggests  tha t  you  soc ia l i se  the  P res ident .   10 

Would  you ag ree tha t  he  seems to  be  somebody who  th inks  

you wou ld  be  in te res ted  in  the  se t t lement  de ta i l s?  

MR GIGABA:    In  my response prev ious l y ,  Mr  Cha i rperson,  

I  ind ica ted  tha t  he  was new to  the  job .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR GIGABA:    He was ac tua l l y  new to  government .   So – 

and was new to  the  job  o f  spec ia l  adv iser  and was s t i l l  

t ry ing  to  g rapp le  w i th  the  pa rameters  o f  h is  mandate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  h is  job ,  okay.  

MR GIGABA:    And tha t  i s  why the  emai l  he  ra i ses  a  who le  20 

range o f  th ings,  money,  may be nominated by  cer ta in  

quar te rs  in  the  board  meet ings w i th  sen ior  ed i to rs ,  I  mean 

those are  sanct ions o f  the  communica t ions depar tment ,  

d iv is ion  in  the  depar tment ,  the  issue o f  the  nomina t ions o f  

peop le  to  the  pos i t ion  o f  Transnet  GCE was not  our  
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bus iness,  we d id  no t  have to  know who is  be ing  nominated  

and so  on  and so  on ,  I  mean,  you can see in  the  emai l  tha t  

he  ra ises  qu i te  b road rang ing  issues,  some o f  wh ich  

be longed to  o the r  d iv is ions and some o f  wh ich  were  jus t  

comple te l y  independent  o f  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Jus t  go ing  back to  the 

Ind ia  t r ip ,  do  I  unders tand then f rom what  you say  is  tha t  

hav ing  asked you  fo r  permiss ion  to  go  on  the  t r ip  and you 

not  hav ing  g iven i t ,  he  jus t  went  in  any case? 10 

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  he  d id  go ,  I  became aware  o f  i t  and 

then I  d iscussed i t  w i th  h im upon h i s  re tu rn .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  we then go p lease to  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  assume you wou ld  have been the  on ly  

person who cou ld  g ive  approva l  fo r  h is  leave? 

MR GIGABA:    Espec ia l l y ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  we go to  page 996.54 p lease?  

CHAIRPERSON :    996.54?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Cha i rperson.    

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  we see he re  i s  a t  the  bo t tom o f  

the  page is  an  emai l  f rom Jet  A i rways dated the  19  January  

2011,  a  day a f te r  Mr  Mah langu  wro te  to  you and i t  i s  
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add ressed to  Ashu a t  Sahara .   Tha t  we know is  Mr  Chawla .   

Says:  

“Dear  Ashu,  p lease f ind  a t tached your  Je t  A i rways  

a i r  t i cke t  an  invo ice  fo r  shor t  payment  o f  ZAR 13142  

on the  BATA agreement . ”  

Cou ld  you then go to  the  a t tachments  over  the  page a t  

196.56?  Th is  i s  the  f i rs t  eT icke t  and you w i l l  see  the  

passenger  name there ,  Mah langu S iyabonga and you w i l l  

see  tha t  what  i t  re f lec ts  i s  a  p remier  c lass  t i cke t  to  Mumbai  

De lh i ,  Mumbai ,  Johannesburg .   I t  le f t  on  the  24  January  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry ,  Mr  Myburgh,  I  am t ry ing  to  

look  fo r  the  name Mahlangu.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  on  the  le f t  hand s ide ,  

Cha i rperson,  there  i s  a  few head ings,  eTicke t  head ing ,  

book ing  head ing  and then passenger  de ta i l  head ing ,  under  

tha t ,  passenger  name,  Mah langu.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We are  s t i l l  a t  996.54?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    56 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have i t ,  Cha i rpe rson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know why my eyes do not  see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have a  Je t  A i rways t i cke t  

there?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have a  go t  a  Je t  A i rways t i cke t ,  yes .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  so  a t  the  top  le f t  hand s ide  

in  bo ld  you see a i r  t i cke t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  now I  see i t ,  now I  see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  book ing  deta i l s  and  

passenger  de ta i l s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  now I  see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  f l i gh t  rea l l y  f rom 

Johannesburg  to  Ind ia  and back leav ing  on  the  24  January  

and re turn ing  on  the  2  February .   Do you see tha t?   Mr  

G igaba?  10 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  oh  sor ry ,  I  thought  you were  s t i l l  

ta lk ing  to  the  Cha i rperson.   Yes,  I  do ,  I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now i f  you go over  the  page  

you w i l l  see  another  –  an  ident ica l  eT icke t  and th i s  i s  a t  

page 996.58,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  can see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  an  ident ica l  t i cke t  bu t  th is  one 

is  i ssued in  the  name o f  Zuma,  Duduzane.   Do you see  

tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  see i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  d id  you come to  learn  tha t  your  

spec ia l  adv iser ,  tha t  th is  so journ  invo l ved a  t r ip  to  Ind ia  

together  w i th  Mr  Duduzane Zuma and on the  face  o f  i t  

funded by  Sahara  Computers?  

MR GIGABA:    I  d id  no t  know who  e lse  was on the  t r ip ,  so 
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i t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime I  see tha t  Mr  Duduzane Zuma was a lso  

on  tha t  t r ip .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Mhlangu on h is  re tu rn ,  what  d id  

he  re lay  to  you?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  I  repr imanded h im,  I  repr imanded  h im 

fo r  under tak ing  the  t r ip .   I  sa id  to  h im tha t  I  th ink  he  shou ld  

no t  have gone,  he  shou ld  have in fo rmed me o f  ac tua l l y  the  

ar rangements  tha t  were  be ing  made and I  sa id  to  h im tha t  

there  a re  governance regu la t ions w i th  regard  to  employees 

o f  government  under tak ing  t r ips  ab road w i thout  permiss ion  10 

and tha t  espec ia l l y  when they a re  funded by  peop le  w i th  

bus iness in te res t  in  the  SOEs i t  wou ld  be  much bet te r  tha t  

we do not  par t i c i pa te  in  such t r ips .   I  d id  no t  ask  h im any 

fu r ther  de ta i l s  as  to  who was there ,  what  d id  you d iscuss,  

who d id  you,  a l l  o f  those deta i l s ,  I  d id  no t  d iscuss them 

wi th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  the  Regu la t ions you are  

ta lk ing  about ,  wou ld  they app ly  i f  i t  was a  pe rsona l  t r ip  o r  

do  they on ly  app ly  i f  i t  i s  an  o f f i c ia l  t r ip?  

MR GIGABA:    I f  i t  i s  a  persona l  t r ip ,  Cha i rperson,  you 20 

need to  s t i l l  app ly  fo r  leave,  a t  leas t  le t  i t  be  recorded 

o f f i c ia l l y  tha t  you are  on  leave fo r  persona l  reasons,  bu t  

the  issue o f  the  sponsorsh ip  o f  the  t r ips  becomes impor tan t  

because we need  to  know who is  sponsor ing  so  tha t  we can  

be ab le  to  de term ine whether  there  is  no  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  
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a long the  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   So d id  you enqu i re  

what  he  was do ing  in  Ind ia?  

MR GIGABA:    As  I  have ind ica ted ,  I  d id  no t  ask  h im what  

d id  you do,  I  jus t  rep r imanded h im and sa id  tha t  you  shou ld  

no t  do  th is  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you not  f ind  i t  s t range tha t  

somebody who had jus t  s ta r ted  in  a  new job  wou ld  take  

leave w i thout  approva l  f rom somebody who is  supposed to  10 

approve i t?   I t  jus t  seems,  I  mean  I  do  no t  know,  maybe he 

was s t i l l  on  probat ion  i f  there  was  probat ion ,  fo r  somebody 

to  take  such a  t r ip  w i thout  sa t is fy ing  h imse l f  tha t  the  

pr inc ipa l  o r  whoever  i s  supposed to  approve the  leave has 

approved i t .  

MR GIGABA:    You know,  I  wou ld  have expected  h im to 

have spoken to  the  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f ,  who is  the  Admin is t ra to r  

o f  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Min i s te r  and when I  had a  d i scuss ion  

w i th  h im i t  became apparent  tha t  he  had not  spoken  to  the  

Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f ,  because the  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f  a t  the  t ime a lso  20 

d id  no t  know tha t  Mr  Mhlangu had gone ab road.  

I  th ink  where  I  say  I  take  respons ib i l i t y  in  no t  be ing  

f i rm was in  the  fac t  tha t  the  e-mai l  was sent  to  me and I  

d id  no t  respond.   I  shou ld  have responded and I  shou ld  

have sa id  to  h im no,  excuse yourse l f  f rom tha t  t r ip ,  do  no t  
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be  par t  o f  i t  and tha t  i s  what  I  repr imanded h im about  

a f te rwards and had a  d i scuss ion  w i th  h im about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wou ld  you accept ,  o r  d id  you not  f ind  

i t  s t range tha t  somebody who has jus t  s ta r ted  th is  new job  

th inks  they can jus t  go  w i thout ,  be ing  away fo r  a  week  

w i thout  the  approva l  o f  the  Min i s te r  when they a re  work ing  

so  c lose ly  to  the  Min is te r?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you accept  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Sor ry  Cha i rpe rson,  fo r  in te r jec t ing ,  my 10 

apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  i t  was s t range and tha t  i s  the  issue  

tha t  I  addressed w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   I  want  to  go  to  a 

d i f fe ren t  top ic  and tha t  re la tes  to  Mr  Shama and in  

par t i cu la r  the  a t tempt  to  have  h im appo in ted  as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  o f  Transnet .   Mr  G igaba,  you 

have dea l t  w i th  th is  in  you r  a f f idav i t .  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am jus t  go ing  to  go  to  wha t  I  th ink  

are  the  key passages.   Jus t  to  beg in  w i th ,  you as  I  

unders tand i t  appo in t  Mr  Shama as a  D i rec to r  o r i g ina l l y,  

tha t  wou ld  have been in  December  2010.  
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MR GIGABA:    2010,  Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And Magik  Mkhwanaz i?  

MR GIGABA:    A t  the  same t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  the  same t ime.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And we know tha t  he  then became 

the  Cha i rperson.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We have dea l t  w i th  tha t .   That  by  

way o f  background,  perhaps jus t  to  speed th ings up  cou ld  I  

ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 355 o f  the  bund le?   And a t  

355 a t  pa ragraph 23 you addressed  the  top ic  o f  the  a l leged  

a t tempt  remova l  o f  Mr  Mkhwanaz i  as  Cha i rpe rson  o f  the  

Transnet  Board  in  May or  June 2011.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  o rder  to  appo in t  Mr  Shama as the  

Cha i rperson.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  us  then fas t  fo rward  to  

parag raph 23.3  a t  page 356.   You say tha t :  

“ In May 2011 I  received a decision 

memorandum NG31 f rom the act ing Deputy 

Di rector General  Transport ,  Ms Mapule.”  
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MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say:  

“The decision memorandum advised me and 

recommended the proposed appointment of  

four new non Execut ive Di rectors and that  

Mr Shama become the Chai rperson of  the 

Board. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go to  page  358 a t  10 

parag raph 23.6  you say:  

“The reason for the proposed appointment of  

Mr Shama as the Chai rperson of  the 

Transnet Board was related so lely due to his  

ski l l  and prof i le which served before me at  

the t ime of  his proposed appointment. ”  

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  we do know is  tha t  

tha t  p roposa l  was  unsuccessfu l .  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 23.8  a t  parag raph 359  

you say:  

“ I  might  add that  at  the t ime of  the proposed 

appointment of  Mr Iqbal  Surve as the 
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Chairperson of  the Board there were no facts 

before or known to me to the effect  that  the 

proposed appointment of  Iqbal  Surve 1) 

would weaken the Board,  2) give r ise to  

unlawful  act iv i t ies occurr ing at  Transnet  as a 

resul t  thereof ,  including inter al ia f raud,  

corrupt ion and State Capture,  and 3) was 

connected to the Guptas. ”  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you see tha t?  10 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  rea l l y  on l y  have one  th ing  I  

want  to  ask  you in  th is  regard .   Cou ld  you p lease  tu rn  to  

page 996.17?  

CHAIRPERSON:    996.17.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  had las t  t ime more  l eg ib le  cop ies  

o f  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bus iness Day a r t i c le ,  do  you have  

i t?  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  am there .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  cou ld  I  hand these up 

p lease?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you .   Now cou ld  I  ask  you 
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p lease a t  the  f i rs t  page o f  th is  a r t i c le  you see the  

Cha i rman o f  Transnet ,  Eskom and Dene l  to  go .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then r igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  tha t  p iece  

where  i t ,  jus t  be fore  i t  says  ‘cont i nued on page 2 ’ i t  reads:  

“ I t  is understood,  nevertheless,  that  

Mr Gigaba did not  have i t  a l l  h is own way at  

the Cabinet  meet ing yesterday.”  

Now th is  newspaper  was the  newspaper  o f  Thursday,  

9  June 2011.  10 

“ I t  is understood,  nevertheless,  that  

Mr Gigaba did not  have i t  a l l  h is own way at  

the Cabinet  meet ing yesterday.”  

I t  then goes to  the  second page.  

“His proposal  to replace. . . ”  

Can you then go in  sor t  o f  the  m idd le ,  towards the  bo t tom 

there  i s ,  the  a r t i c le  cont inues;  change a t  Transnet ,  Eskom.   

So i t  con t inues.  

“His proposal  to replace Mr Mkhwanazi  wi th 

Iqbal  Surve was shot  down and a new 20 

candidate wi l l  have to be found.   Mr Shama, 

a former senior o ff ic ia l  in the Department of  

Trade and Indust ry,  was appointed to the 

Transnet Board last  December,  short ly af ter  

Mr Gigaba took up a new job.   Col leagues 



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 220 of 313 
 

are thought to have been uncomfor table wi th 

appoint ing someone re lat ively inexperienced 

and unknown to the capi tal  markets.   He also 

fears that  he may be closely ident i f ied wi th  

the weal thy Gupta Family,  f r iends of  

President  Jacob Zuma.”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now i s  tha t  an  accura te  o r  

inaccura te  repor t  o f  what  t ransp i red  a t  Cab ine t?  10 

MR GIGABA:    I t  i s  a  fabr ica t ion ,  i t  i s  inaccura te .   The  

reason the  Cab ine t  p resented fo r  no t  ag ree ing  to  our  

p roposa l  was tha t  we had on ly  appo in ted  the  new Board  o f  

Transnet  in  December  the  prev ious year,  tha t  i t  wou ld  

undermine our  very  in ten t ions,  because when we sa id ,  

when we appo in ted  the  new Board  in  December  2010 we 

sa id  the ,  we wanted to  es tab l i sh  leadersh ip  cer ta in ty  in  the  

company a t  bo th  Board  leve l  as  we l l  as  Execut ive  leve l  and 

so  Cab ine t  fe l t  tha t  the  change to  the  Cha i rperson wou ld  

undermine tha t  leadersh ip  cer ta in ty.  20 

Second ly,  Cab ine t  fe l t  tha t  the  reasons we  

presented fo r  the  proposed changes to  the  Board ,  I  mean 

to  the  pos i t ion  o f  Cha i rperson,  wh ich  inc luded the  fac ts ,  we  

were  say ing  two  th ings;  one tha t  Mr  Mkhwanaz i  was too  

c lose  to  the  admin is t ra t ion ,  tha t  there  seems to  be  a  
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d i f f i cu l t y  in  separa t ing  h i s  ro le  as  an  Execut ive  D i rec to r,  

wh ich  was h i s  p rev ious exper ience f rom h is  ro le  as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Board ,  par t i cu la r ly  when c i rcumstances  

had coerced us  in  December  to  a lso  appo in t i ng  an  

Execut ive  Cha i rperson when the re  was no CEO.  

Cab ine t  fe l t  tha t  cou ld  be  addressed and tha t  we 

were  in  haste  and impat ien t  in  seek ing  to  reso lve  tha t  

d i lemma by remov ing  Mr  Mkhwanaz i  as  Cha i rperson.   

Cab ine t  fu r ther  fe l t  tha t  Mr  Mkhwanaz i ,  because we  wanted  

to  a lso  appo in t  h im on the  Board  o f  Eskom in  o rde r  to  10 

ensure  tha t  there  is  a l ignment ,  because i f  you read the  

repor t  o f  the  Pres ident ia l  Rev iew Commi t tee  on  SOEs 

wh ich  was pub l i shed in  2012,  among the  many 

observa t ions i t  makes Cha i rperson ,  about  the  SOEs,  i s  the  

absence o f  co l labo ra t ion  among  SOEs,  espec ia l l y  on  

mutua l  p ro jec ts .  

Now what  we were  t ry ing  to  do ,  w i thout  the  

ex i s tence o f  a  lega l  f ramework ,  was to  ensure  th is  

a l ignment  and co l labora t ion  be tween Transnet  and Eskom,  

par t i cu la r l y  w i th  regard  to  the  Road to  Ra i l  Migra t ion ,  20 

wh ich  was v iewed as  an  impor tan t  s tep  to  improve the  

cond i t ions  o f  our  roads,  bu t  to  a lso  improve the  mutua l  

suppor t  be tween two majo r  SOEs,  because Eskom re l ies  on  

coa l  supp ly,  much o f  wh ich  is  supp l ied  by  Road,  espec ia l l y  

fo r  those coa l  m ines tha t  a re  fa r  away f rom power  s ta t ions  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 222 of 313 
 

and the  resu l t  o f  tha t ,  i f  you  go to  a reas l i ke  Ermelo ,  has 

been dras t ic  devasta t ion  to  the  roads.  

So we were  t ry ing  to  ensure  tha t  there  is  

co l labora t ion  be tween the  two compan ies  to  imp lement  the  

Road to  Ra i l  Migra t ion  and Cab ine t  fe l t  tha t  no ,  bu t  you  

can appo in t  Mr  Mkhwanaz i  even as  he  remains  Cha i rperson 

o f  the  Board  o f  Transnet ,  in to the  Board  o f  Eskom,  wh ich  is  

what  we then subsequent ly  d id .  

So what  i s  wr i t ten  he re  on  Bus iness Day was the  

op in ion  o f  the  sources o f  Bus iness Day,  no t  the  dec i s ions  10 

o f  Cab ine t  and i f  you unders tand how sources funct ion ,  I  

th ink  the  Commiss ion  has been a  sub jec t  o f  such sources,  

they do  not  repor t  the  t ru th .   They  w i l l  te l l ,  they  w i l l  in fo rm 

the i r  journa l i s t s  what  i s  go ing  to  happen and  prov ide  

reasons wh ich  are  no t  the  genu ine ,  accura te  reasons fo r  a  

par t i cu la r  dec is ion  to  be  taken.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  take  i t  there  must  then be a 

record  o f  the  ac tua l  reasons.  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  the  Cab ine t  members  wou ld ,  I  mean  

the  Cab ine t  dec is ion  o f  tha t  day wou ld  say,  wou ld  have the  20 

record .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You wou ld  no t ,  you d id  no t  pu t  tha t  

up  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR GIGABA:    The Cab ine t  dec i s ion?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  
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MR GIGABA:    Unfor tunate ly  Min i s te rs  do  no t  keep  Cab ine t  

dec is ions w i th  them.   As soon as  you res ign  f rom Cab inet  

you leave a l l  Cab ine t ,  because they a re  con f ident ia l  

documents .   They  do not  be long to  you pr iva te ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  wou ld  you say to  the 

propos i t ion  tha t  i t  was qu i te  obv ious l y  inappropr ia te ,  as  

Cab ine t  you say found to  seek to  make a  newcomer  to  the  

Board  the  Cha i rperson?  

MR GIGABA:    I  beg your  pa rdon?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Was i t  no t  qu i te  obv ious,  as  Cab ine t  10 

found,  tha t  i t  was  inappropr ia te  to  make a  newcomer  to  the  

Board  the  Cha i rperson?  

MR GIGABA:    Mr  Mkhwanaz i  was  a lso  a  newcomer  to  the  

Board  o f  Transne t  when we made h im the  Cha i rperson,  he  

had on ly  been a  Board  member  prev ious ly  in  h is  capac i ty  

as  an  ex  o f f i c ia l  member,  bu t  you can go to  many SOEs,  

there  are  many ins tances where  Cha i rpersons o f  Boards 

are  newcomers  to  those Boards.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Mkhwanaz i  had a  t rack  reco rd ,  

d id  he  no t ,  a t  Transnet ,  a  p reced ing  t rack  reco rd?  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  he  had a  t rack  reco rd ,  p reced ing  t rack  

record .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  th ink  I  m ight  have ment ioned 

to  you befo re ,  bu t  as  i t  tu rned out  there  is  ev idence  before  

the  Commiss ion ,  and there  is  more  to  come,  tha t  Mr  Shama 
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had a  mat r ix  o f  bus iness re la t ionsh ips  w i th  Mr  Essa.   Do 

you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  as  I  have ind ica ted  prev ious ly,  

I  have never  been a  bus iness person,  I  am not  a  bus iness  

person,  I  do  no t  know what  bus iness peop le  do  or  how they  

opera te .   I  th ink  the  issues wh ich  are  be ing  brough t  be fore  

the  Commiss ion  are  o f  in te res t  to  a l l  o f  us  and to  tha t  

ex ten t  my knowledge o f  Mr  Shama’s  bus iness opera t ions o r  

dea l ings w i th  Transnet  and o ther  SOEs were  no t  known a t  

th is  t ime and we are  on ly,  I  am on ly  ge t t ing  fami l ia r  to  them 10 

on the  bas is  o f  the  ev idence wh ich  is  be ing  brough t  be fore  

the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  be fore  you proposed to  Cab ine t  

tha t  he  be  appo in ted  as  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  Board  o f  such 

an impor tan t  SOE,  one wou ld  have thought  tha t  some 

check ing  wou ld  have been done to  say who is  th is  person,  

where  has he  been,  what  i s ,  who  is  he  assoc ia ted  w i th?   

A re  we not  go ing  to  appo in t  as  Cha i rperson o f  such an  

impor tan t  Board  somebody who rea l l y  shou ld  no t  occupy  

such a  pos i t ion  i n  an  SOE?  Had tha t  no t  been done,  wh ich  20 

may have revea led  h is  bus iness connect ions?  

MR GIGABA:    The depar tment  does do such a  ve t t ing  o f  

peop le  and ver i f i ca t ion  o f  the i r  CVs,  bu t  the  depar tment  

focuses on the  CVs o f  the  peop le  and what  they  present  

the i r  exper iences .   Remember,  the  same person tha t  we  
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a re  ta l k ing  about  had been Head o f  the  Trade and  

Investment  South  A f r i ca ,  so  he  came and had been  a  DDG 

in  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Trade and Indust ry,  so  he  came wi th  

good credent ia ls  in  te rms o f  bo th  government  and s ta te  

en t i t ies ,  because as  Head o f  T ISA he wou ld  have had some 

extens i ve  exper ience in  in te rna t iona l  t rade and  market  

i ssues.  

Now tha t  was done and many o f  the  peop le  who a re  

appo in ted  on the  Boards o f  SOEs have bus iness 

connect ions o f  one sor t  o r  the  o the r.   You are  aware  o f  tha t  10 

and you make them take an oath  tha t  they are  no t  go ing  to  

use the i r  Board  membersh ip  o f  SOEs to  benef i t  the i r  

p r iva te  in te res ts  and so  i t  i s  done  w i th  a l l  o f  them.   A l l  o f  

them you wou ld  f ind  they serve  in  var ious company Boards,  

no t  on l y  Gupta  re la ted  Boards,  bu t  very  many Boards,  

some o f  wh ich  compan ies  are  l i s ted  on  the  JSE,  and so  you  

appo in t  them.  

A t  the  t ime o f  appo in tment  you do not  have any 

pr io r  knowledge tha t  they w i l l  o r  m ight  do  anyth ing  tha t  i s  

wrong in  the  fu tu re .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe. . .   I  was jus t  look ing  a t  the 

da te  o f  the  Bus iness Day,  I  see i t  i s  9  June 2011 ,  i t  may 

we l l  be . . .   I s  my date  cor rec t ,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  a lso ,  w i thout  want ing  to  

in te r rup t  you I  wanted to  make the  po in t .  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 226 of 313 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  make tha t  po in t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  the  ev idence tha t  we  have,  I  

do  no t  want  to  be  seen to  have miss ta ted  the  fac ts ,  the  

ev idence tha t  we  have i s  tha t  i t  does not  go  as  fa r  as  t o  

es tab l i sh  tha t  there  were  connec t ions be tween Mr Shama 

and Mr  Essa in  2011.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The ev idence is  tha t  there  were  10 

bus iness connec t ions be tween them a t  the  t ime tha t  

Mr  Shama was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  B IDC in  2013 and 

2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Of  cou rse  

another  po in t ,  wh ich  is  what  I  was th ink ing  o f ,  may be th is ,  

tha t  maybe even i f  somebody  became aware  o f  h is  

connect ions w i th  Sa l im Essa or  the  Guptas  a t  tha t  t ime,  

May 2011,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  tha t  wou ld  no t  have caused  

peop le  to  be  so  concerned about  i t ,  as  they may,  as  they 

wou ld  have been a  few years  la te ,  so  tha t  m ight  be  20 

someth ing  tha t  one might  have to  fac tor  in .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  do  you want  to  comment  on  

tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  no ,  no .   I  th ink  the  Cha i rpe rson has a  

va l id  po in t .   I  th ink  i t  s  very  impor tan t  to  unders tand the  
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con tex t ,  because i t  changes over  t ime,  knowledge o f  

ind iv idua ls  in  ins tances deve lops over  a  course  o f  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  then want  to  tu rn  to  the 

appo in tment  o f  Mr  Mole fe  as  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .   

Th is  i s  a lso  someth ing  tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  in  your  

a f f idav i t  and I  th ink  tha t  we can dea l  w i th  i t  re la t i ve l y  

qu ick ly.   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page 352 o f  

bund le  7A?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you say,  you dea l  w i th  th is  10 

a t  paragraph 22.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  22 .3  you say tha t :  

“ I  have the benef i t  of  the Cabinet  

Memorandum dated the 14t h of  February. ”  

And then essent ia l l y  what  you go on to  do  is  to  s ta te  what  

i s  recorded in  the  Cab ine t  Memo.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps we cou ld  go  to  tha t  memo,  

and tha t  you f ind  a t  page 928.  20 

MR GIGABA:    I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  i s  the  memo o f  the  14 t h  o f  

February  2011 and the  purpose is  recorded as  ‘ fo r  Cab ine t  

to  no te  the  appo in tment  to  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  as  the  Group  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  Transnet  and as  an  ex  ef f i c io  member  o f  
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the  Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then in  your  summary you say:  

“The Transnet Board undertook a process to  

f i l l  the Cabinet  vacancy of  Transnet Group 

Chief  Execut ive,  consequence Doctor 

Gunsho, Mr Molefe and Mr Sal inga were 

ident i f ied as sui table candidates for the 

posi t ion.   The Board recommended any of  

the three candidates for appointment.   10 

Cabinet  is requested to  note the appointment  

of  Br ian Molefe as the most  sui table 

candidate for the posi t ion of  Group Chief  

Execut ive of  Transnet.   Mr Molefe has 

extensive senior  management experience 

and extensive asset  management. . . ”  

And then over  the  page dea l ing ,  o r  under  the  head ing  

‘d iscuss ion ’ a t  5 .3  you say a  comprehensive interview 

process was undertaken and you repeat  that  the Board 

recommended three candidates.   They are then named and 20 

you go on to record that  the Board indicated that  any of  the 

three candidates are highly sui table for the appointment.   Do 

you see that? 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And we see at  page 932 that  you 
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s igned that  memorandum on the 14t h of  February.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2011.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now Mr Gigaba, we have put  up some 

documents in rela t ion to th is.   Can I  ask you to turn please 

to page 992? 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In fact ,  let  me start  by asking you to 

go to page 982.   This is a let ter that  was addressed to you. 10 

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your pardon? 

MR GIGABA:    I  was saying I  am there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Let  me summarise what i t  ref lects.   

No doubt you have looked at  i t ,  but  i f  you want to look at  i t  

further I  wi l l  take you there,  but  water tankers i t  shows, and 

you probably have seen this,  is that  what we see f rom the 

documents is that  Mr Molefe was nominated for appointment 

by Mr Shama that  we have just  been speaking about and 

Mr Shama a lso sat  on the Select ion Panel  and there was a 20 

view that  that  caused a conf l ict  of  interest  which resul ted in  

the scores that  he had given the var ious candidates being 

removed.  Are you fami l iar wi th that? 

MR GIGABA:    I  am not  aware of  who nominated him, I  am 

only aware of  the concerns that  were raised by other board 
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members wi th regard to the process.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A lr ight ,  so let  us have a look at  

page 987.   So 4.5,  i f  not  gone into al l  the detai l ,  because i t  

is captured here,  consol idated summary of  rat ings and 

ranking of  al l  candidates interviewed for GC of  Transnet 

af ter wi thdrawal  of  scores of  one panel l ist ,  that  was 

Mr Shama.   

Now what  you w i l l  see  is  tha t  a f te r  h is  w i thdrawal  

and h i s  sco res  Mr  Gunsho,  in  fac t  Doctor  Gunsho was the ,  

had the  best  overa l l  rank ing .   Do you see tha t?  10 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Fo l lowed then by  Mr  Mole fe  and 

fo l lowed then by  Mr  Sa l inga.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go to  989 the  

recommendat ion ,  as  you recorded  in  your  Cab ine t  Memo,  

was tha t  you approve appo in tment  o f  any th ree  o f  the  

recommended cand ida tes .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now what  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you 20 

about  i s  you w i l l  see  a t  990 there  you addressed 

Mr  Mkhwanaz i  and you prov ided h im wi th  gu ide l ines  fo r  the 

appo in tment  o f  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cers ,  do  you see  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And those gu ide l ines  were  a t tached  
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and you w i l l  f ind  them a t  page 992 and pe rhaps I  can d i rec t  

your  a t ten t ion  then p lease to  page 993 a t  paragraph 2 .5 .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  says  there  tha t :  

“The Board shal l ,  through i ts Governance 

and Nominat ion Commit tee,  submit  a  

minimum of  three short l isted candidates and 

their  preferred candidate to the 

shareholder. ”  

Do you see tha t?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   So the  Board  d id  no t  comply  

w i th  these gu ide l i nes ,  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why d id  you not  go  back  to  the 

Board  and say we l l ,  you  have g iven me a  shor t l i s t  o f  th ree ,  

bu t  I  want  to  know who is  you r  p re fer red  cand ida te?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  why we d id  no t  do  tha t ,  

bu t  what  we unders tood the  Board  to  have compl ied  w i th  

was the  submiss ion  o f  th ree  shor t l i s ted  cand ida tes .   The  

Min is te r  wou ld  no t  have done any fu r ther  assessment  o r  20 

in te rv iew wi th  the  pre fer red  cand ida te .    

I  th ink  probab ly  had the  Board  submi t ted  to  us  who 

the i r  p re fer red  cand ida te  was,  maybe we wou ld  have done  

th is ,  bu t  we thought  tha t  we wou ld  no t  want  to  go  over  

what  the  Board  wou ld  have done ,  because they were  best  
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su i ted  to  under take the  nominat ions process.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  they d id  no t  comple te  i t .   

The process invo lves prov id ing  you  w i th  a  shor t l i s t  o f  th ree  

and te l l ing  you  who they be l i eved was the  pre fe r red  

cand ida te .   I  mean i t  i s  qu i te  a ,  i t  seems an impor tan t  pa r t  

o f  the  process,  no t  so?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  an  impor tan t  par t  o f  the  process,  

Cha i rperson,  bu t  i t  i s  a lso ,  i t  a lso  remains  a  fac t  tha t  the 

Min is te r  wou ld  s t i l l  have the  d isc re t ion  upon assessment  

th rough depar tmenta l  p rocesses  to  e i ther  rev iew the  10 

process or  to  fo rward  to  Cab ine t  the  recommendat ion  tha t  

they wou ld  th ink  or  deem necessary.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  abso lu te ly.   You wou ld  have had 

the  d isc re t ion ,  bu t  they d id  no t  p rov ide  you w i th  the 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  they were  ob l iged  to .   I  am not  suggest ing  

to  you tha t  i f  they  sa id  our  p re fer red  cand ida te  i s  

Mr  Gunsho o r  Doctor  Gunsho tha t  you had to  appo in t  h im,  

bu t  you d id  no t  have a l l  the  mater ia l  fac ts  be fo re  you.  

MR GIGABA:    The mater ia l  fac ts ,  Cha i rperson,  were  

there .   The Board  submi t ted  to  us  how they were  do ing  the  20 

process.   The on ly  th ing  they d id  no t  do  was to  say th is  i s  

who we pre fe r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  you  and Mr  Myburgh  are  on  

the  same page,  because I  th ink  a t  th is  s tage he is  ta lk ing  

about  the  fa i lu re  o f  the  Board  to  te l l  you  who the i r  
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p re fe r red  cand ida te  was and what  he  has no t ,  o r  we l l ,  i t  i s  

imp l ied  in  what  he  is  say ing  tha t  they d id  no t  comp ly  w i th  

the  gu ide l ines  and as  I  unders tand  i t  those were  gu ide l ines  

tha t  were  issued under  you.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And obv ious l y  a  need had been 

ident i f ied  to  g ive  gu idance to  the  Boards o f  SOEs to  say i f  

you  are  go ing  to ,  i f  there  i s  a  vacancy in  these sen ior  

pos i t ions ,  these are  the  gu ide l ines ,  i t  i s  what  you must  

fo l low.   So here  is  the  Board  now wh ich  is  supposed to  10 

comply  w i th  these gu ide l ines  and say th is  i s  ou r  p re fer red  

cand ida te .    

They do not  do  tha t .   You go ahead  and you appo in t  

somebody.   You a lso  do  not  say  bu t  hang on,  we have 

issued gu ide l ines ,  these gu ide l ines  a re  s t i l l  f resh  in  our  

m inds,  th is  i s  what  you are  supposed to  do ,  go  back,  do ,  

comply.  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  p robab ly  w i th  h inds igh t  we d id  

no t  th ink  th is  to  be  o f  such mater ia l i t y  tha t  i t  wou ld  prevent  

the  process to  move on.   When we submi t ted  the 20 

memorandum to  Cab ine t  you w i l l  no te  tha t  I  say  on  the  f i rs t  

page,  the  summary,  le t  me go to  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Board  sa id  any o f  the  th ree  wou ld  

be  su i tab le .  

MR GIGABA:    The summary o f  the  memo where  I  say  to  
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Cab ine t ,  there fo re  Cab ine t  i s  requested to  no te  the  

appo in tment  o f . . .   Cab ine t  cor rec ted  me and sa id  we  do not  

no te ,  the  Cab ine t  must  approve,  so  you have not  appo in ted  

anyone,  you are  ac tua l l y  recommending to  Cab ine t  the  

appo in tment  o f  Mr  Mole fe  and Cab ine t  can s t i l l  exerc ise  i t s  

m ind.   

I t  was the  f i rs t  t ime I  was a  Min is te r  and i t  was the  

f i rs t  t ime I  p resented the  memorandum appo in t ing  or  

recommending the  appo in tment  o f  a  CEO and so  Cab ine t  

sa id  to  me no,  no  Min i s te r,  the  depar tment  shou ld  have  10 

in fo rmed you tha t  you do not  appo in t  and le t  us  no te ,  you 

recommend tha t  we approve the  appo in tment  o f ,  and even  

then i t  i s ,  we can say to  you  tha t  the  recommended 

cand ida te  i s  no t  su i tab le ,  tha t  we pre fe r  the  o thers  and 

tha t  i s  why when you submi t  to  Cab ine t  a  memorandum you 

submi t  i t  w i th  the  annexures so  tha t  Min is te rs  can app ly  

the i r  m inds in fo rmed by  the  annexures tha t  a re  presented  

there .  

I  k  now i t  was the  quest ion  about  the  Board  no t  

express ing  the i r  p re fe r red  cand ida te ,  bu t  we d id  no t  take  20 

tha t  to  be  so  s ign i f i can t  tha t  i t  cou ld  s top  the  p rocess,  

because they had submi t ted  to  us  the  document  o f  the  

repor t  o f  the  Board  nominat ions  and o f  the ,  the  Board  

Nominat ions Commi t tee ,  Governance and Nominat ions 

Commi t tee ,  en ta i l ing  a l l  the  th ree  cand ida tes  and how they  
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have per fo rmed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  jus t  one las t  th ing .   D id  you  

know tha t  Doctor  Gunsho had scored the  best?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  was aware .   We noted tha t ,  we  

d iscussed i t  and we a r r i ved a t  the  dec is ion  tha t  we need to  

recommend Mr  Mole fe  based on h is  recent  exper ience a t  

the  P IC and wha t  qua l i t ies  we thought  he  wou ld  br ing  to  

the  Board  o f ,  I  mean to  the  Transnet  SOE L im i ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  bu t  the  one th ing  wh ich  i t  appears  10 

you d id  no t  te l l  Cab ine t  in  you r  memo about  i s  exact ly  tha t ,  

tha t  a l though the  Board  sa id  any o f  the  th ree  is  su i tab le ,  

there  was someone who scored the  h ighest  po in ts  in  the  

in te rv iews and he  was not  the  one you were  recommending  

and then compar ing  i t  to ,  and jus t i f y ing  why you d id  no t  go 

fo r  number  one,  tha t  par t  I  th ink  you d id  no t  do  in  your  

memo.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes Cha i rperson,  we d id  no t  do  i t  in  our  

memo for  two reasons.   The f i rs t  one,  and perhaps the  

smal le r  one,  i s  tha t  the  suppor t ing  a f f idav i t s ,  I  mean 20 

suppor t ing  annexures. . .   Sor ry,  I  have been submi t t ing  a  lo t  

o f  a f f idav i t s  to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    The suppor t ing  annexures to  the  Cab ine t  

Memo wou ld  have enta i led  tha t  repor t ,  bu t  secondary  
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perhaps the  most  impor tan t  one wh ich  needs to  be  borne in  

m ind a t  a  b roader  leve l  i s  a  s t ra teg i c  i ssue  o f  the  

ownersh ip  and governance o f  ou r  s ta te  owned compan ies .  

I  th ink  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  d raw the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  

Commiss ion  to  the  PRC repor t ,  the  Pres ident ia l  Rev iew 

Commi t tee  on  SOEs,  because i t  ra ises  these i ssues.   There  

has been,  and I  th ink  I  no te  in  some o f  my submiss ions 

tha t  there  has been,  there  has no t  been s tandard  p rac t ice  

w i th  regard  to  the  appo in tment  o f  Boards.   

I  made some re ference to  th is  in  my las t  week ’s  10 

appearance,  there  is  no  s tandard  prac t ice ,  the  absence o f  

a  Shareho lder  Governance Mode l ,  Governance Framework  

in  South  A f r i ca  fo r  SOEs ensures tha t  there  is  no  s tandard  

prac t ice  w i th  regard  to  the  appo in tment  o f  Boards,  the  

appo in tment  o f  CEOs,  the  es tab l i shment  o f  Board  

Commi t tees and  the  var ious ro les  o f  Min i s te rs ,  the  

ownersh ip  ro le  o f  Min is te rs  over  the  SOEs and tha t  c rea tes  

a  prob lem tha t  Government  g rapp les  w i th  on  an  ongo ing  

bas is .   Now tha t  i s  an  issue wh ich  needs to  be  a t tended to .  

Inso fa r  as  we under took th is  p rocess we d id  no t  do  20 

anyth ing  wrong.   We fo l lowed the  procedures wh ich  we had  

out l ined,  we presented to  Cab ine t  and as  I  say,  the  Cab ine t  

sa id  to  us  do  not  submi t  a  memo to  us ,  submi t  i t  for  us  to  

approve and tha t  i s  why I  th ink  the  Cab ine t  m inutes  o f  that  

da te  wou ld  ind ica te  tha t  Cab ine t  there fo re  approves the  
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appo in tment  o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  bu t  Min is te rs  wou ld  have 

had s igh t  o f  the  annexures o f  the  repor t s ,  o f  Transnet  as  

we l l  as  the  CVs o f  the  cand ida tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  you not  accept ,  o r  wou ld  you not  

accept  tha t  th is  was such an impor tan t  i ssue o f  the  who le  

process tha t  i t  shou ld  have  been p laced  in  the  

memorandum ra ther  than re ly  on  Min i s te rs  go ing  th rough  

a l l  the  annexures  to  say look,  here  I  someth ing  impor tan t  

here ,  there  was an in te rv iew in  t e rms o f ,  o r  dur ing  wh ich  

the  cand ida tes  were  sco red,  the  cand ida te  we a re  10 

recommending d id  no t  ge t  the  h ighest  po in ts ,  i t  i s  

somebody e lse  who got  the  h ighest  po in ts ,  th is  i s  the 

person,  bu t  never the less  he re  are  our  reasons why  we are  

go ing  fo r  number  2  and not  number  1 ,  do  you not  th ink  i t  

shou ld  have deserved a  p lace in  the  memorandum? 

MR GIGABA:    I t  p robab ly,  Cha i rpe rson,  w i th  h inds igh t  

wou ld  have been an impor tan t  th ing  to  ment ion ,  bu t  i t  

works ta t ion  no t  even f rom Cab inet ,  because the  annexures 

were  there  to  p rov ide  tha t  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t ,  and I  th ink  par t  o f  

what  th is  p rocess is  do ing  is  to  ass i s t  Government  to  

es tab l i sh  tha t  Shareho lder  Governance Framework  so  tha t  

go ing  fo rward  such issues a re  dea l t  w i th  as  we suggest  in  

a  manner  tha t  w i l l  s t rengthen the  shareho lder  governance  
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and in  a  manner  tha t  w i l l  ensure  greater  t ransparency 

go ing  fo rward  so  tha t  nobody th inks  tha t  there  is  anyth ing  

wh ich  has been concea led  i n  the  documents  submi t ted ,  bu t  

cer ta in ly  the re  was no in ten t ion  on  ou r  par t  to  concea l  

anyth ing  f rom Cab ine t ,  because Cab ine t  reserved the  r igh t  

to  ask  fo r  a l l  documents  and we  d id  submi t  some o f  the 

cr i t i ca l  documents ,  wh ich  inc luded the  repor t  f rom 

Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  par t  o f  the  d i f f i cu l t y  i s  th is ,  tha t  

you have a  s i tua t ion  where  the  Group CEO of  Transnet  i s  10 

no t  appo in ted  fo r  two years  in  the  pos i t ion .   A t  th is  s tage 

we have on ly  Ms  Barbara  Hogan ’s  exp lanat ion ,  we do not  

have anybody e lse ’s  exp lanat ion  as  to  why tha t  happened.  

Then a f te r  she has le f t  the  depar tment  the  new age  

says Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  the  new boss o f  

Transnet .   He gets  nominated by  Mr  Shama,  whom we now 

know had connect ions w i th  the  Guptas  or  Gupta  

assoc ia tes .   He does not  ge t  the  h ighest  po in ts  in  the  

in te rv iew,  he  is  number  two,  bu t  never the less  he  gets  

appo in ted  to  th is  pos i t ion .   So I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  th is  i s  20 

par t  o f  what  one i s  look ing  a t .  

You might  no t  be  ab le  to  say anyth ing ,  I  am no t  

fo rc ing  you to  say anyth ing ,  bu t  I  am jus t  en l igh ten ing  you 

what  one is  look ing  a t  to  say what  was go ing  on here .  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  we separa te  be tween the  
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susp ic ions o f  what  m ight  have happened and the  ac tua l  

rea l i t y  o f  what  we were  do ing .   I  was not  p r ivy  to  an  

ins t ruc t ion .   You know,  I  was not  p r ivy  to  an  i ns t ruc t ion  tha t  

do  no t  appo in t  the  CE,  the  Group CE o f  Transnet  un t i l  you  

have reso lved the  Gama issue,  nobody to ld  me tha t .  

Second ly,  I  was  not  p r ivy  to  the  nominat ion  o f  

Mr  Mole fe ,  I  was  not  p r ivy  to  tha t ,  so  I  d id  no t  know who  

appo in ted  h im.   I  th ink  what  we dea l t  w i th ,  what  the  rea l i t y  

o f  the  process tha t  sa t  be fore  us  and we igh ing  up the  

sca les  as  to  who to  appo in t ,  I  th ink  ove r  t ime Transnet ,  you 10 

know,  tu rns  around,  posted  pos i t i ve  resu l ts ,  was ab le  to  

announce a  market  demand s t ra tegy wh ich  d ras t ica l l y  

expanded i t s  cap i ta l  expend i tu re  program,  as  d i rec ted  by  

the  shareho lde r  and was ab le  to  imp lement  a  number  o f  

improvements  on  Ra i l ,  Por t  Opera t ions and even to 

announce por t  rebates  to  ass i s t  the  expor te rs  o f  

manufac tured goods.  

So to  tha t  ex ten t ,  honourab le  Cha i rperson,  the re  

have been commendab le  p rogress i n  how the  company 

opera ted .  Now as a  resu l t  o f  a  dec i s ion  we took i t  cou ld  20 

very  we l l  be  tha t  there  were  these o ther  fac tors  tha t  we  

were  no t  aware  o f  tha t  a re  now coming in to  the  l igh t ,  bu t  

cer ta in ly  nobody  sa id  to  me do  not  go  ahead unt i l  the 

Gama issue is  reso lved.   Nobody sa id  to  me tha t  I  on ly  

want  Gama as the  CE,  as  the  Group CE o f  Transne t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  s ta r t  by  ask ing  

you,  why do your  gu ide l ines  prov ide  tha t  the  Board  must  

adv ise  you as  Min is te r  o f  the i r  p re fer red  cand ida te?  

MR GIGABA:    As  I  say,  Cha i rpe rson,  there  has no t  been a  

s tandard  prac t ice  inso fa r  as  the  appo in tment  o f  CEOs o f  

SOEs,  inc lud ing  most  impor tan t ly  tha t  p rov ides d i rec t i ve  as  

to  the  governance respons ib i l i t y  o f  the  owner  and o r  

shareho lder  o f  an  SOE.  

The CEOs o f  SOEs o r  the  SOEs p lay  dua l  ro les ,  10 

wh ich  a re  no t  p layed by  pub l i c  en t i t ies .   A pub l i c  en t i t y  has 

on ly  one mandate ;  to  max im ise  va lue  fo r  i t s  sha reho lde r,  to  

de l i ver  va lue  fo r  i t s  shareho lde rs .   The s ta te  owned 

enterpr i se  has a  dua l  mandate ,  on  the  one hand to  fu l f i l  i t s  

bus iness mandate  o f  genera t ing  revenue so  tha t  i t  can  

e i ther  suppor t  the  Nat iona l  F iscus or  under take o ther  

funct ions,  bu t  on  the  o ther  hand i t  has  to  execute  

deve lopmenta l  respons ib i l i t i es  and  you need a  leadersh ip  

a t  Board  and Execut ive  D i rec to r  leve l  tha t  can unders tand 

tha t  respons ib i l i t y  and tha t  i s  why you,  i t  i s  no t  on ly  20 

pecu l ia r  to  South  A f r i ca ,  bu t  i t  per ta ins  to  a  number  of  

SOEs across the  wor ld  tha t  the  Government  as  the  owner  

o r  sha reho lder  o f  these ent i t ies  wou ld  want  to  have a  say,  

even i f  i t  i s  no t  d i rec t  and  overbear ing ,  over  the  

appo in tment  o f  the  CEOs so  tha t  i t  ensures tha t  they are  
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a l igned w i th  the  Nat iona l  Deve lopmenta l  S t ra tegy.  

In  o ther  count r ies  tha t  i s  under taken not  by  

shareho lder  m in i s t r ies ,  bu t  i t  i s  under taken by  agenc ies ,  

cent ra l  agenc ies  wh ich  are  c rea ted fo r  tha t  pu rpose and 

there  are  regu lar  sor t  o f  seminars  or  lec tures  or  someth ing  

l i ke  tha t  fo r  these  CEOs o f  en t i t ies  wh ich  he lps  them on an 

ongo ing  bas i s ,  a t  leas t  a t  a  conceptua l  leve l  to  be  a l igned  

w i th  the  th ink ing  o f  Government  in  regard  to  economic  and  

deve lopment  p r io r i t ies .   So tha t  i s  the  on ly  reason.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  I  th ink  we are  m iss ing  one  10 

anothe r,  Mr  G igaba.   Why is  i t  tha t  you in  te rms  o f  the  

gu ide l ine ,  as  Min is te r,  want  to  know who the  p re fer red  

cand ida te  i s?  

MR GIGABA:    Because the  Min is te r  has to  submi t  th is  to  

Cab ine t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  you were  no t  ab le  to  do  

tha t ,  because you d id  no t  know the  pre fer red  cand ida te ,  

tha t  i s  s imp ly  the  po in t .  

MR GIGABA:    We were  ab le  to  submi t   because 

Cha i rperson,  we were  g iven a  l i s t  o f  th ree  peop le  and  we 20 

knew tha t  these  are  the  th ree  peop le  tha t  the  SOE is  

recommending.   Wi th  h inds igh t ,  i t  was not  on ly  the  

respons ib i l i t y,  yes  le t  me say i t  was the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  

the  shareho lder  to  go  back to  say so  te l l  us  who your  

p re fe r red  cand ida te  i s ,  bu t  we thought  tha t  the  SOE had  
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compl ied  ove ra l l  w i th  the  gu ide l ines wh ich  we had 

presented.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  me put  the  quest ion  th is  way,  

there  must  have been a  good reason why you thought  the  

gu ide l ines  shou ld  inc lude say ing  to  the  SOE Boards i t  i s  

no t  good enough  fo r  you not  to  g ive  me your  p re fer red  

cand ida te ,  you must  g i ve  me a  pre fer red  cand ida te   IF  

there  was a  good reason fo r  t ha t ,  what  i s  tha t  good 

reason?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  was on ly  to  know,  Cha i rperson,  because 10 

as  we say here  tha t  once we knew the  pre fer red  cand ida te  

we wou ld  under take fu r ther  assessment  o f  tha t  cand ida te  

and we say in  the  next  parag raph  2 .6  tha t  the  shareho lde r  

reserves the  r i gh t  to  d isagree w i th  the  Board  and to  

ac tua l l y  fo rward  to  Cab ine t  a  d i f fe ren t  cand ida te .  

I  th ink  we can d iscuss the  quest ion  whethe r  the  

pre fe r red  cand ida te  was submi t ted  or  no t ,  bu t  I  th ink  in  the  

end we under took the  process tha t  was presented to  us ,  

m inus obta in ing  f rom the  Board  who the i r  p re fer red  

cand ida te  was so  tha t  we cou ld  fu r ther  assess them.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  the  

reason why you had put  in  tha t  requ i rement  wou ld  be  tha t  

as  fa r  as  poss ib le  you want  the  Board  to  be  the  one tha t  

ident i f ies  a  cand ida te  tha t  they th ink  must  be  appo in ted ,  

no t  because you are  go ing  to ,  the  shareho lde r  i s  go ing  to  
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be  comple te l y  bound by  tha t ,  bu t  because they,  the  Board  

w i l l  be  accountab le  fo r  a  lo t  o f  th ings about  runn ing  the  

SOE.  

You do not  want  the  Board  to  tu rn  around and say  

we l l ,  do  no t  b lame us i f  there  i s  no  per fo rmance,  because  

you chose the  Group CEO,  we d id  no t  choose the  Group  

CEO.   You want  to  be  ab le  to  say as  a  genera l  ru le  we g i ve  

you the  Group CEO tha t  you pre fer red ,  un less  I  have put  

reasons to  depar t  f rom tha t ,  you know,  then obv ious l y  i f  

you  have good reasons then you  wou ld  d i f fe r.   I  wou ld  10 

imag ine  tha t  tha t  wou ld  have been the  ra t iona le  to  say tha t  

these peop le  are  accountab le  fo r  the  per fo rmance  o f  the 

SOE,  le t  them ind ica te  the i r  p re fe rence,  I  am not  go ing  to  

say I  must  be  bound comple te ly,  bu t  I  w i l l  depar t  f rom the i r  

p re fe rence i f  there  are  rea l l y  good reasons.  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  Cha i rperson,  you are  abso lu te l y  

cor rec t  and I  th ink  th is  p rocess the re fore ,  you are  expos ing  

the  w i tness o f  t h is  p rocess in  t ha t  i t  does not  p rov ide 

su f f i c ien t  space between the  recommendat ion  o f  the  Board 

and the  fo rward ing  o f  a  Cab ine t  Memorandum for  dec is ion  20 

by  Cab ine t ,  because tha t  in  i t se l f  be tween 2 .5  and 2 .6  

wou ld  requ i re  r igorous engagement  be tween the  

depar tment ,  I  mean between the  company and the 

shareho lder  depar tment ,  no t  un less  the  shareho lder  

depar tment  i s  in  agreement  w i th  the  Board  in  regard  to  the  
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p re fe r red  and recommended cand ida te .  

So I  take  the  po in t  tha t  you are  say ing .   I  th ink  as  a  

process po in t  i t  i s  a  w i tness tha t  hopefu l l y,  i f  i t  has  no t  

been cor rec ted  by  now,  wou ld  need to  be  cor rec ted ,  bu t  the  

fear  i s  a lways there  Cha i rperson,  tha t  once the  Board  

under takes. . .   You know,  the  leakages in  South  A f r i ca  are  

enormous,  eve ry th ing  leaks,  even Cab ine t  dec i s ions  leak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    Every  en t i t y  wou ld  say we are  ba t t l ing  w i th  

leakages and you cou ld  see f rom some o f  the  med ia  10 

repor ts  tha t  a l ready in  2010 as  I  had ar r i ved and go ing  in to  

2011 I  was grapp l ing  w i th  these leaks and we t r ied  to  take  

a  dec i s ion  as  speed i ly  as  poss ib le  so  tha t  you  do not  

c rea te  unnecessary  pub l i c  d iscourse ,  uncer ta in t y  in  the 

market ,  uncer ta in ty  in  the  group about  wh ich  dec is ions are  

be ing  made.  

So whatever  dec i s ion  you have to  make,  you have  

to  t ry  to  make i t  w i th  speed so  tha t  the  announcement  i s  

made o f f i c ia l l y  by  the  respons ib le  au thor i t ies ,  o the rw ise  i t  

i s  go ing  to  l eak ,  bu t  tha t  no tw i ths tand ing ,  I  th ink  a  20 

mechan ism must  be  found fo r  the  reso lu t ion  o f  th is  p rocess 

so  tha t  i t  i s ,  i t  compl ies  w i th  i t s  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  one las t  comment  I  want  to  make  

is  I  no ted  in  the  memo tha t  was sent  to  you,  wh ich  is  he re ,  

tha t  recommended tha t  you p i ck  Mr  Mole fe  ra ther  than the  
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cand ida te  tha t  go t  h igher  marks ,  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  

a l though po in ts  were  g iven,  were  s ta ted ,  wh ich  sought  to  

emphas ise  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  s t rong po in ts ,  why he shou ld  

be  pre fer red ,  tha t  memo,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  d id  no t  do  the  

same exerc i se  in  regard  to  the  cand ida te  who got  more  

po in ts  than Mr  Mole fe ,  because i f  I  am number  one and you  

are  number  two and somebody says you know,  number  two  

must  be  taken because he has or  she has one,  two ,  th ree  

po in ts ,  they mus t  a lso  look a t  the  o ther  one,  whether  he  

does not  have tha t  and my reco l l ec t ion  is  tha t  tha t  memo 10 

d id  no t  do  tha t .  

I t  jus t  sa id  you know,  we recommend tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

be  chosen because o f  th is  and tha t  and tha t  and fo r  a l l  one 

knows tha t  o ther  cand ida te  may we l l  have had comparab le  

exper ience or  even more ,  bu t  there  was s i lence about  what  

about  the  o ther  cand ida te .   So I  do  no t  know whether  you  

noted tha t  when the  memo was,  when you cons idered the  

mat te r  on  tha t .  

MR GIGABA:    I  d id  no t  take  note  o f  i t ,  Cha i rperson ,  bu t  as  

you are  present ing  i t ,  i t  i s  a  va l id  po in t .   I  th ink  i t  goes  20 

back to  say ing  how do you reconc i le  2 .5  and 2 .6  to  make 

the  process r igorous,  no t  to  d isadvantage,  espec ia l l y  

shou ld  the  pre fer red  cand ida te  by  the  shareho lder  no t  be  

the  one pre fe r red  by  the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR GIGABA:    So  how do you reconc i le  tha t  p rocess so  

tha t  the  Board  is  a lso  taken onboard  and you are  ab le  to  

engage w i th  i t  and as  you move to  Cab ine t  you move as  

one,  w i thout  c rea t ing  any lag  fo r  leakages?  Because i t  

tends to  ru in  the  reputa t ions,  the  corpora te ,  p ro fess iona l  

reputa t ions o f  the  peop le  o f  ind iv idua ls  invo l ved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn  

now to  the  ev idence o f  Ms Ngoma.   Now you s t i l l ,  I  have  

prov ided you w i th  anothe r  copy  o f  a  schedu le  tha t  I  10 

produced,  Mr  G igaba.   Do you have i t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wonder  Mr  Myburgh,  whethe r  th is  m ight  

be  a  conven ien t  t ime fo r  a  10  minute  b reak,  because you  

are  mov ing  on to  someth ing  e lse .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cer ta in ly,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  a  10  minute  break.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  be fore  we  cont inue I  jus t  want  to  

ment ion  th is  fo r  what  i t  i s  wor th ,  Mr  G igaba,  and you might  

no t  w ish  to  comment  on  i t ,  par t i cu la r ly  because i t  i s  
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someth ing  tha t  happened a f te r  you have le f t  Pub l i c  

Enterp r ises ,  tha t  the  quest ion  tha t  a r ises  w i th  some o f  

these mat te rs  i s  whethe r  dec is ions tha t  were  taken w i th in  

Government  depar tments ,  w i th in  Government  were  no t  

be ing  cont ro l led  or  undu ly  in f luenced by  peop le  ou ts ide  o f  

those Government  depar tments  and outs ide  o f  Government .  

Apar t  f rom what  I  have sa id  to  you about  some 

issues o f  Mr  Mole fe ’s  appo in tment ,  I  wou ld  have ment ioned 

to  you prev ious ly,  I  ment ion  aga in  tha t  in  2014 the  

ev idence I  have heard  is  tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa to ld  Mr  Henn ie  10 

Beste r  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  was go ing  to  be  the  next  boss o f  

Eskom.  

Of  course  in  2014 Mr  Mole fe  was  a t  Transnet ,  bu t  

indeed he d id  become the  Group CEO of  Eskom the  

fo l low ing year  and not  on ly  tha t ,  the  gu ide l ines  fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  Group CEOs tha t  you had issued were  no t  

fo l lowed in  appo in t ing  h im as Group CEO of  Eskom in  tha t ,  

as  I  unders tand  i t  f rom the  ev idence tha t  has been 

conceded,  I  th ink  Docto r  Gubane  was Cha i rperson o f  the  

Eskom Board ,  the re  was no compl i ca ted  process.  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    They jus t  sa id  as  fa r  as  t ha t  was 

concerned,  he  sa id  we had found our  man,  so  there  was no  

need fo r  us  to  look  e l sewhere ,  we  had found our  man,  we  

had conf idence  in  h im,  bu t  I  th ink  your  gu ide l ines  
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con templa ted  tha t  there  shou ld  be  some compet i t i ve  

process lead ing  to  the  appo in tmen t  o f  the  Group CEO of  an  

SOE.  

So o f  cou rse  in  the  contex t  o f  Eskom and SOEs I  

can a lso  te l l  you  tha t  w i th  respect  to  the  suspens ion  o f  

execut ives  a t  Eskom in  2015,  and aga in  you were  no t  the 

Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  a t  the  t ime,  Board  members ,  

some Board  members  o f  Eskom at  the  t ime have conceded,  

to  say the  least ,  tha t  i t  looks  l ike  dec is ions tha t  were  

supposed to  be  taken by  the  Board  have been taken f rom 10 

outs ide  o f  Eskom and then been g i ven e f fec t  to  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

As  I  say,  you might  no t  want  to  say anyth ing ,  bu t  I  

am jus t  say ing  these are  some o f  the  th ings tha t  one is  

look ing  a t  to  say what  was happen ing .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes Cha i rperson,  indeed the ,  excuse me,  

one has heard  those a l legat ions and one wou ld  no t  be  ab le  

to  comment  I  th ink  fo r  the  per iod  when one was not  there  

and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  one can comment  I  wou ld  say dur ing  

my t ime,  and I  am not  pass ing  as  l igh t  on  my fo rmer  

co l leagues,  bu t  dur ing  my t ime we  d id  no t  a l low,  we wou ld  20 

not  a l low anyone outs ide  the  Board .  

I  th ink  tha t  i s  why whenever  I  met  the  Board  I  made 

i t  very  c lear  to  them tha t  you take  the  dec is ion ,  i f  anybody  

comes to  you and  says I  spoke to  the  Min is te r,  the  Min is te r  

sa id  I  must  come and do th is ,  and I  th ink  in  some o f  my  
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a f f idav i t s ,  because there  have been a l legat ions w i th  regard  

to  some o f  the  po l i c ies  tha t  we  adopted in  two  o f  our  

en t i t ies ,  I  have made i t  very  c lear  what  in fo rmed those  

po l i c ies  and wha t  the  in ten t ions o f  those po l i c ies  were  as  

compared to  the  a l legat ions tha t  were  be ing  made ,  tha t  we  

were  be ing  in f luenced by  th ings wh ich  then subsequent ly  

happened two years  or  even th ree  years  a f te r  we had le f t  

Pub l i c  Ente rpr i ses .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Mr  G igaba,  I  want  now 10 

to  dea l  w i th  the  ev idence o f  Ms Ngoma and your  response 

to  tha t .   We have the  benef i t  o f  your  a f f idav i t  and I  

unders tand you have the  schedu le  tha t  I  p repared .   I  am 

go ing  to  take  you  th rough the  aspects  o f  your  a f f idav i t  and  

a l low you to  comment  on  key aspects  o f  Ms Ngoma’s  

vers ion ,  bu t  perhaps I  cou ld  ask  you i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  

b road ly  summar i se  your  vers ion ,  and you need not  go  in to  

each o f  the  va r ious top ics  now,  we w i l l  address them,  bu t  

b road ly  what  do  you say in  response to  Ms Ngoma’s  

vers ion?  20 

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  th is  was the  par t  o f  th is  

p rocess tha t  I  found most  d i f f i cu l t ,  d i f f i cu l t  because in  the  

f i rs t  ins tance i t  invo lves a  person  w i th  whom I  have been  

marr i ed  fo r  seven years ,  fo r  s i x  years  i f  you  exc lude the  

fac t ,  i f  you want  to  be  pedant ic ,  you know.   The 
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ann ive rsary  i s  in  August ,  so  tha t  w i l l  on ly  be  in  August  

when we comple te  seven years ,  bu t  i t  i s  a lmos t  seven 

years  now.   So i t  i s  a  person who wou ld  a t  the  face  o f  i t  

sound more  be l ievab le  than a l l  o ther  w i tnesses who have 

come before  the  Commiss ion .    

Second ly,  you are  dea l ing  w i th  a  person w i th  whom 

we are  undergo ing  a  d i vo rce ,  the  de ta i l s  o f  wh ich  she has  

misrepresented before  the  Commiss ion  under  oa th .   She 

c la ims in  her  a f f idav i t  tha t  she is  the  one who in i t ia ted  the  

processes o f  the  d ivorce  and I  p rove in  my,  in  one o f  the  10 

annexures I  a t tached to  my response to  her  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t  

tha t  in  ac tua l  fac t  tha t  i s  no t  t rue .  

The process o f  tha t  d ivorce  invo lves,  in  my op in ion ,  

g rea t  [ ind is t inc t ]  about  the  se t t lement  tha t  i s  p robab le ,  

g iven the  cont rac t  under  wh ich  we are  marr i ed  and I  

th rough the  Commiss ion  was in  some ins tances and to  a  

great  ex ten t  tu rned in to  a  fo rum to  so l i c i t  se t t lement ,  to  

canvass i ssues wh ich  shou ld  be  canvassed dur ing  the  

d ivo rce  process.  

Th i rd ly,  you a re  dea l ing  w i th  a  case o f  ex tens ive  20 

l ies ,  ve ry  ex tens ive  l ies  tha t  character ise  the  pe rsona l i t y  o f  

the  pe rson who p resented the  a f f idav i t  and the  d i lemmas in  

wh ich  they are  go ing ,  no t  on l y  a t  the  present  moment ,  bu t  

d i lemmas tha t  have been go ing  th rough severa l  t imes.   I  

th ink  my w ish  wou ld  be  to  the  greates t  ex ten t  poss ib le ,  to  
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be  ab le  to  respond to  th is  a f f idav i t  w i thout  be ing  dragged  

in to  persona l ,  in to  a t tack ing  the  persona l  character  o f  the  

w i tness o f  the  Commiss ion  in  an  env i ronment  where  my 

own character  has been so  severe ly  a t tacked,  demeaned,  

degraded,  tha t  o rd ina r i l y  I  wou ld  be  jus t i f ied  to  be  so  angry 

as  to  want  to  go  pound fo r  pound,  bu t  I  hope tha t  in  our  

engagement  we w i l l  t ry  to  separa te  fac t  f rom f i c t ion  and  

not  go  in to  i ssues o f  a  pe rsona l ised nature  tha t  a re  go ing  

to  ra ther  de t rac t  f rom the  bus iness o f  the  Commiss ion  

ra the r  than the  issues tha t  the  Commiss ion  has  to  dea l  10 

w i th .  

A l l  the  a f f idav i t s  i s  based on I  heard ,  I  ove rheard ,  I  

saw,  bu t  I  have  no ev idence,  wh ich  i s  qu i te  d i f f i cu l t  to  

engage w i th ,  bu t  nonethe less  I  th ink  ton igh t  i s  my 

oppor tun i ty  to  respond to  those i ssues and to  dea l  w i th  

them and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  may on occas ion  sound l i ke  I  

am a t tack ing  the  persona l i t y  and the  characte r  o f  the 

person,  I  w ish  the  Commiss ion  to  excuse me.   I t  w i l l  no t  be  

w i th  mal ic ious in ten t ,  i t  w i l l  on ly  be  to  make my po in t  in  

response to  the  i ssues wh ich  have  been tab led  he re  and so  20 

I  am ve ry  happy  fo r  th is  oppor tun i ty  ton igh t  to  have to  

respond to  th is ,  because I  th ink  i t  has  been ve ry  damaging  

to  me and my fam i ly.  

I t  has  gone to  the  ex ten t  o f  demean ing my la te  

fa ther  and my la te  bro ther - in - l aw.   I  th ink  in  any,  in  any  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 252 of 313 
 

se t t ing ,  in  any househo ld  one is  expected to  be  ab le  to  

d is t ingu ish  be tween the  dead and the  l i v ing  and when  

somebody has no  respect  fo r  the  dead and the  l i v ing  a l i ke  

i t  c rea tes  such emot iona l  s t ra in  and somet imes anger  tha t  

i t  becomes d i f f i cu l t  to  dea l  d ispass ionate ly  w i th  the  issues 

wh ich  have been ra ised.  

But  fu r ther  to  tha t ,  Cha i rperson ,  the  who le  say 

a t tack  on  my fam i ly  i s  a  re f lec t ion  no t  o f  the  c la ims made,  

bu t  o f  a  re la t ionsh ip  gone sour  over  the  years  and  tha t  i s  

un for tunate .   I  th ink  we shou ld  have t r ied  to  keep our  10 

fami l ies  ou t  o f  th is  and not  come to  por t ray  t hem in  

negat ive  l igh t  and pe rhaps f ina l l y,  because I  am s t i l l  go ing  

to  respond to  spec i f i c  i ssues,  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  be  

we l l  adv ised to  bear  i t  in  m ind tha t  I  s t i l l  am in ten t  on  

pro tec t ing  my ch i ld ren ,  I  am very  in ten t  on  pro tec t ing  my 

ch i ld ren .   I  do  no t  be l ieve  my ch i ld ren  shou ld  be  dragged  

th rough pub l i c  degrad ing  and spoken about  in  any manner  

tha t  i s  go ing  to  undermine and demean the i r  in tegr i t y  and  

the i r  d ign i t y.    

They are  too  young and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s t i l l  p lead fo r  20 

my ch i ld ren  to  be  pro tec ted  even by  the  Commiss ion ,  even  

though the  Commiss ion  d id  say ear l ie r  tha t  i t  i s  no t  a  cour t  

o f  law,  bu t  nonethe less  the  Const i tu t ion  in  Chapter  2  does 

say tha t  the  in te res ts  o f  the  ch i ld  a re  supersed ing  on any 

mat te r  re la t ing  to  the  r igh ts  and in te res ts  o f  the  ch i ld  and I  
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want  to  p lead fo r  the  observance o f  tha t  const i tu t iona l  

p r inc ip le .   Thank  you.   I  am wi l l i ng  now to  ge t  in to  the  

n i t t y -gr i t t y  o f  these issues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   So Mr  G igaba,  i t  seems 

to  me tha t  Ms Ngoma’s  a f f idav i t  has  a  se r ies  o f  head ings in  

i t ,  I  have got  10 .   Now she dea ls  w i th  meet ing  the  Guptas  

and v is i t s  to  the  res idence,  she dea ls  w i th  meet ings a t  our  

home,  she dea ls  w i th  p r io r  knowledge o f  appo in tments ,  she 

dea ls  w i th  tens ions r i s ing  in  your  f ina l  days a t  DPE 

Min is te r,  she dea ls  w i th  your  re tu rn  to  the  Depar tment  o f  10 

Home Affa i r s ,  she dea ls  w i th  Guptas  na tura l i sa t ion ,  your  

appo in tment  as  M in is te r  o f  F inance .  

She dea ls  in  some deta i l  w i th  cash and benef i t s .   

There  she dea ls  w i th  wedd ing  g i f t s  and cash,  cash 

co l lec ted  f rom the  Guptas ,  she dea ls  w i th  Nz ipo  G igaba,  

she dea ls  w i th  renovat ions,  she dea ls  w i th  t he  ATM 

mach ine  tha t  she  says she saw.   Then she dea ls  w i th  the  

conf isca t ion  o f  dev ices and a  loss  o f  passpor ts .  

Now I  mean,  hav ing  read your  a f f idav i t  and read  

hers  care fu l l y  many t imes,  i t  seems to  me tha t  there  is  20 

a lmost  no th ing  tha t  you ag ree upon.   Would  tha t  be  a  fa i r  

summary?  

MR GIGABA:    Abso lu te ly  cor rec t .   There  is  no th ing  I  agree  

w i th  inso far  as  her  a f f idav i t .   Ms Gigaba approached me in  

January  th is  yea r,  I  th ink  she,  i t  must  have been the  f i rs t  
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week jus t  a f te r  the  New Year.   She  had come back f rom her  

home and she,  f rom ho l idays,  hav ing  spent  two weeks a t  

her  home and she put  to  me tha t  she wou ld  l i ke  us  to  

f ina l i se  our,  to  f ind  agreement  on  our  d ivorce  se t t lement .  

I  sa id  I  am l i s ten ing ,  i t  has  a lways been my 

w i l l i ngness tha t  we shou ld  f ind  an  amicab le  d ivorce .   She 

then made severa l  p ropos i t ions  to  me,  Cha i rperson.   The 

f i rs t  p ropos i t ion  was tha t  Mr  G igaba,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  

o f fe r  me someth ing ,  she sa id  we marr i ed  in  te rms  o f  the  

an te  nupt ia l  cont rac t  w i th  no  acc rua ls  and I  cannot  jus t  10 

wa lk  away w i thout  anyth ing ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  o f fe r  

someth ing  f inanc ia l l y.  

I  sa id  yes,  she sa id  proposa l  number  two,  I  wou ld  

l i ke  you to  w i thdraw the  case a t  the  Pre tor ia  H igh  Cour t  o r  

wherever  i t  was in  Pre tor ia  wh ich  invo l ved her  damaging a  

veh ic le  wh ich  had been len t  to  me by a  f r iend.   I  sa id  to  

her  I  am l i s ten ing .   She sa id  th i rd ly,  I  want  in  re tu rn  

th rough my a t to rneys s tay  o f  the  a t tempt  by  the  

Commiss ion  on  S ta te  Capture  to  come and to  inv i te  me to  

make ev idence,  to  submi t  ev idence,  to  submi t  an  a f f idav i t  20 

about  you.  

She sa id  then I  suggest  tha t  you ta lk  to  your  

a t to rneys to  ta lk  to  m ine fo r  such an agreement  to  be  

ar r i ved a t .   We had a  conversa t ion  there .   I  sa id  to  her  I  

cannot ,  I  cannot ,  what  i s  th is ,  w i thdraw the  case aga ins t  
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he r,  because I  am not  the  one who la id  the  charge,  I  on ly  

repor ted  the  veh ic le  to  be  damaged and made a  s ta tement  

so  tha t  we can be ab le  to  c la im  i f  the  insu rance  wou ld  

accept  tha t ,  bu t  i t  was impor tan t  fo r  me to  take  tha t  s tep  in  

o rder  to  demonst ra te  to  the  owner  o f  the  veh ic le  tha t  the  

veh ic le ,  tha t  I  d id  no t  condone the  damaging o f  h is  veh ic le .  

I  then sa id  the  Hawks are  the  ones tha t  have la id  a  

charge aga ins t  her,  no t  me.   She made me speak to  a  lady  

who is  a  pub l i c  p rosecutor  who is  her  f r iend,  who has been 

adv is ing  her  on  lega l  i ssues and th is  lady  sa id  to  me no,  10 

Mr  G igaba,  you can w i thd raw the  charge.   I  then sa id  I  w i l l  

ta lk  t  my a t to rneys and seek the i r  adv ice .  

I  sa id  on  what  to  g ive  you I  w i l l  ta lk  to  my f inanc ia l  

adv isor  so  tha t  we can f ind  someth ing .   I  sa id  to  her  I  am 

wi l l i ng  to  se t t le .   Then I  sa id  to  her  inso fa r  as  the  

Commiss ion  is  concerned i t  i s  no t  the  Commiss ion  tha t  jus t  

p icked on you,  you are  the  one who went  to  an  in te rv iew on 

ENCA and C i ty  Press and o f fe red  yourse l f  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  so  the  Commiss ion  is  respond ing  to  your  

inv i ta t ion .   You sa id  you want  to  go ,  so  i t  i s  no t  fo r  me to  20 

adv ise  you to  go  or  no t .  

She sa id  to  me,  she showed  me some SMS 

exchanges w i th  I  th ink  some o f  the  rep resenta t i ves  o f  the 

Commiss ion  and  sa id  you see,  th is  i s  a l l  what  they are  

say ing ,  bu t  I  can ta lk  to  my a t to rneys so  tha t  th is  i s  s tayed  
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o f f  and i t  does not  go  ahead.   I  sa id  tha t  i s  your  bus iness,  

bu t  inso fa r  as  an  amicab le  d ivorce  se t t lement  I  am a l l  fo r  

i t .  

So  I  then was to  ta lk  to  my a t to rneys.   The fo l low ing 

day. . .   And I  spoke to  my a t to rneys .   The fo l low ing day she  

came to  me aga in  ag i ta ted  and asked me but  why  d id  you  

say to  your  a t to rney tha t  I  had approached you,  because 

you shou ld  have  sa id  to  your  a t to rney tha t  we both  had  

agreed on th is  se t t lement  wh ich  I  was propos ing .  

I  then sa id  to  her  no ,  i t  makes no d i f fe rence,  10 

because the  ou tcome wou ld  be  the  same anyway.   We 

d iscussed some deta i l s  as  to  what  she wanted and she  

spoke about  th is  when she was here ,  wh ich  was aga in  an  

unt ru th ,  a  fa ls i f i ca t ion .  

We then,  I  sa id  to  her  i t  i s  okay,  le t  them ta lk ,  le t  

the  a t to rneys ta lk  and we w i l l  come back to  th is .   

Subsequent  to  tha t  she then went  on  C i ty  Press and made  

an in te rv iew there ,  d id  an  in te rv iew there  where  she 

c la imed tha t  I  had o f fe red  money and so  on  in  o rde r  fo r  her  

no t  to  come to  the  Commiss ion ,  I  am t ry ing  to  b r ibe  her  no t  20 

to  come to  the  Commiss ion  and I  ca l led  my a t to rneys and 

sa id  to  t hem you see,  th is  th ing  was a  t rap  i n  the  f i rs t  

ins tance,  th is  i s  what  she wanted  to  do  and so  a l l  ta lks  

w i th  her  a t to rneys on  th is  o f fe r,  we thought  we were  

d iscuss ing  based  on her  p roposa l  a re  now o f f ,  we  are  no  
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longer  ta lk ing  to  them,  we w i l l  use  the  normal  p rocedure .  

The Commiss ion  then f inds  i t se l f  in  a  pos i t ion  

where  i t  i s  be ing  used to  so l i c i t  a  d ivorce  se t t lement  that  

un for tunate l y  w i l l  obv ious l y  have to  be  engaged w i th  

th rough the  D ivo rce  Cour t  and the  d ivorce  processes.   I  

thought  tha t  background was necessary,  as  we then beg in  

to  ge t  in to  these issues,  the  10  broad top i cs ,  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  have been ident i f ied  and I  obv ious ly  s t i l l  am go ing  to  

say a  l i t t le  b i t  more  on  these issues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i f  you  cou ld  then tu rn  to  the  f i rs t  10 

top ic ,  i f  you  cou ld  go  to  page 4  o f  the  schedu le  dea l ing  

w i th  in ten t ,  the  Guptas  and v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence.   

Mr  G igaba,  I  am not  go ing  to  obv ious ly  take  you to  every  

s ing le  paragraph,  the  Cha i rperson has your  a f f idav i t ,  i t  w i l l  

a l l  be  cons idered  in  ev idence and when the  t ime comes to  

ana lyse  eve ry th ing ,  bu t  I  wanted to  s ta r t  o f f  a t  

parag raph 13 and dea l  w i th  wha t  I  th ink are  the  more  

mater ia l  i ssues.  

Ms Ngoma sa id  tha t  about  two or  th ree  months  

be fore  you were  appo in ted  to  the  pos i t ion  o f  Min is te r  o f  20 

DPE you ar r i ved  home to  te l l  her  tha t  AJ Gupta  had sa id  

tha t  you wou ld  be  mov ing  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Home 

Affa i rs  to  the  DPE and you were  very  exc i ted  about  tha t .  

Now we have seen and we know what  your  response  

is  in  a  nu tshe l l ,  i t  i s  tha t  you were  adv i sed by  the  fo rmer  
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P res ident  on  the  31 s t  o f  October  2010  tha t  you were  go ing  

to  be  appo in ted  and then you were  sworn  in  the  next  day  

as  I  unders tand i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  even though I  

th ink  tha t  the  preced ing  paragraph 12 is  a l so  impor tan t ,  

because i t  g ives  contex t  to  the  fa ls i f i ca t ions o f  the  w i tness.   

The w i tness is  an  ex tens i ve  l ia r,  she is  qu i te ,  she is  an  

accompl ished l ia r  and t r ies  to  fabr i ca te  i ssues and put  

da tes  together  in  o rder  to  make a  po in t ,  wh ich  

un for tunate l y  she  cannot  substant ia te ,  bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  10 

mat te r  i s  tha t  I  was never  adv ised,  I  was never  to ld  by  

Mr  AJ tha t  I  wou ld  be  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  and I  

cer ta in ly  never  came home exc i ted  on  the  bas i s  o f  tha t .  

The fac t  remains ,  as  I  s ta te ,  tha t  the  f i rs t  t ime I  

heard  o f  th is  was  on the  31s t .   In  ac tua l  fac t  i t  came as a  

comple te  shock to  me,  because not  even in  my w i ldest  

imag ina t ion ,  I  th ink  there  have been two appo in tments  

wh ich  surpr ised  me comple te ly,  the  f i rs t  was  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises ,  the  second was Nat iona l  Treasury,  those two  

appo in tments  surpr ised me comple te ly,  because I  had not  20 

cons idered myse l f  a  cand ida te  fo r  such appo in tments .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So you are  r igh t ,  I  mean tha t  goes  

hand in  hand w i th  what  Ms Ngoma says about  the  Guptas  

and tha t  you cons ide red them to  be  your  adv isors .   I f  you  

look a t  parag raph  14 she goes on to  say tha t  your  v i s i t s  to  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 259 of 313 
 

your  adv isors  became more  regu lar  when you were  the  

Min is te r  o f  the  DPE.  

Now do I  unders tand f rom your  ev idence,  because  

th is  i s  an  issue tha t  she dea ls  w i th  qu i te  thorough ly,  as  I  

unders tand your  ev idence Mr  G igaba,  you d id  no t  cons ide r  

the  Guptas  in  any way to  be  your  adv i sors  and you have  

to ld  the  Cha i rperson prev ious l y  and thus fa r  in  your  

ev idence tha t  you on ly  went  to  the  Guptas  on  a  few 

occas ions and tha t  was fo r  the  purposes o f  cu l tu ra l  and  

soc ia l  events ,  you never  had occas ion  to  o therwise  have a  10 

meet ing  w i th  the  Guptas  a t  a l l .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  i t  i s  t rue  and I  cer ta in l y  never  on  a  

s ing le  occas ion  even jok ing l y  re fe r red  to  them as my 

adv isors  and Mr  Msomi  was a lso  no t  my adv isor,  nor  was  

he my Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f .   He was on ly  the  Head o f  my o f f i ce  as  

the  Deputy  Min is te r  a t  the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs .   He 

on ly  became an adv isor,  I  mean he on ly  became my Ch ie f  

o f  S ta f f  in  November  2010 when I  now assumed the  ro le  o f  

fu l l  Min is te r.   So a l l  o f  th is  i s  a  fabr ica t ion  jus t  to  make,  to  

t ry  and make a  po in t  wh ich  is  o the rw ise  a  l ie .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh,  you ment ioned tha t  

Mr  G igaba had sa id  he  had been to  the  Guptas ’ res idence  

a  few t imes.   Maybe he d id  say tha t ,  and I  have not  

checked in  h is  a f f idav i t  now,  bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  when i t  

was put  to  h im what  Ms Ngoma had sa id ,  namely  tha t  i t  had 
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been more  than  20 t imes,  he  was re luc tan t  to ,  tha t  i s  

Mr  G igaba,  he  was re luc tan t  to  say  how many t imes,  bu t  he  

d id  say i t  was no t  more  than 20 t imes,  so  I  am jus t  say ing ,  

and I  say  he  agrees,  bu t  I  do  no t  know whether  he  no ted 

tha t  par t  about  few.   Maybe -  I  jus t  want  to  make su re  tha t  

we get  i t  r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  you r  reco l lec t ion  is  

cor rec t .   You w i l l  remember  tha t  when I  s ta r ted  quest ion ing  

and lead ing  Mr  G igaba ’s  ev idence I  asked h im about  h is  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas  and  how many t ime  he had  10 

gone to  Saxonwold .   That  was outs ide  o f  the  contex t  o f  the  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps I  cou ld  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  

Mr  G igaba,  pe rhaps you can jus t  re f resh ou r  memory.   I  

mean,  I  have no tes  o f  what  you sa id  and tha t  i s  what  I  

reca l l  i s  tha t  you say you went  the re  on  soc ia l  and cu l tu ra l  

events .   You ment ion ,  fo r  example ,  D iwa l i  and sa id  we l l ,  

a f te r  a l l ,  the  food was good and,  as  I  had i t ,  you  v is i ted  

there  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry  to  d is tu rb  you,  Mr  Myburgh,  

Mr  G igaba is  f rom KZN.   So I  suspect  tha t  the  food tha t  he  

says was good may have been cur ry.   P lease cont inue,  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  I  do  no t  –  I  th ink  I  m ight  have 
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been p ress ing  you unfa i r l y  fo r  an  ac tua l  number  bu t  I  mean 

perhaps you can  re f resh our  memory.   Have you got  a  

sense o f  how – I  th ink  I  asked you  how o f ten  you wou ld  go  

there  each year,  e tce te ra ,  and you  were  no t  ab le  to  g ive  us  

an  exact  o r  even approx imate  number,  I  do  no t  th ink .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  was not  ab le  to  g ive  you an 

exact  number  o f  t imes and I  do  no t  know th is  20  t imes a t  

leas t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  an  es t imate .  

MR GIGABA:    The es t imate ,  yes .   I  am s t i l l  no t  ab le  to  10 

g ive  you the  es t imate ,  I  wou ld  need to  th ink  ha rd  and t ry  to  

reco l lec t  yea r  to  year  fo r  me to  ar r i ve  a t  tha t  es t imate ,  

es t imated number  bu t ,  you know,  the  number  o f  20  t imes 

d isputes  tha t  200.   The t r ip  to  I nd ia  i n  2010 to  d iscuss 

issues about  SAA which  on ly  became top ica l  fo r  me in  2011 

or  2012 and then  the  sudden change o f  the  da tes  to  2015 

based on my a f f idav i t  and ye t  the  agenda  o f  the  t r ip  in  

2015 remains  the  same,  to  d iscuss SAA even when I  had  

moved to  Home Affa i rs .   These a re  a l l  –  th i s  shou ld  a l l  be  

cons idered as  pa r t  o f  somebody who is  fabr ica t ing .   I  mean  20 

take  –  th ink  about  th is ,  she does not  say  th is  20  t imes 

s t re tched between what  t ime and what  t ime and does not  

say  tha t  owing 200 su i ts  bas i ca l l y  makes you a  depar tment  

s to re ,  even i f  those su i t s  a re  100.   I  took  a  b i t  o f  t ime to 

look  a t  some o f  the  shops tha t  se l l  su i t s  and s tu f f  and they  
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do  no t  have 100 su i ts  in  the i r  shops,  bu t  I  am supposed to  

have between 100 and 200 and I  do  no t  run  a  depar tment  

s to re .    

 So I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  has to  take  i n to  

cons idera t ion  tha t  these are  l ies  and the  Commiss ion  was  

be ing  taken fo r  a  r ide  by  somebody how had  a  so le  

in ten t ion  to  come here  and l ie .   So I  am say ing  rea l l y  

concre te l y  on  the  issue o f  the  v is i t s ,  I  s t i l l  re i te ra te  what  I  

had sa id .   They  were  soc ia l  and  cu l tu ra l  v i s i t s ,  I  do  no t  

have reason to  d iscuss bus iness  w i th  any fami ly  and – 10 

we l l ,  espec ia l l y  no t  w i th  the  Guptas ,  I  d id  no t ,  and i f  any  

bus iness pe rson had sought  to  d iscuss bus iness w i th  me 

wh i le  I  was m in is te r  I  wou ld  have re fe r red  to  the 

depar tment  o r  a  re levant  en t i t y  and sa id  to  them do not  

d iscuss th is  w i th  me,  go  d iscuss i t  w i th  those because they  

probab ly  know what  i s  go ing  on  w i th  regards to  tha t  

because I  was not  in  bus iness  and I  s t i l l  am not  in  

bus iness r igh t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  do  you say to  the  propos i t ion  

tha t  the  number  o f  v is i t s  cou ld  no t  have been  too  few 20 

because i f  they  had been too  few i t  wou ld  be  easy to  

remember  or  a t  leas t  to  make an es t imate  whether  one is  

ta lk ing  about  f i ve  or  s ix  as  opposed to  20  –  ac tua l l y  she  

sa id  more  than 20 and tha t  i t  must  mean tha t  the re  more  

than a  few i f  you cannot  remember.    
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MR GIGABA:    They were  more  than a  few,  Cha i rpe rson,  

because you a re  ta lk ing  about  a  per iod  s t re t ch ing  be tween  

the  f i rs t  t ime I  knew them when I  was Pres ident  o f  the  ANC 

Youth  League to  probab ly  a round 2013/2014 when I  coo led  

down because I  was concerned about  namedropp ing  and  

o ther  such issues .   They were  no t  too  few but  I  do  no t  th ink  

we a l so  need to  exaggera te  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  o f  course ,  the  o ther  –  you have  

jus t  repeated someth ing  you sa id  ear l ie r  on  wh ich  I  th ink  a t  

leas t  seems to  co inc ide  w i th  par t  o f  what  she says,  namely,  10 

as  I  reca l l ,  she  sa id  f rom a  cer ta in  t ime and I  th ink  she  

may have ta lked  about  2014,  your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them 

s tar ted  coo l ing  o f f  and you were  no  longer  so  c lose  to  them 

and I  th ink  she went  fu r ther  to  say  you wou ld  no t  take  A jay  

Guptas  ca l l s  somet imes but  I  want  to  conf ine  myse l f  to  the 

coo l ing  o f f  o f  the  re la t ionsh ips  because I  th ink  two t imes  

you have a lso  sa id  the  same th ing  so  I  guess a t  least  tha t  

par t  o f  what  she  sa id  maybe you  are  no t  d isput ing  tha t  

f rom a  ce r ta in  s tage in  2014 whatever  re la t ionsh ip  you may 

have had w i th  them,  s ta r ted  coo l ing  o f f .  20 

MR GIGABA:    That  i s  t rue ,  Cha i rperson,  and I  d id  say las t  

week tha t  i t  happens w i th  a l l  acqua in tances and 

f r iendsh ips  tha t  a t  a  cer ta in  po in t ,  you know,  the i r  na ture  

changes,  the i r  fo rm changes and th is  happened too  though  

i t  wou ld  s t r i ke  me as surpr i s ing  tha t  i f  somebody ca l l s  me  
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then somebody wou ld  know tha t  i t  i s  so  and so  who is  

ca l l ing  and you a re  no t  p ick ing  up  the i r  ca l l  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  

i s  a  sub jec t  fo r  another  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   And ta lk ing  about  20  t imes o f  

course  I  th ink  she may have spoken on the  bas is  o f  

s ta r t ing  f rom 2011,  I  am not  sure ,  2011,  I  am not  sure ,  

maybe I  am connect ing  tha t  –  I  do  no t  know when the  two 

o f  you s ta r ted  l i v ing  together  bu t  I  have an impress ion  tha t  

whatever  v is i t s  she was ta lk ing  about  were  no t  ear l ie r  than  

2011 but  maybe  they were .   But  i f  one is  ta lk ing  about  10 

s ta r t ing  f rom 2011 go ing  to  2014,  tha t  i s  what ,  th ree  years?   

Three years  depend ing  on whether  you s ta r t  in  the  m idd le  

o f  2011 or  whatever,  so  tha t  m ight  be  an  average o f  f i ve  

t imes a  year.   Does tha t  sound too  many to  you?  So when 

one says 20  i t  looks  h igh  bu t  i f  you  look a t  how many t imes  

a  year  on  average,  maybe i t  m igh t  no t  look  tha t  h igh .   What  

i s  your  sense?  

MR GIGABA:    Look,  i t  cou ld  be  poss ib le ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i t  

cou ld  be  poss ib le  i f  you  look a t  i t  tha t  way but  I  th ink  i t  i s  

an  unnecessary  and perhaps pedant ic  d iscuss ion ,  so  to  20 

say,  because wha t  I  have not  d ispu ted is  tha t  I  knew them,  

tha t  I  d id  v is i t  them and they never  v is i ted  me a t  home and  

tha t  I  met  them not  on ly  a t  the i r  res idence but  a lso  a t  

var ious o ther  funct ions be  i t  s ta te  funct ions,  s ta te  d inners  

or  maybe a t tend ing  New Age SABC breakfas t  p rog rammes 
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where  I  was e i ther  p resent ing  o r  I  was suppor t ing  the  

person or  peop le  tha t  were  presen t ing .   In  th is  case,  there  

wou ld  have been one or  two ins tances where  the  Pres ident  

was inv i ted .   I  th ink  there  was one t ime he was do ing  the  

SABC New Age Breakfas t  P rogramme.   We were  in  Por t  

E l i zabeth  to  open someth ing  in  PE.   I t  was qu i te  a  major  

p ro jec t  fo r  Transnet  and the  Pres ident  came to  ta lk  about  

tha t ,  ou t l ine  i t ,  I  was the re  to  suppor t  h im and to  ou t l ine  

because some o f  the  quest ions tha t  the  aud ience  wou ld  

ask ,  the  Pres ident  wou ld  no t  be  aware  o f  them and there  10 

wou ld  be  ins tances where  in  2014  I  suppor ted  the  top  s i x  

o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  ANC in  Ne lsp ru i t  a f te r  the  January  8 t h  ra l l y  

o f  the  ANC and we were  launch ing  the  man i fes to  o f  the 

ANC for  the  2014 genera l  e lec t ions and as  someone who  

was head ing  the  e lec t ion  campaign a t  the  t ime I  was there  

w i th  var ious o ther  members  o f  the  Nat iona l  Execut ive  

Commi t tee  to  suppor t  the  o f f i c ia ls  as  they were  lead ing  a  

presenta t ion  and my reco l lec t ion  serves me we l l ,  there  was  

a  quest ion  wh ich  was asked to  wh ich  I  responded but  they  

were  there  a lso ,  so  I  wou ld  have met  them a t  var ious 20 

funct ions.   I f  you  ta lk  about  those  var ious o ther  ac t i v i t ies ,  

as  shown,  you wou ld  ta lk  about  a  number  exceed ing  20,  

l i ke  many o ther  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  c la r i f y  
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someth ing .   Ms Mngoma’s  ev idence was tha t  she went  w i th  

Mr  G igaba approx imate ly  20  t imes herse l f  to  the  Saxonwold  

compound.   She d id  no t  suggest  tha t  Mr  G igaba on ly  went  

there  20  t imes and tha t  i s  the  top ic  tha t  I  want  to  come to  

know and pe rhaps you can go to  paragraph 16,  Mr  G igaba,  

because …[ in tervenes]  

MR GIGABA:    And pe rhaps,  Cha i rpe rson,  i f  we may say,  

she says tha t  tha t  s ta r ted  in  2009.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

MR GIGABA:    She says i t  s ta r ted  in  2009.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    When I  s t i l l  on ly  knew her  and we were  no t  

in  a  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So I  jus t  wanted to  ge t  you r  

comment  on  th is  because I  th ink  th is  i s  the  sor t  o f  h igh  

wate r  mark  o f  her  ev idence,  Mr  G igaba.   I t  pa in ts  the 

p ic tu re  o f  what  she says and I  know you have a  d i f fe ren t  

v iew but  I  need to  ge t  your  comment  on  th is ,  she wou ld  say  

tha t :  20 

“Dur ing  the  t ime o f  s i t t ings  o f  par l iament  Mr  G igaba 

wou ld  usua l l y  f l y  down to  Cape Town on the  Monday  

even ing  or  Tuesday morn ing  to  a t tend pa r l iamen t ,  

re tu rn  home on Thursday even ing  or  Fr iday 

morn ing .   Dur ing  th is  t ime he wou ld  in fo rm me o f  
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h is  v is i t s  to  the  Guptas  on  the  Mondays preced ing  

h is  t r ip  to  pa r l iament  and on the  Fr iday even ings or  

somet imes Satu rday fo l low ing h is  re tu rn  f rom 

par l iament .   When par l iament  was in  recess the  

meet ings took p lace on any day o f  the  week  

fo l low ing rece ip t  o f  the  te lephone ca l l .   I  unders tand  

tha t  i t  was usua l l y  Mr  A jay  Gupta  who wou ld  phone  

h im. ”  

So the  p ic tu re  t ha t  she pa in ts  o r  the  vers ion  tha t  she 

advances,  wh ich  I  wou ld  ask  you  to  comment  on ,  i s  tha t  10 

you l i te ra l l y  f requented the  Gupta  res idence on an ongo ing  

bas is  regu lar ly .  

MR GIGABA:    Le t  us  go  in to  th is  log ic  be fore  Cha i rman 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe before  you proceed p lease do not  

fo rge t  your  answer  –  do  not  fo rge t  your  quest ion .   I  see ,  Mr  

Myburgh in  parag raph 17 on page 8  o f  the  same memo tha t  

she says:  

“ I  f i rs t  met  h is  adv i sers  and learn t  o f  the i r  ident i t y  

dur ing  2011. ”  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am go ing  back to  2009.   I  thought  

you sa id  she sa id  2009.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  my co l league has 

po in ted  out  to  me tha t  Ms Gigaba ’s  ev idence was tha t  she  
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s ta r ted  f requent ing  the  Gupta  res idence f rom 2011 

onwards,  as  I  unders tand the  tes t imony and tha t  there  was 

then th is  coo l ing  o f f  in  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  somebody must  jus t  doub le-check 

because in  th is  paragraph 17 says :  

“ I  f i rs t  met  h is  adv isers…”  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    “…in  2011 or  dur ing  2011. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  somebody can check  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am actua l l y  go ing  to  come to tha t  

parag raph in  a  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  we can cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  G igaba,  I  jus t  wanted to  g ive  you  

an oppor tun i ty  t o  look  a t  th is  f rom sor t  o f  an  ove ra l l  

perspect ive  and comment  on  the  degree to  wh ich  she says 

you went  there ,  leav ing  as ide  the  a l leged v is i t s  where  you  

accompanied he re .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.   Yes,  thank  you,  Cha i rperson,  I  was  20 

s t i l l  respond ing  to  tha t .   I f  you  cons ider  tha t  a  year  has 52  

weeks and I  were  to  go  to  the  Gup tas  every  Monday,  so  i t  

means tha t  each year  I  went  there  52  t imes but  i t  was not  

on ly  the  Mondays,  there  wou ld  a l so  be ,  as  she suggests ,  

Fr iday even ings  or  somet imes  Saturdays and when  
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par l iament  was in  recess the  meet ings took p lace  on any 

day.   A l ready in  one year  she has exceeded her  own 20 

tha t  she out l ine  i n  her  p rev ious s ta tement .   Th is  cannot  be  

cor rec t ,  i t  i s  abso lu te ly  r id i cu lous .   Jus t  mathemat ica l l y  i t  

does not  make sense.    

 Mr  Cha i rperson,  be tween 2012 and 2017 I  was a  

member  o f  the  Na t iona l  Work ing  Commi t tee  o f  the  ANC and 

every  fo r tn igh t  we wou ld  have meet ings o f  the  Nat iona l  

Work ing  Commi t tee ,  they usua l l y  wou ld  las t  un t i l  s ix ,  

seven,  e igh t  o r  even a t  n igh t .    10 

Now,  f rom there  I  wou ld  come home.   A t  6  a .m.  on  

Tuesday I  wou ld  f l y  to  Cape Town i f  pa r l iament  was in  

sess ion  because there  wou ld  have  been – there  wou ld  be  

meet ings o f  the  government  ad  admin i s t ra t ion  cab ine t  

commi t tee  wh ich  s ta r ted  a t  ha l f  past  e igh t .   So you  wou ld  

f l y ,  take  a  s i x  o ’c lock  f l igh t  to  land a t  e igh t  and hur ry  

th rough t ra f f i c  to  ge t  to  Cape Town.    

On the  Mondays  when we were  no t  in  the  NWC,  

every  Monday is  cons idered by  the  ANC as an  ANC day but  

o f  course  somet imes min is te rs  because o f  the  pressure  o f  20 

work ,  do  government  work ,  f in ish  la te  and tha t  i s  when on  

those Mondays we wou ld  be  ho ld ing  meet ings o f  the  – what  

do  you ca l l  i t ,  the  m in is te rs ’  management  commi t tee  

meet ings bu t  tha t  i s  when the  m in i s te r  -  I  wou ld  meet  w i th  

the  top  o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  depar tment  and the  deputy  m in is te r .   
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Those meet ings usua l l y  take  p lace the  who le  day.    

By  the  t ime they  are  f in ished in  the  even ings,  you  

are  t i red ,  you wou ld  look a t  a  who le  range o f  th ings,  you  

wou ld  go  home,  you prepare  to  go  to  Cape Town and  

depend ing  on what  i s  happen ing  in  Cape Town the  

fo l low ing day you  t ry  to  squeeze in  the  la te  f l igh t  to  Cape 

Town so  tha t  you ar r i ve  in  Cape Town the  n igh t  be fo re ,  you 

s leep over  and you a re  ea r ly  in  par l iament  the  fo l low ing 

day fo r  your  ac t i v i t ies .  

 The Pres idents ,  a l l  o f  them,  do  not  take  k ind ly  t o  10 

m in is te rs  e i ther  a r r i v ing  la te  to  cab ine t  and cab ine t  

commi t tee  meet ings or  be ing  absent  w i thout  a  reason so  

a l ready th is  i s  i r ra t iona l  because 52 t imes,  52  v is i t s ,  a  v is i t  

to  one fami ly  every  Monday is  i r ra t iona l  and cannot  be  

jus t i f ied  by  anyth ing  imag inab ly  in  te rms o f  your  

p rogramme.  

 Cou ld  i t  be  tha t  you went  the re  on  Fr iday even ings  

or  even somet imes on Satu rdays  bu t  these – by  Fr iday,  

these are  weekends tha t  a re  reserved fo r  –  these a re  days  

reserved fo r  po l i t i ca l  work ,  w i th  dep loyment  in  p rov inces  20 

and I  a lways have argued tha t  I  have got  a  young fami ly  

and when I  have been away f rom my ch i ld ren  f rom home,  I  

wou ld  want  to  squeeze in  every  l i t t le  t ime I  have to  spend  

w i th  my k ids ,  p lay  w i th  them,  be  there  fo r  them and 

par t i c i pa te  in  the i r  l i ves .  
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 On Satu rdays I  wou ld  be  out  do ing  ANC work  and 

so  th is  pa ragraph ,  paragraph 16 is  absurd  and is  no t  t rue ,  

i t  i s  no t  t rue  a t  a l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you then,  le t  us  dea l  

w i th  …[ in tervenes]  

MR GIGABA:    And sor ry ,  Cha i r ,  as  I  say  in  my response,  i t  

beggars  be l ie f  tha t  every  t ime I  had to  go  to  pa r l iament  I  

wou ld  f i rs t  rush  to  meet  the  Gup tas  and repor t  back to  

them on my re tu rn .   For  what?   Who does tha t?    

You know,  jus t  even a t  a  log ica l  leve l ,  you know,  10 

nobody does tha t .   Now because I  am go ing  to  Cape Town 

le t  me rush to  repor t  to  the  Guptas  tha t  I  am go ing  to  Cape 

Town.   When I  re tu rn  f rom Cape Town I  rush  back to  repor t  

to  them tha t  I  am back f rom Cape Town and th is  i s  what  

happened.   I f  th is  happens eve ry  Monday,  i t  i s  a l ready 52 – 

i t  i s  52  t imes a  year .   I f  i t  happens on Thursdays and 

Fr idays as  we l l ,  i t  i s  now 104 t imes .   I t  i s  r id icu lous.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  what  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  

parag raph 17 is  the  a l legat ion  tha t  you took your  son  

together  w i th  Ms  Mngoma to  be  i n t roduced to  the  Guptas  20 

and a lso  tha t  he  was g i f ted  a  go ld  jewe l le ry  neck lace.   As  I  

unders tand your  vers ion ,  do  we accept  tha t  your  son was 

g i f ted  a  go ld  jewe l le ry  neck lace but  you say you d id  no t  

take  h im there  to  meet  the  Guptas  togethe r  w i th  Ms  

Mngoma,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR GIGABA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  take  you  back to  the  number  o f  

v is i t s  jus t  to  ge t  –  to  see i f  th is  wou ld  do .   A l though you  

are  no t  ab le  to  i nd ica te  about  how many t imes you have 

been to  the  Gupta  res idence,  a re  you ab le  to  say  I  have 

never the less  been there  severa l  t imes,  I  jus t  do  no t  know 

how many t imes.   I s  tha t  –  wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say  severa l  

t imes or  wou ld  i t  no t  be  fa i r?  

MR GIGABA:    Severa l  t imes,  Cha i rperson,  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  i t  means more  than once,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we l l  tw ice  cannot  be  severa l  t imes,  I  

th ink .  

MR GIGABA:    What  does tha t  mean?  What  does severa l  

mean?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  th ink  I  have an exact  number  

bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  once is  severa l  t imes,  tw ice  is  severa l  

t imes but  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  severa l  t imes shou ld  no t  be  

less  than four  and may we l l  be  much more  than tha t  bu t  

maybe not  20  and maybe not  15 ,  maybe tha t  i s  too  much  

but  I  jus t  go t  the  maybe a  way o f  g iv ing  a  p ic tu re  tha t  you 20 

wou ld  be  comfo r tab le  w i th  to  say look,  I  cannot  –  I  am 

say ing  no t  more  than 20 t imes bu t  I  am not  say ing  i t  was  

th ree  t imes but  maybe i t  was –  i f  one says severa l  t imes 

then the re  m ight  be  d isputes  about  how many t imes but  I  

wou ld  no t  quar re l  i f  somebody says I  have been there  
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seve ra l  t imes.  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink ,  Cha i rperson,  I  have  a l ready  

somewhat  agreed w i th  the  Cha i rperson ’s  ear l ie r  vers ion  

tha t  no ,  i t  cou ld  be  f i ve  t imes a  year,  then you add i t  up  

over  a  per iod ,  i t  amounted to… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    So severa l  t imes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:    Because what  I  do  no t  d ispute  i s  tha t  I  

knew them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  you went  there .  

MR GIGABA:    And I  went  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:    That  I  do  no t  d ispu te ,  tha t  i s  a  fac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  th ink  the  fundamenta l  

d i f fe rence,  apar t  f rom the  numbers  i s  a lso  the  

character i sa t ion  o f  the  meet ings.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  G igaba ’s  vers ion  is  tha t  when you  20 

went  there  i t  wou ld  be  fo r  soc ia l  and cu l tu ra l  events ,  you  

d id  no t  go  there  to  have so-ca l led  “bus iness meet ings” .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You never  had any such meet ing .  

MR GIGABA:    No,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  soc ia l  par t ,  I  wanted  to  ask  

about  tha t ,  to  me  i t  gave me the  impress ion  tha t  you were  

go ing  to  soc ia l i se .   I s  tha t  a  cor rec t  mean ing ,  the  soc ia l  

par t?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  cor rec t  mean ing?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then a t  parag raph 18 the  a l legat ion  

is  a lso  made by  Ms Mngoma tha t  your  second son,  you a lso  10 

v is i ted  the  Guptas  together  w i th  h im.   That  I  unders tand  

you a lso  deny.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  no ,  I  d id  no t  v is i t  the  res idence w i th  

the  second son.   No,  I  d id  no t  v is i t  the  ch i ld  w i th  them – I  

d id  no t  v i s i t  them wi th  the  ch i ld .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you accept  tha t  your  f i rs t  son 

was g i f ted  w i th  a  go ld  jewe l le ry  neck lace?  

MR GIGABA:    When a  ch i ld  i s  bo rn ,  Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  

know about  o ther  cu l tu res ,  when a  ch i ld  i s  born ,  i f  a  f r iend 

o f  my says hey,  I  have got  a  ch i ld ,  I  wou ld  br ing  a  g i f t .   20 

Cou ld  be  a  wash ing  bas in  w i th  ba th  towe ls  fo r  the  baby,  

ba th  o i l s  fo r  the  baby,  a  number  o f  th ings,  and so  when our  

ch i ld  was bo rn ,  they gave h im a  g i f t  o f  a  neck lace and as  

par t  o f  many o the r  g i f t s  tha t  the  ch i ld  rece ived and I  took  i t  

in  tha t  l igh t ,  I  d id  no t  th ink  i t  was on the i r  pa r t  any ac t  to  
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so l i c i t  any th ing .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And your  second ch i ld  was not  g iven  

any g i f t  by  the  Guptas?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  he  was not  and I  d id  no t  ask  them why  

because natu ra l l y  i t  i s  rude to  ask  a  person why  are  you 

not  g iv ing  my o ther  ch i ld  a  g i f t?   I f  they  want  to  g ive  a  g i f t ,  

they  g i ve  a  g i f t ,  i f  they  do  not  want  to ,  they do  not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  wanted  to  say tha t   -  ta lk ing  

about  newly  born  baby or  ch i ld  be ing  g iven g i f t s ,  I  know 

tha t  cer ta in ly  among amaZulu  there  is  even pa r t i cu la r  te rm 10 

fo r  i t ,  you  cannot  –  t rad i t iona l l y  you cannot  see new ly  born  

ch i ld  o r  baby w i thout  g iven h im or  her  someth ing .   There  is  

a  spec i f i c  fo r  i t  and i t  i s  on ly  in  the  Zu lu  language,  you  

on ly  use i t  fo r  the  ch i ld ,  fo r  g iv ing  the  ch i ld  the  present .  

MR GIGABA:    Ukukhunga.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ukukhunga .   Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  now you 

know i t ,  so  there  is  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  how d id  i t  come 

about  tha t  they gave you th is  g i f t?  

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  unders tand the  quest ion .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  d id  you go to  Saxonwold  to  

rece ive  i t ,  d id  they come to  your  o f f i ce?   I  mean,  you have  

ment ioned to  us ,  as  you say,  tha t  i f  a  f r iend o f  yours  has a  

ch i ld ,  i t  cou ld  be  a  range o f  g i f t s  tha t  you might  g i ve  tha t  

person.   Can you reca l l  how th is  g i f t  was handed  over?   
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Where  i t  was handed over?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  was handed over  to  me a t  the i r  res idence.   

I t  i s  jus t  a  go ld  neck lace,  no th ing  fancy about  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  was th is  on  occas ion  where  you 

went  to  the i r  res idence fo r  a  soc ia l  o f  cu l tu ra l  funct i on?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  one o f  those occas ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   And what  became o f  tha t  go ld  

neck lace?  

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  know,  Cha i rperson,  what  

happened –  what  became o f  the  go ld  neck lace.   I  las t  saw 10 

i t  a  coup le  o f  yea rs  ago.   I  have not  seen i t  s ince  then and 

the  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  the  neck lace is  tha t  i t  i s  a lso  ve ry  easy  

to  lose  espec ia l l y  because I  do  no t  wear  neck laces –  I  do  

no t  l i ke  go ld  a r te fac ts  on  me,  so  I  d id  no t  use  i t ,  so  I  do  

no t  exact ly  know what  happened o f  the  neck lace.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now Ms Mngoma then goes  on to  

dea l  w i th  the  Sun C i ty  wedd ing .   You,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

accept  tha t  you a t tended tha t  wedd ing?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She g i ves a  vers ion  about  the  fac t  20 

tha t  there  were  some sor t  o f  med ia  hype and tha t  had 

caused you to  leave the  wedd ing  and not  s tay  there  

overn igh t .   Do I  unders tand your  vers ion  cor rec t l y  tha t  your  

in ten t ion  was never  to  s tay  overn igh t  a t  Sun C i ty?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  and the  Commiss ion  
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must  bear  in  m ind,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  Ms Mngoma’s  vers ion  

o f  th is  wedd ing  changed s ign i f i can t ly  over  t ime f rom me 

tak ing  her  –  she  c la ims tha t  I  –  she met  persons tha t  I  

ident i f ied  as  members  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  f rom Ind ia  one  

or  two days be fo re  the  wedd ing  and then she says I  to ld  

her  tha t  I  needed  to  ass is t  h im by  we lcoming and fe tch ing  

some o f  the i r  guests  a t  the  Waterk loo f  A i r  Force  base who 

were  ar r i v ing  f rom Ind ia  wh ich  I  don ’ t  know when  i t  says  

here  wh ich  I  d id ,  bu t  I  d id  no t  and then she says I  le f t  her  

to  s i t  ins ide  the  bu i ld ing  wh i le  she met  w i th  the  Gupta ’s .    10 

Th is  i s  a  very  confus ing  s ta tement  so  –  bu t  I  p resume she  

is  suggest ing  tha t  she –  I  le f t  her  I  do  no t  know where ,  to  

go  ins ide  the  bu i ld ing ,  th is  i s  two or  th ree  or  one  or  two 

days be fo re  the  wedd ing  a t  Sun C i ty,  th is  i s  a  l ie .   I t  i s  a  

comple te  l ie .   There  was no such meet ing .   

I  was never  a t  Waterk loo f  e igh t  days to  rece ive  the  

a i rc ra f t .  I  saw the  a i rc ra f t  land ing  on TV as everybody e lse  

I  was as  a  gust  as  eve rybody was when we saw th i s  and no  

repor t  f rom government ,  o r  anybody who was invo lved in  

th is  inc ident  p laces me a t  the  scene o f  the  ar r i va l  o f  th is  20 

a i rc ra f t  on  the  da te  tha t  i t  a r r i ved.   Why does she make 

such l ies?   

Or  pu t  d i f fe ren t ly,  who made he r  to  make such l ies ,  

i s  to  t ry  to  imp l ica te  me in  someth ing  in  wh ich  I  was 

obv ious ly  no t  invo lved.   As  I  say  i n  my response,  I  on ly  l e f t  
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here  we le f t  -  I  th ink  in  the  a f te rnoon to  go  to  the  wedd ing .  

The wedd ing  had  s tar ted  ear l ie r  I  was busy in  the  morn ing .  

I  went  there  to  the  wedd ing ,  I  a r r i ved when the re  were  now 

per fo rmances and I  th ink  i t  was the  recept ion .   

We sa t  fo r  the  recept ion .  The recept ion  f in ished,  

there  was d inner  and I  sa id  le t  us  l eave and we le f t .   There  

were  o ther  Min i s te rs  tha t  were  there  I  th ink  one  or  two 

s lep t  ove r  there  bu t  inso far  as  I  Ma lus i  and concerned,  I  

d id  no t  s leep the re ,  I  on ly  a r r i ved  in  the  a f te rnoon  in  t ime 

fo r  the  recept ion  and le f t  immedia te ly  a f te r  the  recept ion  10 

so  tha t  we were  back in  t ime in  Pre tor ia  because I  th ink ,  i f  

I  am not  m is taken ,  I  was t rave l l ing  the  fo l low ing morn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  ask  you to  have a  

look a t  parag raph  51,  so  tha t  i s  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide  th is  

i s  I  th ink  on  page  11 o f  the  schedu le .   Where  you say:  

“ I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t…[ in tervene]  

MR GIGABA:   Paragraph 51?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    51 o f  your  response.   So i t  i s  jus t  

the  next  page.   

MR GIGABA:   Okay oh,  sor ry,  sor ry.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 11.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   I  thought  th is  i s  qu i te  an  impor tan t  

s ta tement  by  you.   You say:  

“ I  d id  no t  be l ieve  tha t  Nomachu le  met  the  Gupta ’s  
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more  than -  on  more  than four  occas ions when we 

a t tended soc ia l  func t ions such as  the  Sun C i ty  

wedd ing ,  D iwa l i  ce lebra t ions,  and a  cu l tu ra l  

luncheon a t  the i r  inv i ta t ion . ”  

I s  tha t  as  you have i t ,  you  s tand by  tha t  s ta tement?  

MR GIGABA:   I  s tand by  th i s  s ta tement ;  i t  i s  my  

reco l lec t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So,  the  Sun C i ty  wedd ing  you have 

spoken about .   You say tha t  she accompanied you  on ly  to  

one D iwa l i  ce lebra t ion ,  maybe one or  two and  then a  10 

cu l tu ra l  lunch ing .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes,  the  one D iwa l i  ce lebra t ion ,  I  th ink ,  

ended up a t  Lenas ia  w i th  some f i reworks  and there  wou ld  

probab ly  be  one  more  and there  was a  cu l tu ra l  luncheon 

tha t  we a t tended together  w i th  her.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So tha t  i s  as  you have  i t ,  four  

occas ions.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes,  i t  cou ld  be  more  Cha i rperson but  these  

are  the  inc idents  wh ich  I  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then,  as  you know,  f rom paragraph 20 

22 onwards.  

MR GIGABA:   Paragraph 22?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   

MR GIGABA:   Okay,  i t  ge ts  a  b i t  confus ing  Cha i r,  because 

we move f rom paragraph 21 to  paragraph -  when  I  t ry  to  
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f ind  paragraph 51 on page 29 on ly  to  f ind  tha t  i t  i s  my 

paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  a  lo t  less  confus ing  though i f  we 

had -  i f  we went  f rom one f i le  to  the  o ther,  bu t  le t  me t ry  

and be as  c lea r  as  I  can.   So f rom paragraph 22 onwards,  

Ms Mngoma dea ls  w i th  the  p rocedure  tha t  wou ld  be  

fo l lowed when she a t tended the  Gupta  res idence together  

w i th  you and she dea ls  w i th  the  fac t  and perhaps I  jus t  

wanted you to  comment  on  th is ,  tha t  she or  a l l  peop le  were  10 

made to  tu rn  in  the i r  ce l l  phones,  what  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:   Mr Cha i rperson aga in ,  you know,  so  jus t  

look  a t  the  sequence o f  events .   So you must  subm i t  your  

ce l l  phone because the  meet ing  is  –  there  is  go ing  to  be  a  

sens i t i ve  meet ing  and then somebody comes and out l ines  

the  agenda o f  th is  sens i t i ve  meet ing ,  fo r  wh ich  you  had to  

leave your  phone  outs ide ,  because  the  meet ing  is  sens i t i ve  

and then she gets  le f t  ou t  o f  tha t  meet ing .   

That  the  agenda o f  wh ich  she now knows,  and then  

she can then go fe tch  he r  ce l l  phone because she is  bored,  20 

and come back to  s i t  w i th  i t  and p lay  w i th  i t .   Aga in ,  i t  i s  

absurd .   I f  the  meet ing  was sens i t i ve ,  she wou ld  no t  even  

be to ld ,  she wou ld  no t  even be there  fo r  the  ou t l in ing  o f  

the  agenda o f  the  meet ing .   

I f  she  was to ld  to  leave her  phone outs ide ,  she  
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wou ld  no t  be  a l lowed to  go  fe tch  i t  bu t  where  d id  she leave 

the  phone,  who kept  i t?   Who adv ised –  who wro te  th is?   

Because c lea r ly,  i t  i s  no t  her,  somebody wro te  th i s  th ing  

and coached her  on  how to  t ry  and  put  th is  th ing  in  such a  

manner  tha t  i t  makes sense but  un for tunate l y  i t  does not  

make sense because she c la ims a  sequence  tha t  i s  

i r ra t iona l .   

Leave your  phone the  meet ing  is  sens i t i ve  bu t  you  

get  b r i e fed  abou t  the  agenda o f  the  sens i t i ve  meet ing  in  

wh ich  you w i l l  no t  par t i c ipa te  and then you are  a l lowed to  10 

fe tch  your  phone aga in  subsequent ly,  because you a re  now 

bored.   But  i f  you  were  to ld  to  leave the  phone outs ide ,  

why are  you a l lowed to  fe tch  i t?   I f  you  are  no t  coming -  i f  

you  are  no t  par t  o f  the  sens i t i ve  meet ing ,  why do you leave 

your  phone outs ide  and where  is  ou ts ide  and who is  

keep ing  your  phone?   I  am say ing  Cha i rperson th is  th ing  is  

i r ra t iona l ,  i t  i s  no t  t rue .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  two th ings  to  be  fa i r  to  he r.   One,  I  

d id  no t  unders tand her  to  be  say ing  tha t  the  br ie f ing  tha t  

happens in  her  p resence was pa r t  o f  tha t  pa t te rn ,  I  may 20 

have misunders tood.   I  go t  the  impress ion  tha t  she sa id  

maybe on some occas ions or  on  one occas ion ,  tha t  i s  what  

happened.   

 But  a lso ,  I  need  to  say to  you,  my reco l lec t ion  is  

tha t  a  number  o f  w i tnesses who say they have been  to  the  
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Gupta  res idence ,  gave ev idence  to  the  fac t  tha t  upon  

ar r i va l  there ,  they were  asked  to  handover  the i r  ce l l  

phones.   So I  have not  checked who and who but  I  -  in  my 

mind,  I  th ink  Mr  Jonas may have  sa id  so ,  I  do  no t  know 

how many but  I  th ink  the re  are  a  number  who may have 

g iven tha t  ev idence as  we l l .   So  I  jus t  ment ioned tha t  fo r  

what  i t  i s  wor th .  

MR GIGABA:   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  say  Cha i rperson in  the  l igh t  

o f  tha t  the  –  i t  i s  there fo re  poss ib le  tha t  she was rehash ing  

someth ing  she had heard  f rom o ther  w i tnesses because in  10 

my reco l lec t ion  you know to  go  and ce lebra te  D iwa l i  

par take i n  the  praye rs  and go  watch  f i reworks .   You 

cer ta in ly  do  no t  have to  leave your  phone because your  

phone i s  no t  dangerous to  the  f i reworks .   The f i reworks  

happen out  there  and you s i t t ing  here ,  even i f  they were  

near  by  the  phone is  no t  dangerous inso far  as  the  

f i reworks  un less  I  am adv ised o the rwise .   

But  in  a l l  fa i rness,  the  sequence o f  these events ,  

even i f  she wou ld  say i t  was on a  few occas ions tha t  she 

was asked to  leave the  phone.   I f  she  was not  par t  o f  a  20 

sens i t i ve  meet ing ,  why wou ld  she be  asked to  l eave her  

phone outs ide?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thanks,  I  th ink  pe rhaps in  f a i rness 

to  Mr  G igaba what  she is  desc r ib ing  here  a t  parag raph 22 
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and fu r the r  i s  no t  what  happened  when she a t tended the  

D iwa l i  func t ion .   I t  i s  what  she says happened when she  

a t tended meet ings tha t  you he ld  w i th  the  Gupta ’s .  

MR GIGABA:   The prob lem,  Mr  Cha i rperson wou ld  be  w i th  

tha t  vers ion  tha t  she was never  a  par t  o f  any meet ings.   

She was never  a  par t  o f  any  meet ings and  I  th ink  

somebody -  i f  I  had not  come to  a t tend any meet ing ,  un less  

she is  now a rgu ing  tha t  she came on her  own to  a t tend 

meet ings,  bu t  i f  she  says I  was the re  I  never  came there  to  

a t tend any meet ings.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  you unders tand tha t ,  thank 

you.   then you have a l ready touched on…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh,  o f  course  you  

have a  s i tua t ion  based on your  ev idence,  you wou ld  have 

gone there ,  as  we l l ,  jus t  to  soc ia l ise.   So I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  he r  ev idence is  tha t  each t ime you went  there  i t  

was fo r  meet ings,  fo rmal  meet ings or  whether  i t  was 

somet imes the  t rus t  jus t  v is i t s .  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink  Cha i rperson,  she says,  and she does  

not  say  on some occas ions.   So I  th ink  we shou ld ,  we  20 

shou ld  remove the  no t ion  tha t  she  sa id  on  some occas ions 

and because she leaves th is  open…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me say th is ,  some occas ions tha t  I  

was re fer r ing  to  ear l ie r,  i s  was when she was say ing  on  

some occas ions or  on  one occas ion ,  I  cannot  remember  
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wh ich  one A jay  Gupta  br ie fed  you about  a  meet ing  in  he r  

p resence.   That  tha t  was the  one i t  was not  about  the  ce l l  

phone,  i t  was about ,  I  th ink  about  the  ce l l  phones.   

My unders tand ing  was tha t  she was say ing  each  

t ime the  two o f  you went  to  the  Gupta  res idence tha t  was -  

i t  was requ i red  tha t  phones be –  they wou ld  keep them.  

MR GIGABA:   Perhaps then Cha i r  she might  have sa id  

tha t  in  one o f  her  th ree  ora l  tes t imon ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   Because in  the  a f f idav i t  she does not  make 10 

re ference to  o r  some occas ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR GIGABA:   She says Mr  Gupta  wou ld  ar r i ve  to  g reet  me  

and a f te r  some smal l  ta lk  he  wou ld  br ie f  Mr  G igaba on the  

meet ing  tha t  they  were  about  to  ho ld  in  an  ad jacent  p r iva te  

meet ing  room.   We wou ld  then o f ten  f ind ,  we o f ten  f ind  

e i ther  Mr  Mah langu or  Mr  Metson i ,  and a l l  o f  th is  i s  a  l ie .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So,  Mr  G igaba f rom paragraph 25 

onwards,  she dea ls  w i th  these b r ie f ings  and I  th ink  you  20 

have a l ready addressed i t ,  she  l i s t s  var ious top ics  tha t  she 

says you were  br ie fed  on  and you make the  po in t  a t  

parag raph 65,  where  you say:  

“A lo t  o f  what  i s  descr ibed here  a re  mat te rs  tha t  had  

been in  the  med ia  fo r  a  number  o f  years ,  and wou ld  
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account  fo r  Nomachu le  knowledge thereof .  I  deny  

tha t  dur ing  my tenure  a t  DPE I  have ever  in tended  

nor  in tended e tce tera . ”  

I t  i s  rea l l y  the  f i r s t  sentence tha t  i s  impor tan t ,  i s  tha t  what  

you say in  response to  he r  say ing  tha t  you were  b r ie fed  on  

a  va r ie ty  o f  i ssues?  

MR GIGABA:   I  never  had meet ings to  d i scuss these  

issues w i th  Mr  A jay  Gupta  and  in  my pa ragraph 63 I  

emphat ica l l y  den ied  i t  and I  say  tha t  she p icked  these  

th ings up  f rom the  med ia  and I  say  in  my capac i ty,  you are  10 

cor rec t .   I  had no author i t y  to  dea l  w i th  tenders ,  I  th ink  I  

have sa id  th is  ea r l ie r  even when I  was re fer r ing  to  the  so 

ca l led  rou t ine  commi tment  to  se t t le  the  Langa A t to rneys  

b i l l  tha t ,  I  have a lways ins is ted  tha t ,  as  a  Min is te r,  I  must  

be  conf ined to  my  execut ive  funct ion  and I  have never  t r ied  

to  ex tend my respons ib i l i t y  to  the  respons ib i l i t i es  o f  the  

account ing  o f f i cer,  e i ther  o f  the  depar tment  o r  o f  the  

en t i t ies  and so  I  wou ld  no t  seek to  d iscuss any o f  these  

th ing .  

And,  you know,  when I  was Min is te r  o f  Home 20 

A f fa i rs ,  and the  depar tment  wanted to  b r ie f  me about  a  

tenders  coming up in  the  depar tment ,  I  to ld  them tha t  no ,  

do  no t  even s ta r t ,  th is  top ic  mus t  be  taken back  to  the  

depar tment .  I t  must  be  hand led  by  the  account ing  o f f i cer,  i t  

does not  be long  to  me and I  have sa id  ear l ie r  tha t ,  i f  
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somebody came to  me to  sa t  bu t  Min i s te r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

d iscuss the  fo l low ing th ings re la t ing  to  tha t ,  SOE or  your  

depar tment ,  I  wou ld  re fer  them to  the  re levant  person,  

whom I  wou ld  have to ld  tha t  whoever  I  re fe r red  to  you,  I  do  

no t  do  so  fo r  the  purpose o f  ins t ruc t ing  you to  do  anyth ing  

wrong.   

I  am say ing  to  you,  you can out l ine  to  them or  even 

adv ise  them,  what  p rocesses to  fo l low in  te rms o f  what  

they are  ra is ing ,  bu t  you can even re fer  them to  jun io r  

o f f i c ia ls ,  i f  you  th ink  so .   But  inso far  as  I  am concerned,  I  10 

am not  go ing  to  be  d iscuss ing  tenders  re la t ing  to  

depar tments  and  espec ia l l y  SOE’s  they are  fa r  removed  

f rom me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you sa id  you d id  no t  d iscuss 

bus iness w i th  the  Gupta ’s ,  d id  t hey ever  t ry  to  ge t  to  

d iscuss bus iness w i th  you,  o r  tenders  and so  on ,  o r  

depar tmenta l  i ssues?  D id  they ever  t ry  and maybe you  

res i s ted  o r  d id  they never  t ry?  

MR GIGABA:   You know,  i t  wou ld  be  I  th ink  the  ins tances I  

wou ld  remember  wou ld  be  when we are  hav ing  those TNA 20 

SABC breakfas t  fo rums because then I  wou ld  be  -  I  wou ld  

usua l l y  be  the  main  cent re  o f  a t t rac t ion  and there  wou ld  

have been spec i f i c  p rograms tha t  I  had spoken about  and  

so ,  they wou ld  ra i se  those issues.   

Not  to  so l i c i t  a  tender  f rom me,  I  am a lso  qu i te  a  
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s tep  on  tes t ing  when i t  comes to  cer ta in  th ings,  and i f  

anybody wou ld  t ry  to  ra ise  th ings o f  tha t  na ture ,  I  w i l l  te l l  

them tha t  th is  does not  be long in  my -  w i th in  my purv iew.   

So any d iscuss ion  about  SOE’s  wou ld  rea l l y  a r i se  there  

because in  the  o ther  events  there  were  many o ther  peop le  

and the  d iscuss ions wou ld  range  f rom cr icke t  to  var ious  

o ther  th ings,  po l i t i cs ,  genera l l y  in  the  count ry,  po l i t i cs  

genera l l y  in  Ind ia ,  and we ta l k ing  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  paragraph 26,  perhaps I  10 

cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  comment .   I  th ink  Mr  G igaba you can 

accept  tha t  –  un less  I  te l l  you  o therwise  I  am re fer r ing  to  

Ms Mngoma’s  we p ick ing  our  way th rough th is .   

MR GIGABA:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So paragraph 26,  she says tha t  Mr  

G igaba to ld  me tha t  AJ Gupta  wanted h im to  ge t  r id  o f  Mr  

Dames.   Now you say tha t  i s  a  to ta l  fabr ica t ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:   And then she goes  on to  embel l i sh  her  own 

impor tance by  c la im ing tha t  hav ing  met  Mr  Dames,  she  20 

asked me why -  th is  i s  i r ra t iona l .  I t  i s  jus t  comple te ly,  

i r ra t iona l .   When she met  Mr  Dames,  what  was she meet ing  

Mr  Dames fo r?   What  was she d iscuss ing  w i th  h im wh ich  

led  her  to  a r r i ve  a t  the  conc lus ion  tha t  she cou ld  adv ise  

me?  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 288 of 313 
 

 That  -  no ,  no  Mr  Dames i s  a  good guy and then I  

responded by  say ing  tha t  the  Gupta ’s  do  no t  l i ke  h im,  

because there  are  th ings he  was supposed to  do ,  bu t  he  

d id  no t  do .   I  have made i t  ve ry  c lear  Cha i rperson tha t  th is  

i s  a  l ie  and I  am on record ,  I  th ink  in  one  o f  my  

submiss ions re la t ing  to  the  a f f idav i t ,  to  the  ev idence  led  by  

Mr  Tsots i  on  how I  managed or  hand led  the  res igna t ion  o f  

Mr  Dames and tha t  Mr  Dames res ignat ion  was based pure ly  

on  h is  d i f fe rences  w i th  the  Board .   

I  he ld  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  I  he ld  Mr  Dames in  h igh  10 

regard  and I  s t i l l  do .   I  be l ieved tha t  g iven the  va r ie ty  o f  

cha l lenges,  the  de lay  in  the  bu i l d  p rogram [speak ing  i n  

vernacu lar ] ,  the  need -  the  la rge  government  guarantee 

f ramework  tha t  Eskom had and the  need fo r  Eskom to  ra i se  

money in  the  market  to  fund the  comple t ion  o f  th is  p ro jec t .   

I  be l ieve  tha t  Mr  Dames be ing  h igh l y  regarded  in  the  

indust ry,  and in  the  market ,  i t  was  unt ime ly  and unwise  o f  

h im to  res ign .   I  t r ied  to  res is t  i t ,  I  even fac i l i ta ted  

meet ings be tween the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  Board  and Mr  

Dames and Mr  Tsots i  and Mr  Dames a t  my res idence in  20 

Pre tor ia  to  t ry  and reso lve  th is  and i t  was on ly  I  th ink ,  ve ry  

la te  or  very  ear ly,  no ,  no  very  la te  in  2013 tha t  Mr  Dames 

is  ca l led  me to  say,  Min is te r,  I  th ink  w i th  a l l  your  best  

in ten t ions,  and I  do  no t  in tend to  d isappo in t  you ,  bu t  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  res ign .  
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And I  sa id  to  h im,  I  accept  i t  w i th  a  heavy hear t  and 

then ins t ruc ted  the  Board  to  s ta r t  the  process.   A l l  o f  these  

th ings tha t  Ms  Mngoma i s  say ing  he re  a re  honest ly  

fabr ica t ions based on noth ing  bu t  an  in ten t ion  to  l ie .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  o f  cou rse ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she 

maybe say ing  because I  th ink  she does say  somewhere  

tha t  when Mr  Dames le f t ,  your  p re ference was fo r  h im to 

s tay  o r  you wanted h im to  s tay,  tha t  m ight  be  t rue .   

MR GIGABA:   That  i s  t rue ,  tha t  i s  t rue ,  Mr  Cha i rman.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    At  paragraphs 28 and  29,  Ms 

Mngoma dea ls  w i th  two occas ions where  she says Mr  A jay  

Gupta ,  v is i ted  you a t  your  home,  what  do  you say to  tha t? 

You d id  no t?   

MR GIGABA:   He d id  no t ,  tha t  i s  no t  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then she ta lks  about  the  fac t  

tha t  two o f  you he ld  meet ings a t  your  home,  what  do  you  

say to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:   When I  have a l ready den ied  i t ,  Cha i rperson  

there  were  no  such meet ings,  as  I  have sa id  and I  want  to  20 

re i te ra te  i t ,  I  do  no t  and d id  no t  d iscuss SOE tenders  w i th  

anyone.   I t  was not  my bus iness and the re fore ,  i f  anybody 

had in ten t ions to  d iscuss tenders ,  they needed to  go  to  the  

en t i t y  invo lved because I  was fa r  removed f rom the  supp ly  

cha in  process and the  procurement  p rocess -  no t  le t  a lone 
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in  the  SOE’s  bu t  in  the  depar tment  i t se l f .  

And so  there  was no such a  meet ing ,  Mr  Gupta  

never  came to  my res idence,  never  came to  d iscuss any  

tenders  w i th  me tha t  re la ted  to  Transnet  o r  Eskom and I  

a lso  do  not  know what  was th is  Eskom pro jec t  tha t  was  

g iv ing  me a  headache.   The b iggest  headache tha t  I  had,  

re la t ing  to  Eskom was about  Medup i  and Kus i le ,  the  de lays  

in  the  const ruc t ion  o f  those p ro jec t s .   

I  spent  the  res t  o f  2013,  we l l  no t  the  res t ,  g rea t  

par t s  o f  2013 t ry ing  to  reso lve  tha t  p rob lem because the  10 

count ry  was exper ienc ing  e lec t r i c i t y  shor tages.   The –  

Medup i  and Kus i le  had been  awarded pr io r  to  my 

appo in tment  as  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises ,  the  pr imary  

cont rac tors  o f  those two p ro jec ts  were  the  ones 

respons ib le  fo r  the  de lays .   

I  had t r ied  to  reso lve  the  labour  d i sputes  a t  Medup i ,  

I  had t r ied  to  reso lve  the  de lays  by  meet ing  w i th  the  

pr imary  cont rac tors  and I  summoned them to  Pre tor ia  

where  I  met  w i th  them and so  those were  the  main  

headaches I  was hav ing  w i th  regards to  Eskom.   I  do  wh ich  20 

o ther  headaches I  was hav ing  a t  Eskom.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    At  paragraph 30,  Ms Mngoma goes 

on to  dea l  w i th  a  t r ip  to  Ind ia .   She in i t ia l l y  sa id  i t  was in  

2010 but  you know,  she has cor rec ted  tha t  to  2015,  you  

want  to  comment  on  tha t ,  
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MR GIGABA:   There  was no such  meet ing  a t  my res idence  

to  d iscuss the  t r ip  to  Mumbai  and De lh i  and as  I  have sa id ,  

I  mean in  the  f i rs t  ins tance she makes the  c la im tha t  the  

meet ing  was in  2010,  and wh ich  is  no t  t rue .   Then she  

tu rns  around and says i t  was i n  2015,  bu t  leaves the  

contents  o f  the  meet ing ,  o f  the  so  ca l led  t r ip  in  2015 the  

same as o f  the  in i t ia l l y  a l leged t r ip  in  2010.   

Now in  2015,  I  wou ld  no t  have gone to  De lh i  and 

Mumbai ,  w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs ,  to  d iscuss  

the  SAA route  to  Mumbai ,  we were  d iscuss ing  someth ing  10 

e lse  and the  -  a l l  the  p lann ing  sess ions fo r  such a  t r ip  w i th  

the  depar tment  o f f i c ia ls  wou ld  have been in  the  o f f i ce  and  

they took p lace in  the  o f f i ce ,  none o f  them took p lace a t  my 

res idence.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then  you ment ioned in  your  

response tha t  on  your  2015 t r ip  you conducted bus iness i n  

l ine  w i th  your  po r t fo l io  as  the  Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes,  i t  was to  dea l  w i th  the  -  i t  was  main ly  

to  reso lve  v isa  issues tha t  were  t roub l ing  bus iness in  20 

Ind ia ,  those i ssues were  ra ised  w i th  me  by the  South  

A f r i can H igh  Commiss ioner  to  Ind ia ,  as  we l l  as  by  the  

Ind ian  Min i s te r  o f  Home Affa i r s  and so  we went  there ,  I  met  

w i th  a  v i sa  fac i l i ta t ion  serv ices ,  I  met  w i th  the  Min is te r  o f  

Home Affa i rs ,  we  t r ied  to  reso lve  those issues.   So those  



27 MAY 2021 – DAY 404 
 

Page 292 of 313 
 

were  the  issues tha t  we were  dea l i ng  w i th  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Did  the  meet ing  on  your  vers ion  

have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  South  A f r i can Mumbai  rou te?  

MR GIGABA:   Abso lu te ly  no t ,  I  was not  Min i s te r  o f  Home 

Affa i rs .   I  mean,  I  was not  Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises  in  

2015.   The Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Ente rpr ises  wou ld  have been  

rea l l y  o f fended i f  I  under took a  t r ip  to  Ind ia  to  go  dea l  w i th  

i ssues wh ich  be longed in  the i r  po r t fo l io  and the  Pres ident  

wou ld  no t  have  autho r ised the  t r ip  because fo r  any  

Min is te r  to  t rave l  abroad,  you  f i rs t  must  ob ta in  the  10 

permiss ion  o f  the  Pres ident  dur ing  wh ich  app l i ca t ion  fo r  

permiss ion  you s ta te  the  purpose fo r  you fo r  your  v is i t .  

And the  issues here  tha t  we were  dea l ing  w i th ,  had 

to  do  w i th  v isa  fac i l i ta t ion ,  par t i cu la r ly  be tween  BRICS 

count r ies  and South  A f r i ca  in  o rder  to  p romote  tour ism,  to  

increase the  numbers  o f  t rave l le rs  f rom Ind ia ,  f rom China,  

Braz i l  and Russ ia  and to  ensure  tha t  we i ron  ou t  the  

imped iments  to  such v isa  fac i l i ta t ion  g iven a lso  tha t  a t  the 

t ime South  A f r i ca  was imp lement ing  v isa  re forms,  and they 

were  c rea t ing  prob lems.   There  was a  shor tage o f  s ta f f ,  20 

espec ia l l y  a t  the  da i l y  o f f i ce  tha t  we needed to  dea l  w i th .  

There  were  compla in t s  by  Ind ian  bus iness peop le  in  

Mumbai  tha t  we needed to  dea l  w i th  and so  these were  the  

to ta l  package o f  the  issues I  was dea l ing  w i th ,  a l l  o f  those  

had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  Sou th  A f r i ca ,  Johannesburg  
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Mumbai  rou te .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Did  you dur ing  th is  t r ip  meet  A jay  

Gupta  in  Ind ia?   

MR GIGABA:   In  Ind ia?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   No.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Did  he ar range any meet ings  fo r  you 

to  a t tend in  Ind ia?   

MR GIGABA:   No,  he  d id  no t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can we then move to  the  top ic  o f  10 

pr io r  knowledge  o f  appo in tments  in  s ta te  owned 

enterpr i ses,  tha t  is  pa rag raph 31.1 ,  Ms Mngoma says :  

“A f te r  one o f  the  New Age breakfas t  sess ions Mr  

G igaba to ld  me tha t  B r ian  Mole fe  was go ing  to  be  

moved f rom Transnet  to  Eskom. ”  

MR GIGABA:   Th is is  –  th is  is  not  t rue.  Chai rperson when I  

was Min is ter  o f  Publ i c  Enterpr ises the – the fact  is  Mr 

Molefe was CEO of  Transnet  and there was no p lan to  move 

h im f rom Transnet  at  least  not  on my s ide.    

I  have heard the ear l ie r  vers ion that  was presented 20 

apparent ly  by – was i t  Mr Essa ta lk ing to  Mr Bester.   I  have 

heard about  that  but  to  my knowledge – because even as 

the board af ter  I  accepted Mr Gama’s res ignat ion  Mr  Molefe  

was not  one o f  the appl i cants  the board were not  

consider ing h im as the Chai rperson – I  mean as the CEO of  
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Eskom.   

Mr Matona as fac ts s tand would be  appointed as the  

CEO of  Eskom obviously af te r  I  had le f t  the  Depar tment  of  

Publ ic  Enterpr ises and he remained in  that  posi t ion for  I  do 

not  know s ix  months to  a year.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A few months ja .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja a few months ja .  

MR GIGABA:   He remained in  that  posi t ion for  a  few months  

and – and so when – when I  was there Mr Molefe was not  in  10 

the running for  the posi t ion of  Group CEO.   

 Where th is  comes f rom I  do not  know.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:  So  you –  you – your  te rm as the  

Min is te r  o f  Publ ic  Enterpr ises that  run unt i l  the end of  May 

2014,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You cor rect  in  recount ing the evidence 

of  Mr Bester  because i t  seems that  he says in  tha t  month 

cer ta in ly  i t  was –  must  have been af ter  the end of  Apr i l  i t  

probably was in  the month of  May that  he was to ld  that  by  20 

Mr Essa that  Mr Molefe would be moving.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes that  i s  what  I  have heard here  

Chai rperson and as I  say in  – in  my understanding there  

was someone e lse that  the board was recommending as the  

CEO of  Eskom.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then at  paragraph 31.2  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe and I  put  i t  –  th is  no h igher  than 

th is  that  maybe there may have been an in tent ion in  cer ta in  

quar ters that  Mr Molefe should be  – go  to  Eskom ear l ie r  

than he actual l y  d id  and somebody e lse was appointed and 

that  person maybe that  might  expla in why that  person was 

not  a l lowed to stay too long.    

He only s tayed fo r  about  f ive months or  so and then  

had to leave – was suspended and so on.   I  am not  saying 

that  you had any knowledge of  that  but  I  am just  saying  10 

when there had been on Mr Bester ’s  vers ion which has now 

been corroborated by somebody e lse who was in  that  

meet ing wi th  Mr Sal im Essa when there is  –  there was that  

ev idence that  Mr Sal im Essa sa id in  2014 a l ready that  Mr –  

that  the next  boss of  Eskom would  be Br ian Molefe and we 

know that  the next  boss was not  h im but  Mr Matona – but  he 

d id not  s tay too long he le f t  under cer ta in  c i rcumstances 

and then Br ian Molefe was appointed and he took over.    

So i t  may wel l  be that  Mr Matona was not  the  

p lanned boss of  Eskom and that  is  why he had to leave 20 

af ter  a  shor t  s t in t .    

MR GIGABA:   I  would not  know th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you would no t  – you would no t  –  you 

might  not  be able to  say 

MR GIGABA:   I  would not  know.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  one is  t ry ing  to  make sense o f  some 

of  these th ings.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.   I  understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay A l l  r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  paragraph 41.2  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  She goes on to  say that :  

“Mr Gigaba a lso to ld  me that  Mr Gama would 

be appointed as the Chief  Execut ive Off icer  

of  Transnet . ”  10 

 In  her  ev idence she cor rected that  to  – to  the effect  

that  you to ld  her  that  Mr Gama would be re instated  as the 

CEO of  Transnet  Fre ight  Rai l .  

MR GIGABA:   I  sa id I  to ld  Ms Mngoma that  Mr Gama would 

be re instated.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  That  is  what  she says.  

MR GIGABA:   No,  no.   No Chai r  that  is  not  t rue – that  is  not  

t rue.   Ms Mngoma por t rays  a p ic tu re here of  me repor t ing  to  20 

her  everyth ing.   No th is  i s  the  same person who has 

c la imed at  one occasion to  be responsib le for  the smart  ID 

card at  Home Affa i rs .    

Th is is  the same person who has c la imed to – to  

have an IT degree to  hold a management  advancement  
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program,  to  have a – an IT degree f rom Vaga and so on.   

She has the ab i l i ty  to  embel l i sh her  CV and her  own 

importance in  events.   

And i t  is  qu i te  c lear  to  me that  a l l  o f  these issues 

that  are stated here were del ibera te ly  const ructed.   That  is  

why they took so long.   Were del iberate ly  const ructed to  

por t ray a p ic ture  of  –  of  be l ievab i l i ty  when in  actual  fact  

they are not .   There is  absolute ly  no way that  I  would have 

you know repor ted to  her  a l l  o f  these th ings.   In  the l ine of  

my work I  be l ieved you know I  am sworn to  secrecy.   I  have 10 

to  t reat  th ings as conf ident ia l  unt i l  they are off ic ia l ly  

communicated.   

And that  swear ing to  secrecy appl ies even in  the  

fami ly  envi ronment  because i f  you go and speak whether  to  

your  wi fe  or  your  ch i ld ren you do not  know how that  

in format ion is  go ing to  be ut i l ised especia l ly  in  an  

envi ronment  where you a l ready know that  a  person you 

might  be br ie f ing  has no abi l i ty  to  hold secrets and could 

actual ly  use th is  in fo rmat ion to  bolste r  the i r  own 

importance.    20 

And so h is  i s  not  t rue.   I  never  to ld  her  about  Gama 

being GCE of  Transnet  nor  d id  I  say to  her  he would be 

re instated as the  CEO of  Transnet  Fre ight  Rai l .   In  actual  

fact  many of  these correct ions to  the or ig ina l  –  to  her  

or ig ina l  a ff idavi t  happened because she had s ight  o f  my 
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a ff idavi t  and now she was t ry ing to  reconsign  [? ]  her  

or ig ina l  l ies wi th  my response so  that  she appears to  be 

credib le when in  actual  fact  even in  the at tempt  she fa i led 

d ismal ly.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So can we then – do I  understand 

your  ev idence cor rect ly  that  you never  d iscussed your  work  

wi th  Ms Mngoma at  a l l .  

MR GIGABA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So whatever… 

MR GIGABA:   And to the extent  Chai r  –  sorry to  jump in to  10 

your  mouth.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sure.  

MR GIGABA:   To the extent  tha t  I  would have to ld  her  

anyth ing i t  would be someth ing tha t  is  a l ready in  the  publ ic  

domain that  i s  a l ready out  there known by everyone.   But  to  

come and d iscuss conf ident ia l  issues that  i s  not  t rue .    

But  I  deny emphat ica l l y  that  I  knew – le t  a lone 

d iscuss wi th  her  that  I  even knew that  Mr Gama would in  

2015 act  as CEO of  Transnet  or  that  Mr Molefe would be  

appointed as CEO of  Eskom.   20 

Those th ings I  d id  not  know because at  the t ime I  

le f t  the Department  of  Publ ic  Enterpr ises the processes 

were going in  a complete ly  d i f fe ren t  d i rect ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She goes on to  say at  paragraph 31.3 

that :  
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“Mr Gigaba a lso to ld  me that  he in tended to  

speak to  Mr Gama to appoint  h is  s is ter  Ms 

Gugu Gigaba to Transnet . ”  

She says:  

“To the best  o f  my knowledge Gugu Gigaba 

was appointed and remains employed there. ”  

MR GIGABA:   Th is is  a  very pre judic ia l  to  my s is te r.   My 

s is ter  i s  a  professional  in  her  own r ight .   She –  she is  

qual i f ied in  what  she does as an analyt i ca l  chemist ,  in  

pro ject  management  and her  extensive exper ience at  10 

SAPPI ,  Mkomaz [?]  where she worked unt i l  she res igned 

because of  heal th  issues,  moved to Johannesburg and 

spent  a b i t  o f  t ime in  Johannesburg looking fo r  employment  

unt i l  there was an opportuni ty  for  which she appl ied at  

Transnet  and due process was undertaken.    

How do I  feature?  I  feature only  in  assis t ing you 

know in  assis t ing to  forward her  CV because she was 

exper iencing technica l  p roblems so she asked me can you 

p lease assis t  me to forward my CV.  Meanwhi le  – and then I  

sa id to  her  e ish I  know someone Mr Mlambo Buthelez i  I  w i l l  20 

forward i t  to  h im and th is  is  2016 when I  have long le f t  

Publ i c  Enterpr ises.    

I  forwarded i t  to  Mr Buthelez i  and I  say can you 

p lease fo rward th is  CV to wherever  i t  needs to  go.   And he 

sa id to  me yes I  wi l l  but  Min is ter  I  do not  want  to  be seen 
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by  my subord inates  to  be  in f luencing them in any par t i cu lar  

d i rect ion but  I  wi l l  forward i t  and they wi l l  take i t  f rom there.   

I  w i l l  b r ie f  them as such and I  took i t  in  good fa i th  and le f t  i t  

there wi th  h im.   And then the process unfo lded.    

That  is  why there is  that  00:11:32 between me 

forward ing the CV and the actual  processes of  the shor t  

l is t ings,  the in terv iews,  the appointments tak ing p lace 

because there was no at tempt  on  my par t  o r  Mr Gama.   I  

never  spoke to Mr Gama about  i t .  For  my s is ter  to  be  

appointed.    10 

Now why is  th is  l ie  be ing made because of  the  

b i t terness.   The anger,  the b i t terness,  the v ind ict iveness,  

the at tempt  that  i f  the marr iage fa i ls  then everybody re lated  

to  th is  guy must  then be dragged through the mud,  

dest royed in  order for  me to get  my revenge.    

I t  is  unfor tunate but  I  want  to  put  i t  emphat ica l l y  that  

I  never  spoke to Mr Gama and I  on ly  fo rwarded the  CV Mr 

Mlambo Buthelez i  and sa id to  h im I  th ink as the –  as the 

emai l  sa id (speak ing in  vernacular ) .  As I  had spoken to you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gigaba why – what  makes you 20 

say that  what  Ms Mngoma says at  paragraph 31.3 was on 

her  vers ion when you were at  the DPE.  

MR GIGABA:   I  beg your  pardon.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You say that  a t  your  paragraph 83.  

“Given that  I  am const ra int  to  deal  wi th  
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these a l legat ions I  must  immedia te ly  deny 

that  Nom – tha t  I  to ld  Nomchu le that  I  

in tended to speak to  Mr Gama to appoint  my 

s is ter  to  Transnet .   My s is te r  was appointed  

at  Transnet  long af ter  I  le f t  DPE af te r  

fo l lowing due process. ”  

 Are you suggest ing that  Ms Gigaba is  saying that  

th is  happened whi ls t  you were at  the DPE? 

MR GIGABA:   No I  am not  suggest ing that .   I  am put t ing  

context  to  the process of  her  appl i cat ion and the fact  that  i t  10 

cannot  be c la imed that  I  used my posi t ion e i ther  at  DPE or  

my knowledge of  Mr Gama to ask  h im for  a  reward for  – fo r 

having being re instated as CE of  TFR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  do you know that  Mr 

Buthelez i  was of  course Mr Gama’s  COO.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  am aware.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   Can we just  go to  the  

documents.   You have a l ready… 

MR GIGABA:   But  Mr Buthelez i  i s  not  Mr  Gama.   The two 

people are two separate  ind iv idua ls and – and should be  20 

t reated as such.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can I  ask you to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id – I  am sor ry.   You said af ter  you 

sent  h im th is  – the CV.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   He sa id he would forward i t  to  h is  

subord inates.   He d id not  want  to  be seen to be in f luencing  

the – I  th ink that  i s  what  you sa id.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes that  is  what  he sa id to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  I  th ink  you a lso sa id he  sa id he 

would br ie f  them.  

MR GIGABA:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought  – I  thought  you sa id – you sa id  

he a lso sa id he would br ie f  them.  

MR GIGABA:   No,  no Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id I  not  hear  p roper ly?  

MR GIGABA:   I  d id  not .   He d id  not  say he wou ld br ie f  

them,  he sa id I  wi l l  forward i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Hm.   I  th ink  you a lso  sa id  he  sa id  he  

wou ld  br i e f  them.  

MR GIGABA :    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  thought  you sa id  he  a l so  sa id  he  

wou ld  br i e f  them.  

MR GIGABA :    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  I  no t  hear  p roper ly?  20 

MR GIGABA :    I  d id  no t .   He d id  no t  say  he  wou ld  br ie f  

them.   I  sa id :   I  w i l l  fo rward  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GIGABA :    Or,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  sa id :   I  w i l l  b r ie f  

them.   He was say ing :   I  w i l l  b r ie f  them tha t  there  is  no  
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p ressure  or  expecta t ion .   They need to  fo l low due process.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GIGABA :    So  tha t  was a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  you  go to  page 996.2  o f  your  

bund le . . .    

MR GIGABA :    I  am look ing  a t  the  wrong f i le .   Sor ry.   No,  

no .   Sor ry,  I  was l ook ing  a t  the  r igh t  f i l e .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.    

MR GIGABA :    N ine . . .   Yes,  996.2 .   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  the  emai l  s t r ing ,  r igh t?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  the  –  Gugu sends you her  CV.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you then sent  i t  on to 

Mr  Buthe lez i .  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And here  was the  i ssue –  we got  an  

Eng l ish  t rans la t ion  jus t  fo r  the  purpose o f  the  record .   You 

w i l l  see  a t  996.3  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The t rans la t ion  is :   The mat te r  I  to ld  

you about .  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  here  was the  mat te r  I  to ld  you  
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about  o r  the  issue I  to ld  you about?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then Mr  Buthe lez i  fo rwarded the  

CV to  Mr  Rav i  Na i r.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Who,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  was then 

the  CEO of  Transnet  F re igh t  Ra i l .   And he says:   Thanks,  

Ch ie f .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now can we then go  back to  10 

the  schedu le?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And dea l  w i th  th i s  head ing :   

Tens ions R is ing .   Perhaps I  can  jus t  summar ise  fo r  you 

what  i s  sa id  by  Ms Mngoma in  paragraphs 32 and 33.   She  

s tar ts  o f f  by  say ing  tha t :  

“As your  tenure  as  Min i s te r  DPE progressed,  

you o f ten  to ld  her  tha t  the  Guptas  were  pu t t ing  

pressure  on  you fo r  var ious reasons. . . ”  

 And then a t  33 ,  she says:  20 

“Dur ing  ear l y  2014,  the  re la t ionsh ip  became 

s t ra ined. . . ”  

 She re fers  aga in  to  the  fac t  tha t  the  Guptas  

wanted you to  ge t  r id  o f  Mr  Damas and she exp la ins  you,  

on  her  ve rs ion ,  s ta r ted  avo id ing  te lephone ca l l s ,  e t  ce te ra .   
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And I  suppose the  s t ing  a t  the  ta i l  and tha t  i s  the  end ing  

where  i t  i s  contended towards the  end o f  parag raph 33,  

she says:  

“Mr  G igaba a lso  to ld  me tha t  AJ Gupta  to ld  h im 

tha t  i f  he  wanted to  run  the  DPE as he  w ished,  

he  wou ld  move  back to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Home Affa i r s .  

I  unders tood tha t  Mr  AJ Gupta  wou ld  o f ten  te l l  

Mr  G igaba tha t  he  shou ld  remember  why he 

was appo in ted  a t  the  DPE. . . ”  10 

 Now your  answer  or  response to  tha t  i s :  

“Th is  i s ,  once aga in ,  a  to ta l  fabr ica t ion . . . ”  

 Do you have anyth ing  to  add to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.   You see,  I  have a l ready 

out l ined th is  and the  l ie ,  the  fa ls i f ica t ion  tha t  i t  i s .   Le t  me  

s tar t  by  say ing .   Becoming Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs  i s  no t  

pun ishment .   In  ac tua l  fac t ,  to  be  a  m in is te r  in  any  

depar tment  i s  an  honour.   There  is  no  depar tment ,  you 

know,  in  the  sys tem o f  government  in  South  A f r i ca ,  there  is  

no  depar tment  tha t  i s  above a l l  o thers .  20 

 The sen ior i t y  o f  m in is te rs  in  ou r  government  i s  

de termined by  the  year  on  wh ich  you were  appo in ted  

min is te r.   I t  i s  no t  de te rmined by  the  po r t fo l io  tha t  you 

ho ld .   I t  i s  peop le ’s  percept ions tha t  there  is  a  m in is t r y  

above o thers ,  sen io r  to  o thers .   Min is te r  o f  F inance or  
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Min is te r  o f  th is ,  Min is te r  o f  In te rnat iona l  Re la t ions.    

 No,  no ,  no .   Not  in  the  South  A f r i can sys tem o f  

government .   So i t  i s  –  eve rybody who does not  unders tand  

or  anybody who  does not  unders tand the  sys tem o f  

government  in  South  A f r i ca ,  wou ld  then ar r i ve  a t  the  

conc lus ion  tha t  no  i f  you  are  Min i s te r  o f  Home Affa i rs  –  I  

read even in  the  med ia .   When I  was appo in ted  Min is te r  o f  

Home Affa i rs  in  2014,  some med ia  was say ing :   G igaba 

demoted.    

 So i t  was not  on ly,  you know,  Ms Mngoma who 10 

thought  I  was demoted.   The media ,  some in  the  med ia  

were  say ing :   G igaba demoted to  the  Depar tment  o f  Home 

Affa i rs .   And prov ided a l l  sor ts  o f  reason fo r  why tha t  wou ld  

have happened.   The fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t  becoming  

Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs  was not  pun ishment .   Second ly,  

there  was never  an  ins tance where  Mr  AJ Gupta  wou ld  say 

to  me tha t  I  must  remember  tha t  they appo in ted  me a t  

Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  o r  tha t  i f  I  do  no t  do  the i r  b idd ing  I  

wou ld  be  send back to  Home Affa i r s .  

 Th is  th ings has been a  we l l - t rumped up a l legat ion  20 

in  the  med ia  o f ten  repeated as  i f  i t  was t rue  and  tha t  i s  

where  Ms Mngoma,  most  cer ta in ly,  ob ta ined th is ,  so  tha t ,  

aga in ,  she can embel l i sh  he r  impor tance by  c la im ing tha t  I  

to ld  her  th is ,  I  to ld  her  tha t ,  I  to ld  her  the  o the r  th ing  

w i thout  any bas is ,  in  fac t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can we then tu rn  to  the  head ing :   

Mr  G igaba ’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Ms Myen i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you  do tha t ,  Mr  Myburgh.   

Mr  G igaba,  we es tab l i shed ear l ie r  on  tha t  on  your  vers ion  

as  we l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . your  re la t i onsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas  

coo led  o f f  in  2014.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Now,  as  I  unders tand what  she  10 

says he re ,  tha t  i s  someth ing  s im i la r  tha t  she is  say ing .   So 

maybe i t  was not  t rue  tha t  th is  i s  a l l  –  th is  par t  o f  i t  a l l  i s  

to ta l  fabr ica t ion .   Maybe there  is  someth ing  tha t  i s  t rue  bu t  

maybe then,  on  your  vers ion ,  a  lo t  o f  what  i s  in  the 

parag raph is  no t  t rue  bu t  there  seems to  be  someth ing  in  

te rms o f  tha t ,  a t  leas t .   Would  you agree?  

MR GIGABA :    The on ly  th ing ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  t rue  is  

tha t  the  re la t ions  coo led  o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :    That  i s  the  on ly  th ing .   But  the  reasons fo r  20 

the  coo l ing  o f f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :    . . .a re  a  fab r ica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  cannot  remember  what  you –  I  th ink 

you d id  say wha t  the  reasons were  ea r l ie r  bu t  I  cannot  
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remember.   What  were  the  reasons tha t  made the  

re la t ionsh ip  to  coo l  o f f  on  your  vers ion?  Because she 

g ives her  own reasons but  you say those are  no t  t rue .   

What  were  –  why do you th ink  i t  coo led  o f f?  

MR GIGABA :    They coo led  o f f ,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  la rge ly  

because o f  name dropp ing  and there  were  r i s i ng  concerns 

about  the  fami l y  and so  I  dec ided tha t  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  me 

to  a lso  jus t  take  a  s tep  back.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    Bu t  the  reason fo r  the  coo l ing  o f f ,  I  th ink 10 

the  Commiss ion  shou ld  re ly  more  on  my vers ion  as  the  

person who had the  re la t ionsh ip  than her  ve rs ion  un less  

she is  ta lk ing  about  her  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them.   Then I  

th ink  she can have author i t y  to  ta lk  about  her  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  them,  ra ther  than to  ta lk  about  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

them.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  one,  you say they were  us ing  your  

name in  te rms o f  name dropp ing ,  number  one.   Number  

two,  the  image have become ta in ted  because o f  what  was  

be ing  sa id  about  them in  the  med ia .   I s  tha t  – tha t  i s  what  20 

caused the  re la t ionsh ip  to  coo l  o f f?  

MR GIGABA :    Not  on ly  my name,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  the  

names o f  var ious  o ther  peop le .   The Pres ident  –  they were  

us ing  the  name o f  the  Pres ident .   Wi l l  p ick ing  up .   They are  

us ing  the  names  o f  o ther  m in is te rs  and o the r  leaders ,  
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e i ther  DP ’s  or  CEO’s .    

 And you know,  one th inks  tha t  your  c red ib i l i t y  

cou ld  a l so  be  on  the  l ine  and because you do no t  know 

where  your  name is  be ing  used  and fo r  what  purposes.   

And g iv ing  a l l  the  concerns,  the  pub l i c  concerns tha t  were  

be ing  ra ise ,  one thought  tha t  i t  i s  necessary  to  s tep  back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   From paragraph 34  

onwards.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ms Mngoma dea ls  w i th  your  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Ms Myen i .   I  jus t  want  to  ask  you to  

comment  on  her  a l legat ion  tha t :  Ms Myen i  fac i l i ta ted  your  

honeymoon t r ip  to  Maur i t ius . . . ”   And as  I  reca l l  he r  

ev idence,  i t  ac tua l l y  was a  t r ip  to  Maur i t ius  be fo re  your  

wedd ing .   What  do  you say to  the  a l legat ion  tha t  Ms Myen i  

fac i l i ta ted  th is  t r ip?  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  be  aware  o f  th is .   

You see,  when I  met  Ms Mngoma,  she p ro jec ted  to  me an 

image o f  the  h igh f ly ing  ind i v idua l  who was f rom a  very  20 

we l l - to -do  fami ly.   She had to ld  me tha t  her  fa ther  was a  

bus inessman l i v i ng  in  New York  C i ty,  tha t  she  herse l f  

regu lar l y  v i s i ted  New York  C i ty  o r  on  occas ion  wou ld  w in  

awards f rom Mark  Shut t lewor th  tha t  wou ld  requ i re  he r  to  go 

to  do  some work  in  New York  C i ty.  
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 She wou ld  come to  see me in  d i f fe ren t  veh ic les  

tha t  I  –  tha t  she sa id  were  he rs  inc lud ing  an  ML 320 

veh ic le ,  a  BMW 120 Ser ies  veh ic le  and so  on .   A wh i te  

veh ic le  tha t  she c la imed was –  so r ry,  I  am no longer  sure  

whethe r  i t  was wh i te  o r  another  co lou r  bu t  she brought  tha t  

veh ic le .   I t  was a  120 ser ies .   Now I  knew her  to  be  th is  

h igh f ly ing  IT execut ive  who had worked a t  IBM.   Who had 

worked a t  va r ious o ther  top  no tch  we l l -pay ing  IT 

compan ies .  

 A round 2011 or  ’ 12 ,  I  th ink  around 2011,  she then 10 

to ld  me tha t  her  fa ther  in  New York  C i ty  passed away and  

le f t  her  a  very,  ve ry  handsome inher i tance tha t  was he ld  on  

her  beha l f  by  he r  unc le  ca l led  Ntogo(?) .   I  never  met  th is  

Ntogo.   And so ,  my unders tand ing  was tha t  th is  was a  very  

wea l thy  woman f rom a  we l l - to -do  fami ly  whose re la t i ves  

were  l i v ing  in  New York  and var ious o the r  p laces.  

 She had l i ved  w i th  her  fa ther  in  Musgrave in  

Durban wh i le  she  was a  s tudent  a t  Nata l  Techn ikon or  MSL 

Techn ikon,  wh ich  tu rns  ou t  was a l so  no t  t rue .   So when –  

a f te r  ou r  wedd ing ,  I  was in  a  meet ing  i n  Johannesburg  20 

when she came and sa id :   We have a  –  we have to  go  on  

honeymoon.   I  d id  no t  quest ion  he r.   I  do  no t  th ink  anybody 

quest ions –  you  know,  you say  you quest ion  your  w i fe  

when they say –  and you th ink  they have the  means .    

 When they say  to  you:   I  have a  su rpr ise  fo r  you.   I  
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am tak ing  you on  ho l iday.   Remember  tha t  Maur i t ius  i s  a lso  

no t  –  i t  i s  a  f i ve  hours  t r ip  away by  SAA which  shou ld  be  

qu i te  a f fo rdab le ,  even by  somebody o f  a  modest  sa la ry  o f  a  

m in is te r  bu t  in  th is  case,  th is  was my wea l thy  w i fe .  

 And so  we –  I  went  on  ho l iday in  Maur i t ius  wh ich  

was our  honeymoon.   We en joyed ourse lves.   I  cannot  

remember  whethe r  we spent  two or  th ree  days and then we  

came back.   So tha t ,  the  t r ip  was fac i l i ta ted  by  Ms Myen i .   

I  on ly  heard  i t  for  the  f i rs t  t ime f rom Ms Mngoma because  

a l l  a long -  he r  to  be  respons ib le  fo r  the  t r ip  and tha t  she  10 

pa id  fo r  i t  f rom her  inher i tance and wea l th .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  do you accept  tha t  th is  t r ip  was 

fac i l i ta ted  by  Ms Myen i?  

MR GIGABA:    No I  don ’ t  accep t  i t ,  I  have no reason to  

accept  o r   no t  accept  i t  because  I  was not  aware  tha t  i t  

was fac i l i ta ted  by  Ms Myen i ,  as  I  have exp la ined in  my long  

response my unders tand ing  unt i l  I  read i t  here  was  tha t  i t  

was fac i l i ta ted  by  Ms Mngoma as par t  o f  he r  means  

because she had pro jec ted  he rse l f  as  a  woman o f  means.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh I  see we a re  n ine ,  now we 20 

were  go ing  not  to  have Monday  and Tuesday ava i lab le  

because the  Pres ident  was go ing  to  be  tes t i f y ing ,  I  am 

wonder ing  whether  we shou ld  no t  exp lore  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  

cont inu ing  i f  eve rybody is  ava i lab le ,  a t  some s tage e i ther  

on  Monday,  maybe not  s ta r t ing  i n  the  morn ing  because I  
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th ink  I  have got  an  even ing  sess ion ,  because wha t  m ight  

be  le f t  m ight  no t  be  a  lo t ,  I  am not  sure ,  so  maybe s tar t ing  

in  the  a f te rnoon,  sub jec t  obv ious ly  to  Mr  G igaba ’s  

ava i lab i l i t y  and h i s  lega l  team,  and  your  own s i tua t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am ava i lab le ,  I  was –  I  thought  we  

wou ld  be  quest ion ing  the  Pres ident  so  I  am cer ta in l y  

ava i lab le ,  I  suppose I  must  jus t  f ind  ou t  f rom Mr  So lomon i f  

he  wou ld  be .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  So lomon what  i s  your  s i tua t ion  

about  tha t?  10 

ADV SOLOMON:    Cha i r  yes  Monday a f te rnoon wou ld  be  

f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Monday a f te rnoon wou ld  be  f ine?  

ADV SOLOMON:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  G igaba what  i s  your  s i tua t ion?  

MR GIGABA:    I  am a t  your  d isposa l  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.   What  i s  your  es t imate  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  don ’ t  th ink  we w i l l  take  more  than  

another  two hours ,  I  suppose we must  jus t  bear  in  m ind,  as  20 

I  have i t ,  Ms Mngoma’s  c ross-examinat ion  i s  se t  fo r  fou r  

o ’c lock ,  so  I  th ink  i t  p robab ly  work  we l l  i f  we s ta r ted  a t  two  

and then f lowed in to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .    Mr  So lomon we are  th ink ing  o f  

two o ’c lock ,  i s  tha t  f ine? 
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ADV SOLOMON:   That  i s  in  o rder  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay no tha t  i s  f ine  then,  le t  us 

ad journ  fo r  today  and then we w i l l  p roceed on Monday a t  

two pm.     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SOLOMON:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you to  everybody fo r  a l l  your  

coopera t ion  fo r  us  to  be  ab le  to  s i t  un t i l  th is  t ime ,  thank 

you ve ry  much.   We are  now ad jou rned.  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 28 MAY 2021  


